
TENNESSEE STATE FUNDING BOARD 

SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 

AGENDA 

1. Call meeting to order

2. Approval of minutes from the August 13, 2015, State Funding Board meeting

3. Report from the Department of Economic and Community Development (ECD) for approval of 

funding for the following projects:

• Amedysis Holding, LLC -Nashville (Davidson Co.)

FastTrack Economic Development

• Denso Manufacturing Tennessee, Inc. - Maryville (Blount Co.) 

FastTrack Infrastructure Development

• Ryder Integrated Logistics -Spring Hill (Maury Co.) 

FastTrack Job Training Assistance

$ 900,000 

$5,000,000 

$ 606,000 

4. Consideration for approval of"A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Issuance and Sale

of General Obligation Bonds of the State of Tennessee" and delegation of authority to sell and 

fix the details of the bonds

5. Consideration for approval of modification to general obligation bond project pursuant to TCA

9-9-113(b)

6. Adjourn



TENNESSEE STATE FUNDING BOARD
August 13, 2015

The Tennessee State Funding Board (the "Board") met on Thursday, August 13,2015, at 11:52 a.m., in the
Legislative Plaza, Room LP-30, Nashville, Tennessee. The following members were present:

The Honorable Tre Hargett, Secretary ofthe State of Tennessee
The Honorable Justin Wilson, Comptroller ofthe Treasury
The Honorable David Lillard, State Treasurer
Commissioner Larry Martin, Department ofFinance and Administration
The following members were absent:
The Honorable Bill Haslam, Governor

Seeing a physical quorum present, Mr. Wilson called the meeting to order and asked for approval of the
minutes from the June 23, 2015, Board meeting. Mr. Hargett made a motion to approve the minutes.
Commissioner Martin seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved.
Mr. Wilson then recognized Mr. Allen Borden, Assistant Commissioner, Department of Economic and
Community Development ("ECD"), to present FastTrack projects for consideration and Mr. Paul
VanderMeer, Senior Financial Advisor, ECD, to present the Fasfrrack funding report. Mr. VanderMeer
reported that, as ofthe date of the last Board meeting, the FastTrack balance was $114.8 million and since
that time new appropriations for fiscal year 2016 were received in the amount of$72.2 million, $6.0million
in funds had been deobligated and returned to the FastTrack program and $13.4 million in new loans had
been approved, which left an adjusted FastTrack balance available for funding grants or loans of $179.6
million as of today's meeting. Mr. VanderMeer reported that there were $127.4 million in commitments,
resulting in an uncommitted FastTrack balance of $52.2million. Mr. VanderMeer reported that the projects
to be considered at this meeting totaled $8.0 million, and if these projects were approved, the uncommitted
balance would be approximately $44.2 million, or 75.4 % ofFastTrack funds committed.

Mr. Borden stated that the projects were being presented to the Board because state law required that
FastTrack projects in amounts exceeding $750,000 per eligible business within any three-year period be
reviewed and approved by the Board. Mr. Borden then presented the following Fasfrrack projects:
• Resolute Forest Products US, Inc. - Calhoun (McMinn Co.)

FastTrack Job Training Assistance $ 787,500

* Gestamp Chattanooga, LLC - Chattanooga (Hamilton Co.)
FastTrack Economic Development $5,500,000

* De-Sta-Co Industries -Mt. Juliet (Wilson Co.)
Fasfrrack Economic Development $ 580,000
FastTrack Job Training Assistance $ 420,000

* ARC Automotive, Inc. -Hartsville (Trousdale Co.)
FastTrack Economic Development $ 272,100
FastTrack Job Training Assistance $ 132,000
FastTrack Infrastructure Development $ 263,900



Mr. Wilson stated that the Board received a signed letter from Mr. Randy Boyd, Commissioner of ECD,
which stated that the projects met all the statutory requirements, and a signed FastTrack Checklist for each
of the projects under consideration. Mr. Wilson inquired if the information contained in the letter and
checklists was true and correct, and ifthe signature was that ofCommissioner Boyd. Mr. Borden responded
affirmatively. Mr. Hargett made a motion to approve the FastTrack grants for the projects presented.
CommissionerMartin seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved.
Mr. Wilson then presented for consideration and approval a "Resolution to Amend the Resolution
Allocating Funds to Defray a Portion ofthe Cost ofHighway Construction Products and to Cancel a Like
Amount of Bonds Authorized for That Purpose". Mr. Wilson noted that this amended and restated the
resolution of the same title which was approved in the prior board meeting. The previously approved
resolution had a typographical error. Mr. Lillard made amotion to approve the Resolution. Commissioner
Martin seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved.
Mr. Wilson then presented for consideration and approval a "Resolution Allocating from the Debt Service
Fund to the Capital Projects Fund $440,064.00 and Canceling a Like AmountofBonds Authorized for That
Purpose". Mr. Hargett made a motion to approve the Resolution. Commissioner Martin seconded the
motion, and it was unanimously approved.
Mr. Wilson then recognized Ms. Sandra Thompson, Director of the Office of State and Local Finance
("OSLF") and Secretary to the Board, who presented for consideration a recommendation to select the
remarking agent for the State of Tennessee's (the "State") general obligation commercial paper program
(the "CP Program"). Ms. Thompson stated OSLF sent Requests for Proposals (RFP) to 12 investment
banking firms and received 8 proposals. Ms. Thompson explained that ofthe remaining proposers, 3 firms
were eliminated based on lack of experience comparative to the other firms and 1 was eliminated due to
pervious service levels as a remarketing agent for another program. Ms. Thompson stated that OSLF then
contacted the references of 3 of the remaining 4 firms, and all references were positive related to service
levels and performance as remarking agent; the 4th of the remaining firms under consideration was the
State's current remarking agent and the State had received exceptional service from that firm. Ms.
Thompson then stated that OSLF along with the State's financial advisor, Public Financial Management,
evaluated the proposed compensation of the 4 firms under consideration and determined that the cost
differential of the remaining firms was comparable to one another. For all responses, proposed
compensation was in line with current market conditions. Ms. Thompson stated that based on the review
of the proposals, taking into account qualifications, experience and compensation, along with the service
level of the existing remarking agent, Morgan Stanley, staff's recommendation was to select Morgan
Stanley to continue to serve as the remarking agent on the State's CP Program. Mr. Wilson made a motion
to select Morgan Stanley to serve as the remarketing agent for the State's CP Program. Commissioner
Martin seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved.
Mr. Wilson then recognizedMr. Lillard who reported on funding policies received from local government
entities as required by "The Public Employee Defined Benefit Financial Security Act of 2014", Public Act
2014 Chapter 990 (the "Acf'). Mr. Lillard explained that based on surveys and research performed by the
Treasury Department, legislation was recommended to be enacted that would require local government
entities outside ofthe Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System ("TCRS") to adhere to certain standards.
Mr. Lillard stated the 108th General Assembly enacted the Act, which was signed by Governor Haslam on

May 22, 2014. Mr. Lillard stated that currently there were 71 individual defined benefit plans that fall
under the Act that are administered by political subdivisions of the State. Mr. Lillard stated that the
Treasury Department provided assistance by assimilating an outline of the political subdivisions pension
obligations and a funding policy template to all political subdivisions identified and to associations and
firms that provide support to political subdivisions. Mr. Lillard stated that, to date, Comptroller staff had



received 38 funding policies, which had been reviewed by Treasury staff and all met the requirements of
the Act.

Mr. Wilson then stated that there were some additional information items of which the Board should be
aware. Mr. Wilson stated that Comptroller staff was preparing for an upcoming general obligation bond
sale in the fall and would present the appropriate documentation at the next Board meeting. Mr. Wilson
stated that Comptroller staff would evaluate market conditions to consider whether a negotiated or

competitive sale was most advantageous. Mr. Wilson then mentioned the upcoming revenue estimate
process, which by statue is required to begin as soon as practicable after the beginning ofNovember, and
stated that Comptroller staffwould be working to schedule those meetings soon.

After requesting other business and hearing none, Mr. Wilson adjourned the meeting.

Approved on this day of September 2015.

Respectfully submitted,

Sandra Thompson
Assistant Secretary



FastTrack Report to State Funding Board
9/3/2015

1. Previous PastTrack Balance, as of Last Report ! 179,617,042.63

2. + New Appropriations: 20,243.22

3. + Newly Deobligated Funds: 454.60

4. + Funds Transferred to FastTrack: 0.00

5, - Funds Transferred from FastTrack; 0.00

6. - Fasmack Grants or Loans Approved Greater Than $750,000: (1,249,000.00)
7. - FafitTrack Grants or Loans Approved Less Than $750,000: (767,920#Q)
8. Adjusted FastTrack Balance Available for Funding FastTrack Grants or Loans: 177.620,820.45

9. Total Amount of Commitments: 152,702,758.35

10. Uncommitted FastTrack: 24,918,062.10

11. Percentage Committed: 86.0%

12. Amount of Proposed Grants or Loans: 6,506,000.00
13, Uncommitted FastTrack Balance if Proposed Grantsor loans Approved: 18.412.062.10

14. Percentage Committed: 89.6%

See next page for explanations of the above questions.

l have reviewed the above and believe it to be cor,4:
A

%7 < oate: Y-IFÌÉ>
C?pmissioner of Ea?pómk and Cgfhmunity Development

Page 1 of 1



Department of Economic and Community Development

Randy Boyd Bill Haslam
Commissioner Governor

September 15,2015

Comptroller Justin Wilson
First Floor, Slate Capito]
Nashvitlc, TN 37243

Dear Coinplrollcr Wilson:

The Dcparlmenl of Economic & Commuoily Development (the "Department") seeks approval by
the State Funding Board (the "Board ') pursuant to T.C.A. § 4-3-717(a) authorizing IrasíTrack
infrastructure, training, and economic development grants where therc is a commitment by an eligible
business to create or retain privale sector jobs or engage in private investment or where the Commissioner
ofEconomic and Community Development determines that such investment will have a direct impact on
employment and investment opportuniticsin the future. Thc fullowingprojccts meet thestatutory
requirements and the Departnicnt presents these projects to the Board pursuant to thc mandates of T.C.A.
§ 4-3-7 I 7(e), which requires approval ofgrants and loans under thc FaslTrack [nftustructurc
Development Program, the Fast'I'raek Job Training Assistance Program, and the Fastlì'ack Economic
Deveìopment Program that excced $750,000 per eligible business within a three (3) year period.

t. Amcdysis Holding, LLC - Nashville (Davidson County)
Amedysis [ lolding, LLC isa leading home health and hospicc carc company. Amedysís is seeking a
satellite location for their current executive office located within the company's existing geogrüphic
footprint in order to attract and relain top talent on lhe Amedysis corporate team.

Amcdysis Holding, LLC has committed to create 120 new jobs and to make a $2.516,000 capital
investment within five years. The company will have on average wage rate of $32.89 per hour ft,r the new

positions.
Füst'rrack Economic Development Program funds wiü be used for employee rcloeation, huilding relrofih
upgrades and fixturc improvemcnls. and temporary lease costs. ($900,000)

Total l'ast'1'rnck funds ror thìs project - $900,000

2. Denso Mai,ufacturing Tennessee, Inc. - M:iryvillc (Blount County)
Denso Manufacturing Tennessee, Inc. is [hc largest Denso facility in North America and supplies many
automolive munufuclurers wilh key electronic parls including star tersl alternators, instni,ncnt clusters, and
other electronic parts. The company plans to eonstntct a new slate of the art autoinated warehouse facility
that will enable all three existing manufacturing plantš lo relocate their packaging operations and expand
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Department of Economic and Community Development

Randy Boyd Bill Haslam
Commissioner Governor

their manufacttiring operations and to construct a rail transfer center that will enable the coinpany to
become more global in its product supply,
Denso Manufacturing Tennessee, [nc, has committed lo crcate 500 new jobs and lo make a %400,000,000
capital investment within five years. The company will have an average wage rate of $25.00 per hour for
the new positions.
FasITrack Infrastructure Development Program funds will bc used lo assisl the project with sile
preparation for thc new expansion ill Blount County. ($5,000,000)

Total Fastl'rack funds for this project - S5,000,000

3. Ryder Integrated Logistics - Spring Hill (Maury County)
Ryder tntegratcd Logistics is a warchousing, transportation, kilting, and vehicle sub assctnbly company
specializing in supply chiìin solutions and logistics. The company plans to expand its vehicle sub
assembly and distribution services to meet demand from the GM Spring Hill plant,
Ryder Integrated Logislíes has committed to create 606 ncwjobs and to make a $16,508,000 capital
investment within five years. The company will have ¿m average wage rate of $ 16,42 per hour for the new
I,ositions.
Fast'l'rack Job Training Assistance Program funds will be used lo train the new workforce needed for the
expansion. ($606,000)

Total I•'asfrrack funds for this project - $606,000
In conclusion, I would líke to thank the Board for its assistance and continued support of ECD as we
strive to create job opportunities for the citizens ofour Stale.

Sincqrcly,

Ò7? Randy 89'á /
RB:kl



State Funding Board Fastrrack Checklist
Fast™ckgrentsor loans exceeding seven hundred fifty thousfanddollars (&750,000) per eligible businesswithin a three-yearperiod reqt,Im stato
funding board approvalTC.A. 54-3-717(o)

Please identify tho type of Fastrack funding requested and the grant or loan amount:

RECIPIENT ENTITY GRANT LOANTYPE OF FUNDING AMOUNT AMOUNT

INFRASTRUCTURE t 1- ,#f;
TRAINING*
ECONOMIC t ? 3-Ç- The Induslrlal DevelopmentBoard *Metro ©

' DEVELOPMENT
' " $900,000Nashville/Oavidson Counly

TOTAL $900,000

(Recipäent enììly must be a #oca) government, thew economi ëeveiópment organßzation, a p©hbcat subdivisioíì of the state, oî an eligible
business beneñcíary [for traínïng only] )

'ELIGIBLE BUSINESS BENEFICIARY (if dí#erent than Reclplent Entity): Amedlsvs Holding. LLC

Complete the General Stalutor'y Compliance seclíon below and the sectìon<s) that corresponds wjlh the lype of funding indicated above. General
Statutory Compliance Items apply to all types of funding iepresented above

GENERAL STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

1 Wiíl thís new commítment cause the FastTrack appropfiatlons to be over committee r C A. § 4·3716(g)?
If 'yes,' state funding board concurrenceis required. Attach the commissionefs rationale used to deten'nine the
amount of actual commilmenls unlikely to be accepted based on hlstorjcal program trends (maxímum allowed is
130% of the appropnaltons available for new grants). O Yes ® No

2. Wììì mis new commnment pìace In jeoparúy comphance wìth me legìsßahve ìngent mat aauaí expenöùu,es and
obíidations to be recognized at the end of tne fìscal year oot exceed avaiìable reserves and appropriationa of the
programs ICA. §4-3716(g)? O Yes E] No

3 Does this grant or loan comply with the leg slattve intent to dîstrlbute FaštTrack funds m a]1 areas ot Iþe state to
theexlent pïadtcable TC.A. §4-3-716(f)7 Ei Yes O No

4 Has the commísstoner of economíc and community development provided lo the commissioner of finance and
administration (with Copies transmitted to the speaker of the house of representatives, lhe speaker of lhe senate,
the chairs of the finance, ways and means committees, the state treasureri the state comptroller, the office of
legislative budget analysis, and the secretary óf state) lhe mostmcent quarterly report regarding the status ofthe
appropriations forlhe FastTrack fund T. CA § 4-3-716(h)? G] Yes [3 No

Identify which of tne following apply:
5. a. Does the business export more than half of theirproductsorservtcesoulslde of Tennessee

T.C A § 4-3-717{h)(1)(A)?
b, Do morelhan halí of th@ business' producls or sefvices enter into the productlon of exoortcd producls

TC.A §4-3-717(h)(1)(By? CI
c. Does the use of business' producls primafìly result in import substïlution on the replacement of imported

píoduds or setvìcesw?h those produced in the state T C.A § 4.3.717(hj<1){CJ? 0
d Has the commissioner of economic and commun,ty developmentdeternllned the buslness has other types of

economic activity that contrìbutes sìgnífìcantly to comrnuntly development educat on and has a beneñcíat
Impact on the economy of Ihe state T. C A, § 4-3-717(h)(1)(D)? f '?yes' attach the commissioner's rationale C]

Applicant musl answer "Yes" to a Rr b
6. a, Is Ihøre a commitment by a responsitíe ofí}clal ín an eliglbte business tor the creation or retentton of prívate

sector jobs andínvestment TCA §4-3-717(a)? If 'yes,-attach documentation Ø
b. Has the commissioner ofeconomic ard community development determined that this ínveslment wglt have a

direct,mpac¥ oil emp)oymem and invøslmentopportunilìesir the tutuîe TC.A.§ 4-3-717ía)? #f ?'yes.' attach
the commiss[Ôners rationale. 0



TRAINING

7. Wltt the granl suppo,t the training ol nrsw emptoyees toî íocallng oî e·xpanúing lr,dusìneß T.C.A § 4 3-717(C)(1)7 O Yes O No
8 Will the gmnt suøportme retminlng of existing employees whôre retralníngis required by the ínstallation of new

machinery cr produdlion p,ooesses r C.A § 4*3-7 ?7(c)(2)? O Yés O No

INFRAS™UCTURET
9 Iß the land lo be improved publldy owned and not subject to a purchase option by a private entity where the

purchase oplion covering Ihe land may be exercised within a Period offive (5) years following the date of the
infrastructuçe grant? T,C.A. § 43-717<b)(2-W? O Yes O No

10. Is thìa grantor loan made to a local government, e local government economic development organizstlon or other
political subdivíston ofthe slate T.CA. § 4-3-7170)(1)1 O Yes O No

11. In detennining the level or assistance for infíastructure and site preparation, was consícleratlon gíven to local
ability-to-pay wilh areas of lesser ability being elíglble for nighergrant rates T.CA § 4-3-717(t)? O Yes C] No

Applicantmust answer "Yes" to a gEb.
12. a. Will lhe grant or loan address infrastructure. such aS, water, wastewater, transportation systems, line

exlenslons, industrial site preparation or similar Items where it Is demonstrated that such Improvements are
nùcessarý fof the tooatior, oí expansîor, óf business cí tndustî·ý T.C,A § 4-3-717(h)(2)7 0

b. Has the commissioner of economìc and communily development determined Ihe funds make significant
technological Improvements such as digital switches or fiber optic cabling thatwould have a beneficial impact
on the economy of thls state T.CA § 4-3-717(h)(W? If 'yes,° attach ihe commissioner's rationale. [3

RCONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

13 15 thlsgfantorloan madeto a local government, a local governmenteconomic devetopment organization or other
poliltal suböpöon oflhestýúe TC.A § 4-3717(d)(1>7 & Yes O Na

14. is this grant or loan eligible for FaätTrack infrastructure development or job training assístancø funds
T,CA §4-3-717(d)(U? O Yes ®No

15. Willihls gfantorloan be used to fecìlltate economic development activities Ihat include, but are not limited to,
íetrofitting, reíocatlng equipment, purchasing equipment, building repairs and improvemenls, temporary office
spaceorothertemporary equipment felatedtorelocationorexpansìonofabusiness TC.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)1 ® Yes O No

16. Will the funds be used In exceptional circumstances wherein Ihe funds will make a proportionally sjgriflcant
øconomíc impacl on the affected community T, CA. § 4-3.717(d)(U? If 'yes,/ attach an explanatìon of the
exceptional dïcumstances and We propoçtlo,r,aliy signil?csnl economicWnpad ® Yes O No

17. The department ofeconomic and community development is required to notífy and provide lhe state funding board
a detailed written explanation of Iha purpose forwhich this economic development grant or loan Is being awarded
or used T.CA. § 4-3-717(oj(2) Attach documentation

1 have reviewed thiø document andb»lß**Mktýe co,mct.

/»-7 î-Il-15
Çdnimisaíoner of Eco?rnic ag,f'Community Development Date



Department ofEconomic and Community Development

Randy Boyd Bill Haslam
Commissioner Governor

July 24,2015

INCENTIVE ACCEPTANCE FORM

This fonn serves as notice that Amedisys Holding, LLC intends, in good faith, to create 120 private sector jobs and
make a capital investment of$2,516,000 in ¢xchange for incentives that will be memorializcd in a grant agreement
bclwccn Amedbsys Holding, LLC and the State ofT¢nncsscc.

ECD OFFER SUMMARY

FastTrack Economic Dcvelopment Grant: $ 900,000
Total ECD Commitment: $ 900,000

Please sign your ñame in the space below to signì fy Amedisys Holding, LLC's acceptance ofEC[h offer set forth
above and return itby Qø:obcr 26. 2015 to:

Tennesscc Department of Economic and Community Dcv¢lopment
Attn: Jordan Tayior Sloan
312 Rosa Parks Avenue, 27th floor
Nashville, TN 37243
jordan.taylorsloan(Bln.gov
Please note (hat thlå Incentive Acceptance Form does not give Nie to any legal obligations on the part of the
State of Tcnnesßce, any department or lustrumentnmty of the St?e of Tennessee (indudlna ECD ind the
Departmont of Revenue) or Iho Company. The termg aud conditions governing the úward of the incentive
package described hereln will be set forth in a granl agreement, the form of which will be provided to the
Company following the delivery ofan executed copy ofthe Incentívø Acceptance Form,

A Jj U._.-- t
Signature:.tßf,W n. rw,Iunwu Date: -AE/\5(Authórtzcd Rcp*sentativê o mpnny)

õay id L. Kemmerty



-Çli.'*.,·,.á:.#:.?'?4.#á:abt1& -I:L J·"%'awf
Department ofEconomic and Community Development

Randy Boyd Bill Haslam
Commissioner Govcrnor

September 15, 2015

Comptroller Justin Wilson
First Floor, State Capitol
Nashville, TN 37243

Dear Comptroller Wilson:

Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated§4-3-7]7 (d)(1)-(2), I am writing to inform you that the
Department of Economic and Community Development is awarding an Economic Development Grant tothe City of Nashvi[Ie, Tennessee for the benefit ofAmedisys Holding, LLC in the amount of $900,000 to
assist the company with construction and improvements for the new facility. Thc project activities would
not be eligible for the FastTrack Infrastructure Development Program.
This project will yield a proportionately significant impact on the community due to the number of new
jobs with high wages. Amedisys Holding, LLC has committed to create 120 new jobs and to make a
$2,516,000 capital investment within five years. The company will have an average wage of $32.89 per
hour for the new positions. This project will have an exceptional impact ôn this area ofthe state.

Siqýerely,

rù»7 l
? RandyÖd/



State Fundinq Board FastTrack Checklist
Fæstrrack gmñtaor loans excuedíng seven hundred fifty thousanddollars (3750,000) per eligible businesswithin a three-yearperiod requíreStatefüncling board e#<OVW T CA § 4-3-7 1718)

Please identify the type of FastTrack funding requested and lhe grant or loan amount:

RECIPIENT ENTITY GRANT LOANTYPE OF FUNDING
AMOUNT AMOUNT

INFRASTRUCTURE Blount CountyPa,ìnershlp $5,000,000
TRAINING*

I ECONOMIC 1 '11 ,! Il' .
DEVELOPMENT

TOTAL $5,000,000
(Recipient entíly must be a locaí government, their economic development organization, a political subdívision ùf the state. or an eligible
business beneficiary [for training only] )

ELIGIBLE BUSINESS BENEFICIARY (lf different than Recipient Entity): Denso Manufacturinçl Tennessee, Inc.

Complete the Generwl Slaluto,y Compliance seclion below and ihe sectlon(s) that corresponds with the type of funding indicated above General
Slatulory Compliance items apply to all types ol lun¢ting rep,esenled above.
GENERAL STATUTORy COMPLIANCE
1. Wdl this new cómmitment cause the Fasnradíappropriations to beovepcomm'Itted T.CA Š 4-3-716(g)?It "yes," stale funding board concur,ence is required Attach the cornmissioners rationale used to determíne the

*[mount of actual commitments unlikely to be accepted based on hišloncal prcgram trends (maximum allowed 15
130% of the appropriations avaiîable for new grants) O Yes ® bio

2 Willthts new commitmenl plaœ injeopardy compliance with the lêg,slal,ve intont that actual expenditu,es. ahdobligations to be recognized at the end ofthe liscal yea, not exceed available reserves and appropnattons or Ihe
programs T.C.A § 4-3-716(g)? I Yes ®No

3. Does thia grant or loan comply with the leglslatlve intent to distribute Fastlfack funds in all areas of the state to
the extent practicabie TCA. §4-3-716(0? ® Yes O No

4 Has the commissioner of economlc and communìty deve!opment provided to the commissioner of finance and
admìníslratìcn (wìth comes transmìtted to the speaker of the hause ot representatives, tha speaker ot the senate,
the chairs of the finance, ways and means committees, the state treasurer: lhe stäte comptrolíer, the office of
tegislative budget analysis, and the secretaryof state) the mosl recent quarterly report fegarding lhe status of the
appropriations for the Fasffrack fund T.C.A § 43=716(h)? ® Yes O No

Identlty which of the following apply:
5 a Does the business export more than half of their products or services outside of Tennessee

TCA § 4-3-717(h)(1)(Ap
b. Do more than half of the husiness' products or servjces enter into the product on of expofled products

TCA §4-3-717(h)(1)(B)? 0
c. Does the use of bus,ness' products primarily resull tn import substitution on the replacement of imported

products cir selvices wilh those produced m Ihe slate T. CA. § 4-3-717<h)(1)(Cf? 0
d Has the commissioner of economic and community development deterrnined the business ba; other types of

economic activíty that contributes significantly to community development education and ha; a benefcial
impact on the economy ofthe state LC.A § 4-3-717(h)(üíD)? ílyøs,- attach the commissionefs rationale. C]

Applicant must answer "Yes" to a gr b.
6 a ts there a commltment by a responslbte offdal ìn an eligibte busineas for the creaüon or retenlion of private

sector jobs and investment T. C A. Éi 4-3-717(a)7 If "yes," attach documentation.

b Has the commissioner of economic and community development determined that this investment will have a
direct impact on employment and investment opportunitíes m thefutuíe T.CA.§4-3-71*Q? l f "yes/atíach
the commissioners rationate. 0



TRAINING

7 Willthegrantsuppottthetrainíngofnewemployeesforlocating ôrexpandíngindustries T. C.A. §4-3-717(c)(1)? [I] Yes O No

8, W,ll the grønt suppon lhe retraining of ex,uting employees where retraining ls requked by the lrlstallation of new
machinery or production processes T. CA § 4 3-717(dß)? O Yes O No

INFRASTRUCTURE

9 Is the land to be Improved publicly owned and not subject to a purchase option by a private entity where lhepurchase option cûvering the land may be exercìsed within a period of five (5) years following the date of theinfrastructure grant? T.CA § 4-3-717(b)(2-3)7 ® Yes ONO
10, Is this gmnt or loan made to a [ocal govemmønt, 8 local government economic development organization or olherpolitical âubdiv}sion ol the slate T.CA. § 4-3-717(d)(U? ® Yes ¤ No

11 In determining the level of assistance for infrastructure and site preparation, was conslderatjon given to local
abilily»Io·pay with afeaa of lesser åbi[Ity being eligible for higher grant rates T,C.A, § 4.3-717(f)7 ® Yes O No

Applicant must answec "Yes" to a 51[ b.
12, a. Wilí the grant or loan address infrastructure, such as, water, wastewatør, transportation syslems, lineextensions, [ndustrlal site preparation or similar items where ít Is demonstrated thet such improvements a re

necessary for the location or expansion of business or Industry 7.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(2)7
b. Has the commlssjoner of econom,c and community development determined the fundsmake significanttechnological improvements such as dlgìtal sýmches orlìberoptic cablng that would have a beneficial impact

on the economy of this state T C.A § 4-3-717(h)(2)? If yes/' attach the commissioners rationale. 0

ØCONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
13. Is th,s grant or loan made to a iocgl government a locnl government economic development organization or other

political âubdivíslon ol the state T.CA. § 4-3-7#MCO? O Yes C] No
14. Is lhis-grant or Ioan elígible for FastTrack iníraåtructure døvølopment or Job tralning assistance funds

T.CA:44-3-717(d)(ìp O ™ O No
15. Will thíe grant ùr loan be used to facilitate economic development âctivitiee thal indude, but are not limited tok

retrofitting, relocaling equipment, purchasing equipment, building repairs and Improvements, temporary offìce
Space or other lemporary øquipmentrelatedtorelocation or expansionofabusiness T.CA § 4-3-717(d)(1)7 Il Yes O No

16. Willthe funds be used in excepüonal circumslances wh-ln tha A,nds will make a pfoportionallyslgnllicant
economic impact on Ihe affected commun,ty TCA § 4-3-717{4(lp Il 'yes,' attach an explanation ol the
exceptional ctrcumslances and the proportlonally signmcønt economic Impact O Yes O No

17. The department of economic and community development *s required tó notify and provide the state funding board
e deteiled written explanation of the purpose forwhich this economic development grant or loan Is being awarded
or used T C.A § 4-3·717(07(2) Attach documentatjon.

I have reviewed this documenl and believe it to ba cot,ect

??\37 ? 9- ll-ì6
oo,fnis•lonør oí Economic an? Co?ílunlty Development Date
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Department ofEconomic and Community Development
Randy Boyd Bi[I Haslam
Commissioner Governor

August 12, 2015

INCENTWE ACCEPTANCE FORM

This form serves as notice tltat Denso ManufacturingTennessee intends, in good faith, to create 500 private seçtor
jobs and makc a capila[ ínvestmcnt of $400,000,000 ín exchange for inccntives that will be memorialized in a grant
agreement between Denso Manufacturing rennessee and the State of'rennessee.

ECD OFFER SUMMARY

Fas,Track Iníhistructuro DevelopmentGrant': $ 3,000,000
Total ECD Commitnlent: S 5,000,000

' In the evcnt that funds remain after the completionof activities under thc FastTrack Infrastructure Development
Grßnt, ECD will tenttocat¢ th¢ ítrnnining fundâ to â Fastrrack Job Traidng Assistßocc Program Contactwith Denïo
Manufacturing Teiutcsse e.

Please sign your name ìn thcspace below to äignify Denso Mnnufacturíng Tcnnossee's acceptw¢¢ ofECD'soffer
set forth above andre(urn itby h[Qfwtoladl.NU to:

Tennessee Department offconomic and Community Development
Attn: JoîdanTaylor Sloan
312 Rosa Parks Avenue, 27lh floor
Nashville, TN 37243
jordan.taylorsloan@tn.gov
Pleasc note tbat this Incentive Acceptance Form does not give rise to any legat obligations oIl the part ofthe
Ståte of Tennessee, any department or instrumentaîíty of tbe Sta¢c of Tønnesåee (including ECD and the
Department of Revenue) or lhe Company. The terms and conditions governing th© aw•rd of the Lucenüve
pa¢kage descrlbcù herelu wm be set forth ìu • grant mgreemoüt, tbe form of whìch wtll be provided to the
Company following the delivery ofAo executed copy ofthe Incentive Acceptance Form.

Signatur, ,4/j,UA *dæçt- Date: g/*rjtr
(Authorized R¢pr=ntativo ofCompnny)



State Fundina Board PastTrack Checklist
FastTrack gmnta or loans exceeding seven hundred hfty thousanddoltârs ($750,000)per eligible business within a three-year Period requim statefutìding boatd BRWCval T.C.A, § 4-3-717(e).

Ptease tdenlìty the type of Fastírack fundíng requestec and the grant or loan amount:

RECIPIENT ENYÏTY GRANT LOANTYPE OF FUNDING
AMOUNT AMOUNT

INFRASTRUCTURE
TRAINING? I

-

Ryder Integrated Logistics, Inc. $606,000
ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT 1

TOTAL $606,000
(Recipient entíly must be a local governmeít their economic development organization, a politìcal subdivisìon of lhe state, or an eligiblebusiness benef,oa,y [for training onlyl)

'ELIGIBLE BUSINESS BENEFICIARY (if diftorent than Recipìont Entity): Rvder Intearated Loqistlcs, Inc.

Conipiele me General Statutory Complíance seçt,on below anlø lhe :;ectto,1(s) that cotresponds wíth the type of funding indicated above. GeneralStatutory Cornpl, ance items apply lo ali types of lunding represented above
GENERAL STATUTORY CQMPLJANCf
1. Will this new comm,tment cøuse the FastTrack appropnat,ons to be over-commitmd TCA. § ·#·3-llqg)9tf 'yes/' gtale funding board concurrence is required Attach lhe commissioners rationale used to determine the

amount ôf actual coínmtlments unllke'y to be accupled based on hlstorlcal program trends (maximum allowad Is130% ot the appropftal,oris avail¿iDle for new glaflls), O Ye# ® No
2 WIll thís now commllmint Place in Jeopardy compliance with thø legislative tntenl Ihnt actual expenditures andobl,gatiors to be recognized al Ihe end of the fiscal year not e,Cded ava,íable reseives and oppmþrløllons ol thepmgía,ns TCA § 4-3-716(gk? O Yes E No
3 Does thisgranlorloan complywiththelegìstatïve intenttodístribute Fastrraçkfunds inall areas ot thestale to

the extent practicable TCA § 4-3.716(0? ® Yes O No
4 Has lhe corlim,sslone, of economìc and comrnumty developrnent provided to the rommisslonerof finance and

administration (w,rh copies transmitted to the speaker oflhe house of representat,vetl the speaker of lhe senate,
the chairs of the fInance, ways and means commítlees, the state treasurer, the state comptroller, the office of
legislative budget analysts, and the secretary of state) the most recent qua,teriy report regarding the status of the
appropnatíons for the FastTrack fund T C.A § 4-3-716(h)? ® Yes O No

klentìty whtch ot the iolíowlng apply:
5 a. Does lhe busjness export more lhan h3 If ottheir products or services outside of Tennessee

T.C A, § 4·3-717(h)(1)(Ay?
b. Do mom than hatf of the business' products or services enter jnto the production of exported productsTCA § 4-3-717(h)(1)(By? 0
c Does Ihe use of busíness' products primarily result in import substitution on the replacement of Imßoíted

products or servlces with those produced inlhe state TCA § 4-3-717(h)(1)(CY? 0
d Has tho ccmmissroner of economic and community development determíned the business has other types of

economic activity Ihal cont,ibutes slgmficantly to comrnun,ty development educ@lton and has a beneñclol
ímpact on tha economy of the state T.CIA § 4-3717(h)(1)(DJ? If yes Mlach lhe commissionefs rallonale. 0

Applicant must answer "Yes" to ažr b
6 a Is there a cornmitment by a responsíbte offtclal in an eligible business for the crealíon or retentjon of private

sector jobs and jnvestment IC.A. § 4-3-717(a)? If "yes, attach documentation

b Has the commissioner of economic and commumty development determined that this investment wi}1 have a
dlfecl impacton employment and ínveslment opportunmesin the future T C.A §4·3.7 f 7(a)? If "yes,' attachlhe commlsstaner's rationale 0



TRAINING

7. Wíll the grantsupporlthetrainlngofnßw employeesforlocatingorexpanding industries TG.A.§ 4-3-717(c)(1)7 ® Yes O No
8. Wíll lhe g,ant support the relwìning of existing employees where retraining is required by the Installation of newmachinery ôr producllon p,ocesses TC A §4 ·3-7/7ß:;(2)? O Yes E No

INFRASTRUCTURE
9. Is Iheland to be impmved pubtrclyownedand not subject toapurchase option by a p,ivatoentity where thepu,chase oplion cova,lng the land may be exo fcmed within a period of five (5) years following tfo date of theInfraßtrunlure grant? T.C A, § 4-3-717(tüíž V? U Yes O No
10. Is tms grant or loan macie to a local government a local government economic development organization orotherpolìticel subdivlsion ol lhe slate T.CÅ. § 4.3-717ß/FV? L] Yes O No
11. In detelrnu,lng lhe lovel of assistance for infrøstructure and sile prepøralion, was consideration given to localabllily-Io·pay wllh areas of lesser ability being eligtlc for h1gber gmnt ratea LC.A. § 4-3.717(,? D Yes j No
Applicantmuut ænßwor "Yes" to a? b.
12 a Wfll Ihe grant or loøn address infrast,uotu,e, such 35, wnter, waetewater, t¢ansportatlon syslenis, lineøxtørstons, Induatnal site pf êpatal]on or similar Items where it Iß demonstrated Ihat such improvements arenecessary for the localfon o, expansion of buslnesu, oi indusl ry T.CA. § 4·3 7 1 7(h#2)? 0

b Has the commissioner of economic and commurity development delermlned Ihe funds make significanttechnological imp,ovements such as dlgilal smkhes orf,ber optic cøbîlrìø thatwould have a benefic,ag Impactonlhe economy of this staeu r,C,A. § 4-j-7,7íj,)42)7 If'yes,= attach the ccmmlssjoner"5 ralronate, 0

EÇONOM[C DEVELOPMENT

13 M this grant or loan made to a loca] gover¢trnenl, a local govemment economic development organization or otherpolïhcaí subdivlsion of Ihe state T. C A· § 4.3-717(d)(1)? O Yes O No
14. Is this grant or loan eligible for Fastnack infrastructure development or job tramíng assjstance fundsT.CA Š 4-3-717(d)(1)7 D Yes D No
15. Wlll thjs grant orloan be used to facilitate economic devalcpment activitieå that include, but are not limited lo,ietrofi«ing, relocating equipmønl pwchøßing equipment, building repatrs and ímpfovenlertta, temporary oílioespacø or oltmr temporary equipment related to retc?cat#žn or e,Jpans[On ofa huslness r.C.A § 4-3- 71 7(dj<lj? O Yes O No
16. Will tile funds be used In exceplicnal circumstances wherein the funds wm make a pmporlíonally significanteconomic ímpad on the affected communìty ICA § 44-71?Ø){1)7 If 'yes,' attach an explanation oflheexceptional circumstances and tha propottionallysígni ficanl economic impact, O Yes ¤ No
17 The departmentof economic and community davelopment js required lo notify and provide the stale funding board

a deta,!eó wntlan explanatlon of the purpose forwhlch Ihis economic developmenl grant or Ioan Is being awamedor used TCA- §4-3-717(d)(2). Attach documentation.

I have reviewed thiš docume.nt and betlover It to ba correct

13---7 < q-/1-15?omm,ssioner of Ecghomic aod Community Davelopment Date



™ Economic
&Community
Development

August 31,2015

Ryder Integrated Logistics
Mr. Tim Conneamey
PO Box 369
Spring Hill, TN 37274

Dear Mr. Conncamey,
Please sign and date the following, as this lettcr serves as notice thw Ryder Integrated Logisticsintends, ín gûod faith. to create 606 private sector jobs and make i, capital investment of$16,508.000 in Maury County, Tennessee in exchange for incentives that will bc mcmorializcdin a grant agreement between Ryder Integrated Logistics and the State ofTennessee.

rh

Signature: 75-- Date: C=* li \ CJb.
Thank you,

rtß-71
Randy Boyd, Commissioner, Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR
THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION

BONDS OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE FUNDING BOARD OF THE STATE OF
TENNESSEE:

SECTION 1. Findings and Detetminadíons. (a) The State of Tennessee (the
"State"), by various Public Acts of its General Assembly, has authorized, and is expected to
authorize, the issuance of general obligation bonds of the State in the respective principal
amounts and for public purposes of the respective State departments and institutions, among
others, including without limitation to make grants to counties, metropolitan governments,
incorporated towns, cities, special districts of the State, or government agencies or
instrumentalities of any of them, all as set forth therein. General obligation bonds and bond
anticipation notes have been issued against certain of such authorizations, and certain of such
authorizations have been cancelled and rescinded.

(b) By resolutions adopted by the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee
(the "Funding Board") on July 14, 1994, May 15, 1995, August 23, 1995, August 26, 1996,
September 10, 1997, August 7, 1998, August 31, 1999, August 23, 2000, October 15, 2001,
July 30, 2002, June 27, 2003, July 26, 2004, August 5, 2005, June 27, 2006, July 23, 2007,
June 30, 2008, March 24, 2009, August 5, 2009, July 15, 2010, June 30, 2011, June 6, 2012,
June 25, 2013, June 18, 2014, and June 23, 2015, each entitled "A RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE STATE
OF TENNESSEE" or "A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING, AND AMENDING A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING, THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE" (collectively, the "Bond Resolution"), the Funding Board
has authorized the issuance of general obligation bonds of the State under the provisions of
certain ofthe Public Acts ofthe General Assembly referred to in subsection (a) above.

(c) Pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Funding Board on March 6,2000,
as amended and restated on August 5, 2009, entitled "RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF COMMERCIAL PAPER;
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR A STANDBY COMMERCIAL PAPER
PURCHASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS
RELATING THERETO" (the "Commercial Paper Resolution"), the State authorized the
issuance from time to time of bond anticipation notes constituting General Obligation
Commercial Paper Series A (Tax-Exempt) and Series B (Federally Taxable) in an aggregate
principal amount not to exceed $350,000,000 at any one time outstanding (the "Commercial
Paper") for the purposes set forth in the Commercial Paper Resolution, the Bond Resolution and
the Public Acts ofTennessee referred to in the Bond Resolution.

(d) The outstanding Commercial Paper matures from time to time, and it is in
the best interests of the State to pay at maturity a portion of the outstanding Commercial Paper
(the "Refundable Commercial Paper") by issuance ofgeneral obligation bonds ofthe State.
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(e) Pursuant to resolutions adopted by the Funding Board on (i) June 30,
2008, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate dated September 4, 2008 (the "2008B
Resolution"), the State issued $15,360,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation
Bonds, 2008 Series B (Federally Taxable) (the "2008B Bonds"), (ii) March 6,2009, including as
a part thereof the Series Certificate dated May 6, 2009 (the "2009A Resolution"), the State
issued $291,500,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series A
(the "2009A Bonds"), (iii) October 20,2009, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate
dated December 16, 2009 (the "2009D Resolution"), the State issued $54,110,000 aggregate
principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series D (Federally Taxable) (the "2009D
Bonds"), (iv) September 20, 2010, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate dated
October 27, 2010 (the "2010A Resolution"), the State issued $186,505,000 aggregate principal
amount ofGeneral Obligation Bonds, 2010 Series A (the "2010A Bonds"), and (v) September 8,
2011, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate dated October 26, 2011 (the "2011A
Resolution"), the State issued $255,400,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation
Bonds, 2011 Series A (the "2011A Bonds"). Depending on market conditions, the refunding of
the 2008B Bonds, 2009A Bonds, 2009D Bonds, 2010A Bonds and 2011A Bonds that are

currently outstanding (the "Refundable Bonds") may accomplish cost savings to the public, and
it is advisable and in the best interests of the State to provide at this time for the issuance of
general obligation refunding bonds for such purposes as set forth in Section 2 hereof.

(f) It is advisable and in the best interests of the State to provide at this time
for the issuance of general obligation bonds as authorized by Section 2 hereof to refund
Refundable Bonds, to refund Refundable Commercial Paper and to fund purposes in amounts
authorized by Public Acts of the General Assembly and not heretofore funded by issuance of
Commercial Paper.

(g) The Funding Board acknowledges that the Director of the Office of State
and Local Finance has made a presentation to the staff of the Funding Board pursuant to and
meeting the requirements of the Funding Board's Debt Management Policy (the "Debt
Management Policy") under the subsection "Debt Administration - Planning for Sale".

SECTION 2. Authorization of Bon,lq: Dølí?ation: Series Certiñcate. (a) There
is hereby authorized to be issued and sold general obligation bonds of the State (the "Bonds")
for the purposes set forth in Section 1 hereof. The Bonds may be issued (i) at one time or from
time to time and (ii) as one or more series the interest on which is excluded from gross income
for Federal income tax purposes (the "Tax-Exempt Bonds") and/or in one or more series the
interest on which is included in gross income for Federal income tax purposes (the "Taxable
Bonds").

(b) Prior to or simultaneous with the issuance of the Bonds for the purposes
set forth in Sections 1(b) and (d) hereof, the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Funding
Board shall certify as of the date of issuance (i) the purpose or purposes for which such Bonds
are to be issued including reference to the Public Act or Acts of the General Assembly
authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes therefor, (ii) the
principal amount of such Bonds proposed to be issued for each such purpose, including the
principal amount of Refundable Commercial Paper of each series to be refunded from proceeds
of such Bonds, (iii) the principal amount ofgeneral obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes

2
2496765.4 039367 RSIND



(including Commercial Paper) theretofore issued for each such purpose and (iv) that such
principal amount of general obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes, together with the
principal amount of such Bonds, will not exceed the aggregate principal amount of general
obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes (unless, in the case of notes, such notes have been
funded by issuance of bonds) authorized by such Public Act or Acts less any such authorization
theretofore rescinded or cancelled or otherwise not in effect. The certification required by such
clause (ii) may be amended from time to time subsequent to the date of issuance, but only if
accompanied by the certifications required by such clauses (iíi) and (iv) which shall reflect such
amendment.

(c) The Funding Board hereby delegates to the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Funding Board, the Secretary of State or the State Treasurer (each, an
"Authorized Officer") the power to determine, by means of a Series Certificate or Series
Certificates (each, a "Series Certificate" ), the following:

(i) the matters provided in this Section and Sections 3,5,6 and 7 hereof, and

(ii) any other matters and provisions deemed advisable by such Authorized
Officer and notmaterially in conflict herewith.

(d) The Series Certificate applicable to each series of refunding Bonds, issued
for the purposes set forth in Section 1 (e) hereof, shall specify the Refundable Bonds to be
refunded by such refunding Bonds (the "Bonds to be Refunded"). Refunding Bonds shall not
be issued unless (i) the issuance thereof and the refunding of the Bonds to be Refunded thereby
results in aggregate present value savings of at least 4.0%, net of estimated costs of issuance, as
certified to the Funding Board by the Financial Advisor (the "Financial Advisor") to the
Funding Board, and (ii) an Authorized Officer by execution of a Series Certificate confirms the
receipt of such certification of the Financial Advisor and, based thereon, determines that the
refunding ofthe Bonds to be Refunded accomplishes cost savings to the public.

Present value savings shall be calculated by (i) comparing the debt service on
each series of refunding Bonds to the remaining debt service on the Bonds to be Refunded
thereby, present valued to the issue date of such refunding Bonds at a discount rate equal to the
arbitrage yield on such refunding Bonds calculated (whether for Tax-Exempt Bonds or Taxable
Bonds) in the same manner as arbitrage yield is calculated for Federally tax-exempt bonds;
provided, however, if a series of Bonds is being issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds to be
Refunded and for other purposes, only the portion of such Bonds issued for the purpose of
refunding Bonds to be Refunded (and related allocable costs of issuance) shall be included in
such calculations. Percentage present value savings shall be expressed as a percentage ofthe par
amount of such Bonds to be Refunded.

(e) Each Series Certificate shall be filed with the records of the Funding
Board, whereupon it shall be deemed for all purposes ofthis Resolution to have been adopted by
the Funding Board and to be a part ofthis Resolution as if set forth in full herein.

(f) The State (acting through the State Treasurer or the State Comptroller or
both) initially shall be the paying agent and registrar for all Bonds. The Funding Board may at

3
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any time appoint an agent of the State for the purpose ofmaking payments to registered owners
of all or any of the Bonds of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on
such Bonds, maintaining books of registry of the ownership of such Bonds and registering the
ownership and transfer thereof, authenticating such Bonds, or performing such other duties of a
paying agent and registrar as may be prescribed by the Funding Board.

SECTION 3. Details of Bonds. The following provisions set forth details of the
Bonds, subject in each case (except subsection (a) of this Section) to any contrary specification
in a Series Certificate.

(a) Amouñtà, Datêš, Intèré#t Ràbéš. Etb. The Bonds shall (i) be in such
aggregate principal amount, except in the case of Bonds to be issued for the purposes specified in
Section 1(e) hereof, not to exceed $400,000,000, (ii) be dated and bear interest from such date or
dates, (iii) be issuable in such form, (iv) be of such denominations, (v) be numbered and bear
such other designations, (vi) mature on the dates (which shall not be later than 21 years after the
date of issuance) and in the principal amounts, (vii) bear interest at the rates, not to exceed 5.00%
in the case of the Tax-Exempt Bonds and 6.00% in the case of the Taxable Bonds, and be
payable on the dates and in the manner, (viii) be serial bonds or term bonds, (ix) if term bonds,
be subject to retirement by mandatory sinking fund redemption, and (x) be subject to redemption
prior to maturity at the times (but initially not later than ten years from the date of initial delivery
of the Bonds) and at a fixed redemption price or prices not to exceed 103% of the principal
amount to be redeemed or, in the case of Taxable Bonds, at such a fixed redemption price or

prices or at a make-whole price or prices, or a combination thereof, in each case plus accrued
interest, or may be non-callable if (except for Tax-Exempt Bonds maturing not later than ten
years from the date of initial delivery or for Taxable bonds) so determined by the Funding Board
by further action pursuant to the Debt Management Policy subsection "Debt Management - Call
Provisions", all as provided in the respective Series Certificate.

(b) Payment Transfer. Exchange. Eto, Principal of and redemption premium,
if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency of the United States of
America which at the time of such payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private
debts.

Principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be
payable by check or draft mailed to each registered owner of such Bonds at the address of such
owner as it appears in the books of registry maintained by or on behalf of the State, in the case of
interest only to such owner and to such address as of the close of business on the fifteenth day
(whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next preceding the respective stated due
date for such interest, and in the case of principal and redemption premium only upon
presentation and surrender to the State Treasurer in Nashville, Tennessee, or an agent of the State
designated for the purpose; provided, however, that for so long as DTC (as defined in
subsection (d) of this Section) or its nominee, or any substitute depository, or successor, is the
registered owner ofBonds as Securities Depository (as defined in subsection (d) ofthis Section),
payment of principal and sinking fund installments, if any, of and redemption premium, if any,
and interest on such Bonds may be made in any manner agreed to by the State and DTC, or any
substitute depository, or successor, as the case may be.
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The Bonds will have all the qualities and incidents of a negotiable instrument.
Bonds will be transferable only upon presentation and surrender to the State or an agent of the
State designated in accordance with this Resolution, together with an assignment duly executed
by the registered owner ofthe Bond or by his duly authorized representative in form satisfactory
to the State or such agent and containing information required by the State or such agent in order
to effect such transfer.

The State or any such agent may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any
tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to an exchange or transfer
of a Bond, and may charge the person requesting such exchange or transfer a sum or sums
sufficient to pay the cost of preparing each new Bond issued, which sum or sums shall be paid as
a condition precedent to the exercise ofthe privilege ofmaking such exchange or transfer.

The State and such agent shall not be obligated to make any such exchange or
transfer ofBonds during the 15 days next preceding an interest payment date on the Bonds or, in
the case of any proposed redemption of the Bonds, during the 45 days next preceding the date of
redemption.

In case any Bond shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the State
shall execute and deliver, or cause such agent to authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like
series, maturity, principal amount and interest rate as the Bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or

lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated Bond, upon surrender and cancellation of
such mutilated Bond, or in lieu of and in substitution for the Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon
filing with the State and such agent evidence satisfactory to the State and such agent that such
Bond has been destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership thereof, and upon furnishing the
State with indemnity satisfactory to it and complying with such other reasonable regulations as
the State may prescribe and paying such expenses as the State and such agent may incur. All
Bonds so surrendered to the State or such agent shall be cancelled by it.

(c) eptîonal Redet#fm. The Bonds may be subject to redemption prior to
their stated maturities, from any moneys available to the State for such purpose, as determined
pursuant to Section 3(a)(x) hereof.

Notice of redemption shall be mailed, or delivered by physical or electronic
means, not less than 30 days prior to the redemption date, to the registered owners of the Bonds
which are to be redeemed in whole or in part at the mail, physical or electronic means addresses
as shown in the bond register kept by the State or its agent as of the 45th calendar day preceding
the redemption date, but the failure to receive any such notice shall not affect the sufficiency or
the validity of the redemption of such Bonds. Such notice shall specify the designation, date,
number, and maturity of the bonds to be redeemed, the principal amount to be redeemed if less
than the entire principal amount thereof, the date and place fixed for such redemption and the
redemption price payable upon such redemption. The provisions of this paragraph shall not
apply if and to the extent otherwise provided in a Series Certificate.

Any notice of optional redemption may be made conditional upon the availability
of sufficient moneys to pay the redemption price, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the
redemption date.

5
2496765.4 039367 RSIND



Notice having been given in the manner provided, the Bonds or portions thereof
so called for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date specified in such
notice, subject to the foregoing conditional notice provisions. Upon presentation and surrender
of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part at the offices specified in such notice, together
with, in the case of Bonds presented by other than the registered owner, a written instrument of
trans fer duly executed by the registered owner or by the registered owner' s duly authorized
representative, such Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall be paid at the
redemption price established above. If less than all of a Bond shall be redeemed, the State shall
execute and deliver, or cause an agent of the State appointed for the purpose to authenticate and
deliver, upon the surrender of such Bond, without charge to the registered owner thereof, for the
unredeemed balance of the principal amount of the Bond so surrendered, registered Bond(s) of
like series, maturity and interest rate in authorized denominations. If, on the redemption date,
moneys for the redemption of all of the Bonds or portions thereof of any like maturity to be
redeemed, together with interest to the redemption date, shall be held so as to be available for
purposes of redemption on said date and if notice of redemption shall have been given as

required by this Resolution, then from and after the redemption date, interest on the Bonds or

portions thereof of such maturity so called for redemption shall cease to accrue and become
payable. If said moneys shall not be available on the redemption date, such Bonds or portions
thereof shall continue to bear interest until paid at the same rate as they would have borne had
they not been called for redemption. The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply if and to
the extent otherwise provided in a Series Certificate.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as DTC or its nominee, or any substitute
depository, or successor, is the registered owner ofBonds as Securities Depository (as defined in
subsection (d) of this Section), notice of redemption may be given in the manner, and
presentation and surrender of Bonds may be waived to the extent, agreed to by the State and
DTC, or any substitute depository, or successor, as the case may be. Any failure ofDTC or any
substitute depository, or successor, or participant of any thereof, to notify a beneficial owner of a
Bond of any redemption shall not affect the sufficiency or the validity ofthe redemption of such
Bond.

(d) Bëòk.Entiý'Oñlÿ. The Bonds when initially issued shall be registered in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York
("DTC"). DTC is hereby designated the securities depository for the Bonds ("Securities
Depository"), except as provided in subsection (f) of this Section. So long as DTC or its
nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds as Securities Depository, individual purchases of
beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be made only in book-entry form by or through
DTC participants, and purchasers of such beneficial ownership interests in Bonds will not
receive physical delivery of Bond certificates representing the beneficial ownership interest
purchased.

The State shall have no responsibility for transmitting payments to,
communicating with, notifying, or otherwise dealing with any beneficial owners of the Bonds or
nominees thereof.

(e) Replacement Bonds. The State shall issue Bond certificates (the
"Replacement Bonds") directly to beneficial owners of the Bonds or to DTC, as specified by
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DTC procedures, but only in the event that (i) DTC determines to discontinue providing its
services with respect to the Bonds, or (ii) the State discontinues use of DTC (or any substitute
depository, or successor), subject to DTC procedures. The State shall be fully protected in
relying upon information provided by DTC, DTC participants or other nominees of beneficial
owners, or beneficial owners with respect to the names, addresses and amounts owned by the
beneficial owners and other information supplied by them for the purpose of delivering
Replacement Bonds.

(f) Sub-gtitute Securittós Depositørv. Provisions similar to those contained in
subsections (d) and (e) of this Section may be made by the State in connection with the
appointment by the State of a substitute Securities Depository for the Bonds, or in the event of a
successor to DTC, or to any substitute or successor of any thereof.

SECTION 4. Sèeufit,r fòr lhe Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued under Title 9,
Chapter 9, Tennessee Code Annotated, and shall constitute direct general obligations of the State
for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on which there is pledged
the full faith and credit of the State. The Bonds shall constitute a charge and lien upon the entire
fees, taxes and other revenues and funds allocated to the general fund, the debt service fund, and
the highway fund of the State; and, if necessary, upon the first such fees, taxes, revenues and
funds as may be otherwise legally restricted. The State hereby covenants with the persons who
now or may hereafter hold any Bonds that it will raise fees, taxes and other revenues sufficient,
together with funds on hand derived from all sources, to pay the principal of and premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds as and when due and payable.

SECTION 5. Sale and Issuance ofBønds: PreíimínarýOffíéial Statement: Final
Om¢ial Státement. (a) If the Bonds are divided pursuant to Section 2(a) hereof, the Bonds of
more than one series may be sold collectively or on a series-by-series basis.

(b) No Bonds shall be sold unless the debt service coverage test of Section 9-
9-105(c), Tennessee Code Annotated, will be satisfied as ofthe date of issuance of such Bonds.

(c) The Bonds of each series may be sold at either a competitive or negotiated
sale, the Bonds of any series may be sold by any such method, and the Bonds of any other series
may be sold by any other such method, as determined in a Series Certificate.

(d) #Soldb¥ ëompetitiv,Sale:
(1) There is hereby authorized a Notice of Sale relating to the Bonds sold at

competitive sale, substantially in the form utilized in connection with the sale of the State's
General Obligation Bonds, 2012 Series B and 2012 Refunding Series C (Federally Taxable),
with such insertions, changes and additions to and omissions from said form as any Authorized
Officer, after consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or

appropriate (the "Notice of Sale"), the distribution of which as hereinafter authorized shall be
conclusive evidence ofsuch approval and consultation.

(2) Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to cause the Notice of Sale
and Preliminary Official Statement (as defined in subsection (f) of this Section 5) to be
distributed to prospective purchasers of such Bonds and/or published on any Internet platform.
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The use of any Internet platform as a communications medium to receive bids for the purchase of
such Bonds, as may be provided in the Notice of Sale, also is hereby authorized.

(3) Any Authorized Officer may award the Bonds to the successful bidder or
bidders therefor (the "Competitive Sale Purchasers") determined in accordance with and
otherwise complying with the Notice of Sale or, as permitted by the Notice of Sale, may reject
any or all proposals received for the purchase of such Bonds or waive any irregularity in any
proposal; provided, however, that the true interest cost of such Bonds, determined as provided in
the Notice of Sale by the Authorized Officer executing the related Series Certificate, which
determination shall be conclusive, shall not exceed 5.00% for Tax-Exempt Bonds of each series
and 6.00% for Taxable Bonds of each series, on a series-by-series basis. Such awards and
determinations shall be confirmed in the related Series Certificate.

(e) IFSøkl b,¢Ne®tlated Sàle:

(1) The Bonds sold at negotiated sale are hereby authorized to be sold to such
underwriters as may be named in the Bond Purchase Agreement authorized in paragraph (2)
below (collectively, the "Negotiated Sale Purchasers" and, together with the Competitive Sale
Purchasers, the "Purchasers") upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Purchase
Agreement; provided, however, that the lead book-running underwriter and senior manager(s)
thereunder shall be selected from among the following or any parent or affiliate
thereof: Citigroup Global Markets Inc.; J.P. Morgan Securities LLC; Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith Incorporated; Morgan Stanley & Co., LLC; Piper Jaffray & Co.; Raymond
James & Associates, Inc.; SunTrust Investment Services, Inc.; and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC.
In consideration of Section 2(d) hereof and paragraph (2) below, it is not necessary for the
Funding Board to place any limitation on the purchase price payable by the Negotiated Sale
Purchasers.

(2) Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver a
Bond Purchase Agreement or Agreements, substantially in the form executed and delivered in
connection with the issuance of the State's General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series A and 2014
Refunding Series B, but reflecting details of the transactions contemplated by this Resolution,
with such variations as the Authorized Officer executing such agreements, after consultation
with counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or appropriate (each, a "Bond
Purchase Agreement"), such execution and delivery to be conclusive evidence of such approval
and consultation; provided, however, that the true interest cost of such Bonds, determined by a

Series Certificate, which determination shall be conclusive, shall not exceed 5.00% for Tax-
Exempt Bonds of each series and 6.00% for Taxable Bonds of each series, on a series-by-series
basis.

(f) The Funding Board hereby authorizes a Preliminary Official Statement
relating to the Bonds, substantially in the form presented to the Members of the Funding Board
in advance of the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted, with such insertions, changes and
additions to and omissions from said form as any Authorized Officer, after consultation with
counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or appropriate (the "Preliminary
Official Statement"), the publication or distribution ofwhich as hereinafter authorized shall be
conclusive evidence of such approval and consultation; provided, however, that a draft thereof
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shall be distributed to the members of the Funding Board prior to publication and distribution as
hereinafter authorized. The Comptroller of the Treasury, as Secretary of the Funding Board, the
Secretary of State or the State Treasurer is hereby authorized to cause the Preliminary Official
Statement to be distributed to prospective purchasers of the Bonds and/or published on the
Internet via any Internet platform, substantially in such form, with such necessary or appropriate
variations, omissions and insertions as determined by such officer after consultation with counsel
to the Funding Board. The Comptroller of the Treasury, as Secretary of the Funding Bond, the
Secretary of State or the State Treasurer is authorized to (i) determine that the Preliminary
Official Statement, as so modified, is "deemed final" as of its date for purposes of Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 1502-12 except for omissions permitted by such Rule, subject to
revision, amendment and completion in the final Official Statement as defined in such Rule,
(ii) include such determination in the Notice of Sale and/or Preliminary Official Statement, and
(iii) confirm such determination in a Series Certificate or Bond Purchase Agreement.

(g) The Comptroller of the Treasury, as Secretary of the Funding Board, is
hereby authorized and directed to prepare or cause to be prepared, and to execute and deliver, an
Official Statement relating to the Bonds substantially in the form of the Preliminary Official
Statement, with such necessary or appropriate insertions, changes, additions and omissions as
determined by the Comptroller after consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, which
execution shall be conelusive evidence ofsuch determination and consultation.

(h) The Funding Board hereby authorizes the use and distribution of the
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement in connection with the offering and
sale ofthe Bonds.

(i) The Authorized Officers and other officers and employees of the Funding
Board, and other officials and employees of the State, including those of the Office of State and
Local Finance of the State, are hereby authorized and directed to carry out or cause to be carried
out all obligations of the Funding Board under each Bond Purchase Agreement and to execute
and deliver all documents and to perform such other actions not otherwise provided for by this
Section as they, in consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, shall consider necessary or
advisable in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery ofthe Bonds.

(j) All actions heretofore taken by the officers, employees and agents of the
Funding Board in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds are hereby ratified and
confirmed.

SECTION 6. Form and Executión Of Bonds. (a) The Bonds shall be in
substantially the form set forth in Appendix A to this Resolution with necessary or appropriate
insertions, changes, additions and omissions as are incidental to series, number, interest rate,
CUSIP number and denomination or as are otherwise permitted or required by law or by this
Resolution (including but not limited to such changes as may be provided in or to be consistent
with the respective Series Certificate), or in such other form as may be specified by an
Authorized Officer in the case of Bonds not held by a securities depository under a

book-entry-only system ofregistration. The Bonds shall be executed in the name ofthe State by
the manual or facsimile signature of the Governor, the Secretary ofState, the State Treasurer, the
Commissioner of Finance and Administration or the Comptroller of the Treasury, and
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countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of one other of such officers, one of which
signatures shall be manual (unless the Bonds shall be authenticated pursuant to subsection (b)
below), with the Great Seal of the State of Tennessee, or a facsimile thereof, affixed thereto or

impressed or imprinted thereon.

(b) The Bonds each may have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication
executed by the registrar therefor either by manual or facsimile signature. If any Bonds contain
such an endorsement unless and until such certificate ofauthentication shall have been manually
executed by an authorized officer of such registrar, no such Bond shall be valid or obligatory for
any purpose or shall be entitled to any right or benefit under the Resolution. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to Bonds if the State is the registrar
therefor.

SECTION 7. Apblieatioi ofBÓndPròceéðã ándOther,Mone¥s. (a) An amount
of proceeds derived from the sale of each series of Bonds equal to the accrued interest, if any,
paid by the Purchasers thereof shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund and used to pay a

portion of the interest on such Bonds coming due on the first interest payment date or dates
therefor.

(b) An amount of proceeds derived from the sale of each series of Bonds,
which may include a portion of any premium over the par amount of such Bonds paid by the
Purchasers thereof, equal to any principal amount of the Refundable Commercial Paper to be
paid from such proceeds, as provided in Sections 1(d) and 2(a) hereof, shall be deposited in the
Capital Projects Fund and used solely for the purpose of paying such principal when due at
maturity in accordance with the Commercial Paper Resolution.

(c) An amount of proceeds derived from the sale ofeach series ofBonds to be
applied to the refunding of the Bonds to be Refunded, which may include a portion of any
premium over the par amount of such Bonds paid by the Purchasers thereof, shall be deposited,
held, invested and applied as provided in Section 8 hereof.

(d) The portion of any premium paid by the Purchasers for each series of
Bonds which is not applied as described in subsection (b) or (c) above shall be used for purposes
described in subsection (e) below or deposited in the Debt Service Fund and used to pay a

portion of the interest on such Bonds coming due on the first interest payment date or dates
therefor, or costs of issuing such Bonds.

(e) The balance, if any, of the proceeds derived from the sale ofeach series of
Bonds shall be paid to the State Treasurer to be disbursed by the State Treasurer and other proper
fiscal officers of the State as provided by general law and by the Public Acts of Tennessee
referred to in Section 1 (a) hereof, including but not limited to disbursement to pay costs of
issuance ofthe Bonds. Without limiting the generality ofthe foregoing, such disbursements may
be made in reimbursement ofprevious expenditures for such purposes.

(f) If and when any premium paid by the Purchasers is applied to the
retirement of Commercial Paper as described in subsection (b) above or to pay costs of çapital
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projects as described in subsection (e) above, the related bond authorizations shall be accounted
for as issued to the extent ofthe amounts so applied.

SECTION 8. Réfundinn Trust A*eemèhts. Ratèmötíön íøf Béìidš tó, be
*ëfuñded. (a) The Funding Board hereby authorizes any Authorized Officer to execute and
deliver a Refunding Trust Agreement or Refunding Trust Agreements between the State, acting
by and through the Funding Board, and a refunding trustee (which may be the State Treasurer) to
be appointed by Series Certificate (the "Refunding Trustee"), substantially in the form
executed and delivered in connection with the issuance of the State's General Obligation Bonds,
2014 Refunding Series B, but reflecting details of the transactions contemplated by this
Resolution, with such variations as the Authorized Officer executing such agreement, after
consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or appropriate (each,
a "Refunding Trust Agreement"), such execution and delivery to be conclusive evidence of
such approval and consultation.

(b) The proceeds derived from the sale of Bonds to be applied to the
refunding of the Bonds to be Refunded shall be deposited in one or more trust funds (each, a
"Refunding Trust Fund") to be held by the Refunding Trustee under the related Refunding
Trust Agreement. There also may be transferred and/or deposited to the Refunding Trust Funds
other available moneys as shall be specified in the respective Refunding Trust Agreements.

(c) Each deposit of moneys in the Refunding Trust Funds shall be and
constitute an irrevocable deposit with the Refunding Trustee of said moneys in trust solely for
the payment of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the respective
Bonds to be Refunded as provided in subsections (d) and (h) of this Section, and shall be used
solely for such purpose except as provided in subsections (e) and (i) of this Section or the
respective Refunding Trust Agreement.

(d) Each Series Certificate relating to Bonds issued to refund Bonds to be
Refunded shall specify whether such Bonds to be Refunded are to be called for redemption prior
to maturity or paid at maturity, and may specify whether any such call for redemption shall be
revocable and, with respect to any Bonds to be Refunded that are refunded to maturity, whether
the right is reserved to later call any such Bonds to be Refunded for redemption prior to maturity.
Any such reserved right may be sold for such price and upon such other terms and conditions as

may be determined by an Authorized Officer.

Each designation of a Bond to be Refunded for redemption prior to maturity,
unless initially made revocable, shall be, and is hereby made, irrevocable after the delivery ofthe
respective Bonds to the Purchasers. Upon such delivery, such Bonds to be Refunded shall not be
called for redemption in any other amount or on any other date.

(e) The moneys in the Refunding Trust Funds shall be retained as cash or

invested in Eligible Securities (defined below) so as tó produce funds at least sufficient (A) to
pay on the respective optional redemption date of each Bond to be Refunded that is called for
redemption prior to maturity, the then applicable redemption price of and interest then due on
such Bond to be Refunded, (B) to pay on the maturity date of each Bond to be Refunded that is
not called for redemption prior to maturity the amount then due on such Bond to be Refunded,

11
2496765.4 039367 RS1ND



and (C) to pay the interest due on such Bonds to be Refunded on each interest payment date after
the date of delivery of the respective Bonds and on and prior to their respective redemption or

maturity dates.
,6Eligible Securities" means and includes all investments permitted for the

investment of State funds under Tennessee Code Annotated Section 9-4-602 as amended from
time to time.

(f) The State shall deposit in the Refunding Trust Funds any amounts
that may be necessary for any reason (including but not limited to non-payment or
non-timely payment under any Eligible Security) to enable the Refunding Trustee to make
the payments specified in clauses (A), (B) and (C) of the first paragraph of subsection (e) of
this Section and to make the transfers required by subsection (i) of this Section.

(g) The State shall cause notices of the redemption of the Bonds to be
Refunded to be given in accordance with the provisions of (A) the respective resolutions
authorizing the issuance thereof and (B) the Refunding Trust Agreements.

(h) Pursuant to the Refunding Trust Agreements, the Refunding Trustee is
directed to transfer moneys to the paying agents for the respective Bonds to be Refunded for
payment of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the respective
Bonds to be Refunded when due, from the moneys and obligations deposited in the respective
Refunding Trust Funds under such Refunding Trust Agreements. To facilitate such payment, the
Refunding Trustee is hereby appointed as an additional paying agent for the Bonds to be
Refunded.

(i) Any moneys or securities remaining in a Refunding Trust Fund after the
final payment of the respective Bonds to be Refunded, or upon the reservation in the respective
Refunding Trust Fund of sufficient moneys for the purposes as provided in subsection (e) ofthis
Section, shall be remitted to the State Treasurer to be disbursed by the State Treasurer and other
proper fiscal officers ofthe State, as provided by law.

(j) The Authorized Officers and other officers, employees and agents of the
Funding Board, and other officials and employees of the State including those of the Office of
State and Local Finance of the State, are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions as

may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate the transactions contemplated by the Refunding
Trust Agreements, including but not limited to (A) executing subscriptions for the purchase of
U.S. Treasury Securities-State and Local Government Series or otherwise acquiring securities
for deposit in the Refunding Trust Funds, whether prior to or simultaneously with the execution
and delivery of the Refunding Trust Agreements or at a later date, (B) causing the Bonds to be
Refunded that are called for redemption prior to maturity to be redeemed on their respective
redemption dates and (C) causing the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest
on the Bonds to be Refunded to be paid when due.

SECTION 9. CUSIP Numbers. CUSIP identification numbers will be imprinted
on each Bond to be delivered to DTC, but no such number shall constitute a part of the contract
evidenced by the particular bond upon which it is imprinted; no liability shall attach to the State
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or the Funding Board or any officer, employee or agent of either of them, including any paying
agent or registrar for the Bonds, by reason of such number or any use made thereof including any
use thereof made by the State or the Funding Board or any such officer, employee or any such
agent of either of them, or by reason or any inaccuracy, error, or omission with respect thereto,
or in such use, and any inaccuracy, error, or omission with respect thereto shall not constitute
cause for failure or refusal by the Purchasers to accept delivery of and pay for the respective
Bonds in accordance with the terms of its bid or a Bond Purchase Agreement, as the case may
be. All expenses in relation to the printing of such numbers on the Bonds will be paid by the
State; provided, however, that the CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the assignment of such
numbers shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid by the Purchasers. In addition, the
Purchasers shall be responsible for applying for the CUSIP identification numbers.

SECTION 10. Qntinuiht Dišélè#ure. (a) The Secretary or Assistant Secretary
of the Funding Board is hereby authorized to execute a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or

Continuing Disclosure Undertakings (each, a "Continuing Disclosure Undertaking"
substantially in the form executed and delivered in connection with the issuance of the State's
General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series A and 2014 Refunding Series B, and as described in the
Preliminary Official Statement, with such variations as the signatory thereof, after consultation
with counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or appropriate, such execution and
delivery to be conclusive evidence of such determination and consultation, Execution of the
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking as aforesaid and delivery of the same to the Purchasers shall
be a condition precedent to the obligations ofthe Purchasers to purchase the respective Bonds.

(b) The State covenants with the holders from time to time ofthe Bonds that it
will, and hereby authorizes the appropriate officers and employees ofthe State to, take all action
necessary or appropriate to, comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the respective
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking as amended from time to time. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Resolution, failure of the State to perform in accordance with any Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking shall not constitute a default or an event of default and shall not result in
any acceleration of payment of any Bonds, and any rights and remedies provided by this
Resolution and applicable law upon the occurrence of such a default or an event of default shall
not apply to any such failure, but such Continuing Disclosure Undertaking may be enforced only
as provided therein.

SECTION 11. Tax Covenants. The State, through the Funding Board, hereby
covenants that it will not use, or permit the use of, any proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds in a
manner that would cause the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be subjected to treatment under Section 148
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and applicable regulations

. thereunder, as each is then in effect, as an "arbitrage bond", and to that end the State shall
comply with applicable regulations under said Section 148. The State further covenants with the
registered owners from time to time of the Tax-Exempt Bonds that itwill, throughout the term of
the Tax-Exempt Bonds and through the date that the final rebate, if any, must be made to the
United States in accordance with Section 148 of the Code, comply with the provisions of
Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and all regulations proposed and promulgated
thereunder that must be satisfied in order that interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds shall be and
continue to be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under said
Section 103.
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SECTION 12. Public Hèãrîng. The Assistant Secretary of the Funding Board or
her designee is authorized to publish notice of and conduct any public hearing required by
Section 147(f) of the Code with respect to any project to be financed by any Tax-Exempt Bonds.

SECTION 13. Resolution a Contract. In consideration of the acceptance of the
Bonds by those who shall own the same from time to time and for the benefit of the registered
owners of the Bonds, each of the obligations, duties, limitations and restraints imposed upon the
State, acting through the Funding Board, by this Resolution shall be deemed to be a covenant
between the State and every registered owner of the Bonds, and this Resolution and every
provision and covenant hereof shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the
State and the registered owners from time to time ofthe Bonds.

All terms, provisions, conditions, covenants, warranties and agreements contained
in this Resolution shall constitute a valid contractual obligation of the State and, except as

provided in the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, shall inure to the benefit of the registered
owners ofthe Bonds.

SECTION 14. Severabilitv. If any one or more of the covenants, stipulations,
promises, agreements or obligations provided in this Resolution on the part of the State, the
Funding Board or any officer or employee of either thereof to be performed should be
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such covenant or
covenants, stipulation or stipulations, promise or promises, agreement or agreements, obligation
or obligations shall be deemed and construed to be severable from the remaining covenants,
stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations herein contained and shall in no way affect
the validity ofthe other provisions ofthis Resolution.

SECTION 15. Effeot of-Hëàdiíižs Óf'Seëtiens. The headings of the sections of
this Resolution are for convenience of reference only, and shall not affect the meaning,
construction or interpretation ofthis Resolution.

SECTION 16. Rewaler. All previous authorizations of general obligation bonds
of the State to refund general obligation bonds of the State previously issued, to the extent such
refunding bonds have not been issued as of the date of adoption of this Resolution, are hereby
repealed and rescinded. In addition, the resolution adopted by the Members of the Funding
Board on February 26,2015, and entitled the same as this Resolution is hereby repealed.

SECTION 17. Effectiveness of this Resolution. This Resolution shall be in full
force and effect from and after its passage.

Adopted this 15th day ofSep*er,)?015.
j- '

4/ r/1%/
Justih P. Wilsbñ;-Secretary
Funéng Board ofthe State ofT©nne?fee
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September 11,2015

Memorandum

To: Sandi Thompson, Director of State and Local Finance
From: Lauren Lowe, Public Financial Management, Inc.
Re: Recommendation - State of Tennessee 2015 General Obligation Bonds

Sale Methodology and Underwriting Team

The State of Tennessee (the "State") expects to issue General Obligation Bonds ("2015 Bonds") later this
year to retire general obligation commercial paper and possibly to refinance outstanding bonds, if
economical. The State has asked for a recommendation from Public Financial Management, Inc.
("PFM"), as the State's Financial Advisor, relative to the method of sale. The 2015 Bonds are expected
to be priced in November 2015. Based on the potential refinancing opportunity for savings and municipal
market interest rate volatility associated with current market conditions, PFM recommends a negotiated
bond sale.

Refinancing Opportunities
In February 2015, as your Financial Advisor, we recommended that the State proceed with a negotiated
bond sale in preparation for the refinancing opportunities and to select Morgan Stanley to serve as the
senior book-running manager (please refer to PFM's memo dated February 18, 2015). Given arise
interest rates after this selection, the economics associated with refinancing deteriorated and the
refinancing plan was placed on hold.

The primary focus ofthe 2015 Bonds will be to retire commercial paper in an amount not to exceed $200
million; however, the State would like to continue to monitor the refinancing opportunities of the State's
outstanding bonds and to be in a position to take advantage of savings opportunities if they materialize.
Given the State's interest in remaining nimble on a sizeable refinancing, a negotiated bond sale platform
maximizes the timing flexibility to pursue a potential refinancing for savings.
Current Market Conditions
As referenced above, the interest rate environment can change quickly. The two upcoming Federal Open
Market Committee (FOMC) meetings scheduled later this year could materially impact municipal interest
rates. Many economists are predicting that the FOMC will raise interest rates in December while others
believe the pressures ofthe global economy could cause further delays on increases to the Federal Funds
rate. In addition, there continues to be wide-spread interest rate volatility associated with the reported
economic stress in China, Puerto Rico and elsewhere throughout the world and with the reported
increased default risks associated with appropriation backed credits here in the U.S. Enlisting a senior
book-running manager to provide real-time feedback from investors could be valuable as we move into a

position to pre-market the 2015 Bonds in a potentially volatile market.

Suggested 2015 Bonds Underwriting Team
We recommend that the State moves forward with the previously selected underwriting team to serve on

the refinancing earlier this year: Morgan Stanley as a SeniorManaging Book-Runner and Bank of
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America/Merrill Lynch, Piper Jaffray and Raymond James as Co-Managers. PFM has confirmed with
Morgan Stanley that their compensation will remain at $0.72/per bond regardless the size of the bond
issue. Should the State decide to pursue funding of additional projects through the issuance of taxable
bonds; PFM recommends an evaluation of the size and market conditions in consultation with PFM's
Pricing Group prior to selecting an alternative underwriting team on such issuance. However, we would
recommend that the seiection of a taxable bond underwriting team be made from the firms who
participated in the Request for Cost Proposals earlier this year: Bank ofAmerica/Merrill Lynch, Citi, J.P.
Morgan, Morgan Stanley Piper Jaffray, Raymond James, SunTrust and Wells Fargo.
We appreciate your consideration of these recommendations and we are available to provide additional
information or answer any questions you have.

Thank You.
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To: Sandi Thompson, Director of State and Local Finance
From: Lauren Lowe, Public FinancialManagement, Inc.
Re: Recommendation - State of Tennessee 2015 General Obligation Bonds

Sale Methodology and Underwriting Team

The State ofTennessee (the "State") expects to issue General Obligation Bonds ("2015 Bonds") later this
year to retire general obligation commercial paper and possibly to refinance outstanding bonds, if
economical. The State has asked for a recommendation from Public Financial Management, Inc.
("PFM"), as the State's Financial Advisor, relative to the method of sale. The 2015 Bonds are expected
to be priced in November 2015. Based on the potential refinancing opportunity for savings and municipal
market interest rate volatility associatedwith current market conditions, PFM recommends a negotiated
bond sale.

Refinancing Opportunities
In February 2015, as your Financial Advisor, we recommended that the State proceed with a negotiated
bond sale in preparation for the refinancing opportunities and to select Morgan Stanley to serve as the
senior book-running manager (please refer to PFM's memo dated February 18, 2015). Given a rise
interest rates after this selection, the economics associated with refinancing deteriorated and the
refinancing plan was placed on hold.

The primary focus of the 2015 Bonds will be to retire commercial paper in an amount not to exceed $200
million; however, the State would like to continue to monitor the refinancing opportunities ofthe State's
outstanding bonds and to be in a position to take advantage of savings opportunities ifthey materialize.
Given the State's interest in remaining nimble on a sizeable refinancing, a negotiated bond sale platform
maximizes the timing flexibility to pursue a potentia[ refinancing for savings.

Current Market Conditions
As referenced above, the interest rate environment can change quickly. The two upcoming Federal Open
Market Committee (FOMC) meetings scheduled later this year couldmaterially impact municipal interest
rates. Many economists are predicting that the FOMC will raise interest rates in December while others
believe the pressures ofthe global economy could cause further delays on increases to the Federal Funds
rate. In addition, there continues to be wide-spread interest rate volatility associated with the reported
economic stress in China, Puerto Rico and elsewhere throughout the world and with the reported
increased default risks associated with appropriation backed credits here in the U.S. Enlisting a senior
book-running manager to provide real-time feedback from investors could be valuable as we move into a

position to pre-market the 2015 Bonds in a potentially volatile market.

Suggested 2015 Bonds Underwriting Team
We recommend that the State moves forward with the previously selected underwriting team to serve on

the refinancing earlier this year: Morgan Stanley as a Senior Managing Book-Runner and Bank of
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America/Merrill Lynch, Piper Jaffray and Raymond James as Co-Managers. PFM has confirmed with
Morgan Stanley that their compensation will remain at $0.72/per bond regardless the size ofthe bond
issue. Should the State decide to pursue funding ofadditional projects through the issuance of taxable
bonds; PFM recommends an evaluation of the size and market conditions in consultation with PFM's
Pricing Group prior to selecting an alternative underwriting team on such issuance. However, we would
recommend that the selection of a taxable bond underwriting team be made from the firms who
participated in the Request for Cost Proposals earlier this year: Bank ofAmerica/Merrill Lynch, Citi, J.P.
Morgan, Morgan Stanley Piper Jaffray, Raymond James, SunTrust and Wells Fargo.
We appreciate your consideration of tlìese recommendations and we are available to provide additional
information or answer any questions you have.

Thank You.



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR
THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION

BONDS OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE FUNDING BOARD OF THE STATE OF
TENNESSEE:

SECTION 1. Findings and Determinations. (a) The State of Tennessee (the
"State"), by various Public Acts of its General Assembly, has authorized, and is expected to
authorize, the issuance of general obligation bonds of the State in the respective principal
amounts and for public purposes of the respective State departments and institutions, among
others, including without limitation to make grants to counties, metropolitan governments,
incorporated towns, cities, special districts of the State, or government agencies or
instrumentalities of any of them, all as set forth therein. General obligation bonds and bond
anticipation notes have been issued against certain of such authorizations, and certain of such
authorizations have been cancelled and rescinded.

(b) By resolutions adopted by the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee
(the "Funding Board") on July 14, 1994, May 15, 1995, August 23, 1995, August 26, 1996,
September 10, 1997, August 7, 1998, August 31, 1999, August 23, 2000, October 15, 2001,
July 30, 2002, June 27, 2003, July 26, 2004, August 5, 2005, June 27, 2006, July 23, 2007,
June 30, 2008, March 24, 2009, August 5, 2009, July 15, 2010, June 30, 2011, June 6, 2012,
June 25, 2013, June 18, 2014, and June 23, 2015, each entitled "A RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE STATE
OF TENNESSEE" or

"A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING, AND AMENDING A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING, THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE" (collectively, the "Bond Resolution"), the Funding Board
has authorized the issuance of general obligation bonds of the State under the provisions of
certain ofthe Public Acts ofthe General Assembly referred to in subsection (a) above.

(c) Pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Funding Board on March 6,2000,
as amended and restated on August 5, 2009, entitled "RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF COMMERCIAL PAPER;
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR A STANDBY COMMERCIAL PAPER
PURCHASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS
RELATING THERETO" (the "Commercial Paper Resolution"), the State authorized the
issuance from time to time of bond anticipation notes constituting General Obligation
Commercial Paper Series A (Tax-Exempt) and Series B (Federally Taxable) in an aggregate
principal amount not to exceed $350,000,000 at any one time outstanding (the ,,Commercial
Paper") for the purposes set forth in the Commercial Paper Resolution, the Bond Resolution and
the Public Acts ofTennessee referred to in the Bond Resolution.

(d) The outstanding Commercial Paper matures from time to time, and it is in
the best interests of the State to pay at maturity a portion of the outstanding Commercial Paper
(the "Refundable Commercial Paper") by issuance of general obligation bonds of the State.
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(e) Pursuant to resolutions adopted by the Funding Board on (i) June 30,
2008, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate dated September 4, 2008 (the "2008B
Resolution"), the State issued $15,360,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation
Bonds, 2008 Series B (Federally Taxable) (the "2008B Bonds"), (ii) March 6,2009, including as
a part thereof the Series Certificate dated May 6, 2009 (the "2009A Resolution"), the State
issued $291,500,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series A
(the "2009A Bonds"), (iii) October 20,2009, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate
dated December 16, 2009 (the "2009D Resolution"), the State issued $54,110,000 aggregate
principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series D (Federally Taxable) (the "2009D
Bonds"), (iv) September 20, 2010, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate dated
October 27, 2010 (the "2010A Resolution"), the State issued $186,505,000 aggregate principal
amount ofGeneral Obligation Bonds, 2010 Series A (the "2010A Bonds"), and (v) September 8,
2011, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate dated October 26, 2011 (the "2011A
Resolution"), the State issued $255,400,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation
Bonds, 2011 Series A (the "2011A Bonds"). Depending on market conditions, the refunding of
the 2008B Bonds, 2009A Bonds, 2009D Bonds, 2010A Bonds and 2011A Bonds that are

currently outstanding (the "Refundable Bonds") may accomplish cost savings to the public, and
it is advisable and in the best interests of the State to provide at this time for the issuance of
general obligation refunding bonds for such purposes as set forth in Section 2 hereof.

(f) It is advisable and in the best interests of the State to provide at this time
for the issuance of general obligation bonds as authorized by Section 2 hereof to refund
Refundable Bonds, to refund Refundable Commercial Paper and to fund purposes in amounts
authorized by Public Acts of the General Assembly and not heretofore funded by issuance of
Commercial Paper.

(g) The Funding Board acknowledges that the Director of the Office of State
and Local Finance has made a presentation to the staff of the Funding Board pursuant to and
meeting the requirements of the Funding Board's Debt Management Policy (the "Debt
Management Policy") under the subsection "Debt Administration - Planning for Sale".

SECTION 2. Authorization ofBonds: Deiekàtion'. Seriéš Certificate. (a) There
is hereby authorized to be issued and sold general obligation bonds of the State (the "Bonds")
for the purposes set forth in Section 1 hereof. The Bonds may be issued (i) at one time or from
time to time and (ii) as one or more series the interest on which is excluded from gross income
for Federal income tax purposes (the "Tax-Exempt Bonds") and/or in one or more series the
interest on which is included in gross income for Federal income tax purposes (the "Taxable
Bonds").

(b) Prior to or simultaneous with the issuance of the Bonds for the purposes
set forth in Sections 1 (b) and (d) hereo f, the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Funding
Board shall certify as of the date of issuance (i) the purpose or purposes for which such Bonds
are to be issued including reference to the Public Act or Acts of the General Assembly
authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes therefor, (ii) the
principal amount of such Bonds proposed to be issued for each such purpose, including the
principal amount of Refundable Commercial Paper of each series to be refunded from proceeds
ofsuch Bonds, (iii) the principal amount of general obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes
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(including Commercial Paper) theretofore issued for each such purpose and (iv) that such
principal amount of general obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes, together with the
principal amount of such Bonds, will not exceed the aggregate principal amount of general
obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes (unless, in the case of notes, such notes have been
funded by issuance of bonds) authorized by such Public Act or Acts less any such authorization
theretofore rescinded or cancelled or otherwise not in effect, The certification required by such
clause (íi) may be amended from time to time subsequent to the date of issuance, but only if
accompanied by the certifications required by such clauses (iìi) and (iv) which shall reflect such
amendment.

(c) The Funding Board hereby delegates to the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Funding Board, the Secretary of State or the State Treasurer (each, an
"Authorized Officer") the power to determine, by means of a Series Certificate or Series
Certificates (each, a "Series Certificate"), the following:

(i) the matters provided in this Section and Sections 3,5,6 and 7 hereof, and

(íi) any other matters and provisions deemed advisable by such Authorized
Officer and not materially in conflict herewith.

(d) The Series Certificate applicable to each series of refunding Bonds, issued
for the purposes set forth in Section 1 (e) hereof, shall specify the Refundable Bonds to be
refun(led by such refunding Bonds (the "Bonds to be Refunded"). Refunding Bonds shall not
be issued unless (i) the issuance thereof and the refunding of the Bonds to be Refunded thereby
results in aggregate present value savings of at least 4.0%, net of estimated costs of issuance, as
certified to the Funding Board by the Financial Advisor (the "Financial Advisor") to the
Funding Board, and (ií) an Authorized Officer by execution of a Series Certificate confirms the
receipt of such certification of the Financial Advisor and, based thereon, determines that the
refunding ofthe Bonds to be Refunded accomplishes cost savings to the public.

Present value savings shall be calculated by (i) comparing the debt service on
each series of refunding Bonds to the remaining debt service on the Bonds to be Refunded
thereby, present valued to the issue date of such refunding Bonds at a discount rate equal to the
arbitrage yield on such refunding Bonds calculated (whether for Tax-Exempt Bonds or Taxable
Bonds) in the same manner as arbitrage yield is calculated for Federally tax-exempt bonds;
provided, however, i f a series of Bonds is being issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds to be
Refunded and for other purposes, only the portion of such Bonds issued for the purpose of
refunding Bonds to be Refunded (and related allocable costs of issuance) shall be included in
such calculations. Percentage present value savings shall be expressed as a percentage ofthe par
amount of such Bonds to be Refunded.

(e) Each Series Certificate shall be filed with the records of the Funding
Board, whereupon it shall be deemed for all purposes of this Resolution to have been adopted by
the Funding Board and to be a part ofthis Resolution as if set forth in full herein.

(f) The State (acting through the State Treasurer or the State Comptroller or
both) initially shall be the paying agent and registrar for all Bonds. The Funding Board may at
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any time appoint an agent of the State for the purpose ofmaking payments to registered owners
of all or any of the Bonds of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on
such Bonds, maintaining books of registry of the ownership of such Bonds and registering the
ownership and transfer thereof, authenticating such Bonds, or performing such other duties of a
paying agent and registrar as may be prescribed by the Funding Board.

SECTION 3. Detail.*Iof*öíids. The following provisions set forth details of the
Bonds, subject in each case (except subsection (a) of this Section) to any contrary specification
in a Series Certificate.

(a) Aíñeuntà, Dateš. Ima*,t Rãiés. Etc. The Bonds shall (i) be in such
aggregate principal amount, except in the case ofBonds to be issued for the purposes specified in
Section 1 (e) hereof, not to exceed $400,000,000, (ii) be dated and bear interest from such date or

dates, (iii) be issuable in such form, (iv) be of such denominations, (v) be numbered and bear
such other designations, (vi) mature on the dates (which shall not be later than 21 years after the
date of issuance) and in the principal amounts, (vii) bear interest at the rates, not to exceed 5.00%
in the case of the Tax-Exempt Bonds and 6.00% in the case of the Taxable Bonds, and be
payable on the dates and in the manner, (viii) be serial bonds or term bonds, (ix) if term bonds,
be subject to retirement by mandatory sinking fund redemption, and (x) be subject to redemption
prior to maturity at the times (but initially not later than ten years from the date of initial delivery
of the Bonds) and at a fixed redemption price or prices not to exceed 103% of the principal
amount to be redeemed or, in the case of Taxable Bonds, at such a fixed redemption price or

prices or at a make-whole price or prices, or a combination thereof, in each case plus accrued
interest, or may be non-callable if (except for Tax-Exempt Bonds maturing not later than ten
years from the date of initial delivery or for Taxable bonds) so determined by the Funding Board
by further action pursuant to the Debt Management Policy subsection "Debt Management - Call
Provisions", all as provided in the respective Series Certificate.

(b) Patinent Transfèr. Exchange. Etc. Principal of and redemption premium,
if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency of the United States of
America which at the time of such payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private
debts.

Principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be
payable by check or draft mailed to each registered owner of such Bonds at the address of such
owner as it appears in the books of registrymaintained by or on behalf of the State, in the case of
interest only to such owner and to such address as of the close of business on the fifteenth day
(whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next preceding the respective stated due
date for such interest, and in the case of principal and redemption premium only upon
presentation and surrender to the State Treasurer in Nashville, Tennessee, or an agent ofthe State
designated for the purpose; provided, however, that for so long as DTC (as defined in
subsection (d) of this Section) or its nominee, or any substitute depository, or successor, is the
registered owner ofBonds as Securities Depository (as defined in subsection (d) of this Section),
payment of principal and sinking fund installments, if any, of and redemption premium, if any,
and interest on such Bonds may be made in any manner agreed to by the State and DTC, or any
substitute depository, or successor, as the case may be.
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The Bonds will have all the qualities and incidents of a negotiable instrument.
Bonds will be transferable only upon presentation and surrender to the State or an agent of the
State designated in accordance with this Resolution, together with an assignment duly executed
by the registered owner of the Bond or by his duly authorized representative in form satisfactory
to the State or such agent and containing information required by the State or such agent in order
to effect such transfer.

The State or any such agent may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any
tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to an exchange or transfer
of a Bond, and may charge the person requesting such exchange or transfer a sum or sums
sufficient to pay the cost of preparing each new Bond issued, which sum or sums shall be paid as
a condition precedent to the exercise ofthe privilege ofmaking such exchange or transfer.

The State and such agent shall not be obligated to make any such exchange or
transfer of Bonds during the 15 days next preceding an interest payment date on the Bonds or, in
the case of any proposed redemption of the Bonds, during the 45 days next preceding the date of
redemption.

In case any Bond shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the State
shall execute and deliver, or cause such agent to authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like
series, maturity, principal amount and interest rate as the Bond·so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or
lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated Bond, upon surrender and cancellation of
such mutilated Bond, or in lieu of and in substitution for the Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon
filing with the State and such agent evidence satisfactory to the State and such agent that such
Bond has been destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership thereof, and upon furnishing the
State with indemnity satisfactory to it and complying with such other reasonable regulations as
the State may prescribe and paying such expenses as the State and such agent may incur. All
Bonds so surrendered to the State or such agent shall be cancelled by it.

(c) Optional Redemption. The Bonds may be subject to redemption prior to
their stated maturities, from any moneys available to the State for such purpose, as determined
pursuant to Section 3(a)(x) hereof.

Notice of redemption shall be mailed, or delivered by physical or electronic
means, not less than 30 days prior to the redemption date, to the registered owners of the Bonds
which are to be redeemed in whole or in part at the mail, physical or electronic means addresses
as shown in the bond register kept by the State or its agent as of the 45th calendar day preceding
the redemption date, but the failure to receive any such notice shall not affect the sufficiency or
the validity of the redemption of such Bonds. Such notice shall specify the designation, date,
number, and maturity of the bonds to be redeemed, the principal amount to be redeemed if less
than the entire principal amount thereof, the date and place fixed for such redemption and the
redemption price payable upon such redemption. The provisions of this paragraph shall not
apply ifand to the extent otherwise provided in a Series Certificate.

Any notice of optional redemption may be made conditional upon the availability
of sufficient moneys to pay the redemption price, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the
redemption date.
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Notice having been given in the manner provided, the Bonds or portions thereof
so called for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date specified in such
notice, subject to the foregoing conditional notice provisions. Upon presentation and surrender
of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part at the offices specified in such notice, together
with, in the case of Bonds presented by other than the registered owner, a written instrument of
transfer duly executed by the registered owner or by the registered owner' s duly authorized
representative, such Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall be paid at the
redemption price established above. If less than all of a Bond shall be redeemed, the State shall
execute and deliver, or cause an agent of the State appointed for the purpose to authenticate and
deliver, upon the surrender of such Bond, without charge to the registered owner thereof, for the
unredeemed balance of the principal amount of the Bond so surrendered, registered Bond(s) of
like series, maturity and interest rate in authorized denominations. If, on the redemption date,
moneys for the redemption of all of the Bonds or portions thereof of any like maturity to be
redeemed, together with interest to the redemption date, shall be held so as to be available for
purposes of redemption on said date and if notice of redemption shall have been given as

required by this Resolution, then from and after the redemption date, interest on the Bonds or

portions thereof of such maturity so called for redemption shall cease to accrue and become
payable. If said moneys shall not be available on the redemption date, such Bonds or portions
thereof shall continue to bear interest until paid at the same rate as they would have borne had
they not been called for redemption. The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply if and to
the extent otherwise provided in a Series Certificate.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as DTC or its nominee, or any substitute
depository, or successor, is the registered owner ofBonds as Securities Depository (as defined in
subsection (d) of this Section), notice of redemption may be given in the manner, and
presentation and surrender of Bonds may be waived to the extent, agreed to by the State and
DTC, or any substitute depository, or successor, as the case may be. Any failure ofDTC or any
substitute depository, or successor, or participant of any thereof, to notify a beneficial owner of a
Bond of any redemption shall not affect the sufficiency or the validity of the redemption of such
Bond.

(d) Böök-Rntrý>Only. The Bonds when initially issued shall be registered in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York
("DTC"). DTC is hereby designated the securities depository for the Bonds ("Securities
Depository"), except as provided in subsection (í) of this Section. So long as DTC or its
nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds as Securities Depository, individual purchases of
beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be made only in book-entry form by or through
DTC participants, and purchasers of such beneficial ownership interests in Bonds will not
receive physical delivery of Bond certificates representing the beneficial ownership interest
purchased.

The State shall have no responsibility for transmitting payments to,
communicating with, notifying, or otherwise dealing with any beneficial owners of the Bonds or
nominees thereof.

(e) Rept®ement Bonds. The State shall issue Bond certificates (the
"Replacement Bonds") directly to beneficial owners of the Bonds or to DTC, as specified by
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DTC procedures, but only in the event that (i) DTC determines to discontinue providing its
services with respect to the Bonds, or (ii) the State discontinues use of DTC (or any substitute
depository, or successor), subject to DTC procedures. The State shall be fully protected in
relying upon information provided by DTC, DTC participants or other nominees of beneficial
owners, or beneficial owners with respect to the names, addresses and amounts owned by the
beneficial owners and other information supplied by them for the purpose of delivering
Replacement Bonds.

(f) Šííbštikjté Seéürities,B®**fíorv. Provisions similar to those contained in
subsections (d) and (e) of this Section may be made by the State in connection with the
appointment by the State of a substitute Securities Depository for the Bonds, or in the event of a
successor to DTC, or to any substitute or successor of any thereof.

SECTION 4. Security #mr·the Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued under Title 9,
Chapter 9, Tennessee Code Annotated, and shall constitute direct general obligations ofthe State
for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on which there is pledged
the full faith and credit of the State. The Bonds shall constitute a charge and lien upon the entire
fees, taxes and other revenues and funds allocated to the general fund, the debt service fund, and
the highway fund of the State; and, if necessary, upon the first such fees, taxes, revenues and
funds as may be otherwise legally restricted. The State hereby covenants with the persons who
now or may hereafter hold any Bonds that it will raise fees, taxes and other revenues sufficient,
together with funds on hand derived from all sources, to pay the principal of and premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds as and when due and payable.

SECTION 5. Sale and Issuance ofBondsD PtølîminaryÖfftóîàl Statement; Ftnàî
Official Statøment. (a) If the Bonds are divided pursuant to Section 2(a) hereof, the Bonds of
more than one series may be sold collectively or on a series-by-series basis.

(b) No Bonds shall be sold unless the debt service coverage test of Section 9-
9-105(c), Tennessee Code Annotated, will be satisfied as ofthe date of issuance of such Bonds.

(c) The Bonds of each series may be sold at either a competitive or negotiated
sale, the Bonds of any series may be sold by any such method, and the Bonds of any other series
may be sold by any other such method, as determined in a Series Certificate.

(d) tfSold bv CompeitiwSale:

(1) There is hereby authorized a Notice of Sale relating to the Bonds sold at
competitive sale, substantially in the form utilized in connection with the sale of the State's
General Obligation Bonds, 2012 Series B and 2012 Refunding Series C (Federally Taxable),
with such insertions, changes and additions to and omissions from said form as any Authorized
Officer, after consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or

appropriate (the "Notice of Sale"), the distribution ofwhich as hereinafter authorized shall be
conclusive evidence of such approval and consultation.

(2) Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to cause the Notice of Sale
and Preliminary Official Statement (as defined in subsection (f) of this Section 5) to be
distributed to prospective purchasers of such Bonds and/or published on any Internet platform.
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The use of any Internet platform as a communications medium to receive bids for the purchase of
such Bonds, as may be provided in the Notice of Sale, also is hereby authorized.

(3) Any Authorized Officer may award the Bonds to the successful bidder or
bidders therefor (the "Competitive Sale Purchasers") determined in accordance with and
otherwise complying with the Notice of Sale or, as permitted by the Notice of Sale, may reject
any or all proposals received for the purchase of such Bonds or waive any irregularity in any
proposal; provided, however, that the true interest cost of such Bonds, determined as provided in
the Notice of Sale by the Authorized Officer executing the related Series Certificate, which
determination shall be conclusive, shall not exceed 5.00% for Tax-Exempt Bonds of each series
and 6.00% for Taxable Bonds of each series, on a series-by-series basis. Such awards and
determinations shall be confirmed in the related Series Certificate.

(e) IfSokl b¥Negotiated Sale:

(1) The Bonds sold at negotiated sale are hereby authorized to be sold to such
underwriters as may be named in the Bond Purchase Agreement authorized in paragraph (2)
below (collectively, the "Negotiated Sale Purchasers" and, together with the Competitive Sale
Purchasers, the "Purchasers") upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Purchase
Agreement; provided, however, that the lead book-running underwriter and senior manager(s)
thereunder shall be selected from among the following or any parent or affiliate
thereof: Citigroup Global Markets Inc.; J.P. Morgan Securities LLC; Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith Incorporated; Morgan Stanley & Co., LLC; Piper Jaffray & Co.; Raymond
James & Associates, Inc.; SunTrust Investment Services, lnc.; and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC.
In consideration of Section 2(d) hereof and paragraph (2) below, it is not necessary for the
Funding Board to place any limitation on the purchase price payable by the Negotiated Sale
Purchasers.

(2) Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver a
Bond Purchase Agreement or Agreements, substantially in the form executed and delivered in
connection with the issuance of the State's General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series A and 2014
Refunding Series B, but reflecting details of the transactions contemplated by this Resolution,
with such variations as the Authorized Officer executing such agreements, after consultation
with counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or appropriate (each, a "Bond
Purchase Agreement"), such execution and delivery to be conclusive evidence of such approval
and consultation; provided, however, that the true interest cost of such Bonds, determined by a
Series Certificate, which determination shall be conclusive, shall not exceed 5.00% for Tax-
Exempt Bonds of each series and 6.00% for Taxable Bonds of each series, on a series-by-series
basis.

(f) The Funding Board hereby authorizes a Preliminary Official Statement
relating to the Bonds, substantially in the form presented to the Members of the Funding Board
in advance of the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted, with such insertions, changes and
additions to and omissions from said form as any Authorized Officer, after consultation with
counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or appropriate (the "Preliminary
Official Statement"), the publication or distribution ofwhich as hereinafter authorized shall be
conclusive evidence of such approval and consultation; provided, however, that a draft thereof

8
2496765 4 039367 RS1ND



shall be distributed to the members of the Funding Board prior to publication and distribution as
hereinafter authorized. The Comptroller of the Treasury, as Secretary of the Funding Board, the
Secretary of State or the State Treasurer is hereby authorized to cause the Preliminary Official
Statement to be distributed to prospective purchasers of the Bonds and/or published on the
Internet via any Internet platform, substantially in such form, with such necessary or appropriate
variations, omissions and insertions as determined by such officer after consultation with counsel
to the Funding Board. The Comptroller of the Treasury, as Secretary of the Funding Bond, the
Secretary of State or the State Treasurer is authorized to (i) determine that the Preliminary
Official Statement, as so modified, is "deemed final" as of its date for purposes of Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 1502-12 except for omissions permitted by such Rule, subject to
revision, amendment and completion in the final Official Statement as defined in such Rule,
(ii) include such determination in the Notice of Sale and/or Preliminary Official Statement, and
(iii) confirm such determination in a Series Certificate or Bond Purchase Agreement.

(g) The Comptroller of the Treasury, as Secretary of the Funding Board, is
hereby authorized and directed to prepare or cause to be prepared, and to execute and deliver, an
Official Statement relating to the Bonds substantially in the form of the Preliminary Official
Statement, with such necessary or appropriate insertions, changes, additions and omissions as
determined by the Comptroller after consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, which
execution shall be conclusive evidence of such determination and consultation.

(h) The Funding Board hereby authorizes the use and distribution of the
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement in connection with the offering and
sale ofthe Bonds.

(i) The Authorized Officers and other officers and employees of the Funding
Board, and other officials and employees of the State, including those of the Office of State and
Local Finance of the State, are hereby authorized and directed to carry out or cause to be carried
out all obligations of the Funding Board under each Bond Purchase Agreement and to execute
and deliver all documents and to perform such other actions not otherwise provided for by this
Section as they, in consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, shall consider necessary or
advisable in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery ofthe Bonds.

(i) All actions heretofore taken by the officers, employees and agents of the
Funding Board in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds are hereby ratified and
confirrned.

SECTION 6. Form and Executiøn ef Bonds. (a) The Bonds shall be in
substantially the form set forth in Appendix A to this Resolution with necessary or appropriate
insertions, changes, additions and omissions as are incidental to series, number, interest rate,
CUSIP number and denomination or as are otherwise permitted or required by law or by this
Resolution (including but not limited to such changes as may be provided in or to be consistent
with the respective Series Certificate), or in such other form as may be specified by an
Authorized Officer in the case of Bonds not held by a securities depository under a

book-entry-only system of registration. The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the State by
the manual or facsimile signature of the Governor, the Secretary ofState, the State Treasurer, the
Commissioner of Finance and Administration or the Comptroller of the Treasury, and
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countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of one other of such officers, one of which
signatures shall be manual (unless the Bonds shall be authenticated pursuant to subsection (b)
below), with the Great Seal of the State of Tennessee, or a facsimile thereof, affixed thereto or

impressed or imprinted thereon.

(b) The Bonds each may have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication
executed by the registrar therefor either by manual or facsimile signature. If any Bonds contain
such an endorsement unless and until such certificate of authentication shall have been manually
executed by an authorized officer of such registrar, no such Bond shall be valid or obligatory for
any purpose or shall be entitled to any right or benefit under the Resolution. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to Bonds if the State is the registrar
therefor.

SECTION 7. ADDftëàtîönBfBønd Prøëeeds and'Øfhér Móne¥š. (a) An amount
of proceeds derived from the sale of each series of Bonds equal to the accrued interest, if any,
paid by the Purchasers thereof shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund and used to pay a

portion of the interest on such Bonds coming due on the first interest payment date or dates
therefor.

(b) An amount of proceeds derived from the sale of each series of Bonds,
which may include a portion of any premium over the par amount of such Bonds paid by the
Purchasers thereof, equal to any principal amount of the Refundable Commercial Paper to be
paid from such proceeds, as provided in Sections 1(d) and 2(a) hereof, shall be deposited in the
Capital Projects Fund and used solely for the purpose of paying such principal when due at
maturity in accordance with the Commercial Paper Resolution.

(c) An amount ofproceeds derived from the sale of each series ofBonds to be
applied to the refunding of the Bonds to be Refunded, which may include a portion of any
premium over the par amount of such Bonds paid by the Purchasers thereof, shall be deposited,
held, invested and applied as provided in Section 8 hereof.

(d) The portion of any premium paid by the Purchasers for each series of
Bonds which is not applied as described in subsection (b) or (c) above shall be used for purposes
described in subsection (e) below or deposited 'in the Debt Service Fund and used to pay a

portion of the interest on such Bonds coming due on the first interest payment date or dates
therefor, or costs of issuing such Bonds.

(e) The balance, if any, of the proceeds derived from the sale of each series of
Bonds shall be paid to the State Treasurer to be disbursed by the State Treasurer and other proper
fiscal officers of the State as provided by general law and by the Public Acts of Tennessee
referred to in Section 1 (a) hereof, including but not limited to disbursement to pay costs of
issuance ofthe Bonds. Without limiting the generality ofthe foregoing, such disbursements may
be made in reimbursement of previous expenditures for such purposes.

(f) If and when any premium paid by the Purchasers is applied to the
retirement of Commercial Paper as described in subsection (b) above or to pay costs of capital
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projects as described in subsection (e) above, the related bond authorizations shall be accounted
for as issued to the extent ofthe amounts so applied.

SECTION 8. Réñtnding T+ust Agreèmehfš· Rëdemt,tíon of Bönds to be
;Ränèled. (a) The Funding Board hereby authorizes any Authorized Officer to execute and
deliver a Refunding Trust Agreement or Refunding Trust Agreements between the State, acting
by and through the Funding Board, and a refunding trustee (which may be the State Treasurer) to
be appointed by Series Certificate (the "Refunding Trustee"), substantially in the form
executed and delivered in connection with the issuance of the State' s General Obligation Bonds,
2014 Refunding Series B, but reflecting details of the transactions contemplated by this
Resolution, with such variations as the Authorized Officer executing such agreement, after
consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or appropriate (each,
a "Refunding Trust Agreement"), such execution and delivery to be conclusive evidence of
such approval and consultation.

(b) The proceeds derived from the sale of Bonds to be applied to the
refunding of the Bonds to be Refunded shall be deposited in one or more trust funds (each, a
"Refunding Trust Fund") to be held by the Refunding Trustee under the related Refunding
Trust Agreement. There also may be transferred and/or deposited to the Refunding Trust Funds
other available moneys as shall be specified in the respective Refunding Trust Agreements.

(c) Each deposit of moneys in the Refunding Trust Funds shall be and
constitute an irrevocable deposit with the Refunding Trustee of said moneys in trust solely for
the payment of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the respective
Bonds to be Refunded as provided in subsections (d) and (h) of this Section, and shall be used
solely for such purpose except as provided in subsections (e) and (i) of this Section or the
respective Refunding Trust Agreement.

(d) Each Series Certificate relating to Bonds issued to refund Bonds to be
Refunded shall specify whether such Bonds to be Refunded are to be called for redemption prior
to maturity or paid at maturity, and may specify whether any such call for redemption shall be
revocable and, with respect to any Bonds to be Refunded that are refunded to maturity, whether
the right is reserved to later call any such Bonds to be Refunded for redemption prior tomaturity.
Any such reserved right may be sold for such price and upon such other terms and conditions as

may be determined by an Authorized Officer.

Each designation of a Bond to be Refunded for redemption prior to maturity,
unless initially made revocable, shall be, and is hereby made, irrevocable after the delivery of the
respective Bonds to the Purchasers. Upon such delivery, such Bonds to be Refunded shall not be
called for redemption in any other amount or on any other date.

(e) The moneys in the Refunding Trust Funds shall be retained as cash or
invested in Eligible Securities (defined below) so as to produce funds at least sufficient (A) to
pay on the respective optional redemption date of each Bond to be Refunded that is called for
redemption prior to maturity, the then applicable redemption price of and interest then due on
such Bond to be Refunded, (B) to pay on the maturity date of each Bond to be Refunded that is
not called for redemption prior to maturity the amount then due on such Bond to be Refunded,
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and (C) to pay the interest due on such Bonds to be Refunded on each interest payment date after
the date of delivery of the respective Bonds and on and prior to their respective redemption or

maturity dates.

"Eligible Securities" means and includes all investments permitted for the
investment of State funds under Tennessee Code Annotated Section 9-4-602 as amended from
time to time.

(f) The State shall deposit in the Refunding Trust Funds any amounts
that may be necessary for any reason (including but not limited to non-payment or
non-timely payment under any Eligible Security) to enable the Refunding Trustee to make
the payments specified in clauses (A), (B) and (C) of the first paragraph of subsection (e) of
this Section and to make the transfers required by subsection (i) ofthis Section.

(g) The State shall cause notices of the redemption of the Bonds to be
Refunded to be given in accordance with the provisions of (A) the respective resolutions
authorizing the issuance thereofand (B) the Refunding Trust Agreements.

(h) Pursuant to the Refunding Trust Agreements, the Refunding Trustee is
directed to transfer moneys to the paying agents for the respective Bonds to be Refunded for
payment of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, aîid inleresl on Lhe respective
Bonds to be Refunded when due, from the moneys and obligations deposited in the respective
Refunding Trust Funds under such Refunding Trust Agreements. To facilitate such payment, the
Refunding Trustee is hereby appointed as an additional paying agent for the Bonds to be
Refunded.

(i) Any moneys or securities remaining in a Refunding Trust Fund after the
final payment of the respective Bonds to be Refunded, or upon the reservation in the respective
Refunding Trust Fund of sufficient moneys for the purposes as provided in subsection (e) of this
Section, shall be remitted to the State Treasurer to be disbursed by the State Treasurer and other
proper fiscal officers ofthe State, as provided by law.

(j) The Authorized Officers and other officers, employees and agents of the
Funding Board, and other officials and employees of the State including those of the Office of
State and Local Finance of the State, are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions as

may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate the transactions contemplated by the Refunding
Trust Agreements, including but not limited to (A) executing subscriptions for the purchase of
U.S. Treasury Securities-State and Local Government Series or otherwise acquiring securities
for deposit in the Refunding Trust Funds, whether prior to or simultaneously with the execution
and delivery of the Refunding Trust Agreements or at a later date, (B) causing the Bonds to be
Refunded that are called for redemption prior to maturity to be redeemed on their respective
redemption dates and (C) causing the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest
on the Bonds to be Refunded to be paid when due.

SECTION 9. CUSIP Numbers. CUSIP identification numbers will be imprinted
on each Bond to be delivered to DTC, but no such number shall constitute a part of the contract
evidenced by the particular bond upon which it is imprinted; no liability shall attach to the State
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or the Funding Board or any officer, employee or agent of either of them, including any paying
agent or registrar for the Bonds, by reason of such number or any use made thereof including any
use thereof made by the State or the Funding Board or any such officer, employee or any such
agent of either of them, or by reason or any inaccuracy, error, or omission with respect thereto,
or in such use, and any inaccuracy, error, or omission with respect thereto shall not constitute
cause for failure or refusal by the Purchasers to accept delivery of and pay for the respective
Bonds in accordance with the terms of its bid or a Bond Purchase Agreement, as the case may
be. All expenses in relation to the printing of such numbers on the Bonds will be paid by the
State; provided, however, that the CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the assignment of such
numbers shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid by the Purchasers. In addition, the
Purchasers shall be responsible for applying for the CUSIP identification numbers.

SECTION 10. €*ntinuintDiscloštue. (a) The Secretary or Assistant Secretary
of the Funding Board is hereby authorized to execute a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or

Continuing Disclosure Undertakings (each, a "Continuing Disclosure Undertaking"
substantially in the form executed and delivered in connection with the issuance of the State's
General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series A and 2014 Refunding Series B, and as described in the
Preliminary Official Statement, with such variations as the signatory thereof, after consultation
with counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or appropriate, such execution and
delivery to be conclusive evidence of such determination and consultation. Execution of the
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking as aforesaid and delivery of the same to the Purchasers shall
be a condition precedent to the obligations ofthe Purchasers to purchase the respective Bonds.

(b) The State covenants with the holders from time to time ofthe Bonds that it
will, and hereby authorizes the appropriate officers and employees of the State to, take all action
necessary or appropriate to, comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the respective
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking as amended from time to time. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Resolution, failure of the State to perform in accordance with any Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking shall not constitute a default or an event ofdefault and shall not result in
any acceleration of payment of any Bonds, and any rights and remedies provided by this
Resolution and applicable law upon the occurrence of such a default or an event of default shall
not apply to any such failure, but such Continuing Disclosure Undertaking may be enforced only
as provided therein.

SECTION 11. Tax Covenants. The State, through the Funding Board, hereby
covenants that it will not use, or permit the use of, any proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds in a
manner that would cause the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be subjected to treatment under Section 148
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and applicable regulations
thereunder, as each is then in effect, as an "arbitrage bond", and to that end the State shall
comply with applicable regulations under said Section 148. The State further covenants with the
registered owners from time to time of the Tax-Exempt Bonds that it will, throughout the term of
the Tax-Exempt Bonds and through the date that the final rebate, if any, must be made to the
United States in accordance with Section 148 of the Code, comply with the provisions of
Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and all regulations proposed and promulgated
thereunder that must be satisfied in order that interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds shall be and
continue to be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under said
Section 103.
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SECTION 12. Public.Hëaring. The Assistant Secretary of the Funding Board or
her designee is authorized to publish notice of and conduct any public hearing required by
Section 147(f) ofthe Code with respect to any project to be financed by any Tax-Exempt Bonds.

SECTION 13. Resolution a Contract. In consideration of the acceptance of the
Bonds by those who shall own the same from time to time and for the benefit of the registered
owners of the Bonds, each ofthe obligations, duties, limitations and restraints imposed upon the
State, acting through the Funding Board, by this Resolution shall be deemed to be a covenant
between the State and every registered owner of the Bonds, and this Resolution and every
provision and covenant hereof shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the
State and the registered owners from time to time ofthe Bonds.

All terms, provisions, conditions, covenants, warranties and agreements contained
in this Resolution shall constitute a valid contractual obligation of the State and, except as

provided in the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, shall inure to the benefit of the registered
owners ofthe Bonds.

SECTION 14. Seýërability. If any one or more of the covenants, stipulations,
promises, agreements or obligations provided in this Resolution on the part of the State, the
Funding Board or any officer or employee of either thereof to be performed should be
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such covenant or
covenants, stipulation or stipulations, promise or promises, agreement or agreements, obligation
or obligations shall be deemed and construed to be severable from the remaining covenants,
stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations herein contained and shall in no way affect
the validity of the other provisions of this Resolulion.

SECTION 15. Effect ofHeadings of Seètíons. The headings of the sections of
this Resolution are for convenience of reference only, and shall not affect the meaning,
construction or interpretation ofthis Resolution.

SECTION 16. Reoealer. All previous authorizations of general obligation bonds
of the State to refund general obligation bonds of the State previously issued, to the extent such
refunding bonds have not been issued as of the date of adoption of this Resolution, are hereby
repealed and rescinded. In addition, the resolution adopted by the Members of the Funding
Board on February 26,2015, and entitled the same as this Resolution is hereby repealed.

SECTION 17. Effectiveness of this Resolution. This Resolution shall be in full
force and effect from and after its passage.

Adopted this 15th day of September, 2015.

Justin P. Wilson, Secretary
Funding Board ofthe State ofTennessee
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APPENDIX A
Form of Bonds

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
DTC TO THE BOND TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE
OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE
& CO. OR SUCH OTHER NAME AS REQUIRED BY AN AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO., ANY
TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY
OR TO ANY PERSONS IS WRONGFUL SINCE THE REGISTERED OWNER
HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
2015 [REFUNDING] SERIES_ [(FEDERALLY TAXABLE)]

Registered Registered
Rl 5_-[maturity]-[number] $

BOND INTEREST MATURITY CUSIP
DATE RATE DATE

,2015 % , 880541

Registered Owner: Cede & Co.

Principal Sum:
THE STATE OF TENNESSEE (the "State") hereby acknowledges itself

indebted, and for value received hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner hereof named
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Sum specified above on the Maturity Date specified
above (unless this bond shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, shall have been duly
called for prior redemption and payment of the redemption price shall have been duly made or

provided for), upon presentation and surrender hereof to the State Treasurer in Nashville,
Tennessee, or other agent of the State appointed for the purpose, and to pay interest on the
Principal Sum on , 20_, and semi-annually thereafter on and

, at the Interest Rate per annum specified above calculated on the basis of a
30-day month and a 360-day year to each registered owner of this bond as of the close of
business on the fifteenth day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next
preceding the respective stated due date for such interest. Principal of and redemption premium,
if any, and interest on this bond are payable in any coin or currency of the United States of
America, which at the time ofsuch payment is legal tender for public and private debts.

The bonds of the issue of which this bond is one (the "Bonds") maturing on or
after , shall be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at any

A-1
2496765 4 039367 RSIND



time on and after , at the option of the State, in installments of $5,000 or

any integral thereof, as a whole, or in part from time to time in any order ofmaturity determined
by the State [and by lot within a maturityl, [at a redemption price equal to the principal amount
or portion thereof to be redeemed, plus interest accrued on such principal amount or portion
thereof to the date fixed for redemption.] [at the redemption prices (expressed as percentages of
the principal amount or portion thereof to be redeemed) set forth below, plus interest accrued on

such principal amount or portion thereofto the date fixed for redemption:
Period During Which Redeemed Redemption

íB•th Dates Inolusive? Prices

through %1-

through
, and thereafter 1

[Make-Whole Optional Redemption. The Bónds shall be subject to redemption
prior to their stated maturities, at the option of the State, in whole or in part at any time on or
after at the Make Whole Redemption Price (as hereinafter defined). The Make
Whole Redemption Price is equal to the greater of:

(a) 100% ofthe principal amount ofthe Bonds to be redeemed; or

(b) the sum of the present value ofthe remaining scheduled payments
of principal of and interest on the Bonds to be redeemed to the maturity date of
such Bonds, not including any portion of those payments of interest accrucd and
unpaid as of the date on which such Bonds are to be redeemed, discounted on a
semi annual basis to the date on which the Bonds are to be redeemed, assuming a
360 day year containing twelve 30 day months, at the Treasury Rate (as defined
below) plus basis points (0._ /Uli

plus in each case accrued and unpaid interest on the Bonds to be redeemed to the redemption
date.

The "Treasury Rate" is, as of any redemption date of any Bonds, the yield to
maturity as of such redemption date ofUnited States Treasury securities with a constant maturity
(as compiled and published in the most recent Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 (519) or,
if such Statistical Release is no longer published, any source of similar market data, that has
become publicly available at least five business days prior to such redemption date (excluding
inflation indexed securities) most nearly equal to the period from such redemption date to the
maturity date of such Bonds; provided, however, that if the period from such redemption date to
such maturity date is less than one year, the latest weekly average yield on actually traded United
States Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one year that has become publicly
available at least five business days prior to such redemption date shall be used.]

The Make-Whole Redemption Price (and, if necessary, such substitute source of
market data) shall be determined by an independent accounting firm, investment banking firm or
financial advisor retained by the Funding Board of the State to calculate such redemption price
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(the "Calculation Agent"). The determination by the Calculation Agent of the redemption price
shall be conclusive and binding on the State and the holders ofthe Bonds.

The Bonds maturing on and constitute
term bonds and shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to their stated
maturities on and after , and on and after , , respectively,
and by lot within a maturity, in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, at a

redemption price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest on such
principal amount to the date fixed for redemption, in the respective amounts specified pursuant
to the resolution ofthe Funding Board ofthe State ofTennessee hereinafter mentioned.

If this Bond (or a portion hereof in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof) is redeemable and shall be called for redemption, notice of the redemption hereof
specifying the designation, date, number, and maturity of this Bond, the date and place fixed for
its redemption, principal amount to be redeemed if less than the entire principal amount hereof,
and the redemption price payable upon such redemption, shall be given not less than 30 days
prior to the redemption date by mail, or delivered by physical or electronic means, to the
Registered Owner of this bond at the mail, physical delivery or electronic means address of the
Registered Owner as shown in the bond register as kept by the State or its agent as of the 45th
calendar day preceding the redemption date. Any notice of optional redemption may be made
conditional upon the availability of sufficient moneys to pay the redemption price, plus interest
acerued and unpaid to the redemption date. Notice having been given in the manner provided,
the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall become due and payable on the
redemption date specified in such notice, subject to such conditional notice provisions. If such
notice shall have been given and payment hereofduly made or provided for, interest hereon shall
cease to accrue and become payable from and after the date so specified for the redemption
hereof. Upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the office specified in such notice,
together with, in the case this bond is presented by other than the Registered Owner, a written
instrument of trans fer duly executed by the Registered Owner or the Registered Owner' s duly
authorized representative, this Bond, or portions hereof, so called for redemption shall be paid at
the redemption price set forth above. If less than all of this Bond shall be redeemed, the State
shall execute and deliver, upon the surrender of this Bond, without charge to the Registered
Owner hereof, for the unredeemed balance ofthe principal amount of this Bond so surrendered, a
new registered Bond or Bonds of like maturity in authorized denominations.

[If fewer than all ofthe Bonds of like maturity are called for prior redemption, the
particular Bonds or portions ofBonds to be redeemed will be selected by the State Treasurer or
an agent of the State designated for such purpose pro rata as nearly as practicable in proportion
to the principal amounts of the Bonds owned by each registered owner, subject to the authorized
denominations applicable to the Bonds. In such event, if a single person or entity is the
registered owner ofmore than one Bond, the particular Bond or Bonds to be redeemed will be
determined by the State Treasurer or such agent in such manner as the State Treasurer or such
agent in its discretion may deem fair and appropriate.]

Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as The Depositorý Trust Company or its
nominee ("DTC"), or any substitute depository, or successor, is the Registered Owner of this
Bond as securities depository under the resolution hereinafter mentioned, notice of redemption
may be given in the manner, and presentation and surrender of this Bond may be waived to the
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extent, agreed to by the State and DTC, or any substitute depository, or successor, as the case
may be.

This Bond shall have the qualities and incidents of a negotiable instrument. This
bond shall be transferable only upon the bond register kept by the State or its agent, by the
Registered Owner or Registered Owner's duly authorized representative in writing, upon
presentation and surrender to the State or its agent of this Bond together with a written
instrument of transfer satisfactory to the State duly executed by the Registered Owner or the
Registered Owner's duly authorized representative but only in the manner, subject to the
limitations and upon payment of the charges, if any, as provided in the resolution of the Funding
Board of the State of Tennessee authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, and upon surrender
hereof for cancellation. Upon the transfer of this Bond, the State shall authenticate and deliver in
the name of the transferee a new registered Bond or Bonds of the same series, aggregate
principal amount, interest rate and maturity as this Bond.

The State may treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered on the
registry books as the absolute owner of this Bond for all purposes, including payment,
notwithstanding any notice to the contrary.

This Bond is one of an issue of Bonds aggregating $
___

of like date,
issued under and pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State,
including but not limited to various Public Acts of Tennessee and Title 9, Chapter 9, Tennessee
Code Annotated, and a resolution adopted by the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee on

September 15, 2015, including as a part thereof a Series Certificate executed and delivered on

, 2015 (collectively, the "Resolution"), [for public purposes of various State
departments and institutions][and][to provide for the payment at maturity of a portion of the
State's outstanding general obligation bond anticipation notes constituting commercial paperl
[and] [to refund certain outstanding general obligation bonds ofthe State]. Reference is made to
the Resolution, to all of the provisions of which the Registered Owner, by acceptance hereof,
hereby assents, for all terms and provisions ofthis Bond not set forth herein.

This Bond and the issue ofwhich it is one constitute direct general obligations of
the State for the payment of the principal and premium, if any, of and interest on which there is
pledged the full faith and credit of the State. The Bonds shall constitute a charge and lien upon
the entire fees, taxes and other revenues and funds allocated to the general fund, the debt service
fund, and the highway fund of the State; and, if necessary, upon the first such fees, taxes,
revenues and funds as may be otherwise legally restricted. The State hereby covenants with the
persons who now or may hereafter hold any Bonds that it will raise fees, taxes and other
revenues sufficient, together with funds on hand derived from all sources, to pay the principal of
and premium, ifany, and interest on the Bonds as and when due and payable.

[This Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any
benefit under the Resolution until the certificate of authentication hereon shall have been duly
executed by the Paying Agent and Registrar.]

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND DECLARED that all acts,
conditions and things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance
of this Bond exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as
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required by the Constitution and laws of the State, and that the amount of this Bond, together
with all other indebtedness ofthe State, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation
thereon, and that this bond is within every constitutional and statutory limitation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee has
caused this Bond to be executed in the name of the State by the manual or facsimile signature of
the Governor, the Secretary of State, the State Treasurer, the Commissioner of Finance and
Administration or the Comptroller of the Treasury of the State of Tennessee, and countersigned
by the manual or facsimile signature of one other of such officers, one ofwhich signatures shall
be manual [(unless this Bond shall be authenticated by the Paying Agent and Registrar)], with
the Great Seal of the State of Tennessee, or a facsimile thereof, attached hereto or impressed or

imprinted hereon, and this bond to be dated as ofthe Bond Date specified above.
STATE OF TENNESSEE

(SEAL)

By:
Authorized Officer

Countersigned:

By:
Authorized Officer

[Certificate ofAuthentication]
This will certify that this bond is one of the Bonds described in the

within-mentioned Resolution.

[PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR],
as Paying Agent and Registrar

Date ofAuthentication:

Bv: 1
Authorized Signatory
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ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto
Please insert social
security or other tax
identifying number of
assignee

(name and address ofassignee)

the within-mentioned bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
, attorney-in-fact, to transfer

the same on the bond register in the office of the Comptroller of the Treasury of the State of
Tennessee or an agent of the State appointed for the purpose, with full power of substitution in
the prennises.
Date:

(name of assignor)

(address of assignor)
Signature Guaranteed:

NOTE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as written on the
face ofthe within Bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement or any
change whatsoever.
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I>REI,[MINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED ,2015

NEW ISSUES BOOK-ENTRY ONLY

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of the issue.
Investors must read the entire Ojjìcial Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed
investment decision.

STATE OF TENNESSEE
$-*

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2015 SERIES A
*

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2015 REFUNDING SERIES B
$-*

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2015 SERIES C (FEDERALLY TAXABLE)
Dated: Date ofDelivery Due: Series A Bonds -August 1

Series B Bonds -
Series C Bonds -
as shown on inside cover

The Bonds Series A Bonds interest is payable semi-annually February 1 and August 1, commencing August 1, 2016.

Series B Bonds interest is payable semi-annually- 1 and
__

1, commencing- 1,2015.

Series C Bonds interest is payable semi-annually- 1 and
-

1, commencing- 1,2015.

Interest rates and reoffering yields/prices as shown on inside front cover.

Fully registered bonds issued in denominations of$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

The Bonds maturing on orafter- 1,20_ are subject to optional redemption by the State on and after- 1,
20_. at par.
See "The Bonds" herein.

Security Direct general obligations; pledge of full faith and credit. See "Security for the Bonds" herein.
Ratings Fitch: Moody's:- SkP: -- See "Ratings" herein.

Book-Entry Only The Depository Trust Company will act as securities depository for the Bonds. See "The Bonds" and"Appendix
System D - Book-EntryOnly System" herein.
Tax Exemption Interest on the Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax

purposes to the extent and subject to the conditions, limitations and continuing compliancewith tax covenants
as described herein. Interest on the Series C Bonds is included in gross income forFederal income tax purposes.
The principal ofand interest on the Bonds are exempt from Tennessee taxes, subject to certain exceptions. See
"Tax Matters" herein.

Issuer's Bond Counsel Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, NewYork,New York.

The Bonds are offeredwhen, as and if issuedandreceivedby the Underwriters subject to certainconditions,
including the approval of legality by Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond Counsel to the State of Tennessee.
Certain legalmatters in connectionwith the Bonds are subject to the approval ofthe Attorney GeneralandReporter
of the State ofTennessee, as counsel to the State Funding Board. Certain legal matterswill be passeduponfor the
Undenvriters by . counsel to the Underwriters. The Bonds are expected to be available through
the facilities ofThe Depository Trust Company on or about

Morgan Stanley
BofA Merrill Lynch Piper Jaffray Raymond James

,2015

*Subject to change



MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, [NTEREST RATES, PRICES/YIELDS
AND CUSIP NUMBERS

STATE OF TENNESSEE
*

GENERAL OBL[GATION BONDS, 2015 SERIES A

Due March 1 Amount Interest Rate Yield Pri ce CUS IP** 880541

2016

2017
2018
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2024
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2026
2027

2028
2029

2030

2031

2032
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2035

$-*
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2015 REFUNDING SERIES B

Due 1 Amount Interest Rate Yield Price CUSW** 880541

$*
GENERALOBLIGATION BONDS, 2015 SERIES C (FEDERALLY TAXABLE)

Due 1 Amount Interest Rate Yield Price CUS IP** 880541

**These CUSIP numbers have been assignedby an organization not affiliated with the State ofTennessee, and are included solely for the convenience ofthe Bondholders. Neither the
Underwriters nor the State of Tennessee is responsible for the selection or use of these CUSIP numbers, nor is any representation inade as to their correctness on the Bonds or as

indicated herein. The CUSIP number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance ofthe Bonds as a resu[t of various subsequent actions, including, but not
limited to, a refunding in whole or in part ofsuch maturityor as a result ofthe procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other similar enhanceinent by investors that is
applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities ofthe Bonds.
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For the purpose of compliance with Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this
document constitutes an Official Statement of the State with respect to the Bonds that has been deemed "final"
by the State as of its date except for the omission of no more than the information permitted by subsection (b)(1)
of Rule 15c2-12.

This Official Statement does not constitute a contract or agreement between the State or the
Underwriters and the purchasers or holders of any of the Bonds, or an offering of any security other than the
Bonds specifically offered hereby. No dealer, broker or other person has been authorized by the State to give
any information or to make any representation other than as contained in this Officia[ Statement, and ifgiven or

made, such other information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the State.
This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be
any sale of, the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawfu[ to make such offer, solicitation
or sale.

Certain information set forth herein has been provided by the State. Certain other information set forth
herein has been obtained by the State from sources believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy
or completeness. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, and
neither the delivery ofthis Officia[ Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create
any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the State since the date hereof. The Underwriters
have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement: The Underwriters have reviewed
the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as a part of, their respective responsibilities
to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances ofthis transaction, but the
Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. In making an investment
decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the State and the terms of the offering, including the
merits and risks involved.

The prices and other terms respecting the offering and sale of the Bonds may be changed from time to
time by the respective Underwriters after the Bonds are released for sale, and the Bonds may be offered and sold
at prices other than the initial offering prices, including sales to dealers who may sell the Bonds into investment
accounts.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT
TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF THE RESPECTIVE BONDS AT A
LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING,
IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

NO REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATING TO THE BONDS HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE "SEC") OR ANY STATE SECURITIES AGENCY. THE BONDS
HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SEC OR ANY STATE SECURITIES AGENCY, NOR
HAS THE SECOR ANY STATIC SECURITIES AGENCY PASSED UPON THEACCURACY OR ADEQUACYOFTHIS
OFFICIAL STATEMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY MAY BE A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED RETIREMENT
THE BONDS SYSTEM 22

Description ... 1 Introduction 22
Genera[ Information ......

Redemption* ..
General Plan Provisions. 25

APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS AND PLAN OF Investments and Investment Policy . ......'........."'...... 27

REFUNDING 3 Actuaria[ Methodology for Funding Purposes .....,...........„........ 28

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS ...

Economic and Demographic Assumptions..., ,.i............_.... 28

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS....................................................5 Summary of Fiscal Health ofTCRS. ?9
Historical Market Valueof Assets, ?9Sources ofPayment and Security. ..........4. 5
Cash F[ows. 31Appropriations for Payment ofGeneral Obl igation Debt Service. .... 6
Projections. 3?Remedies and Rights of Bondholders.. 6
Funding Policy Adopted by TCRS Board ofTrustees. .,33Additional Bonds Test..... 7
Employer Contributions... ...... 34STATE INDEBTEDNESS
Other Retirement Programs . 34General 8
GASB Statements No 67 and No. 68.... 35Termination of Existence 8

DEBT OF CERTAIN AGENCIES AND AUTHORITIES .......... 35Bonds.i.........._
Tennessee Local Development Authority. 35Commercial Paper Programi. ...... 8

Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes. 9 Tennessee State School BondAuthority ............. 36

Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness ..._ 10 Tennessee Housing Development Agency. 37
Watkins Institute 37Authorized and Unissued Bonds. .ll

Rate of Debt Retirement Prior to Refunding.,..,.,.,. 11 State Veterans' Homes Board 37
LITIGATION, 37STATE FINANCWI 11

The Budget Process... 11 TAX MATTERS ........... 39

Development ofRevenue Estimates Federal TaxMatters - Series A and Series B Bonds.. 3912
Federal Tax Matters - Series C Bonds. .42Reserve for Revenue Fluctuations. 13
State ofTennessee Tax Matters. ...... 44Budgeting for Authorized and Unissued Debt. 14

Financial Control Procedures.. l 4 UNDERWRITING............ ..................................... 44

Financial Information and Budget Summary for Fiscal Years 2014- FINANCIAL ADVISOR 44
2015 and 2015-2016. -14 VERIFICATION AGENT 44
TennCare Program... - 16 RATINGS 45
Federal Funding ofCertain Programs........._.. i.. .17 LEGAL OPINIONR 45
Sources and Uses ofFunds.. 18 CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 45
Investment Policy. 20

Accounting Standards. 71 FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ................... ............... 45

Other Post-Employment Benefits.. MISCELLANEOUS................................................................46..21
Financial Reporting and Budgeting Awards... .. 22

APPENDIX A: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APPENDIX B: STATISTICAL SECTION R-1
APPENDIX C: FORM OF PROPOSED OPINION OF BOND COUNSFI C-1
APPENDIX D: BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTFM D-1
APPENDIX E: CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING F-1



't

ITIIIS PAGE INTENTIONALI,Y LEFT BLANKI



STATE OF TENNESSEE

$
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2015 SERIES A

*

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2015 REFUNDING SERIES B
$ *

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2015 REFUNDING SERIES C (FEDERALLY TAXABLE)

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page and the inside cover page hereof, and the Appendices hereto,
including the financial information incorporated by reference in Appendix A and the statistical information incorporated by
reference in Appendix B, is provided for the purpose ofpresenting information relating to the State ofTennessee (the "State")
in connection with the issuance of the State's $ * General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series A (the "Series A Bonds"), .þ *

General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Refunding Series B, and $_* General Ob[igation Bonds, 2015 Series C (thé "Series C
Bonds", and collectively with the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds, the "Bonds").

The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the authority of and in full compliance with the provisions, restrictions and
lim itations of the Constitution and laws of the State, including Title 9, Chapter 9, Tennessee Code Annotated, and various
bond authorizations enacted by the General Assembly of the State, and pursuant to a resolution (the "Bond Resolution")
adopted by the State Funding Board of the State on September 15, 2015. The Bonds are being issued to (i) fund certain
capital projects of the State, (ii) provide for the retirement at maturity ofa portion of the State's outstanding general obligation
commercial paper ("CP") issued to fund certain capital projects ofthe State, (iii) refund certain outstanding general obligatoin
bond and (iv) fund certain costs of issuance of the Bonds.. See "Application ofBond Proceeds and Plan ofRefunding."

The Bonds are direct general obligations of the State for which the State has pledged its full faith and credit for the
payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest; and have a charge and lien upon all fees, taxes and other revenues and
funds allocated to the State's general fund, debt service fund, and highway fund and, if necessary, upon the first fees, taxes,
revenues and funds thereafter received and a[[ocated to such funds, unless such fees, taxes, revenues and funds are legally
restricted for other purposes See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS".

THE BONDS

Description
The Bonds will be dated the date of their delivery. The Serieš A Bonds will mature on August 1 as shown on the

inside cover page and will bear interest payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1, commencing February 1, 2016,
at the rates per annum as shown on the inside cover page. The Series B Bonds wil] mature on

_
1 as shown on the inside

cover page and will bear interest semi-annually on 1 and 1, commencing 1,2015. The Series C Bonds will
mature on 1 as shown on the inside cover page and will bear interest semi-annual[y on 1 and 1, commencing
1,2015. [nterest wi[I be payable to registered owners as ofthe close of business on the fifteenth day (wheter or not a business
day) of the calendar month next preceeding the respective stated due date for such interest. The Bonds will be issuable as

fully registered bonds in denominations of$5,000 or integral multiples thereof.

*Subject to change
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Book-Entry Only System
Upon initial issuance, the Bonds wi[[ be available only in book-entry form. The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"ì

New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The ownership of one fully registered Bond for each
maturity of the Bonds of each series bearing interest at each interest rate, each in the aggregate principal amount of such
maturity and bearing interest at such rate, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) and
deposited with DTC. Beneficial owners ofBonds will not receive physical delivery of bond certificates, except under limited
circumstances.

For a description ofDTC and its book-entry only system, see "Appendix D - Book-Entry Only System .

"

Redemption
Optional Redemption. Åt the option of the State, the Bonds of each series maturing on or after are subject

to redemption prior to their respective stated maturities, from any monies that are avai[ab[e to the State for such purpose, at
any time on and after as a whole, or in part from time to time in any order ofmaturity determined by the State, at a
redemption price ofpar, together with accrued interest to the redemption date.

Mandatory Sinkìng Fund Redemptin: The Bonds maturing on , 20_, shall consitute term bonds subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption and shall be redeemed prior to maturiy in each of the years and in the respective pricipal
amounts set forth in the table below, at a redmeption price of par, together with accrued interest to the redemption date.

20XXMaturity 20XXMaturity 20XXMaturity
Year Amount Year Amount Year Amount

Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed. If less than all of the Bonds of a maturity of a series are to be redeemed, the
particular Bonds or portions thereof of such maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by [ot.

In any such event, for so long as a book entry only system is in effect with respect to the Bonds, DTC or its successor

and Direct DTC Participants and indirect DTC Participants (all as defined in Appendix D hereto) will determine the particular
ownership interests of the Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed. Any failure ofDTC or its successor, or ofa Direcl DTC
Participant or Indirect DTC Participant, to make such determination as described above will not affect the sufficiency or the
validity ofthe redemption of the Bonds. See "Book Entry-Only System" and Appendix D Book-Entry-Only System.

Notice of Redemption. Written notice shall be mailed to registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed, at least
thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date, at the address that appears on the registration books, but failure to receive any
such notice shall not affect the validity of the redemption proceedings. Any notice of redemption may provide that such
redemption is conditional on the availability of sufficient moneys to pay the redemption price, plus interest accrued and
unpaid to the redemption date. While DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds, the State will give notice of
redemption ofthe Bonds to DTC or its nominee or its successor and shall not be responsible for mailing notices of redemption
to Direct DTC Participants, to Indirect DTC Participants or to the beneficial owners of the Bonds. Any failure ofDTC or its
nominee or its successor, or of a Direct DTC Participant or Indirect DTC Participant, to notify a beneficial owner of a bond
of any redemption will not affect the sufficiency or the validity of the redemption of such bond. See Appendix D - Book-
Entry Only System. The State can give no assurance that DTC or its successor, the Direct DTC Participants or the Indirect
DTC Participants will distribute such redemption notices to the beneficial owners of the Bonds, or that they will do so on a

timely basis.

*Subject to change
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APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS AND PLAN OF REFUNDING

The Series A Bonds are being issued to (i) fund certain capital projects of the State, (ii) provide for the retirement at
maturity of a portion of the State's outstanding CP issued to fund certain capital projects ofthe State, and (iii) fund certain
costs of issuance of the Bonds. CP will be retired on various dates within 90 days after the date of delivery ofthe Bonds.

The Series B Bonds are being issued to (i) refund certain outstanding genera[ obligation bonds, as indicated in the
table below (the "Refunded Bonds") and (ii) fund certain costs of issuance ofthe Bonds. The Series C Bonds are being issued
to (i) fund certain capital projects of the State, (ii) provide for the retirement at maturity of a portion ofthe State's outstanding
CP issued to fund certain capital projects ofthe State, (iii) refund certain outstanding general obligation bonds, as indicated
in the table below (the "Refunded Bonds") and (iv) fund certain costs of issuance ofBonds. The refunding is being undertaken
to realize debt service savings. Thc actual general obligation bonds that will comprise the Refunded Bonds, which may
consist of any or all of the bonds listed below or additional bonds of the series listed below, will be determined by the
State at the time o f sale of the Series B and Series C Bonds, based upon then-prevailing market conditions.

Refunded Bonds - Series B*

1VIaturity Redemption Redemption
Series Date Par Date Price

Refunded Bonds - Series C*

Maturity Redemption Redemption
Series Date Par Date Price

Preliminary: subject to change
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The Refunded Bonds will be called for redemption on the respective redemption dates and at the respective
redemption prices as stated in the table above, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. Such designations for redemption
wil[ be irrevocable upon issuance of the Bonds.

Pursuant to the Bond Resolution authorizing the Bonds, the State Funding Board will enter into separate Refunding
Trust Agreements with (the "Refunding Trustee") with respect to the Refunded Bonds to be refunded by the Series B
Bonds and Series C Bonds. Proceeds of the Series B Bonds or Series C Bonds, as applicable, and other available monies, if
required, wil[ be deposited into a refunding trust fund established under the respective Refunding Trust Agreement (each, a
"Refunding Trust Fund") and a portion thereof used to acquire direct general obligations of or obligations the payment of
principal of and interest on which is unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America (the "Government
Obligations"). The Government Obligations and the interest earned thereon will be sufficient and will be used, together with
cash retained in the respective Refunding Trust Fund, to pay (i) the redemption prices of the respective Refunded Bonds on
their redemption dates and (ii) the interest on the respective Refunded Bonds due on and prior to such redemption dates. The
Government Obligations will be purchased from the Treasury Department of the United States of America or in the open
market through a competitive bidding process. The State is required to deposit in the Refunding Trust Funds any additional
amounts that may be necessary für any reason to enable the Refunding Trustee to pay the redemption price of and interest on
the Refunded Bonds.

The State will obtain verification of sufficiency of the amounts and Government Obligations deposited in the
Refunding Trust Funds for the Refunded Bonds, and of certain yields, from . (See "VERIFICATION AGENT").

Upon issuance ofthe Bonds, the Refunded Bonds will be irrevocably designated for redemption as stated in the table
above, plus accrued interest to the redemption date and provision wil[ be made by the State in the Refunding Trust Agreement
for the giving of notice of redemption of the Refunded Bonds. Written notice of any such redemption shall be mailed to the
registered owners ofthe Refunded Bonds to be redeemed not less than (30) days prior to the redemption date. White DTC or
its nominee is the registered owner of the Refunded Bonds, such notices wili be sent to DTC and the State shall not be
responsible for mailing notices of redemption to Direct DTC Participants or Indirect DTC Participants or to the Beneficial
Owners of the Refunded Bonds.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The proceeds ofthe Bonds are expected to be applied on the date of issue of the Bonds in the amounts as follows:

Sources oflfuüds: Series A Bonds Serles B Bond, Series¢ Bonds Total

ParAmount $ .

Original Is sue Pmnium S
Total S $ $ .

Uses offunds:
Retirement ofCP *t
Capital Pmjects S :4

DepOS it to Refunding Tnist Fund S
Undenvritets'Di,count
Costs ofissuance 3
Total $ S $

4



SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

Sources of Payment and Security
The Bonds (as with all other State general obligation bonds and notes) constitute (a) direct general obligations of the

State for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on which there is also pledged the full faith and
credit ofthe State; and (b) a charge and lien upon all fees, taxes and other revenues and funds al[ocated to the State's general
fund, debt service fund, and highway fund and, if necessary, upon the first fees, taxes, revenues and funds thereafter received
and allocated to such funds, unless such fees, taxes, revenues and funds are legally restricted for other purposes.

The charge and lien on fees, taxes and other revenues in favor of the Bonds is subject to the specific pledge of
"Special Taxes" in favor of State general obligation bonds issued prior to July 1,2013. "Special Taxes" consist of (i) the
annual proceeds ofa tax of five cents (5¢) per gallon upon gasoline; (ii) the annual proceeds of a special tax ofone cent (1¢)
per gallon upon petroleum products; (ili) one-half ofthe annual proceeds ofmotor vehicle registration fees now or hereafter
required to be paid to the State; and (iv) the annual proceeds of the franchise taxes imposed by the franchise tax law of the
State. The Total Special Taxes collected, as reported for each year in the June monthly Statement of Revenue Collections
(prepared on a cash basis) were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,2015* June 30,2014 June 30,2013

Special Taxes $ 1,011,961,000 $ 1,010,572,000 $ 963,834,000

unaudited

Source: TN Department of Revenue

The final maturity of general obligation Bonds issued prior to July 1, 2013 is October 1,2032. Thereafter (or upon
the earlier retirement of all general obligation bonds issued prior to July 1, 2013) this pledge of Special Taxes will expire.
The Bonds (as with all other State general obligation bonds issued after July 1, 2013, and notes) will not benefit from this
specific pledge of Special Taxes.

The State covenants with the holders ofthe Bonds (and all persons who hold State general obligation bonds or notes)
that it will raise fees, taxes and other revenues sufficient, together with funds on hand derived from all sources, to pay the
principa[ of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and all other general obligation bonds and notes of the State as

and when due and payable. The State has also covenanted with the holders of State general obligation bonds outstanding as

ofJuly 1, 2013, not to decrease by legislative action the Special Taxes un[ess the State Funding Board certifies that the State
is not in default in the payment of any outstanding debt and that Specia[ Taxes at the decreased rates specified by the State
Funding Board in such year or years (not to exceed two (2) years) will be sufficient to make all payments required to be made
therefrom by the State on all of its obligations during the period that such decrease will be in effect.

The State is permitted by the State Constitution to levy ad valorem taxes on all of the taxable property within the
State for the payment of the principal of and interest on the State's general obligation indebtedness; however, the State does
not currently [evy such a tax and has no current intent to do so.

All general obligation indebtedness of the State is secured on parity with all other general obligation indebtedness
of the State, except that the Special Taxes secure only general obligation bonds outstanding on July 1, 2013. The State may
issue, and currently is issuing as CP, general obligation bond anticipation notes, for the payment ofwhich the full faith and
credit of the State, but not Special Taxes, is pledged. See "STATE INDEBTEDNESS - Commercial Paper Program". In
addition, the State is authorized to issue general obligation tax revenue anticipation notes, for the payment of which the full
faith and credit of the State, but not Special Taxes, is pledged; however, the State has not heretofore issued any such notes
and has no current intent to do so. See "STATE INDEBTEDNESS - Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes".

See "STATE INDEBTEDNESS" for the amounts ofoutstanding debt. For a table ofannual debt service requirements
for al[ general obligation bonds, see "STATE INDEBTEDNESS - Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness".
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Appropriations for Payment of General Obligation Debt Service

Pursuant to Section 9-9-103, Tennessee Code Annotated, there is a continuing appropriation of a sum sufficient for
payment of debt service (principal, interest and premium, ifany) on general obligation bonds and notes from any funds in the
State treasury not otherwise legally restricted, independent of an appropriation bill otherwise required by State [aw.

Section 67-6-103(a)(5), Tennessee Code Annotated, currently provides that 0.9185% of the sates and use tax
collections is appropriated to the State Funding Board for the payment of principa[ and interest on the State's general
obligation bonds. This statutory provision subsequently may be changed or eliminated. The total sales and use tax collections
and the amounts allocated to debt service for the last five fisca[ years as reported in the State's Annual Financia[ Reports
were as follows (amounts have been rounded):

Total Sales and Use Allocation to Debt
Tax Collections Service (Modified
(Accrnal Basis) Accrual Basis)

June 30,2014 $ 7,276,443,000 $ 51,634,000
June 30,2013 7,018,128,000 49,709,000
June 30,2012 6,884,762,000 48,961,000
June 30,2011 6,461,461,000 46,027,000
June 30, 2010 6,170,977,000 43,794,000

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's Statement 44 "Economic Condition Reporting:
The Statistical Section," the tota[ sales and use tax co[lections are reported on an accrual basis instead ofon a modified accrua[
basis. However, the calculation of 0.9185% of the sales and use tax collections for allocation to debt service continues to be
reported on a modified accrual basis. For a history of tota[ sales and use tax collections and rates since Fiscal Year 2003, see
the statistical data incorporated by reference in Appendix B.
Remedies and Rights of Bondho[ders

Each Bond when duly issued will constitute a contract between the State and the registered owner of the Bond. The
State Funding Board shall certify to the Commissioner of Finance and Administration from time to time, but not less than

annually, the amount necessary, together with funds on hand derived from all sources, to enable the State Funding Board to

provide for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on all general obligation indebtedness as and
when the same shall become due and payable. Under Section 9-9-105(a), Tennessee Code Annotated, such indebtedness shall
constitute a charge and lien upon the entire fees, taxes and other revenues and funds allocated to the general fund, the debt
service fund and h ighway fund, and, if necessary the first monies thereafter received and allocated to the general fund, the
debt service fund and the highway fund, except only such fees, taxes, revenues and funds as may be otherwise iegally
restricted, subject to the pledge of Special Taxes to general obligation bonds outstanding on July 1, 2013. Under Section 9-
9-111, Tennessee Code Annotated, a holder of any general obligation bonds, including the Bonds, and notes has a vested

right in the performance of the covenants and pledges contained in Title 9, Chapter 9, Tennessee Code Annotated, and the

performance of the duties imposed on any officer or agency of the State by the provisions of Chapter 9 may be enforced by
the holder of any general ob[igation bond or note by appropriate proceedings, provided that no holder of obligations issued
after July 1,2013, shall have any such rights with respect to the pledge of Special Taxes described above.

Under the State Constitution, public money may be expended only pursuant to appropriations made by law. See
"STATE FINANCES." Such expenditures include, but are not limited to, the payment of debt service. Continuing
appropriations exist under current law for the payment of debt service on the State's general obligation bonds, including the
Bonds, from a specified percentage of sales and use taxes as discussed above. Furthermore, Section 9-9-103, Tennessee Code
Annotated, appropriates to the State Funding Board on a direct and continuing basis a sum sufficient for payment of debt
service (principal, interest and premium, if any) on outstanding general obligation bonds and other debt obligations (including
notes) from any funds (including, with respect to bonds outstanding on July 1, 2013, Special Taxes) he[d in the State treasury
not otherwise legally restricted, independent ofan appropriation bill otherwise required by State law.
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The State has not generally waived immunity from suit or extended its consent to be sued, although specific actions
may be authorized, such as is described in the second preceding paragraph. Current state law provides that monetary claims
against the State for breach of its contractual obligations and certain other causes may be heard and determined exclusively
in the forum of the Tennessee Claims Commission, an administrative tribunal, where the State may be liable only for actual
damages and certain costs. Whether a continuing appropriation exists for the payment of a claim in the Tennessee Claims
Commission for unpaid debt service, if necessary in addition to other available remedies, is not c[ear. In any event sovereign
immunity and other legal principles may bar actions to compel the General Assembly to appropriate monies for such
payments.
Additional Bonds Test

The State, by Section 9-9-105(c), Tennessee Code Annotated, covenants with the persons who now or may hereafter
hold any State general obligation bonds that no general obligation bonds shall be issued after July 1, 2013, un[ess the following
debt service coverage test is satisfied: the amount necessary to pay the maximum annua[ debt service payable in the then
current or any future fiscal year is not greater than ten percent (10%) of the amount of total state tax revenue a][ocated to the
general fund, to the debt service fund, and to the highway fund for the immediately preceding fiscal year. For purposes of
satisfying this test, "state tax revenues" are defined as those taxes, licenses, fees, fines, and permits collected by the
department of revenue and allocated to the general fund, the debt service fund, and the highway fund exc[uding the portion
of those taxes shared with local governments. "Debt service", for this purpose, means and includes the aggregate of the
principal of and interest on all outstanding general obligation bonds and the general obligation bonds then proposed to be
issued; provided, any outstanding bonds the payment ofwhich has been fully provided for by funds or securities (including
expected income therefrom), or both, set aside for that purpose are excluded in determining the outstanding bonds.

The State will comply with that additional bonds test as a condition of issuing the Bonds, as demonstrated by the
following table:

(a) Maximum annualdebtservice** $ 225,620,225

(b) State taxrevenue allocated for FYE June 30, 2014 to:
General Fund $ 5,474,700,000 (1)
Debt Service Fund 374,100,000 (1)
Highway Fund 714,600,000 (1)

(c) Total ofState taxrevenue allocated for FYE June 30, 2014 $ 6,563,400,000

(d) (a) divided by (c) expressed as a percentage 3.44%
(must be no greater than 10%)

* unaudíted
** Includes estimated debt service for the Series A Bonds and assumes no change in debt service as a result of the

issuance of the Series B and Series C Bonds and the refunding of the Refunded Bonds

(1) Obtained from the State of Tennessee Budget, Fiscal Year 2015-16. This amount is estimated revenue collections for

the 2014-2015 fiscal year net of amount apportioned from general fund into cities and counties state shared taxes.
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STATEINDEBTEDNESS

General

The State Constitution forbids the expenditure of the proceeds of any debt obligation for a purpose other than the
purpose for which it was authorized. Under State law, the term of bonds authorized and issued cannot exceed the expected
li fe of the projects being financed. Furthermore, the amount of bonds issued cannot exceed the amount authorized by the
General Assembly.

The procedure for funding State debt is provided by Chapter 9 of Title 9, Tennessee Code Annotated. The State
Funding Board of the State of Tennessee is the entity authorized to issue general obligation indebtedness of the State. The
State Funding Board is composed of the Governor, the State Comptroller of the Treasury, the Secretary of State, the State
Treasurer, and the Commissioner of Finance and Administration. The State Funding Board issues all general obligation
indebtedness in the name ofthe State pursuant to authorization by the General Assembly without concurrence or approval by
any other governmental agency or by the electorate. Although the State Funding Board determines the terms of general
obligation indebtedness, the interest rate on the general obligation indebtedness cannot exceed the Formula Rate which is
defined in Section 47-14-102(6), Tennessee Code Annotated, as generally the lesser of (i) the average prime loan rate

published by the Federal Reserve System plus 4% or (ii) 24%.

Termination of Existence

The Governmental Entity Review Law provides for the termination of various governmental entities on specified
dates. That date for the State Funding Board is June 30,2016. The law also provides that if the General Assembly does not
extend the termination date ofan entity, the existence ofthe entity will continue for an additional year without any diminution,
reduction or limitation of its powers. However, the State is required to preserve the rights of the holders of any outstanding
indebtedness of the entity at the time of termination and the obligations and rights of such entity shall accrue to the State.

Bonds

State law provides that the State may issue general obligation bonds for one or more purposes authorized by the
Genera[ Assembly of the State. As of August 31, 2015, the State had $1,747,705,000 (unaudited) of outstanding general
obligation bonds, excluding the Bonds.
Commercial Paper Program

Bond anticipation notes may be issued for purposes for which bonds have been authorized, if the notes are also
authorized by legislative act. Notes have been authorized to be issued for the purposes of all existing bond authorizations.

In March 2000, the State instituted a commercial paper program for authorized capital projects. Commercial paper
("CP") has been and will be issued under the Commercial Paper Resolution, adopted by the members of the State Funding
Board of the State on March 6, 2000, as amended, in a principal amount outstanding at any one time not to exceed
$350,000,000. CP constitutes bond anticipation notes and is a direct general obligation ofthe State for the payment ofwhich,
as to both principal and interest, the full faith and credit of the State, but not Special Taxes, are p[edged.

The State has entered into a Standby Commercial Paper Purchase Agreement (the "Standby Agreement") with the
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System ("TCRS") under which TCRS is obligated to purchase newly issued CP, issued
to pay the principal of other CP, subject to suspension or termination upon the occurrence of certain events. The Standby
Agreement requires that the principal amount of CP maturing on any day shall not exceed $100,000,000 or such greater
principal amount as agreed upon by the State and TCRS.

CP may have varying maturities ofnot more than 270 days from their respective dates of issuance; provided, however,
that no CP shall mature on a business day that will permit rollover purchased CP to be issued and mature on a business day
that is not [ater than one business day prior to the stated expiration date of the Standby Agreement without regard to any early
termination of the Standby Agreement. Currently, this date is July 1, 2016. CP is not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

As ofAugust 31, 2015, $307,686,000 (unaudited) principal amount ofCP was outstanding under this program. The
Series A Bonds will retire approximately $ ofCP.
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Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes

The State is authorized to issue general obligation tax revenue anticipation notes ("TRANs") in anticipation of the
receipt of tax revenues in the then current fiscal year of the State. The State Constitution prohibits the issuance of debt for
operating purposes maturing beyond the end ofa fiscal year. Accordingly, any TRANs issued in a fiscal year must be repaid
by the end of the same fiscal year. TRANs, if issued, will constitute direct obligations ofthe State for the payment ofwhich,
as to principal and interest, the full faith and credit of the State, but not Special Taxes, are pledged. See "SECURITY FOR
THE BONDS". The State has not heretofore issued TRANs and has no current intent to do so.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

...
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Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness

As of August 31, 2015, there were $1,747,705,000 (unaudited) State general obligation bonds outstanding, excluding the Bonds.

The annual debt service requirements for the outstanding long-term general obligation bonded indebtedness following the issuance of the Bonds are

as follows:

LONG-TERM GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT SERVICE

Outstanding Debt Sefvice * Less Reñinded Debt Service Pkis Debt Sen-ice on the Bonds TotalDebt Service
FiscalYear
Ending
*30) Pdncipal Interest Total PI*C*al Interest Total P'r?lcipal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2016 S 127,515,000 S 54831,130 S 186346,130 $ 127,515,000 S 58,831,130 S 8€346:130
2017 145,965 000 67247,982 21331*982 145965.000 67,247 982 213,212.9£
2018 137,270,000 60.497,132 '97,767,132 137,270:000 *497,132 _97,767,132

127,975,000 54,684,105 81659,105 127,975,000 54,684.105 SA659.105
124.960,000 49,230.000 74 190.000 124,960-000 49230.000 74,190,000

2021 11&140,000 43,862,963 61002.963 118,140,000 43,862,953 -62:002.963
118310,000 34566,988 56,576,988 118,310,000 38.566,988 56,876,988
110,615,000 33,455,886 44,070.886 110,615,000 33,455.886 141070,886
110,350,000 28,907,473 39,257,473 114354000 28,907,473 39,257?473
101,740,000 24,849,222 26589282 101,740,000 24,&49,282 :26,589,282
100:955.000 20,626,670 215811670 100,955,000 20,626,670 21,581,670
91800,000 14725433 09,525.233 9*Sœ.* 16,725,233 09?52523
8&645:000 13,187,359 01,831359 84645,000 13,1%,359 01,831359
Sl,665,000 9,359,504 91,024,504 81,665,000 9.359.504 91,024,501
56,290,000 5,894,181 62,1&4,181 56390.000 5,894,181 62.184,181

2031 45,095'000 3 724,871 48,819,871 45,094000 3.724,871 4*19.S'71
2032 35,765,000 1,823,905 37,588.905 35,765,® 1,823,905 37,SSS,905
2033 12,550.000 798,750 1334&750 12,550,000 798,750 13,348,750
2034 5.550,800 416,250 5,966,250 5.550,000 416250 5:966:250
2035 5,550,000 133.750 5.68&750 5.550.000 13&750 5.62.750

Sl.747,705,000 $532*828,414 $2,280*533,414 $ $ S S .S - S - Sl,747.705.000 &532.828.414 &2.28O.533.414
.

* As ofAugust 31,2015
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Authorized and Unissued Bonds

The State had authorized as of August 31,2015, $1,994,845,140 ofgeneral obligation bonds that have not
been issued, including the Bonds and excluding an additional amount not to exceed 2.5% of certain authorized
amounts to be used for funding discounts and the cost of issuance at the discretion of the State Funding Board. Of
such authorized and unissued authorization, $643,000,000 is for highway improvements. Since 1977, highway
construction has been funded with current revenue and no general obligation bonds or CP have been issued for this
purpose, but the State can give no assurance that this practice wil[ continue. In addition, $146,100,000 of the
authorized and unissued authorization is allocated to the Tennessee transportation infrastructure improvement bond
program, which is for the repair, replacement or rehabilitation of bridges. The State does not anticipate issuing
general obligation bonds or CP for this program. Bonds for highway improvements and for the Tennessee
transportation infrastructure improvement program are authorized for contractual purposes and authorizations are

canceled when construction projects are completed.
Rate of Debt Retirement Prior to Refunding

The following table sets forth the rate of scheduled debt retirement of the State on all outstanding general
obligation bonds as of June 30, 2014, excluding the Bonds.

Principal Amount
DueWithin Principal Amount % ofTotal

5 Years $ 663,685,000 37.97%
10 Years 1222,840,000 69.97%
15 Years 1,643,195,000 94.02%
20 Years 1,747,705,000 100.005%

STATE FINANCES

The Budget Process
The State ofTennessee Budget for the appropriate fiscal year originates in the executive branch with the

Governor's annual budget recommendation to the General Assembly. Initially, budget preparation instructions are

issued by the Department of Finance and Administration to all State agencies and departments. These instructions
describe the Administration's guidelines related to continuing the current level of service (baseline budget) and
proposed cost increase requests. The instructions are to be used by agencies and departments in preparing their
department budgets for submission to the Department of Finance and Administration in October of each year.

During the fa[1, each department's budget request is reviewed, and requests for cost increases are analyzed
by the Department of Finance and Administration. Conferences are held with departmental and agency
representatives, the Director of Budget, and the Department of Finance and Administration staff to determine
which, ifany, ofthe proposals should be recommended.

During the 1997 legislative session, the Office of Legislative Budget Analysis was created to enable the
Genera[ Assembly to strengthen its expertise in governmental budgeting and financing and in making public policy
decisions. The office was created as an independent department ofthe legis[ature working for both the Senate and
the House of Representatives and charged with reviewing and analyzing the State's budget and overal[ financial
condition. The staff summarizes and analyzes the Governor's budget proposal for members of the General
Assembly, secures budget justification data from the various state agencies, provides recommendations on budget
proposals and provides assistance on financial matters to the standing committees, as directed.

Under State law, the Governor submits the Recommended Budget to the General Assembly at the start of
the legislative session. The Recommended Budget must be presented to the General Assembly prior to February
1 of each year, except that a Governor in the first year of a four-year term ofoffice must present a budget prior to
March 1 of that year. However, the General Assembly may extend these deadlines by joint resolution.
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Subsequently, the Governor submits a General Appropriation Bill and bond authorization bills containing
appropriations and general obligation bond authorizations required to finance the program levels and capital outlay
proposed in the Governor's Recommended Budget. Throughout the legislative session, the Finance, Ways and
Means Committees and appropriate standing committees of the House and Senate hold budget hearings for each
department to determine if changes should be made to the General Appropriation BiN and general obligation bond
authorizations. After review and consideration, the Finance, Ways and Means Committees report on the General
Appropriation Bil[ and bond authorization bills, with any committee amendments, to the House ofRepresentatives
and Senate for action.

Under the State Constitution, money may be drawn from the Treasury only through an appropriation made
by law. The primary source ofthe annual expenditure authorization is the General Appropriation Act as approved
by the General Assembly and signed by the Governor. These appropriations are generally limited to a one-year
period of availability. The General Appropriation Act requires both a simple majority vote of the House and a

simple majority vote of the Senate. Approval of the General Appropriation Bill usually occurs during lhe last
week of the legislative session. Once signed by the speaker of each House of the Genera[ Assembly, the General
Appropriation Act is sent to the Governor for signature. If the Governor does not act within ten days, excluding
Sundays, the General Appropriation Act becomes law without signature. The Governor may reduce or eliminate
specific line items in the General Appropriation Act or any other appropriations bil[ without vetoing the entire bill.
Such individual line-item vetoes are subject to override by a vote of a majority of the members elected to each
House ofthe General Assembly.

Appropriations also may be included in legislation other than the General Appropriation Act. The
individual bi[Is containing appropriations must be heard by the Finance, Ways and Means Committee, and may be

L.. *heaid uy ihe relevant standing committee, in :a.lt livU?. Ul -11. Uwi.Ul -J-WUU..y . £ kl.-1 -il --AU -u w-lil?1 -vu.l, Lln.ir•£. nf fl,a í'1.na,·.I A HF=n,1,1„ A ftor oll ,-,11.+6?rl r'nrnrnitt//c

recommend passage, bills containing appropriations must be approved by a majority vote in each House of the
General Assembly and must be acted upon by the Governor. Bills of this character are also subject to reduction
or elimination by individual line-item veto by the Governor, subject to further override by the General Assembly
as described above.

Budgets and apprüprialions may be revised and amended from time-to-time during a fiscal year for a

variety of reasons, including to assure that the fiscal year ends with a balanced budget. Consequently, there can

be no assurance that the fiscal year 2015-2016 Budget Document will not be subsequently amended.

Funds necessary to meet an appropriation need not be in the Treasury at the time such appropriation is
enacted; revenues may be appropriated in anticipation oftheir receipt.
Development of Revenue Estimates

The development of the general fund revenue estimates begins with a forecast of national economic
activity for the State budget period. The State currently contracts with The University of Tennessee Center for
Business and Economic Research ("UT-CBER/') to prepare an annual Economic Report to the Governor containing
short-term business cycle-sensitive forecasts as well as longer-term or trend forecasts for the year and to prepare
quarterly updates throughout the year. UT-CBER subscribes to the macroeconomic forecasting services of Global
Insight. The Global Insight forecast becomes the principal input to the Tennessee Econometric Mode[ which is
utilized to develop a forecast of similar indicators of in-state activity.

At least annually, the State Funding Board secures from UT-CBER the estimated rate of growth of the
State's economy as measured by the forecasted change in Tennessee personal income. The State Funding Board
reviews the estimated rate of growth in Tennessee personal income and reports to the General Assembly its
comments relating to the reasonableness of the estimate, including any different estimate deemed necessary.

The State Funding Board is further directed by statute to conduct public hearings to develop consensus

ranges of estimates ofState revenue for the current fiscal year and the next succeeding fiscal year. At the hearings,
representatives of state higher education institution business centers, including UT-CBER, present revenue

estimates and economic forecasts. The State Funding Board also hears from representatives from the Department
of Revenue and the Fiscal Review Committee of the State. On December 1, or as soon thereafter as practical, the
State Funding Board presents its consensus ranges of State revenue estimates, and a summary of the economic
forecast on which the estimates are based, to the Governor and the Chairs of the Senate and House Finance, Ways
and Means Committees. Although not mandated prior to final legislative action on the budget, the State Funding
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Board may receive updated estimates and forecasts at public hearings in the spring and may forward any revision
to prior estimates and the reasons therefor to the Governor and Chairs of the Senate and House Finance, Ways and
Means Committees. Pursuant to Section 9-4-5104, Tennessee Code Annotated, the Commissioner of Finance and
Administration has the responsibility for preparing the revenue estimates presented in the Budget Document.
Reserve for Revenue Fluctuations

In 2013, the General Assembly enacted legis[ation re-determining the allocation goal for the reserve for
revenue fluctuations (the "Reserve" or "Rainy Day Fund") to be eight percent of estimated State tax revenues to
be allocated to the general fund and education trust fund. Beginning with the Budget for the Fiscal Year 1998-
1999 the allocation goal had been five percent. Until the redetermination funding level is achieved, the Governor
is to budget an allocation to the Reserve in an amount at least equal to ten percent of the estimated growth in
estimated State tax revenues to be allocated to the general fund and education trust fund. Amounts in the Reserve
may be utilized to meet State tax revenue shortfalls. Suwect to specific provisions of the general appropriations
bil[, an amount not to exceed the greater of $100 million or one-half (1/2) of the amount available in the Reserve
may be used by the Commissioner of Finance and Administration to meet expenditure requirements in excess of
budgeted appropriation levels. Prior to using any amounts in the Reserve for this purpose, the Commissioner shall
notify the Secretary of the State Funding Board and the Chairs of the Finance, Ways and Means Committees of
the Senate and the House of Representatives that the Reserve funds are to be used for this purpose. The
Commissioner shall report information concerning the need to utilize these funds to the various committees.

The Reserve balance at the end ofeach offiscal years 2010 through 2014, the estimated balance for fiscal
year 2015 and the projected balance at the end of the 2016 fiscal year, respectively, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Balance
Ended

June 30, 2010 453,100,000.0
June 30,2011 283,600,000.0
June 30, 20I2 306,000,000.0
June 30, 2013 356,000,000.0
June 30,2014 456,000,000.0
June 30, 2015 491,500,000.0 *

June 30,2016 568,000,000.0 * *

* Estimated and unaudited
**Projected

The Reserve is budgeted to increase by $35.5 million for the fiscal year ending June 30,2015 and proposed
to increase by an additional $76.5 mi[Iion for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. The statutory goal is for the
Reserve to be 8% ofestimated State tax revenues to be a[[ocated to the general fund and education trust fund. The
State can give no assurance that the budgeted increase in the Reserve for fiscal years ending June 30,2015 will be
achieved. See "STATE FINANCES - Financial Information and Budget Summary for Fiscal Years 2014-2015
and 2015-2016".
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Budgeting for Authorized and Unissued Debt

The State's current practice is to annua[Iy budget for five percent of all authorized and unissued general
obligation bonds, including bonds authorized and not expected to be issued as described in "Authorized and
Unissued Bonds" above, to account for assumed principal redemption (on the basis of an assumed 20-year, leve[-
principal issue), plus an amount for assumed interest at a rate of six percent annually. The State cannot offer any
assurance that it wil[ continue this practice in the future.

Financial Control Procedures

The State Constitution requires, for current operations, that expenditures for any fiscal year not exceed
the State's revenues and reserves, including the proceeds ofany debt obligation, for that year.

Generally, the executive branch controls the expenditure of State funds for the operation of State
government. Two important concepts are involved in the execution of the General Appropriation Act: preparation
of work programs and deve[opment of a[Iotment controls. Analysts of the Division of Budget, Department of
Finance and Administration, and fiscal personnel in the various State departments and agencies have the
responsibility of reconciling the General Appropriation Act, as approved, with the submitted Recommended
Budget. State law requires that administrative agencies prepare a work program for each fiscal year. These work
programs indicate separate annual spending requirements for payroll and other operating expenses necessary to

carry out agency programs. The head of any agency may revise the work program during the fiscal year because
ofchanged conditions and submit such revision for approval. If the Commissioner of Finance and Administration
and the Governor approve the revision, then the same procedure for review, approval and control is followed as in
making the original allotments. The aggregate of all allotments after the revision cannot exceed the total
appropriations made to the agency for the fiscal year in question.

All expenditures of State administrative agencies are processed through the Department of Finance and
Administration and are measured against work program allotments. Savings which may occur as a result of the
difference between the amounts provided in the work program allotments for payroll and other operating
expenditures and the amounts actua[ly spent for those expenditures accumulate throughout the fiscal year unless a

work program is revised to re-allot unspent amounts. Likewise, departmental revenue surpluses cannot be Speilt
until approved by the Commissioner of Finance and Administration and, in some cases, reviewed by the Finance,
Ways and Means Committees of the General Assembly. Such central spending control offers executive flexibility
relative to any anticipated surplus or shortfall in the budget.

The Governor may effect spending reductions to offset unforeseen revenue shortfalls or unanticipated
expenditure requirements for particular programs. These spending reductions can take the form of deferred
equipment purchases, hiring freezes, and simi[ar cutbacks. If necessary, the Governor may reduce portions of
administrative budgets prior to allotment. Furthermore, the Governor is authorized to call special sessions of the
General Assembly at any time to address financial or other emergencies.

TRANs may be issued to fund operating expenses. However, the State has not heretofore issued TRANs
and has no current intent to do so. See "STATE INDEBTEDNESS - Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes" above for
a description of restrictions on issuance ofTRANs for this purpose.

Financial Information and Budget Summary for Fisca[ Years 2014-2015 and 2015-2016

Financial Information
Acting upon the State Funding Board's December 16, 2014, consensus recommendation (see "Revenue

Growth" below), a revised revenue estimate was submitted to the General Assembly on February 9,2015, in the
fiscal year 2015-2016 Recommended Budget, which increased the total budgeted revenue estimate by $37.3 million
for fiscal year 2014-2015. The estimate for General Fund taxes was reduced by $3.8 million to reconcile with

[egislation enacted in 2014. The fiscal year 2015-2016 Recommended Budget recognizes a growth in total taxes
of $328.5 million, or 2.53%, for fiscal year 2015-2016. The general fund is projected to grow by $303.2 million
which is 3.0% above the current year estimate.
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Revenue Growth
The State Funding Board met on December 11,2014, to hear and discuss updates on economic and revenue

projections for the remainder of fiscal year 2014-2015 and to project revenue estimates for fiscal year 2015-2016.
The State Funding Board reconvened on December 16, 2014, and adopted the fo[Iowing revised consensus tax
revenue growth projections for the 2014-2015 Fisca[ Year (growth measured against actual results for the 2013-
2014 Fiscal Year, as set forth in the following table) and for the 2015-2016 Fiscal Year (growth measured against
the potential range of results for the 2014-2015 Fiscal Year, as set forth in the following table):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2014-2015 2015-2016

Fiscal Year 2013-2014
Results Low High Low High

Total State Taxes $ 11,744,711,100 3.45% 3.80% 2.55% 2.95%
General Fund Only $ 9,744,409,900 3.85% 4.20% 2.60% 3.00%

The State Funding Board is scheduled to convene in December 2015 to hear and discuss updates on

economic and revenue projections for the remainder of fiscal year 2015-2016 and to project revenue estimates for
fiscal year 2016-2017. The Board may schedule additional meetings at its discretion.

Final action ofthe fiscal year 2014-2015 budget process included an additional revenue estimate increase
above the revised estimate proposed in the 2015-2016 Recommended Budget. The increase was $27.5 million in
recurring revenue and $150.0 million in one-time franchise and excise tax payments.

On an accrual basis, July is the twelfth month of fiscal year 2014-2015. Total state tax collections for the
six months (August through July) were $605.7 million above the budgeted estimate, and the general fund was over
collected by $552.7 million. The 2015-2016 Enacted Budget recognized a $27.5 million revenue estimate increase
and a $150 million one-time payment in Franchise and Excise taxes. The four other funds that share tax revenue
proceeds were over collected by $53.0 million. Collections are unaudited and subject to final accrual adjustments.
The Rainy Day Fund balance is estimated to be $491.5 million at June 30,2015 and projected to be $568.0 million
at June 30,2016. See "STATE FINANCES - Reserve for Revenue Fluctuations".
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget Summary

The fiscal year 2015-2016 Enacted Budget is based on a growth rate in total taxes of 2.53%. General
Fund recurring cost increases total $520.5 million, much ofwhich is used to fund salary and benefits, program and
inflationary growth in TennCare, the Basic Education Program, Higher Education and Correction. For the 2015-
2016 Enacted Budget to remain balanced, State programs are reduced by an average of3.18% for a total of $177.7
mi[Iion. As enacted, recurring appropriations are funded by recurring revenues. The Rainy Day Fund balance is
budgeted to increase to $568.0 million after an additional deposit of $76.5 million.

The capital budget for fiscal year 2015-2016 is as follows:

State Current Funds $ 54,805,000
Federal Funds 9,975,000
General Obligation Bonds (excl. Hwy. Imp.) 437,610,000

Highway Improvement Bonds 83,800,000
Other Miscellaneous Funds 63,780,500
Facilities Revo[ving Fund 55,680,000
Total $ 705,650,500
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Bonds have not been issued for highway improvements since 1977, and there is no current intent to do so.

Bonds for highway improvements and for the Tennessee transportation infrastructure improvement program are

authorized for contractual purposes and authorizations are canceled when construction projects are completed.
TennCare Program

The TennCare Medicaid expansion program was launched in 1994. The TennCare program operates under
a Section 1115 waiver from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) in the United States
Department of Health and Human Services as a managed care program. Medicaid waiver programs are time-
limited. The waiver under which TennCare is now operating began on July 1, 2002, and has been extended through
June 30,2016.

TennCare services are offered through managed care entities. Medical, behavioral and long-term care

services are covered by "at risk" Managed Care Organizations ("MCO") in each region ofthe State. Enrollees have
their choice of MCOs serving the areas in which they live, except that some enrollees are assigned to TennCare
Select. TennCare Select is a managed care plan for certain populations such as children in State custody and
enrollees who may be living temporarily out-of-state. In addition to the MCOs, there is a pharmacy benefits
manager for coverage of prescription drugs and a dental benefits manager for provision of dental services to
children under age 21. Coordination of care is the responsibility of the enrollee's primary care provider in his or
her MCO. Long-term care services are provided in nursing faci[ities for elderly persons and in intermediate care

facilities for persons with inte[Iectual or developmental disabilities, as well as by home and community based
services providers. These services had been "carved out" of TennCare and paid for by the State through a fee-for-
service arrangement. However in 2010, the State implemented the TennCare "CHOICES in Long-Term Care
Program" which brought long-term care services for persons who are elderly and physically disabled into the
managed care program.

The Bureau of TennCare within the Tennessee Department of Finance and Administration is the State
agency charged with the responsibility for administering the TennCare program. In addition to overseeing the
contracts with the managed care entities and overseeing the long-term care program, the Bureau of TennCare is
responsible for payment of Medicare premiums, deductibles, and/or coinsurance for certain low-income Medicare
beneficiaries.

The TennCare program currently has approximately 1.0 million enro[lees consisting of approximately
820,000 chiWren and approximately 580,000 adults. For fiscal year 2015-2016, the State budgeted for a 3.0%
increase in costs associated with enrollment and medical utilization charges and a 10.0% increase in pharmacy
expense growth. The 2015-2016 enacted TennCare budget is $10.41 billion, including federal funds, and is 31.2%
ofthe total 2015-2016 Enacted Budget. Excluding federal funds, the cost ofthe TennCare program is budgeted to
be 22.3% of the total State tax col[ections.
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[n fiscal year 2006, TennCare reforms were implemented. The tab[e below depicts the rate of growth or

reduction in the TennCare budget since fiscal year 2007.

TennCare Budget Growth*
(in millions)

FY2007 78.9
FY 2008 59.3
FY 2009 (103.00)
FY2010 (214.80)
FY2011 (166.00)
FY2012 117.2
FY2013 68.8
FY 2014 367.9 * *

FY2015 (18.50) ***
FY 2016 46.5

*Recurring appropriations, which exclude enhanced Federal Medica[ Assistance
Percentage savings, hospital coverage assessment, and other non-recurring funds.

**The FY 2014 growth figure reflects some notable increases related to the
Affordable Care Act. $121 million was added for the eligible but not enrolled population
and the new health insurance tax. Also, $46 million was required to compensate for the
reduction in Tennessee's federal match rate. Other one time increases totaling $63
million reflected changes from non-recurring funding to recurring funding sources for
the pharmacy program, Medicare crossover costs and funding the State's Standard Spend
Down program. Increased costs related to ongoing program growth totaled $93 million
which represented a modest increase of 3.5%. Program growth costs include increases
in enrollment, as well as medical and behavioral health service utilization. An increase
of $44.9 million was due to other related programs.

***The FY 2015 reduction is due to the treatment of Nursing Home
Assessment fees as non-recurring

In fiscal year 2014-2015, the TennCare Reserve is anticipated to be $308.9 million and is equal to 9.2%
of the State funds contributed to the TennCare program. Historically, the TennCare Reserve was $306.9 million
in fiscal year 2013-2014, $306.9 million in fiscal year 2012-2013; $115.6 million in fiscal year 2011-2012; $234.7
million in fiscal year 2010-2011; and $442 million in fisca[ year 2009-2010. The TennCare Reserve is not
statutorily required and there can be no assurance that the TennCare Reserve will be available for use in the
TennCare program.
Federal Funding of Certain Programs

Approximately 38% of the State budget is funded by federal aid. The U.S. Budget Control Act of 2011
(U.S. Public Law 112-25) (the "Budget Control Act") establishes mechanisms to restrain federal spending and
decrease the projected federal deficit through the year 2021. Automatic across-the-board reductions in federal
programs original[y were scheduled to occur on January 2, 2013, but were delayed until March 1, 2013, by the
American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 (U.S. Public Law 1 12-240). Some major programs are he[d harmless and
not subject to the across-the-board reduction. The held-harmless programs include Medicaid (TennCare),
Children's Health Insurance program (CoverKids), Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, Supplemental
Nutritional Assistance program (formerly Food Stamps), and various food and nutrition programs, foster care and
adoption assistance, and various highway and transportation programs. An estimated 87% of federa[ aid to the
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State of Tennessee was not subject to the across-the-board reduction. In the 13% of federal aid that was subject
to reduction, the State reduced budgeted expenditures from federal aid sources by $71.8 million in 242 programs.
Of the $71.8 million reduced, 51% ofthe reduction occurred in K-12 Education ($36.3 million). The Department
of Health was reduced $12.7 million (18% of the total). The balance of the reductions occurred in other
departments. In all instances, State funds were not used to replace a reduction in federal funding. To maintain a

balanced budget, program budgets were adjusted accordingly. The Bipartisan Budget Act of 2013 (U.S. Public
Law 113-67) raised the sequestration spending caps in federa[ fisca[ years 2014 and 2015 while also extending the
imposition of sequestration spending caps beyond 2021 to federal fiscal year 2023. As a result, there are no

additional sequestration reductions of federa![y funded programs in state fiscal years 2014-2015 or 2015-2016.The
State will continue to monitor Congressiona[ action on federal aid appropriations to assess fiscal impacts to the
State budget.
Sources and Uses of Funds

The fol[owing tables compare sources and uses of funds for fiscal years 2014-2015 and 2015-2016:

2014-2015 Budget Compared to
2015-2016 FnactedBudget

Uses ofFunds
As ofJune 30,2015

Budget Fnacted Budget
FY 2014-2015 FY2015-2016 Difference

Genera[ Government $ 979,053,700 $ 1,012,251,300 $ 33,197,600

Education 9,667,974,100 9,928,063,400 260,089,300

Health and Socia[ Services 15,568,659,400 15,619,047,500 50,388,100

Law, Safety, and Correction 1,677,325,100 1,682,340,554 5,015,454

Resources and Regulation 943,413,400 933,092,200 (10,321,200)

Business and Economic Development 616,564,300 606,094,500 (10,469,800)

Total General Fund $29,452,990,000 $ 29,780,889,454 $327,899,454

Transportation $ 1,839,885,800 $ 1,805,134,400 $ (34,751,400)

Debt Service Requirements 377,714,000 429,855,000 52,141,000

Capital Outlay Program 248,183,700 652,824,200 404,640,500

Facilities Revolving Fund 165,546,600 324,726,500 159,179,900

Cities and Counties - State Shared Taxes 943,800,000 969,300,000 25,50%000

Total State Budget All Programs $33,028,120,100 , ,
$33,962,729,554 $934,609,454
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2014-2015 Budget Compared to
2015-2016 Fnacted Budget

Sources ofFunds
As ofJune 30,2015

Budget Fnacted Budget
FY 2014-2015 FY2015-2016 Difference

Tax Revenue - Revised Estimate

Sales and Use Taxes $ 7,612,100,000 $ 7,894,200,000 $ 282,100,000

Other Taxes - DOR 4,554,300,000 4,616,400,000 62,100,000

Franchise & Excise Taxes Collection 150,000,000

State Tax Revenue - GF Overcollection 350,000,000

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 1,938,258,600 1,999,592,500 61,333,900

Tobacco Funds 134,600,000 132,100,000 (2,500,000)

Lnttery forEducation Funds 335,700,000 346,600,000 10,900,000

Debt Service Fund Transfer 72,000,000 * (72,000,000)
Reserve Trans fers and Adjustments (405,917,400) * 472,290,054 * 878,207,454

Reversion - Overappropriation 177,289,900 * 86,807,800 * (90,482,100)

Rainy Day Fund Transfer 05,500,000 * OIl,000,000)

Sub-Total Appropriations $ 14,882,831,100 $15,471,490,354 $ l,088,659,254

Federal Funds $ 13,184,471,800 $ 12,979,017,400 $ (205,454,400)
Current Services and Other Revenues 3,103,434,300 3,258,258,700 154,824,400

Tuition and Student Fees 1,689,782,900 1,732,563,100 42,780,200

Bonds 167,600,000 521,400,000 353.800.000

Total $33,028,120,100 $ 33,962,729,554 $ 1,434,609.454

* Reserves, Transfers and Reversion $ (192,127,500) $ 482,597,854 $ 674,725,354
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Investment Policy
The State Funding Board is charged with the establishment ofpolicy guidelines for the investment of State

funds. The State Treasurer is responsible for the management ofthe State Pooled Investment Fund ("SPIF') (which
includes the State's cash, various dedicated reserves and trust funds of the State, and the Local Government
[nvestment Pool) and the Intermediate Term Investment Fund (ITIF), a [onger term investment option.

The primary investment objective for the SPIF is safety of principal, followed by liquidity and yield. No
investments may be purchased with a remaining maturity of greater than 397 calendar days and the weighted
average maturity cannot exceed 120 days. Investment instruments authorized by the Investment Policy for the
SPIF approved by the State Funding Board pursuant to Section 9-4-602, Tennessee Code Annotated, for purchase
by the SPIF inc[ude (1) bonds, notes and treasury bills of the United States or other obligations guaranteed as to

principal and interest by the United States or any of its agencies; (2) repurchase agreements for obligations of the
United States or its agencies; (3) certificates of deposit in banks and savings and loan associations recognized as

state depositories pursuant lo Section 9-4-107, Tennessee Code Annotated; provided, however, certificates of
deposit shal[ be col[ateralized in accordance with the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated; (4) prime
commercial paper that is rated in the highest category by at least two national[y recognized commercial paper
rating agencies; (5) prime bankers' acceptances that are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System; and
(6) securities lending agreements whereby securities may be loaned for a fee; provided, however, eligible collateral
as defined in Section 9-4-103, Tennessee Code Annotated, whose market value is at least equal to one hundred
two percent (102%) ofthe market value of the borrowed securities shal[ be required for each loan and for purposes
of this provision, eligible collateral sha[1 include cash collateral, which shall be equal to at least one hundred
percent (100%) of the market values of the borrowed securities. For each type of investment, certain terms and
conditions must be met. All book entry securities purchased are held by the Federa[ Reserve Bank in the State
Trust of Tennessee Account, or held by a custodian pursuant to a custodian agreement. Securities not eligible for
book entry at the Federal Reserve Bank are held by a custodian pursuant to a custodian agreement.

The ITIF portfolio is intended to be a longer-term investment option to the SPIF. The ITIF is actively
managed and is designed to invest in longer-term instruments in order to benefit from the normal steepness of the
yield curve. The dollar weighted average maturity of the ITIF shall not exceed 3 years. An appropriate amount
ofthe fund is maintained in short term investments to cover emergency withdrawals. No security will be purchased
with a remaining life ofover five years. [nvestment instruments authorized by the Investment Policy for the ITIF
approved by the State Funding Board pursuant to Section 9-4-602, Tennessee Code Annotated, for purchase by the
ITIF inc[ude: ( 1) bonds, notes and treasury bills of the United States or other obligations guaranteed as to principal
and interest by the United States or any of its agencies; (2) obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by
the federal home loan mortgage corporation, federal nationa[ mortgage association, student loan marketing
association and other Un ited Stated government-sponsored corporations; (3) repurchase agreements for obligations
of the United States or its agencies; (4) prime commercial paper that is rated in the highest category by at least two
nationally recognized commercial paper rating agencies; and (5) prime bankers' acceptances that are eligible for

purchase by the Federal Reserve System. For each type of investment there are certain terms and conditions that
must be met. All book entry securities purchased are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the State Trust of
Tennessee Account, or held by a custodian pursuant to a custodian agreement. Securities not eligible for book
entry at the Federal Reserve Bank are held by a custodian pursuant to a custodian agreement.

The State Trust of Tennessee, a non-profit corporation established in 1979, is a limited member of the
Federal Reserve Bank System.

In addition to the funds in the SPIF and the ITIF, the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (a
pension trust fund), the Baccalaureate Education System Trust (a private-purpose trust), and the Chairs of
Excellence Trust (a permanent fund) are authorized by statutes to invest in long-term investments, including bonds,
debentures, preferred stock and common stock, and real estate subject to the approval of the applicable boards of
trustees. See "Appendix A - Financial Statements" - Note 5A "Deposits and Investments".
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Accounting Standards

The Governmenta[ Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the body responsible for promulgating
accounting and financial reporting standards that are followed by state and local governments desiring to present
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). The State adheres to
GASB rules and issues audited financial statements in conformity with GAAP.
Other Post-Employment Benefits

In 2004, the GASB issued GASB Statements (Nos. 43 and 45) that provide accounting and financial
reporting requirements for retiree healthcare plans and employer participants, commonly known as Other Post-
Employment Benefits ("OPEB").

State employees and teachers who meet specified criteria receive pension benefits provided to retirees
through a defined benefit plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System. In addition to
retirement benefits, certain qua[ified retirees may continue participation in health insurance sponsored by the State.
Retirees who are not yet eligible for Medicare have access to the same benefits as current employees and pay
monthly premi ums that vary by years of service at retirement. The State has the flexibility to adjust the benefits
and premium sharing provisions provided by insurance plans on an annual basis. After age 65, retirees may
participate in a Medicare supplemental plan. The State's financial support to this supplemental plan is a fixed
amount based on years of service.

The current actuarial valuation of post-employment medical benefits, as of July 1, 2013, was completed
during fiscal year 2014. These and the previous studies were conducted using a projected unit credit actuarial cost
method and focused on individual employers within each plan. The State's obligations resulting from the July 1,
2013 study are summarized below. The annual required contribution ("ARCJ') consists of the normal cost (the
portion of the actuarial present value for OPEB benefits which is allocated to a valuation year by the actual cost
method) and an amortization ofthe unfunded actuarial liability.

As of June 30,2014
(expmssedin thousand

Unfunded
Actuarial Liability A?.

State Employee Group Plan
State obligation for employees
(belüdíng Componentünits) $ 4225,112 122,640

Loca[Education Agency Group Plan
State obligation on behalf of teache:5 294,798 30,355

Medicare Snpplement Plan
State obligation for employeeã
Úmcludíng Componentühíts) 134,051 11381
State obl®ítíon on behalf ofteachen 137,317 9,207

Total State Obligation S 1,811278 173,583

The actuary reports may be reviewed at: http://www.tn.gov/finance/act/OPEB.shtml. The State has
contracted with Gabriel Roeder Smith and Company to provide biannual OPEB valuations for the State Employee
Group, Teacher Group, Local Government Group and Medicare Supplement plans for fiscal years ended June 30,
2014 through June 30,2018. The next valuation, as of July 1, 2015, that will cover fiscal years 2015-2016 and
2016-2017, is expected to be finalized in mid-July 2016.

This data was reported in the State's CAFR for fiscal year 2013-2014. For fiscal year 2013-2014, the
State did not fund any actuarially determined OPEB [iability and expects to use pay-as-you-go funding of actual
costs of OPEB liabilities incurred for the current fiscal year. Both active employees and pre-age 65 retirees are
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offered the same health care plan options. The State has the flexibility to adjust the various plan options on an

annual basis. It will continue to analyze the cost ofthe choices available to current employees and retirees and the
cost of the choices on the employees, retirees and the State's cash flow to manage these expenditures going
forward.
Financial Reporting and Budgeting Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (the "GFOA") has
awarded Certificates of Achievement for Excellence in Financia[ Reporting to the State for its comprehensive
annual financial report for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1979 to June 30, 2008, thirty consecutive years. The
State did not receive the award for the fiscal year ended June 30,2009 due to the implementation of a new

accounting system that delayed the report but did receive the award again for fiscal years ended June 30,2010 to
June 30, 2014. The Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System ("TCRS") was also awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2014. This was the twenty-seventh consecutive year that TCRS received this award. To be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence, a governmenta[ unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annua[ financial report, the content ofwhich conforms to program standards.
Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable [egal requirements.

The GFOA also presented its Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the State for its annual budget
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 through June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1998 through June 30, 2015. To
receive ihis award, a governmental unit must publish a Budget Document that meets program criteria as a policy
document, as an operations guide, as a financial plan and as a communication device.

THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Introduction

The Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System ("TCRS") was established in 1972 as a trust to provide a

defined benefit pension plan that covers four large groups ofpublic employees - state employees, higher education
employees, teachers, and emp[oyees of participating local governments. The State is ultimately responsible for
the financial obligation of the benefits provided by TCRS to state employees and those higher education employees
that elect to participate in TCRS to the extent such obligation is not covered by employee contributions and
investment earnings. State and higher education employees hired prior to July 1,2014 have been non-contributory
since July 1, 1981. State and higher education employees hired after June 30,2014 became members of a new

retirement plan that provides both a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Employees contribute
5% of salary to the defined benefit plan component ofthe new plan. The plan provisions of the closed legacy plan
and the new plan are described in "Genera[ Information. The state employee group and higher education group
are combined for actuarial and financial obligation purposes. Such obligation is funded by employer contributions
as determined by an actuarial valuation and takes into consideration that state employees and higher education
employees hired before July 1, 2014 do not contribute to the plan. The state employee group includes general
employees, judicial employees, and public safety employees.

The State is not directly responsible for the pension benefits provided to teachers (grades K-12) or local
government employees. However, the State does provide funding to Loca[ Education Agencies (LEAs) to assist
in the funding of a system of education in Tennessee. Funds provided by the State to LEAs may be used to finance
the employer pension contributions of LEAs to TCRS.

The TCRS is governed by a Board of Trustees that is responsible for the general administration and
operations of TCRS within the requirements and provisions of State statutes. The Board is composed of eleven
ex-officio members (ofwhich two are non-voting), nine representatives ofthe active TCRS membership, and two
representatives for retirees. The ex-officio members include the chair and vice-chair of the legislative Council on
Pensions and Insurance (as nonvoting members), the Commissioner of Human Resources, the Commissioner of
Finance and Administration, the Comptroller of the Treasury, the Secretary of State, the Administrative Director
ofthe Courts, the State Treasurer (sits as the chair), and the Director ofTCRS (sits as the Secretary). The employee
representatives consist of three teachers (one from each grand division ofthe State that are selected for three-years
terms by the Speaker of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives), two state employees from
departments other than those represented by ex-officio members (elected by state and higher education employees
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for three-year terms), one public safety officer (appointed by the Governor for a three year term), three
representatives of local governments (appointed by the Tennessee County Services Association, the Tennessee
Municipal League, and the Tennessee County Officers Association for two-year terms), a retired teacher (appointed
by the Governor for a three-year term), and a retired state or higher education employee (appointed by the Governor
for a two-year term). A[1 employee representatives must be vested members ofTCRS.

By statute, an actuarial valuation of TCRS is to be conducted at least once in every two year period.
Pursuant to the funding policy adopted by the Board of Trustees on September 26, 2014, an actuarial valuation
will be conducted annually each June 30 t h for both accounting purposes and funding purposes. The last actuarial
valucation for accounting purposes was performed June 30, 2014, and will be performed each June 30 th thereafter.
The TCRS Board of Trustees certifies to the Governor each year the amount necessary to fund the Actuarially
Determined Contribution ("ADC") for state and higher education employees, and by statute the General Assembly
is required to appropriate such amount. Thus, for each year since 1972, the State has paid to TCRS 100% of the
ADC for state and higher education employees. The ADC represents the amount necessary to fund the normal cost
(the cost of current service being accrued),the amortized amount of the unfunded accrued liabilities, and the cost
of the administration ofTCRS pursuant to the actuarialmethodology described herein. The State has not generally
waived immunity from suit or extended its consent to be sued, and sovereign immunity and other legal principles
may bar actions to compel the General Assembly to appropriate moneys in the future for such purposes. Beginning
July 1, 2014, the term ADC replaced the term annual required contribution ("ARC") but ADC is essentially the
same as the ARC.

The net pension liability at June 30,2014 was $689,948,673 for state and higher education employees.
The plan fidicuary new position as a percnetage of the total pension liability was 95.11% at June 30, 2014,
calcualted in accrodance with GASB Statement No. 68. Previously, the funded ratio was calculated based on the
system's funding methodology. The funded ratio (actuarial value of assets / actuaria] accrued liability) was in
excess of 99% for the 2001, 2003, and 2005 valuation dates, but was 86.32% as of the 2009 valuation date, 88.30%
as of the 2011 valuation date, and was 89.4% as of the 2013 valuation date. In addition, the unfunded actuarial
liability as a percentage ofcovered payroll increased from 4.29% as ofthe 2001 valuation date to 64.53% as ofthe
2009 valuation date. The ratio for the 2011 valuation was 63.93% while the 2013 valuation reflected a ratio of
58.87%. This reduction in funded ratio from 2001 to 2013, despite the State's contributions of 100% of the ARC,
is principally attributab[e to actual investment earnings being less than the assumed investment earnings of 7.5%
since 2001. The investment returns for the two years fol[owing the 2007 actuarial valuation were a negative 1.20%
(fiscal year ended June 30,2008) and a negative 15.27% (fiscal year ended June 30,2009). Accordingly, on a

compound basis for the two years, TCRS had a negative return of 16.32% while assuming a positive return of
15.56%, a difference in expected earnings from actual earnings on assets ofnegative 31.88%. For the ensuing two
years (fisca[ years 2010 and 2011), the compound return was 32.13% compared to an assumed return of 15.56%,
a positive difference of 16.57%. The returns for the fo[Iowing years are: June 30,2012 was 5.61%; June 30,2013
was 9.92%; June 30,2014 was 16.65%; and June 30,2015 was 3.33%. Improving mortality rates among TCRS
retirees also contributed to increased unfunded liabilities.

The amounts and percentages set forth under this caption relating to TCRS, are based upon numerous

demographic and economic assumptions, including investment return rates, inflation rates, salary increase rates,
cost of I iving adjustments, postemployment mortality, active member mortality and rates of retirement.
Prospective purchasers of the Bonds are cautioned to review and carefully assess the reasonableness of the
assumptions set forth in the documents that are cited as the sources for the information under this caption. In
addition, prospective purchasers of the Bonds are cautioned that such sources and the underlying assumptions are

reflective as of their respective dates, and are subject to change. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should also
be aware that some of the information presented under this caption contains forward-looking statements and the
actua[ results of TCRS may differ materially from the information presented herein.
General Information

TCRS was established effective July 1, 1972 by Public Chapter 814, Acts of 1972. Section 8-34-202,
Tennessee Code Annotated, provides that TCRS has the powers, privileges and immunities of a corporation and
that all of its business shall be transacted, all of its funds invested, and all of its cash and other property held in
trust for the purpose for which received. By statute, the general administration and responsibility for the proper
operation of TCRS are vested in a twenty member Board of Trustees. The Treasury Department, a constitutional
office in the legislative branch of state government, is responsible for the administration ofTCRS, including the
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investment of assets in the plan, in accordance with state statute and in accordance with the policies, rules, and
regulations established by the Board ofTrustees.

State and higher education employees must become members of TCRS except the higher education
employees exempt from the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act may waive membership in TCRS and elect to
participate in the Optiona[ Retirement Program (ORP), a defined contribution plan. The State is ultimately
responsible for the financia[ obligation ofbenefits provided by TCRS to those state employees and higher education
employees participating in TCRS to the extent such obligations are not covered by employee contributions and
investment earnings. The obligation is funded by employer contributions as determined by an actuarial valuation.
The ORP is described in the section "Other Retirement Programs".

Public schoo[ teachers in grades K-12 are members of TCRS. The more than 142 local school systems in
Tennessee, referred to as Local Education Agencies ("LEAs"), are responsible on a cost sharing basis for the
financial obligation of the benefits provided by TCRS to K-17. teachers to the extent such obligations are not
covered by einployee coiìtributions and investment earnings. The obligation is funded by LEA employer
contributions as determined by an actuarial valuation. LEAs do not have taxing authority. The loca[ governing
body of a LEA and the State provide funding to LEAs to finance the cost of providing a system of education for
the children ofthe State. The State's education funding formula includes an amount to be used toward some, but
not all, ofa LEA's pension cost (LEA's employer contributions to TCRS). For TCRS purposes, the teacher group
includes certificated teachers and does not include non-teaching personnel such as bus drivers, cafeteria workers,
maintenance employees, custodians, and secretaries.

Local governments may join TCRS as a participating employer in order to provide pension benefits for
their employees. However, each local government is responsible for the financial obligation of the benefits
provided by TCRS to their employees to the extent such obligations are not covered by their employee
contributions and investment earnings. The State is not responsible for the [iability associated with local
governments participating in TCRS. Loca[ governments participating in TCRS include cities, counties, special
school districts, utility districts, emergency communication districts, and other political subdivisions of the State.
At June 30,2015 there were 497 local governments in the TCRS plan, Employees of local governments could
include general employees, non-teaching employees of â school system, transportation depai'Linent employees,
public safety employees, utility employees, and employees of other departments ofthe local government.

The state employee group and higher education group are combined for actuarial and financial obligation
purposes. LEAs are combined into a teacher cost sharing group for actuarial and financial obligation purposes.
Each participating local government in TCRS is maintained separately for actuarial and financial obligation
purposes. However, the assets of all four public employee groups participating in TCRS are commingled for
investment purposes with each group receiving its pro rata share of investment gains and losses.

By statute, an actuarial valuation of TCRS is to be conducted at least once in each two year period.
Pursuant to the funding policy adopted by the Board of Trustees on September 26, 2014, an actuarial valuation
will be conducted annually each June 30th for both accouting and funding purposes. The purpose of the actuarial
valuation is to determine the financial position of the plan and to determine the appropriate employer contribution
rate. By prior practice, an actuarial valuation was performed every other year. The latest valuation was effective
July 1, 2013 for funding purposes. An actuarial valuation for accounting purposes was performed June 30,2014.
Beginning June 30, 2015, actuarial valuationswill be performed annually for both accounting purposes and funding
purposes with the results avai lable in late December of each year. It has been TCRS' practice to conduct an
actuaria] audit every ten years, the last audit being completed effective with the 2009 valuation. The new funding
policy continutes that practice. By statute, an actuarial experience study shall be conducted at least once every six

years to establish demographic assumptions (pattern of retirement, turnover, mortality, etc.) and economic
assumptions (investment earnings rate, salary, retiree cost of living, etc.). Pursuant to the funding policy adopted
by the TCRS Board of Trustees, an actuarial experience study wil[ be conducted every four years. The last

experience study was conducted in 2012 and the next will be performed in 2016, with the results available in mid-
year of 2017.

TCRS issues audited financial statements on an annual basis. By statute, an independent audit is
conducted by the Comptroller of the Treasury, an office established by the State's Constitution. The Comptroller
of the Treasury is a part ofthe legislative branch of State government and is accountable to the Tennessee General
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Assembly. The financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America.

The Comptroller of the Treasury performed the audit of the most recent financial statement of TCRS as

of June 30, 2014. The latest actuarial valuation for funding purposes (as ofJuly 1, 2013), for accounting puproses
(June 30, 2014) and actuarial experience study (June 30, 2012) were performed by the actuarial and consulting
firm of Bryan, Pendleton, Swats, & Mckllister. The latest actuarial audit (July 1, 2009) was performed by the
actuarial and consulting firm ofGabriel, Roeder, Smith, & Company. Such reports are available on the Tennessee
Treasury website at www.treasury.tn.gov/tcrs.

By statute, the TCRS Board of Trustees certifies to the Governor each year the amount necessary to
finance the actuaria] [y required employer contributions for state employees and higher education employees, as

well as the amount required to cover the expenses of administering the retirement system. By statute, the General
Assembly shall make appropriations sufficient to provide for the actuarially required employer contributions for
state employees and higher education employees. A separate certification is provided for the amount necessary
for LEAs to finance the pension liabilities associated with the teacher group. An actuarially determined employer
contribution rate is provided to each local government participating in TCRS.

As of June 30, 2015 the membership in TCRS was as follows:
[nactive Inactive

Employees or Employees
Beneficiaries Entitled to
Currently but not yet

Active Receiving Receiving
Employees Benefits Benefits Total

State Employees and
Higher Education Employees 57,132 49,509 35,945 142,586
Teachers 76,379 46,162 30,376 152,917
Total 133,511 95,671 66,321 295,503

General Plan Provisions

Legacy pension systemfor employees hired before July l, 2014
The description under this section applies to employees hired before July, 1, 2014; the legacy pension

plan was closed to new membership on June 30,2014. Employees, whether vested or non-vested, as of June 30,
2014 continue to accrue benefits under these benefit provisions.

State employees, higher education employees, and teachers are vested upon completing five years of
employment. Eligibility for a retirement benefit is either age 60 and vested or at any age after 30 years of service
credit. A reduced benefit is available at age 55. Disability benefits are available after five years of employment
if the member is totally and permanently disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. Death benefits are

available under certain conditions.
The benefit provided by TCRS is a mathematical formula that uses a member's highest consecutive five

year average salary and a member's years of creditable service. The formula is a multi-step calculation that
provides a benefit that, stated in a simplified manner, is somewhat less than 1.6% of the member's five year average
salary multiplied by years of service. For example, a thirty year employee will receive approximately 48% of his
or her five year average salary.

Retirees are entitled to Cost ofLiving Adjustments ("COLA") after retirement. As required by Section 8-
36-701, Tennessee Code Annotated, cost of living adjustments are made every July 1 for retirees who have been
retired at least 12 months and ifthe consumer price index (all items-United States city average as published by the
US Department of Labor) increases by more than one-half percent. Ifthe consumer price index increases between
one-half percent and one percent, the increase granted is one percent. Otherwise, the adjustment is the actual
increase in the consumer price index except that the COLA is capped at a maximum of 3%.
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State employees and higher education employees hired before July 1, 2014, are non-contributory.
Teachers are required to contribute five percent ofsalary. Separate accounting and actuarial records are maintained
for each group.

There are not any cost controls or unfunded liability contro[s for the closed legacy plan.
Defìned benefit pensionplanfor employees hiredafter June 30. 2014 as a component of the New Plan

Employees hired after June 30, 2014 became members of a new plan that consists of two components, a
defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. The defined contribution component is described in the
section "Other Retirement Programs". The defined benefit component description follows.

State employees, higher education employees, and teachers are vested upon completing five years of
employment. Eligibility for a retirement benefit is either age 65 and vested or under the rule of 90 where a

combination ofage and service credit totals 90. An actuarially reduced benefit is available at age 60 or the rule of
80. Disability benefits are available after five years of employment if the member is totally and permanently
disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. Death benefits are available under certain conditions.

The defined benefit provided by TCRS is a mathematical formula that uses a member's highest
consecutive five year average salary and a member's years of creditable service. The formula provides a benefit
equal to 1.0% of the member's five year average salary multiplied by years of service. For example, a thirty year
employee will receive approximately 30% ofhis or her five year average salary.

Retirees are entitled to COLA after retirement. As required by Section 8-36-701, Tennessee Code
Annotated, COLAs are made every July 1 for retirees who have been retired at least 12 months and ifthe consumer

price index (all items-United States city average as published by ihe US Department of Labor) increases by more

than one-halfpercent. Ifthe consumer price index increases between one-halfpercent and one percent, the increase
granted is one percent. Otherwise, the adjustment is the actual increase in the consumer price index except that
the COLA is capped at a maximum of 3%.

State and higher education employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, contribute five percent of salary.
Since the State is financially responsib[e for state and higher education employees in the new plan, sepai'ale
accounting and actuarial records are maintained for this group. Teachers are required to contribute five percent of
salary. Since LEAs are financially responsible for teachers in the new plan, separate accounting and actuarial
records are maintained for this teacher group.
Cost Controls and Unfunded Liability Controls of the New Plan

The new plan was designed so that the maximum employer pension cost is limited to a total of 9% of

salary for both the defined benefit plan and the defined contribution plan. The target is that employer contributions
will be 4% of salary to the defined benefit plan and that employer contributions to the defined contribution plan
will be 5% of salary. Should the actuarial[y determined employer contribution for the defined benefit plan be less
than 4%, the excess will be held by TCRS in a stabilization reserve. When an actuarial valuation is performed and
should the actuarial rate for the defined benefit exceed 4%, then a series of cost control steps automatically occur

in the following sequence: (1) utilize funds in the stabilization reserve, if any; (2) reduce or suspend the maximum
annual COLA; (3) shift some or all ofthe employer contributions from the defined contribution plan to the defined
benefit plan; (4) increase employee contribution by 1% of salary; (5) reduce the benefit accrual factor below 1%;
and (6) freeze the plan with no future accruals being earned by employees. These cost controls apply to the state

and higher education employees as a group. These same cost controls apply to teachers as a separate group.
The new plan was designed to control the actuarial unfunded liability. Ifan actuarial valuation determines

th#*:the unfunded liêbilily of the new plan for state and higher education employees exceeds-123%:oftheãve year
average ofthe statefs bond indebtedness, then the sàme contro[s set out in the pre¢*dif:* þ#*èr#phs will

automatically occur. The provision also applies to the teacher group in the new plan.
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Investments and Investment Policy
Investment authority is governed by Section 8-37-104, Tennessee Code Annotated, which establishes the

types of investments that are permitted. An investment policy is adopted by the Board of Trustees related to the
authorized investment types and portfolio structure. The statute also provides for an Investment Advisory Council
(IAC) consisting of at least five investment professionals to provide investment advice to the State Treasurer and
the Chief Investment Officer.

The current investment policy adopted by the Board of Trustees is available on the Tennessee Treasury
website at www.treasury.tn.gov/tcrs.

The actual allocation of assets and the policy target range at June 30, 2015 are:

Asset Class
, .

Policy Range Actual Allocation
North American Stock 25-50% 36.7%
Domestic Bonds 20-60% 26.6%
Inflation Indexed Bonds 0-15% 6.0%
Short-term Securities 0-10% 1.0%
International Bonds 0-10% 00%
International Stocks 5-25% 18.3%
Private Equity & Strategic Lending 0-10% 4.9%
Real Estate 0-10% 6.5%

100.0%

The historical annualized rates of return (net of fees) on TCRS investments as of June 30, 2015 are:

1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year 15 Year 20 Year 25 Year
3.33% 9.84% 10.85% 6.45% 5.46% 7.09% 7.64%

The historical annual rates of return (net of fees) on TCRS investments for the last ten years are:

Year Ended
June 30 Rate ofRetum

2015 3.33%
2014 16.7%
2013 9.9%
2012 5.6%
2011 19.6%
2010 10.2%
2009 (15.3)%
2008 (1.2)%
2007 13.2%
2006 6.9%
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[nvestment performance is calculated by the system's general investment consultant, Strategic Investment
Solutions, [nc.

The vast majority of the assets of TCRS are managed internally. The investment division of TCRS,
consisting of 28 investment professionals, is responsible for the internal management of the domestic stock,
domestic bond, international bond, inflation indexed bond, and short-term securities portfolios. The TCRS staff
monitors the ten external investment managers for the international stock portfolio.

TCRS utilizes the services of other investment consultants and advisors including a real estate consultant,
real estate advisors, a strategic lending consultant, and a private equity consultant.

Actuarial Methodology for Funding Purposes
The funding policy adopted by the TCRS Board of Trustees provids that the June 30, 2015 actuarial

valuation will be conducted based on the following: entry-age normal actuarial me.tohd; 10-year smnthing ofassets
withiri a 20% col ridor; and level dollar amortiztion ofunfunded liabilities over a closed period not to exceed 20
years. As of June 30, 2015, net investment gains of approximately $412 milion are being deferred. The June 30,
2015 actuarial valuation will establish the empoyer contribution rate for the period July 1, 2016 throught June 30,
2017.

The actuarial valuation at July 1, 2013 utilized the frozen initia[ liability method for determining the
employer contribution rate for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30,2016. Unfunded accrued liabilities were
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unfunded accrued liabilities are recognized, the aggregate actuarial funding method is utilized. Essentially, under
the frozen initial liability method, the amount of the unfunded accrued liability is frozen and amortized over the
amortization period. Any actuarial gains and losses from one actuarial vatuation to the next actuarial valuation
are included in the normal cost rather than the unfunded accrued liability. The normal cost is financed on a level
percent of salary basis over the average remaining working life ofthe active employees, which is estimated to be
approximately 12 years. However, the Board may elect to recalculate (reestablish), rather than leave frozen, the
unfunded liability and amortize the reestablished unfunded liability over the amortization period. The unfunded
accrued liabilities were reestablished with the July 1, 2013 actuarial valuation. With the July 1, 2009 valuation a

closed amortization period of 20 years was established. With the July 1, 2013 valuation, the amortization period
for the unfunded accrued liability was scheduled to be 16 years but was shortened to 13 years for the state and
higher education employee group and was shortened to eight years for the teacher group.

For fiscal years ending prior to June 30,2007, a five year moving market average was used to value assets
for actuarial purposes. Earnings in excess or below expected investment returns are recognized over a five year
period. Investment gains and losses are applied to offset accumulated investment gains and losses prior to

determining the amount of earnings to be phased in. Effective for fiscal years ending after June 30,2007, a ten

year moving market average is used to value assets for actuarial purposes. Earnings in excess or below expected
investment returns are recognized over a ten year period. However, in no event will the actuarial value of assets
be less than 80% of the market value ofassets or greater than 120% ofthe market value of assets.

Economic and Demographic Assumptions
The [atest actuarial experience study was conducted in 2012 and determined the economic and

demographic assumptions to be utilized in the 2013, 2015 and 2016 actuaria! valuations. The next experience
study wil[ be conducted in 2016 with the resulting assumptions being utilized in the 2017,2018, 2019 and 2020
actuarial valuation.

The long term investment earnings assumption of7.5% is compounded annually. A graded salary increase
assumption based on age is utilized with larger increases expected for younger employees and smaller increases
for older employees. The salary range begins at 9.0% at age 20 while the upper portion of the range at age 70 is
3.7%. The approximate average salary assumption increase is 4.25%. The social security wage base is assumed
to increase 3.5%. The cost of living adjustment for retirees is assumed to increase 2.5% annually. A rate of
inflation of 3% is assumed in establishing the economic assumptions. The salary assumption was the only
economic assumption that changed from the 2008 experience study to the 2012 experience study. The salary in
all the age ranges was reduced 0.50 percent.
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The demographic assumptions include: post-retirement mortality, pre-retirement mortality, withdrawal
rate for termination ofemployment, the marital status ofmembers, the age differences ofthe married members and
their spouses, disability rate, and pattern of retirement. The demographic assumptions are based on the past
experience of participants in TCRS.

The demographic assumptions that changed as a result of the 2012 experience study include (1) post-
retirement mortality was changed to reflect improved life expectancy that occurred and to partially anticipate some

expected further improvement in life expectancy, and (2) pre-retirement mortality was changed to reflect improved
life expectancy that occurred and anticipated projection of further improvements in life expectancy.
Summary of Fisca[ Health of TCRS

Funded Status Based on GASB Pension Standards
At June 30, 2014*

(dollars expressed in thousands) a

Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension Liability
Position as a % of (Asset) asa % of

Plan Fiduciaty Net Total Pension Net Fudiciaiy the Total Pension Covered Employee
Group Position Libility láabilily (Assct) Liability pve,ed IPAÝ,Óll Payroll

State & Higher
Education Employees $13,430,683 $14,120,632 $689,949 95.11% $2,463,848 28.00%

Teachers $21,214,637 $21,198,387 ($16,250) 100.08% $3,925,132 (0.41)%

Historical Market Value of Assets

The historical market value of assets for the last ten years for the state employee and higher education
group and the teacher group are shown in the following table:

Historical Market Value of Assets
At June 30

(dollars expressed in thousands)
State Employee and Higher

Year ended June 30 Education Employee Group Teacher Group

20-4* $13,430,683 $21,214,637
20 3 11,827,560 -8,656,536
20 2 11,070,535 7,426,697
20-1 10,764,495 6,875,007
20 0 9,219,743 4,389,656
2009 8,586,203 3,359,796
2008 10,376,878 6,136,072
2007 10,633,938 6,637,769
2006 9,485,405 4,930,609
2005 8,985,992 4,185,802

Date o f last valuation. See "General Information" above.
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Historical Funding Progress Based on Market Value ofAssets
State and Higher Education Employees

At June 30
(dollars expressed in thousands)

Net Pens ion
Plan Fiduciary Liability (Asset)

Net Net Position as as a % of

Fudiciary a% o fthe Covered
Valu ation Plan Fiduciary Total Pension Liability TotalPension Covered Employee
Year ** Net Position Liability (Asset) Liability Payroll Payrøll

2014 $13,430,683 $14,120,632 $689,949 95.11% $2,463,848 28,00%
2013 11,827,560 13,821969 1,995,409 85.56 2,489,709 80.15
2011 10,764,495 13,284,473 2,519,978 81.03 2,431,765 103.63
2009 8,586,203 11,936,316 3,350,113 71.93 2,530,585 132.38

2007 10,633,938 11,241,864 607,926 94.59 2,501,095 24.31
2005 8,985,992 9,202,389 216,397 97.65 2,245,692 9.64
2003 7,953,295 8,641,882 688,587 92.03 2,011,145 34.24
2001 8,050,924 8,212,227 161,303 98.04 1,891,359 8.53

Historical Funding Progress Based on Market Value of Assets
Teachers
At June 30

(dollars expressed in thousands)
Net Pension

Plan Fiduciary Liability (Assel)
Net Pos ition as as a% of

Net Fudiciary a% ofthe Covered
Valuation Plan Fiduciary Total Pension Liability TotalPension Covered Employee
Year* * Net Pos ition Liability (Asset) Liability Payroll Payroll

2014* $21,214,637 $21,198,387 (16,250) 100.08% $3,925,132 (0.41)%
2013 8,658,230 20,300,591 1,642,361 91.91 3,747,221 43.83
2011 6,875,007 19,423,152 2,548,145 86.88 3,626,582 70.26
2009 3,359,796 17,118,650 3,758,854 78.04 3,523,942 106.67
2007 6,637,769 15,998,286 (639,483) 104.00 3,241,772 (19.73)
2005 4,185,802 14,646,578 460,776 96.85 3,000,297 15.36
2003 2,509,484 13,509,863 1,000,379 92.60 2,762,152 36.22
2001 2,509,407 12,629,990 120,583 99.05 2,560,093 4.71

Date of last valuation. See "General Information" above.

** 2014 - Based on GASB 67 and 68 requirements; Years prior to 2014 - Based on funding methodology; Annual reporting beginning
with 2014
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Cash Flows

Se[ected Cash Flows
State Employees, Higher Education Employees, and Teachers

(dollars expressed in thousands)
Cash Infows Cash Out Flows

Fiscal Interest and Benefits and Administrative Net Cash
Year Contributions Dividends Refunds Cost Flows

2014* $ 959,366 $ 779,544 $ -,778,888 $ 6,784 $ (46,762)
2013 932,678 782,794 ,661,602 5,446 48,424
2012 925,549 767,409 ,536,603 4,749 151,606
2011 914,226 740,075 ,434,296 3,525 216,480
2010 769,038 708,925 ,336,574 3,924 137,465
2009 769,714 793,334 ,271,327 3,616 288,105
2008 774,648 928,037 ,167,609 3,711 531,365
2007 738,472 877,122 ,081,995 3,385 530,214

Date of last valuation. See "General Information" above.

.

31



Projections
The following table provides a projection of expected benefit payment patterns. The projection is based

upon the assumptions utilized in preparing the 2013 actuarial valuation. The assumptions iüclude those regarding
future salary levels, retirement dates, incidence ofdisability and mortality and annual cost of living adjustments.

Benefit Payment Projections for TCRS
Based on July 1, 2013 Actuarial Valuation

Includes State Employces, Higher Education Employees, Teachers and Employees
of Local Governments

(dollars expressed in thousands)
Year Current Retirees Future Retirees Total

2013 $ 1,937,005 $ 66,807 $ 2,003,812
2014 1,932,550 200,405 2,132,955
2015 1,925,197 335,784 2,260,981
2016 1,914,802 474,772 2,389,574
2017 ,901,219 616,980 2,518,199
2018 ,884,276 764,734 2,649,010
2019 ,863,825 919,830 2,783,655
2020 ,839,741 1,079,768 2,919,509
2021 ,811,897 1,243,050 3,054,947
2022 ,780,173 1,415,060 3,195,233
2023 ,744,468 1,594,440 3,338,908
2024 ,704,708 1,777,281 3,481,989
2025 ,660,851 1,966,371 3,627,222
2026 ,612,850 2,162,100 3,774,950
2027 ,560,692 2,362,871 3,923,563
2028 ,504,416 2,572,593 4,077,009
2029 ,444,126 2,789,741 4,233,867
2030 ,379,985 3,012,246 4,392,231
2031 ,312,210 3,239,968 4,552,178
2032 ,241,098 3,469,424 4,710,522
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Funding Policy Adopted by TCRS Board of Trustees

By statute, it is the State's policy to fund the pension plan liabilities at the rate determined by an actúarial
valuation. The employer contribution rate includes the normal cost, accrued liability cost, and cost of
administration.

The TCRS Board of Trustees adopted a formal funding policy in September 2014 for benefits accrued
under the TCRS. The current funding policy adopted by the Board of Trustees is available on the Tennessee
Treasury website at www.treasury.tn.gov/tcrs. The essential elements of the funding policy are:

1 Annual actuarial valuations will be performed beginning June 30,2015.
2 The actuarial valuation method will be entry age normal.
3 Actuarial vatue of assets wi[1 be smoothed over a ten year period.
4 Actuarial value of assets cannot be 20% more or less than the market value of assets.
5 Unfunded liability shall be amortized using level dollar amortization method.

6 A new tier of unfunded liability shall be established with each actuarial valuation.
7 The maximum amortization shall be a c[osed 20 year period for each tier.
8 An actuarial experience study will be performed at a minimum of every four years.
9 An actuaria[ audit will be performed at least once in a ten year period.

Actuarially Determined Contributions (previously called Annual Required Contributions)
and Percentage Contributed

(dollars expressed in thousands)
State & Higher Education

Employees Teachers
Year Actuarially Actuarially
Ended Determined Percentage Determined Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed Contribution Contributed

2014 $410,608 00% $348,539 -00%
2013 391,352 00 344,534
2012 382,888 00 343,594
2011 383,365 00 339,833
2010 341,585 00 236,545
2009 350,770 00 233,215
2008 374,530 00 218,882
2007 358,327 00 204,402
2006 299,138 00 175,741
2005 277,740 00 170,414

The combined annual required contributions are funded from a contribution ofState funds, Federal funds,
student tuition and fees, and local education agencies. The combined annual required contribution for the state
and higher education employees was $410,552,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 representing
approximately 1.8% of the total State budget for the fiscal year, as shown under "State Finances-Sources and uses

of funds".
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Employer Contributions
The 2013 actuaria[ valuation established the employer contribution rates for the fiscal years ending June

30,2015 and June 30,2016. Accordingly, the employer contribution requirement for the fisca[ years ending June
30, 2015 and 2016 will be the rate of 15.03% of salary for general state employees and higher education employees
and a rate of 18.40% of salary for public safety employees. The combined aggregate rate is 15.14% of salary.
LEAs will make employer contributions at the rate of 9.04% of salary for teachers during fiscal years 2015 and
2016.

It is anticipated that there will be upward pressure on the employer contribution rates in future actuarial
valuations as the difference between the market value of assets and the actuarial value of assets that are being
deferred are recognized pursuant to the five year and ten year schedule previously described in the section titled
"Actuarial Methodology".

During early 2011, management of TCRS engaged the retirement system' s actuarial firm to conduct a
review to determine an inclination of the potentia[ employer contribution rates for the next fifteen years. The
review was based on the demographic data from the 2009 actuarial valuation but took into consideration investment
earnings and salary changes during fiscal year 2010. This review showed that the employer contribution rate for
state employees and higher education employees could increase to a peak of 21.58% by 2017 and then begin a

decline to a rate of 19.40% by 2027. The employer contribution rate for the teacher group could increase to a peak
of 15.29% in 2019 and then begin a decline to a rate of 13.35% by 2027. These are merely an indication of
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was also performed using an investment return of 5.0% each year going forward rather than the 7.5% earnings
assumption. In this case, the employer contribution rate for state employees and higher education employees could
steadily increase reaching 25% in 2017 and continue to increase reaching 30% in 2026. For teachers, the employer
contribution rate could be 20% by 2019 and continue to increase reaching 25% in 2027. Since investment earnings
for the four fisca[ years following this analysis have exceeded the 7.5% earnings assumption, the employer
contribution rates are not anticipated to peak at the levels determined in the 2011 analysis. However, at this time
no determination has been made as to when or at what levels the rates may peak.
Other Retirement Programs
Optional Retirement Program in Higher Education

Employees in higher education that are exempt from the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act may waive
membership in the TCRS and elect to participate in the Optional Retirement Program (ORP), a defined contribution
plan. Employees hired prior to July 1,2014 do not contribute to the ORP. By statute, employer contributions for
employees hired before July 1, 2014 are made at the rate of 10% of salary up to the social security wage base and
11% of salary above the wage base. Employees hired after June 30, 2014 will contribute 5% of salary to the ORP.
By statute, employer contributions for employees hired after June 30, 2014 are made at the rate of 9% of salary.

Employees are immediately vested in employer and employee contributions. Employees make the
determination as to how the employer contributions made on their behalf are invested. Employees have a variety
of investment products to choose from among three different vendors.

Employer contributions to the ORP totaled $101.3 million for the year ended June 30,2015. There were

11,586 ORP participants at June 30,2015.
DeferredCompensation Planfor State Employees, Higher Education Employees andTeachers

The deferred compensation program is a voluntary defined contribution plan to provide state employees
and higher education employees with the opportunity to accumulate supplemental retirement income on a tax

advantaged basis. The program offers employees two plans, a 457 plan and a 401(k) plan. The contributions to
the 401(k) plan can be made to both traditional and/or Roth plans.

Employee contribution limits are established by federal statute. In the 401(k) plan, employee
contributions are matched by employer contributions up to a maximum of$50 per month. Employer contributions
are subject to the funding being appropriated in the budget each fiscal year; otherwise no match will be made.

For the year ended June 30,2015,59,319 state and higher education employees made contributions to the
401(k) plan and 4,357 employees made contributions to the 457 plan. Employer contributions totaled $34.0 million
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while employees contributed $111.4 million. Additionally 8,399 teachers made contributions to the 401(k)
Employer contributions for those teachers totaled $10.2 mil[ion while employees contributed $3.2 million.

Employees are immediately vested in employee and employer contributions. Employees can choose
among a variety of investment products.
DefinedContribution Plan for State Employees and Higher Education Employees hiredafter June 30, 2014 as a
component ofthe New Retirement Plan

One component ofthe New Retirement Plan is a defined contribution plan for state employees and higher
education employees hired after June 30,2014. By statute, employer contributions are made at the rate of 5% of

1.

salary. However, employer contributions may be reduced as part ofthe cost controls and unfunded Iiability controls
as previously described in the defined benefit p[an component. Upon employment emp[oyees are automatically
enrolled to contribute 2% of salary to the defined contribution plan but employees may elect to increase or decrease
the employee contributions at any time.

Employees are immediately vested in employee and employer contributions. Employees can choose
among a variety of investment products.
DefinedContribution Planfor K-12 teachers hiredafter June 30, 2014 as a component ofthe Hybrid PlanNew
Retirement Plan

One component of the Hybrid New Retirement PlanPlan is a defined contribution plan for K-12 teachers
hired after June 30,2014. By statute, employer contributions are made by the LEAs at the rate of 5% of salary.
However, employer contributions may be reduced as part of the cost controls and unfunded liability controls as

previously described in the defined benefit plan component. Upon employment, teachers are automatically
enrolled to contribute 2% of salary to the defined contribution plan, but teachers may elect to increase or decrease
the employee contributions at any time.

Employees are immediately vested in employee and employer contributions. Employees can choose
among a variety of investment products.
GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") has issued a Statement No. 67 relative to

financial reporting for pension plans and Statement No. 68 relative to accounting and financial reporting for
pensions for governmental entities. The statements essentially separate pension accounting from pension funding,
which have historically been [inked together. Statement No. 68 provides a methodology for measuring pension
expense to be presented in the employer's financial statements. Moreover, Statement No. 68 provides a

methodology formeasuring the pension liability to be presented in the employer's financial statement. Regardless,
financial statement presentation will not affect the pension funding methodologies described herein. For TCRS,
the effective date of Statement No.67 was the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 and the effective date of Statement
No. 68 for the State is the fiscal year ending June 30,2015.

DEBT OF CERTAIN AGENCIES AND AUTHORITIES

The following entities are the corporate governmental agencies and instrumentalities of the State
authorized to issue various debt instruments. The State is not liable for any debt instrument issued by any of the
following entities, and no such debt instrument is a debt or obligation of the State and the full faith and credit of
the State is not pledged to the payment thereof.
Tennessee Local Development Authority

In 1978, the General Assembly created the Tennessee Local Development Authority (the "TLDA")
pursuant to Sections 4-31-101 et seq., Tennessee Code Annotated. TLDA is a corporate governmental agency and
instrumentality of the State. TLDA is authorized to (i) loan funds to local governments for sewage treatment,
waterworks and capital projects (the "State Loan Programs"), for firefighting equipment, and for airport facilities;
(ii) loan funds to certain small business concerns for pollution control equipment; (iii) make funds available for
loans for agricultural enterprises; (iv) make loans to not-for-profit organizations providing certain mental health,
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mental retardation, and alcohol and drug services; and (v) make loans to local government units to finance
construction of capital outlay projects for K-12 educational facilities. [n order to fund these loans, TLDA is
empowered to issue its bonds and notes. The aggregate amounts outstanding for certain programs are limited as

follows: $10,000,000 for firefighting equipment; $200,000,000 for airport facilities; $50,000,000 for pollution
control equipment; $50,000,000 for mental health, menta[ retardation, and alcoho[ and drug services; $30,000,000
for agricultural enterprises; $15,000,000 for petroleum underground storage tank cleanup costs; and $75,000,000
for capital outlay projects for K-12 educational faci[ities.

In 2009 the General Assembly delegated to the TLDA the authority to allocate the State's portion ofthe
"national qualified energy conservation bond limitation," as defined in § 54D of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, codified in 26 U.S.C. § 54D. In 2012 the General Assembly clarified that a "qualified energy conservation
project" constitutes a capital project under the State Loan Programs.

Bonds and notes issued by TLDA are secured by: (i) in the case of loans to local governments, monies
received by TLDA under loan program agreements with the local governments and by the local governments
allocation of state-shared taxes; (ii) in the case of loans to sma[1 business concerns, monies received under
agreements with those concerns; (iii) in the case of agricultural loans, monies received under agreements with
lenders and a pledge ofany money, income or revenue from any source; (iv) in the case of loans to not-for-profit
organizations, monies received under State grant agreements and a pledge of the department of mental health and
mental retardation's annual budget; and (v) in the case of loans to local government units to finance construction
of capital outlay projects for K12 educational facilities, monies received by TLDA under loan agreements with
local education agencies payable from taxes authorized to be levied for the purpose and certain proceeds of the
Tennessee lottery for education.

Currently the only program being funded by TLDA is the State Loan Programs. As ofAugust 31, 2015,
TLDA had $4,610,000 (unaudited) of bonds outstanding for this program.
Tennessee State School Bond Authority

In 1965, the General Assembly created the Tennessee State School Bond Authority (the "Authority"),
pursuanl to Sections 49-3-1201 et seq., Tennessee Code Annotated. Thc Authority is a corporate governmental
agency and instrumentality of the State. The Authority is authorized to issue its bonds and notes to finance capital
outìay programs for higher educational facilities which may be required or convenient for the purposes of The
University of Tennessee, including its branches and divisions, and for the purposes of the institutions of higher
education under the supervision and administration of the Tennessee Board of Regents of the State University and
Community College System of the State of Tennessee. In 1980, the General Assembly further authorized the

Authority to issue its bonds or notes to provide funds for the making of student loans by the Tennessee Student
Assistance Corporation; however, no such bonds or notes have been issued for this purpose. The Authority also is
authorized to issue Qualified Zone Academy Bonds ("QZAB") and Qualified School Construction Bonds
("QSCB") to finance improvement loans to cities and counties for qualifying K-12 schools for capital projects.

Generally, all outstanding higher educational facility debt obligations of the Authority are secured by
financing charges payable under contracts and agreements entered into by the Authority and the Board ofTrustees
of The University of Tennessee and the Tennessee Board of Regents of the State University and Community
College System of the State ofTennessee, as successor to the State Board ofEducation; legislative appropriations;
and certain funds and accounts established by the Higher Educational Facilities General Bond Resolutions of the
Authority. The QZABs and QSCBs are part of a Federal government program in which a Federal income tax credit
is given to investors in [ieu of interest on the bonds. For certain ofthe QSCBs, a Federal income tax credit is given
to bondholders in lieu of the payment of interest on bonds, and in certain other QSCBs an election is made by the
Authority to receive direct interest subsidy payments from the United States Treasury, which ifnot needed to cure

defaults under loan agreements with the borrowers, are transferred to them. The QZABs and QSCBs are secured
by a general obligation p[edge of the borrowers and a pledge of unobligated State-shared taxes of the borrowers.

As of August 31, 2015, the Authority had outstanding $1,546,480,000 (unaudited) aggregate principal
amount of higher educational facility bonds, $61,682,029 (unaudited) of higher educational facility revolving
credit facility, and $43,920,000 (unaudited) aggregate principal amount ofQZAB bonds. As ofAugust 31, 2015,
the total par amount of QSCBs outstanding was $389,440,000 (unaudited). A sinking fund has been established
for the retirement of the QSCBs, and $103,602,691 was the book value of assets on deposit as of June 30, 2015.
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Tennessee Housing Development Agency
In 1973, the General Assembly created the Tennessee Housing Deve[opment Agency (the "Agency"),

pursuant to Sections 13-23-101 et seq., Tennessee Code Annotated (the "Tennessee Housing Development Agency
Act"). The Agency is authorized, among other things, to issue its bonds and notes to make funds available for the
financing of residential housing for persons and families of [ower and moderate income.

The Agency has established a mortgage finance program and is making funds availab[e for loans for
residentia[ housing for persons or families of lower and moderate income. Such loans are secured by eligible
mortgages on the properties. The Agency has made, but does not currently make, loans formulti-family residential
housing for renta[ occupancy.

In order to accomplish its objectives, the General Assembly has authorized the Agency to issue its bonds
and notes, provided that the aggregate principal amount outstanding on such bonds and notes may not exceed
$2,930,000,000, excluding bonds and notes which have been refunded. The Agency's net indebtedness, excluding
the bonds and notes which have been refunded, at August 31, 2015, was $1,862,390,000 (unaudited).

Obligations of the Agency are secured by, among other things, mortgage loans made by the Agency from
the proceeds of such obligations. Obligations ofthe Agency issued prior to April 18, 2013, incorporate provisions
of the Tennessee Housing Development Agency Act that provide a mechanism for certifying to the Governor and
to the Commissioner ofFinance and Administration amounts, if any, needed for debt service or operating expenses
of the Agency and authorizes the General Assembly to appropriate, to expend and to provide for the payment of
such amounts, but imposes no legal obligation upon the General Assembly to do so. These provisions of the
Tennessee Housing Development Agency Act do not constitute a legally enforceable obligation ofthe State to pay
any such amounts. Under the Constitution of the State, no monies may be withdrawn from the Treasury but in
consequence of appropriations made by [aw.

Watkins Institute

Watkins Institute (the "Institute") is an educational institution located in Nashville. Since 1881, the State
has served as trustee of a trust providing for the maintenance ofthe Institute. On behalf of the State as trustee and
with the approval of the State Senate, the Governor of the State appoints commissioners of the Institute, al[ as
provided in the wills and codicils establishing the trust. In 1956, the Chancery Court of Davidson County
determined that the Institute was a State agency for the purpose of providing capital improvements through the
issuance of bonds. As ofAugust 31, 2015, the amount of outstanding bonds was $1,489,650 (unaudited).
State Veterans' Homes Board

In 1988, the General Assembly created the Tennessee State Veterans' Homes Board (the "Veterans' Homes
Board") pursuant to Sections 58-7-101 to 58-7-112, inclusive, Tennessee Code Annotated. A political subdivision
and instrumentality of the State, the Veterans' Home Board is authorized to issue its debt instruments to finance
public homes for the support and care of honorably discharged veterans of the United States armed forces. Such
homes will be established only if Federa[ Veterans' Administration funds are available to provide a share of the
construction and operation costs. Prior to the issuance of any debt instruments, the Veterans' Homes Board must
receive the approval of the State Funding Board. The Veterans' Homes Board has no outstanding bonds. Loans
to the Veterans' Homes Board were funded through the issuance of general obligation bonds authorized by the
General Assembly.

LITIGATION

Due to its size and broad range of activities, the State and its officers and employees are involved in a

number of legal actions. In view of the financial condition of the State, it is the opinion of the Commissioner of
Finance and Administration that the State's financial condition will not be materially affected by such litigation,
based on information known at the date of this Official Statement.

Brian A., et al. v. Haslam, et al., (U.S. Dist. Ct., M.D. Tenn.). This is a 42 U.S.C. § 1983 civil rights
action against the Governor and the Commissioner of the Department of Children's Services, ("DCS", "the
Department"), in their official capacities in which the plaintiffs, minors in state custody, alleged systemic
violations by the State of federal statutory and constitutional rights of all children in foster care and unequal
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treatment of African-American children in foster care. Represented by an advocacy group, Children's Rights, Inc.,
of New York City (CRI), as well as local counsel in Nashville, Memphis and Knoxville, the plaintiffs sought
system-wide declaratory and injunctive relief.

On October 26,2000, the Court denied the Department's motion to dismiss on all but one claim, thereby
leaving the bulk ofthe plaintiffs' case intact. Based on the loss ofthe motion to dismiss, the Department requested,
and the Court agreed, that the parties should be ordered into mediation. After several months of negotiation, the
parties entered a Settlement Agreement, which the Court approved in July 2001. In 2010, the parties agreed to an

Exit Plan designed to eventually lead to an end of court oversight of the Department. According to the Exit Plan,
once DCS maintains compliance with al[ sections ofthe Exit P[an for one year, courtjurisdiction over all sections
of the Settlement Agreement except one wi[1 end. The remaining section, which mandates an external
accountability center, will stay in effect and be funded by the State for eighteen more months. The Technical
Assistance Committee, which monitors the Department's compliance with the Settlement Agreement and Exit
Plan, decides what provisions come into maintenance. The Court approved the parties' jointly filed Modified
Sett[ement Agreement and Exit Plan in November 2010.

Since then, the Department has worked to comply with the dictates ofthe Settlement Agreement. Modified
Settlement Agreements were filed in 2011,2012, 2013 and 2014. Present[y, 82 provisions are in maintenance, 5
provisions are in partial maintenance and 49 provisions are not yet in maintenance.

People Firstv. Clover Bottom, (U.S. Dist. Ct., M.D. Tenn.). This is a class action civil rights suit regarding
institutional conditions at Clover Bottom, Greene Valley and Nat T. Winston Developmental Centers. This action
was consolidated with a case brought pursuant to the Civil Rights of Institutionalized Persons Act filed by the
Department of Justice also alleging that the constitutional rights ofresidents at these developmental centers were

being violated. A settlement agreement was negotiated and was conditionally approved by the District Court on
July 3, 1997. Since that time, the State has been working to implement the terms of the Settlement Agreement. Nat
['. Winston Developmental Center has since been closed and the institutional conditions at Greene Valley
Developmenta[ Center found to be in substantial compliance. The State is in the process of closing Clover Bottom

Developmental Center. The issue of the quality of services and supports provided to class members living in
community-based homes remains at issue. The State entered mediation with the parties in an attempt to reach an

exit plan for the dismissal ofthis lawsuit. The mediation is complete and an Exit Plan was negotiated and approved
by al[ parties. The Court approved the Exit Plan on January 29, 2015, following a fairness hearing held January
21, 2015. The Exit Plan calls for the closure of the Greene Va[ley Developmental Center and contemplates
completion of its terms by June 30,2016; if those terms are completed the case will be dismissed with prejudice.

Tobacco Master Settlement. Though there is no current tobacco payment litigation involving Tennessee,
there is the potential for the State to be involved in future arbitrations arising out of disputes concerning an

adjustment to annual tobacco payments. Tennessee and 51 other states and territories receive annual payments
from participating tobacco manufacturers under the 1998 Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement ("MSA"). The
amount of those payments varies each year depending on domestic sales volume and several other adjustments. A
"Non-Participating Manufacturer ("NPM") Adjustment" can reduce a state's payment if certain conditions occur

and if the state did not diligently enforce its model escrow statute, which requires tobacco manufacturers that did
not settle to pay into an escrow account each year. Ifan arbitration results in a finding that a state did not diligently
enforce during a calendar year, the state shares the NPM Adjustment with any other states found non-diligent for
that year. Thus, the amount of the payment reduction is inversely proportional to the number of states that lose the
diligent enforcement determination (i.e., the greater the number of losing states, the lower the payment reduction).
A state can lose up to its entire MSA payment for a year. Tennessee's annual MSA payment generally ranges from
$130-$150 million. Tennessee and 23 other states have resolved the NPM Adjustment disputes for 2003-2014 in
a settlement with the participating tobacco manufacturers. However, starting in 2015 Tennessee would again be
subject to the potential for an NPM Adjustment to be applied if its diligence is challenged in an arbitration and the
State is unsuccessful in proving its diligence. It should be noted that the 2004 arbitration for the states that did not

join the more recent settlement has not yet commenced, so any arbitration for 2015 would most likely not begin
for a number of years.

State of Mississippi v. State ofTennessee, et al., (U.S. Supreme Court). On June 10, 2014, the State of
Mississippi filed a motion in the U.S. Supreme Court for leave to commence an original action against the State
of Tennessee, the City ofMemphis, and the city's utility, Memphis Light, Gas and Water. This is in connection
with Memphis' withdrawal of ground water, which is primarily used to supply drinking water. Mississippi is
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alleging that these withdrawals have been taking ground water that is in Mississippi, which that state claims to
own in a proprietary capacity. Mississippi is seeking an injunction to limit Memphis' ground water withdrawa[s,
and $615 million in damages for the past withdrawals. Mississippi filed a similar motion in 2009, which the
Supreme Court denied. The State is in the process of responding to the current motion. IfMississippi's motion is
granted the Supreme Court will appoint a Special Master to consider Mississippi's complaint. The State believes
that it has strong legal and factual arguments and that it should prevail u[timately on the merits even if the Court
grants Mississippi's motion for leave and appoints a Special Master. However, there is no guarantee of such a

result and the State could be enjoined and/or required to pay damages i fMississippi were to succeed in its lawsuit.
At this time, it is impossible to quantify the economic impact upon the State if such an event were to occur. On
October 20,2014, the Supreme Court issued an order inviting the U.S. Solicitor General to file a brief expressing
the views of the United States. The State does not expect the Supreme Court to unduly delay making a decision
on Mississippi's motion after the Solicitor General's brief has been filed.

Illinois Central Railroad Co. v. Tenn. Dept. of Revenue, et al., (6th Cir. Ct. App.; U.S. Dist. Ct., M.D.
Tenn.; Davidson Co. Chancery Ct.). The Illinois Centra[ case will control the outcome of a number of lawsuits
that have been filed by railroads challenging the sales tax on plaintiffs' purchases of diesel fuel on grounds that
the now repealed tax discriminated against railroads and favored trucking companies in violation of the federal
Railway Revitalization and Regulatory Reform Act. These railroad cases are being held in abeyance pending the
outcome of the Illinois Central litigation which has been appealed to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Sixth
Circuit. The total amount at issue in these lawsuits and related potential claims is approximately $150 million. In
December 2014, the Sixth Circuit issued an order holding the Illinois Central case in abeyance pending the decision
of the U. S. Supreme Court in an Alabama railroad diesel fuel case, in which Tennessee authored an amicus brief
on behalf of 15 states. The Alabama case was argued in December 2014 and the U.S. Supreme Court is expected
to issue a decision later this year.

Insurance Premiums Tax Cases, (Tennessee Claims Commission) There are currently 33 pending cases,
all initially filed before the Tennessee Claims Commission and some subsequently appealed to other courts, in
which various out-of-state insurance companies doing business in Tennessee present substantially similar
questions regarding whether retaliatory taxes were properly imposed. New York insurance companies filed 13
cases disputing $33.9 mil[ion in retaliatory taxes; Pennsylvania companies filed 13 cases disputing $23.9 million
in retaliatory taxes; Florida companies filed 2 cases disputing $2.6 million; South Carolina companies fi[ed 2 cases

disputing $1.1 million; and Connecticut companies filed three cases disputing $539,310. The Claims Commission
and subsequently the Tennessee Court of Appeals ruled in the State's favor in the Pennsylvania cases. The
Pennsylvania insurance company plaintiffs have been granted permission to file an appeal with the Tennessee
Supreme Court. The State has prevailed in the 13 cases fi led by New York insurance companies. Though plaintiffs
in the New York cases are expected to file a cert petition with the U.S. Supreme Court, the State believes this
petition is unlikely to be granted. The aggregate amount in dispute in the pending retaliatory tax cases is
$62,004,124.

Gilead Sciences, fnc. v. Roberts; Allergan, Inc. v. Roberts (Davidson Co. Chancery Court) Gilead is a

franchise and excise tax case, in which a pharmaceutical company requests a tax refund and seeks a"look-through ,,
variance to attribute its sales to the location of the ultimate consumer rather than to Tennessee where its sales
occur. Thirty-two million do[lars is in dispute. The outcome ofGilead is likely to be controlled by the five pending
Allergan cases which involve similar refund 0[aims totaling $10.2 million. The Allergan lawsuits were filed by
another pharmaceutical company and are further along in the litigation process.

TAX MATTERS

Federal Tax Matters - Series A and Series B Bonds

General
In the opinion ofHawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond Counsel to the State, under existing statutes and

court decisions and assuming continuing compliance with certain tax covenants described herein, (i) interest on
the Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds (collectively, the "Tax-Exempt Bonds") is excluded from gross income
for Federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
"Code"), and (ii) interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds is not treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative
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minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations under the Code; such interest, however, is included in the
adjusted current earnings of certain corporations for purposes of calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed
on such corporations. In rendering its opinion, Bond Counsel has relied on certain representations, certifications
of fact, and statements of reasonable expectations made by the State and others in connection with the Tax-Exempt
Bonds, and Bond Counsel has assumed compliance by the State with certain ongoing covenants to comply with
applicable requirements of the Code to assure the exclusion of interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds from gross
income under Section 103 ofthe Code.

Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other Federal tax consequences with respect to the Tax-
Exempt Bonds. Bond Counsel renders its opinion under existing statutes and court decisions as of the issue date,
and assumes no obligation to update, revise or supplement its opinion after the issue date to reflect any future
action, fact or circumstance, or change in law or interpretation or otherwise. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion
as to the effect of any action hereafter taken or not taken, in reliance upon an opinion of other counse[, on the
exclusion from gross income for Federal income tax purposes of interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds.

For the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel relating to Federal tax matters, see Appendix C.

CertainCollateral Federal TaxConsequences
The following is a brief discussion of certain collateral Federal income tax matters with respect to the

Tax-Exempt Bonds. It does not purport to address all aspects ofFederal taxation that may be relevant to a particular
owner of a Tax-Exempt Bond. Prospective investors, particularly those who may be subject to special rules, are
advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding the Federal tax consequences ofowning and disposing of the
Tax-Exempt Bonds.

Prospective owners ofthe Tax-Exempt Bonds should be aware that the ownership ofsuch obligations may
result in collateral Federal income tax consequences to various categories of persons, such as corporations
(including S corporations and foreign corporations), financial institutions, property and casualty and life insurance
companies, individual recipients of Social Security and railroad retirement benefits, individuals otherwise eligible
for the earned income tax credit, and taxpayers deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or
carry obligations the interest on which is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Interest
on the Tax-Exempt Bonds may be taken into account in determining the tax liability of foreign corporations subject
to the branch profits tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code.

Original Issue Discount

"Original issue discount" ("OID") is the excess of the sum of all amounts payable at the stated maturity
of a Tax-Exempt Bond (excluding certain "qualified stated interest" that is unconditionally payable at least
annually at prescribed rates) over the issue price ofthat maturity. In general, the "issue price" ofa maturity means

the first price at which a substantial amount of the Tax-Exempt Bonds of that maturity was sold (excluding sales
to bond houses, brokers, or similar persons acting in the capacity as underwriters, placement agents, or

wholesalers). In general, the issue price for each maturity ofTax-Exempt Bonds is expected to be the initial public
offering price set forth on the inside cover page ofthis Official Statement. Bond Counsel further is of the opinion
that, for any Tax-Exempt Bond having OID (a "Discount Bond"), OID that has accrued and is properly allocable
to the owners of the Discount Bond under Section 1288 of the Code is excludable from gross income for Federal
income tax purposes to the same extent as other interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds.

In genera[, under Section 1288 of the Code, OID on a Discount Bond accrues under a constant yie[d
method, based on periodic compounding of interest over prescribed accrua[ periods using a compounding rate
determined by reference to the yield on that Discount Bond. An owner's adjusted basis in a Discount Bond is
increased by accrued OID for purposes of determining gain or loss on sale, exchange, or other disposition of such
Bond. Accrued OID may be taken into account as an increase in the amount of tax-exempt income received or

deemed to have been received for purposes of determining various other tax consequences of owning a Discount
Bond even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment.

Owners of Discount Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the treatment of original
issue discount for Federal income tax purposes, including various special rules relating thereto, and the state and
local tax consequences of acquiring, holding, and disposing ofDiscount Bonds.
BondPremium
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In general, ifan owner acquires a Tax-Exempt Bond for a purchase price (excluding accrued interest) or
otherwise at a tax basis that reflects a premium over the sum of all amounts payable on that Tax-Exempt Bond
after the acquisition date (excluding certain "qualified stated interest" that is unconditionally payable at least
annually at prescribed rates), that premium constitutes "bond premium" on that Tax-Exempt Bond (a "Premium
Bond"). In general, under Section 171 ofthe Code, an owner of a Premium Bond must amortize the bond premium
over the remaining term of the Premium Bond, based on the owner's yie[d over the remaining term of the Premium
Bond, determined based on constant yield principles (in certain cases involving a Premium Bond callable prior to
its stated maturity date, the amortization period and yield may be required to be determined on the basis of an
earlier call date that results in the lowest yield on such bond). An owner of a Premium Bond must amortize the
bond premium by offsetting the qualified stated interest allocable to each interest accrual period under the owner's
regular method of accounting against the bond premium allocable to that period. In the case of a tax-exempt
Premium Bond, if the bond premium allocable to an accrual period exceeds the qualified stated interest allocable
to that accrual period, the excess is a nondeductible loss. Under certain circumstances, the owner of a Premium
Bond may realize a taxable gain upon disposition of the Premium Bond even though it is sold or redeemed for an
amount less than or equal to the owner's original acquisition cost.

Owners of any Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the treatment of bond
premium for Federa[ income tax purposes, including various special rules relating thereto, and state and local tax
consequences, in connection with the acquisition, ownership, amortization of bond premium on, sale, exchange or

other disposition ofPremium Bonds.

InformationReporting and Backup Withholding
Information reporting requirements apply to interest on tax-exempt ob[igations, including the Tax-Exempt

Bonds. In general, such requirements are satisfied if the interest recipient completes, and provides the payor with
a Form W-9, "Request for Taxpayer IdentificationNumber and Certification," or ifthe recipient is one ofa limited
class of exempt recipients. A recipient not otherwise exempt from information reporting who fails to satisfy the
in formation reporting requirementswill be subject to "backup withholding," which means that the payor is required
to deduct and withhold a tax from the interest payment, calculated in the manner set forth in the Code. For the
foregoing purpose, a "payor" generally refers to the person or entity from whom a recipient receives its payments
of interest or who collects such payments on behalf of the recipient.

If an owner purchasing a Tax-Exempt Bond through a brokerage account has executed a Form W-9 in
connection with the establishment of such account, as generally can be expected, no backup withholding should
occur. In any event, backup withholding does not affect the excludability ofthe interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds
from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Any amounts withheld pursuant to backup withholding would
be allowed as a refund or a credit against the owner's Federa[ income tax once the required information is furnished
to the Internal Revenue Service.
Miscellaneous

Tax legislation, administrative actions taken by tax authorities, or court decisions, whether at the Federal
or state level, may adversely affect the tax-exempt status of interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds under Federal or
state law or otherwise prevent beneficia[ owners of the Tax-Exempt Bonds from realizing the full current benefit
of the tax status of such interest. In addition, such legislation or actions (whether currently proposed, proposed in
the future, or enacted) and such decisions could affect the market price or marketability ofthe Tax-Exempt Bonds.
For example, the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget proposed by the Obama Administration recommends a 28% limitation
on "all itemized deductions, as well as other tax benefits" including "tax-exempt interest." The net effect of such
a proposal, if enacted into law, would be that an owner of a tax-exempt bond with a marginal tax rate in excess of
28% would pay some amount of Federa[ income tax with respect to the interest on such tax-exempt bond.

Prospective purchasers of the Tax-Exempt Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the
foregoing matters.
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Federal Tax Matters - Series C Bonds

General
In the opinion of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond Counsel to the State, interest on the Series C

Bonds is included in gross income for United States Federal income tax purposes pursuant to the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other Federal tax
consequences with respect to the Series C Bonds. For the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel relating to
Federal tax matters, see Appendix C.

The following discussion is a brief summary of the principal Federal income tax consequences of the
acquisition, ownership and disposition of Series C Bonds by original purchasers of the Series C Bonds who are

"U.S. Holders", as defined herein. This summary (i) is based on the Code, Treasury Regulations, revenue rulings
and court decisions, all as currently in effect and all subject to change at any time, possibly with retroaclive effect;
(ii) assumes that the Series C Bonds wil[ be held as "capital assets"; and (iii) does not discuss all of the Federal
income tax consequences that may be relevant to a ho[der in ] ight of its particular circumstances or to holders
subject to specia[ rules, such as insurance companies, financia[ institutions, tax-exempt organizations, dealers in
securities or foreign currencies, persons holding the Series C Bonds as a position in a "hedge" or "straddle", holders
whose functional currency (as defined in Section 985 of the Code) is not the United States dollar, ho[ders who
acquire Series C Bonds in the secondary market, or individuals, estates and trusts subiect to the tax on unearned
income imposed by Section 1411 ofthe Code.

Holders of Series C Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors concerning the Federal income tax
and other consequences with respect to the acquisition, ownership and disposition of the Series C Bonds as well
as any tax consequences that may arise under the laws of any state, local or foreign tax jurisdiction.
Original Issue Discount

For United States Federal income tax purposes, a Series C Bond will be treated as issued with original
issue discount ("OID") if the excess of a Series C Bond's "stated redemption price at maturity" over its "issue

price" equals or exceeds a statutorily determined de minimis amount. In general, ifOID is greater than a statutorily
defined de minimis amount, a holder of a Series C Bond must include in Federal gross income (for each day of the
taxable year, or portion of the taxable year, in which such holder holds such Series C Bond) the daily portion of
OID, as it accrues (genera][y on a constant yield method) and regardless ofthe holder's method ofaccounting. For

purposes of the foregoing: "issue price" means the first price at which a substantial amount of the Series C Bond
is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of
underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers); "stated redemption price at maturity" means the sum of all

payments, other than "qualified stated interest", provided by such Series C Bond; "qualified stated interest" is
stated interest that is unconditionally payable in cash or property (other than debt instruments ofthe issuer) at [east
annually at a single fixed rate; and "de minimis amount" is an amount equal to 0.25 percent of the Series C Bond's
stated redemption price at maturity multiplied by the number of complete years to its maturity. A holder may
irrevocably elect to include in gross income all interest that accrues on a Series C Bond using the constant-yield
method, subject to certain modifications.

Acquisiíion Discount onShort-Term SeriesC Bonds

Each holder of a Series C Bond with a maturity not longer than one year (a "Short-Term Series C Bond")
is subject to rules of Sections 1281 through 1283 ofthe Code, if such ho[der is an accrual method taxpayer, bank,
regulated investment company, common trust fund or among certain types ofpass-through entities, or if the Short-
Term Series C Bond is held primarily for sale to customers, is identified under Section 1256(e)(2) of the Code as

part of a hedging transaction, or is a stripped bond or coupon held by the person responsible for the underlying
stripping transaction. In any such instance, interest on, and "acquisition discount" with respect to, the Short-Term
Series C Bond accrue on a ratable (straight-line) basis, subject to an election to accrue such interest and acquisition
discount on a constant interest rate basis using daily compounding. "Acquisition discount" means the excess of
the stated redemption price of a Short-Term Series C Bond at maturity over the holder's tax basis therefor.
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A holder of a Short-Term Series C Bond not described in the preceding paragraph, including a cash-
method taxpayer, must report interest income in accordance with the holder's regular method of tax accounting,
unless such holder irrevocably elects to accrue acquisition discount currently.
BondPremium

In general, if a Series C Bond is originally issued for an issue price (excluding accrued interest) that
reflects a premium over the sum of a[[ amounts payable on the Series C Bond other than "qualified stated interest"
(a "Taxable Premium Bond"), that Taxable Premium Bond wil] be subject to Section 171 ofthe Code, relating to
bond premium. In general, if the holder of a Taxable Premium Bond elects to amortize the premium as

"amortizable bond premium" over the remaining term of the Taxable Premium Bond, determined based on constant
yield principles (in certain cases involving a Taxable Premium Bond ca[]able prior to its stated maturity date, the
amortization period and yield may be required to be determined on the basis of an earlier call date that results in
the highest yield on such bond), the amortizable premium is treated as an offset to interest income; the holder will
make a corresponding adjustment to the holder's basis in the Taxable Premium Bond. Any such election is
generally irrevocable and applies to all debt instruments of the holder (other than tax-exempt bonds) held at the
beginning ofthe first taxable year to which the election applies and to all such debt instruments thereafter acquired.
Under certain circumstances, the holder of a Taxable Premium Bond may realize a taxable gain upon disposition
of the Taxab[e Premium Bond even though it is sold or redeemed for an amount less than or equal to the holder's
original acquisition cost.

Disposition
Generally, upon the sale, exchange, redemption, or other disposition of a Series C Bond, a holder generally

will recognize taxable gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized (other than
amounts attributable to accrued interest not previously inc[udable in income) and such holder's adjusted tax basis
in the Series C Bond.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding
In general, information reporting requirements will apply to non-corporate holders with respect to

payments of principal, payments of interest, and the accrual ofOID on a Series C Bond and the proceeds of the
sale of a Series C Bond before maturity within the United States. Backup withholding may apply to holders of
Series C Bonds under Section 3406 ofthe Code. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules from
a payment to a beneficial owner, and which constitutes over-withholding, would be allowed as a refund or a credit
against such beneficial owner's Federal income tax provided the required information is furnished to the Internal
Revenue Service.

..

U.S. Holders
The term "U.S. Holder" means a beneficial owner of a Series C Bond that is: (i) a citizen or resident of

the United States, (ii) a corporation, partnership or other entity created or organized in or under the laws of the
United States or of any political subdivision thereof, (iii) an estate the income of which is subject to the Federal
income taxation regardless of its source or (iv) a trust whose administration is subject to the primary jurisdiction
of a United States court and which has one or more United States fiduciaries who have the authority to control all
substantial decisions of the trust.
Miscellaneous

Tax [egislation, administrative actions taken by tax authorities, or court decisions, whether at the Federal
or state level, may adversely affect the tax-exempt status of interest on the Series C Bonds under state law and
could affect the market price or marketability ofthe Series C Bonds.

Prospective purchasers of the Series C Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the
foregoing matters.

43



State of Tennessee Tax Matters

In the opinion of Bond Counsel to the State, under existing laws of the State, the principal of and interest
on the Bonds are exempt from taxation by the State or by any county, municipality or taxing district of the State,
except for inheritance, transfer and estate taxes, and except to the extent such interest may be included within the
measure of privilege taxes imposed pursuant to the laws of the State.

Bond Counse[ expresses no opinion regarding any other state or local tax consequences with respect to
the Bonds. Bond Counsel renders its opinion under existing statutes and court decisions as of the issue date and
assumes no obligation to update its opinion after the issue date to reflect any future action, fact or circumstance,
or change in law or interpretation or otherwise. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to the effect ofany action
hereafter taken or not taken, in reliance upon an opinion of other counsel, under state and local tax law.

For the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel relating to State tax matters, see Appendix C.

UNDERWRITING

The Underwriters of the Bonds have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase all of the Bonds
from the State at an aggregate purchase price to be paid by the Underwriters of $ (representing the

principal amount ofthe Bonds of $ plus original issue premium of $ -

, less Underwriters' discount of
$ ). The bond purchase agreement provides that the Underwriters shall purchase all ofthe Bonds if any are

purchased, subject to the conditions contained therein. The Bonds may be offered and sold to certain deaiers,
banks and others at prices different than the offering prices índicated on the inside front cover page hereof, and
such offering prices may bc changed from time to time.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Public Financial Management, Inc. ("PFM'*) is employed by the State to perform professional services in
the oapaoity of financial advisor. In its role as financial advisor to the State Funding Board, PFM has provided
advice on the plan of financing and structure of the Bonds, reviewed certain legal and disclosure documents,
including this Official Statement, for financial matters, and reviewed and will give an opinion to the State Funding
Board on the fairness of the pricing of the Bonds by the underwriting syndicate. PFM has not independently
verified the factual information contained in this Official Statement, but relied on the information supplied by the
State and other sources and the State's certification as to the Official Statement.

VERIFICATION AGENT

The arithmetical accuracy of certain computations included in the schedules provided by PFM on behalf
ófthe State relating to (a) computation of forøcasted receipts ofprincipal andintereßt on the obligations deposited
undér the Refunding Trust Agfèements *nd; the forecast¢d paymeilts of principal and ìnterest to redeem the
Refunded Bonds, and ¢b) computation ofthe yields on the Series B and Series C Bonds and the obligations
deposited under the related Refunding Trust Agreement was examined by . Such computations were based
solely upon assumptions and information supplied by PFM on behalf of the State. has restricted its

procedures to examining the arithmetical accuracy of certain computations and has not made any study or

evaluation of the assumptions and information upon which the computations are based and, accordingly, has not
expressed an opinion on the datà u#*é.'the reasonableness ofthe assumptions, or the achievability öfthe forecasted
outcome.
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RATINGS

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (Moody's), Standard and Poor's Ratings Services ("Standard and Poor's")
and Fitch Ratings ("Fitch") have given the Bonds ratings of ,

_
and , respectively. Such ratings reflect

only the respective views of such organizations and an explanation ofthe significance of a rating may be obtained
only from the rating agency furnishing the same. There is no assurance that any rating will be maintained for a
given period of time or that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency if in its
judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of ratings may have an adverse
effect on the market price of the Bonds.

LEGAL OPINIONS

The validity ofthe Bonds will be approved by the legal opinion ofHawkins Detafield & Wood LLP, New
York, New York, Bond Counsel to the State. For the proposed form of Bond Counsel opinion relating to the
Bonds, see Appendix C. Certain legal matters will be passed upon by the Attorney General and Reporter of the
State of Tennessee, as counsel to the State Funding Board. No representation is made to the holders of the Bonds
that any such counsel have verified the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements in this Official
Statement, and such counsel assume no responsibility to the holders of the Bonds except for the matters that will
be set forth in their respective opinions.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The State has authorized the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking") with respect to the
· Bonds to assist in complying with U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) (the "Rule").
The Undertaking will be for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds, and beneficial owners will be third-party
beneficiaries thereof. The form of the Undertaking is included herein as Appendix E.

The State has not failed to comply in any material respect with any previous undertaking in a written
contract or agreement specified in the Rule, during the preceding five years, except as follows. The State filed
audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2010 later than the time
prescribed by certain previous continuing disclosure undertakings, as a result of its implementation of new
financial software. The continuing disclosure undertakings requiring the filings for those years in the first instance
contemplated the delay, and event notices related to the delayed posting ofaudited financial statements were timely
filed on EMMA in each year. Rating downgrades on the insurer of several maturities of one series of its general
obligation bonds (such series was issued in 2003 and by August 1,2011 all maturities of such series had either
been refunded or had matured) were not the subject ofmaterial event notices due, in part, to the lack of any direct
notification to the State of the specific rating impact on such bonds. Finally, the material event notice with respect
to the 2010 recalibration ofthe State's credit rating by Fitch was filed 17 days after the Fitch rating recalibration.
The State believes that this filing was timely under the terms of its then-effective continuing disclosure agreements,
which required that materia[ event filings be made promptly (the Rule was subsequently amended to impose a 10-
day window for filing notices ofmaterial events related to credit rating changes).

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements contained in this Official Statement, and in any other information provided that are not

purely historic, are forward-looking statements, including statements regarding the expectations, hopes, intentions,
or strategies regarding the future.

Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements
included in this Official Statement are based on information available on the date hereof, and assumes no obligation
to update any such forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements herein are necessarily based on various assumptions and estimates and
are inherently subject to various risks and uncertainties, including risks and uncertainties relating to the possib[e
invalidity of the underlying assumptions and estimates and possible changes or developments in social, economic,
business, industry, market, legal and regulatory circumstances and conditions and actions taken or omitted to be

45



taken by third parties, including customers, suppliers, business partners and competitors, and legislative, judicial
and other governmental authorities and officials. Assumptions related to the foregoing involve judgments with
respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive, and market conditions and future business and policy
decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and, therefore, there can be no assurance

that the forward-looking statements included in this Official Statement would prove to be accurate.

MISCELLANEOUS

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not
expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representatives of fact. No representation is made that such
statements will be realized.

All financial and other information presented in this Official Statement has been provided by the State
from its records, except for information expressly attributed to other sources. The presentation of information,
including tables of receipts from taxes and other revenues, is intended to show recent historic information, and it
is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends in the financial position or other affairs of the State. No
representation is made that past experience, as it might be shown by such financial and other information, will
necessarily continue or be repeated in the future.

References to and summaries of provisions of the State Constitution and laws of the State or of any other
documents referred to in this Official Statement are qualified in their entirety by reference to the complete
provisions thereof.

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the State and the
purchasers or holders ofany of the Bonds.

STATE OF TENNESSEE

BV:
Comptroller ofthe Treasury;
Secretary ofthe Funding Board of
the State ofTennessee
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APPENDIX A

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Comprehensive Annual Financia[ Report ("CAFR") of the State, inc[uding the audited Basic Financial
Statements, for the fiscal year ended June 30,2014 has been filed with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through
its E[ectronic Municipal Market Access ("EMMA") system (see "Continuing Disclosure" and Appendix E) and is obtainable
from them in accordance with their procedures. A printed version is also available upon request to the State Funding Board,
James K. Polk State Office Building, Suite 1600,505 Deaderick Street, Nashville, Tennessee 37243-1402, telephone (615)
401-7872, fax (615) 741-5986. The 2014 CAFR and certain prior year CAFRs are posted on the State's website at

http://www.tennessee.gov/finance/article/fa-accfin-cafr.
The following reports, each ofwhich are included in the 2014 CAFR and have been posted on the State's website,

are incorporated herein by reference:
Auditor's Report
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement ofNet Position
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet-Governmenta[ Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement ofActivities

Statement ofNet Position-Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows-Propriety Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position-Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position-Fiduciary Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information:
Infrastructure Assets Reported Using the Modified Approach
Other Post-Employment Benefits Schedule of Funding Progress - Primary Government

Other Post-Employment Benefits Schedu[e ofFunding Progress - Component Units
Pension Schedule of Funding Progress - Primary Government
Pension Schedule of Funding Progress - Component Units
Ten-Year Claims Development Tab[e - Access TN Insurance Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and Actua[ Major
Governmental Funds

Note to RSI
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APPENDIX B

STATISTICAL SECTION

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") of the State, including selected statistical data (unaudited),
for the fiscal year ended June 30,2014 has been filed with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through its Electronic
Municipal Market Access ("EMMA") system (see "Continuing Disclosure" and Appendix E) and is obtainable from them in
accordance with their procedures. A printed version is also available upon request to the State Funding Board, James K. Polk
State Office Building, Suite 1600,505 Deaderick Street, Nashville, Tennessee 37243-1402, telephone (615) 401-7872, fax
(615) 741-5986. The 2013 CAFR and certain prior year CAFRs are posted on the State's website at
http:Uwww.tennessee.gov/finance/article/fa-accfin-cafr.

The fo[Iowing statistical data, all ofwhich is included in the 2014 CAFR and has been posted on the State's website,
is incorporated herein by reference:

Financial '1'rends
Revenue Capacity
Debt Capacity
Demographic and Economic Information

Operating Information

Component Units
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APPEND[X C

FORM OF PROPOSED OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

[Closing Datei
The Honorable Governor and Members of
the Funding Board of the State ofTennessee
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGAT[ON BONDS

2015 SERIES A, $_
2015 REFUNDING SERIES BS *

2015 SERIES C (FEDERALLY TAXABLE), $ *

Dear Sirs:
At your request we have examined into the validity of $_* General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series A

(the "Series A Bonds"), $_* General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Refunding Series B (the "Series B Bonds"), and
$_* General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series C (federally Taxable) (the "Series C Bonds" and, collectively with
the Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds, the "Bonds") of the State of Tennessee (the "State"). The Bonds are

dated as ofthe date hereof, and mature, are subject to redemption prior to maturity, are payable and bear interest,
all as provided in the resolution of the Funding Board hereinafter mentioned.

The Bonds recite that they are issued under and pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution
and laws of the State, including specifical[y Title 9, Chaþter 9, Tennessee Code Annotated, various Public Acts
of the General Assembly of the State of Tennessee, and a resolution adopted by the Funding Board of the State
of Tennessee on_, 2015, in the case ofthe Series A Bonds, for the public purposes ofvarious State departments
and institutions and to provide for the retirement at maturity of certain of the State's general obligation bond
anticipation notes constituting commercial paper heretofore issued for such purposes, and in the case of the
Series B Bonds and Series C Bonds, to refund certain outstanding general obligation bonds of the State.

We have examined the Constitution and statutes of the State; certified copies of proceedings of the
Funding Board of the State of Tennessee and Public Acts of the General Assembly of the State of Tennessee
authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, and an executed Bond of each series, and have made such other
examination of law and fact, as we have considered appropriate for purposes ofthis opinion letter.

Based on the foregoing, we are of the opinion that:

(1) The Bonds have been authorized and issued in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the
State, and constitute valid direct general obligations of the State for the payment of the principal ofand premium,
if any, and interest on which there is also pledged the full faith and credit of the State. The State has not generally
waived immunity from suit or extended its consent to be sued, and monetary actions against the State for breach
of contractual obligations may be heard and determined under current law exclusively in the Tennessee Claims
Commission, an administrative tribunal, where the State may be liable on[y for actual damages and certain costs.

(2) Under existing statutes and court decisions, (i) interest on the Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds is
excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and (ii) interest on the Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds is not treated as a

preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations under the Code;
such interest, however, is included in the adjusted current earnings ofcertain corporations for purposes ofcalculating
the alternative minimum tax imposed on such corporations. In rendering the opinions in this paragraph (2), we have
relied on certain representations, certifications of fact, and statements of reasonable expectations made by the State
and others in connection with the Series A and Series B Bonds, and have assumed compliance by the State with certain
ongoing covenants to comply with applicable requirements ofthe Code to assure the exclusion ofthe interest on the

Subject to change
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Series A and Series B Bonds from gross income under Section 103 ofthe Code. Underthe Code, noncompliance with
such requirements may cause the interest on the Series A and Series B Bonds to be included in gross income for
Federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance thereof, irrespective of the date on which such
noncompliance occurs or is discovered.

(3) Interest on the Series C Bonds is included in gross income for Federal income tax purposes.

(4) Under the existing laws of the State, the principal ofand interest on the Bonds are exempt from taxation
by the State or by any county, municipality or taxing district ofthe State, except for inheritance, transfer and estate
taxes and except to the extent such interest may be included within the measure ofprivilege taxes imposed pursuant
to the laws ofthe State.

The opinions expressed in paragraph (1) above are subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium and other laws heretofore or hereafter enacted affecting creditors' rights, and are subject
to the application ofprinciples of equity relating to or affecting the enforcement of contractual obligations, whether
such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

We express no opinion herein as to (i) Federa[, state or local tax consequences arising with respect to the
Bonds, or the ownership or disposition thereof, except as stated in paragraphs (2) (3) and (4) above, (ii) the effect of
any action taken or not taken, in reliance upon an opinion of other counsel, on the exclusion from gross income for
Federal income tax purposes of interest on the Series A and Series B Bonds, or under state or local tax law, or (iíi) the
accuracy, adequacy, sufficiency or completeness of the Official Statement dated , 2015 (or any update or

amendment thereofor supplement thereto) relating to the Bonds, or any other financial or other information which
has been or may be supplied to purchasers or prospective purchasers ofthe Bonds.

This opinion letter is rendered solely with regard to the matters expressly opined on above and does not
consider or extend to any documents, agreements, representations or other material or matters of any kind not
specifically opined on above. No other opinions are intended nor should they be inferred.

This opinion letter is issued as ofthe date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update, revise or supplement
this letter to reflect any action hereafter taken or not taken, or any facts or circumstances, or changes in law or in
interpretations thereof, that may hereafter occur, or for any other reason.

Very truly yours,
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APPENDIX D

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The
Bonds will be issued as fully-registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such
other name as may be requested by an authorized representative ofDTC. One fu[[y-registered Bond certificate will be issued
for each maturity of each series of the Bonds bearing interest at each interest rate, each in the aggregate principal amount of
such maturity bearing interest at such rate, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the wor[d's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking
Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System,
a "clearing corporation" within the meaning ofthe New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing
for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market
instruments from over 100 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates
the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities through
electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for
physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities
Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, a[1 ofwhich are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned
by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-

U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a

custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirect[y ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has a Standard &
Poor's rating ofAA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a

credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest ofeach actual purchaser ofeach Bond ("Beneficial Owner")
is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participant's records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written
confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations
providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be
accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use
of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of
DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
The deposit of the Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co or such other nominee do not effect any
change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge ofthe actual Beneficial Owners ofthe Bonds; DTC's records reflect
only the identity ofthe Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial
Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants wil[ remain responsible for keeping account of their holding on behalfof their
customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners wi[1 be governed by arrangements
among them, subject to any statutory and regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners
of the Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect
to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example,
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to
obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and
addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than a] [ of the Bonds of a maturity are being redeemed, DTC's
practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds unless
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus
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Proxy to the State as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached
to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested
by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of
funds and corresponding detai[ information from the State or any Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their
respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing
instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or

registered in "street name", and wi[1 be the responsibility ofsuch Participant and not ofDTC or the State or any Paying Agent,
subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal and interest
to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of
the State or any Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility ofDirect or Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the State. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities depository is not obtained,
Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The State may decide to discontinue use ofthe system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities
depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be prepared and delivered to DTC.

THE FOREGOING [NFORMATION CONCERNING DTC AND DTC'S BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM HAS BEEN
OBTAINED FROM DTC, A SOURCE THAT STATE BELIEVES TO BE RELIABLE, BUT THE STATE TAKES NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY THEREOF. NEITHERTHE STATE, THEUNDERWRITERS, NOR THE PAYING
AGENT AND REGISTRAR CAN MAKE ANY ASSURANCE THAT DTC OR THE DTC PARTICIPANTS WILL ACT IN A
MANNER DESCRIBED HEREIN, NOR WILL THEY HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO THE DTC
PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS FOR (1) SENDING TRANSACTION STATEMENTS; (2) MAINTAINING,
SUPERVISING OR REVIEWING, THE ACCURACY OF, ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY DTC
PARTICIPANT; (3) PAYMENT OR THE TIMELINESS OF PAYMENT BY DTC, ANY DIRECT DTC PARTICIPANT, OR
ANY INDIRECT DTC PARTICIPANT TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY AMOUNT DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL
OWNER IN RESPECT TO THE PRINCIPAL OR REDEMPTION PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON BONDS; (4)
DELIVERY OR TIMELY DELIVERY BY DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY
NOTICE (INCLUDING NOTICE OF REDEMPTION) OR OTHER COMMUNICATIONS TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER
WHICH IS REQU[RED OR PERMITTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE BOND DOCUMENTS TO BE GIVEN TO
BONDHOLDERS; (5) THE SELECTION OF THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF
ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF BONDS; OR (6) ANY ACTION TAKEN BY DTC OR ITS NOMINEE AS THE
REG[STERED OWNER OF THE BONDS.

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owners ofthe Bonds, as nominee for DTC, references in the Official Statement
to the Bondholders or registered owners of the Bonds (other than under the caption "Tax Matters" in the Official Statement)
shall mean Cede & Co. or any other DTC nominee, as aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.
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APPENDIX E

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking") is dated and made as of , 2015 by the State of
Tennessee (the "State") in connection with the issuance ofthe State's $ aggregate principal amount ofGeneral Obligation
Bonds, 2015 Series A, $ aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Refunding Series B, and$-
aggregate principal amount of Genera[ Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series C (Federally Taxable) (co[]ectively, the "Bonds"). As
authorized by Section 10 of the resolution (the "Bond Resolution") of the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee (the
"Funding Board") adopted on , 2015 authorizing the Bonds, the State agrees as follows:

ARTICLE I
Definitions

Section 1.1. Deñnittøns. The following terms used in this Undertaking shall have the following respective meanings:
(1) "Annual Financial Information" means (i) updated versions of the following financial information and operating

data contained in, or incorporated by reference pursuant to an Appendix to, the Official Statement with respect to the State,
for each fiscal year ofthe State:

Special Tax Collections
Total Sales and Use Tax Collections
Allocation of Sales and Use Tax to Debt Service

Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness
Long-Term General Obligation Bonded Debt Service by Fiscal Year and Maturity
Maximum and Actual Principa[ Amounts ofCommercial Paper Outstanding
Other Post-Employment Benefits

Unfunded Actuarial Liability
Annual Required Contribution 1

Rainy Day Fund Reserve Balance
TennCare Budget Growth
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System

Statistica[,data
Tables

Debt of Certain Agencies and Authorities
Tennessee Local Development Authority
Tennessee State School Bond Authority
Tennessee Housing Development Agency
Watkins Institute
State Veterans' Homes Board

and (ii) the information regarding amendments to this U#d¢Asking required pursuant to Sections 4.2(c) and (d) of
this Undertaking. Annual Financial Information shall include Addtted Financial Statëments, if avàßàble, or Unaudited
Financia[ Statements.

The descriptions contaiáed in cläuse (i) above of financial information and operating data constituting Annual
Financia[ information are ofgeneral categorîes or types of financial information and operating data. When such descriptions
inc[ude information that no longer can be generated because the operations to which it related have been materially changed
or discontinued, a statement to that effect shall be provided in lieu of such information.

(2) "Audited Financial Statements" means the annual financial statements of the State, audited by the Comptroller
of the Treasury, Division of State Audit, as now required by State law (or such other auditor as hereafter may be required or

permitted by State law). Audited Financial Statements shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP.
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(3) "Counsel" means Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP or other nationally recognized bond counsel or counsel expert
in federal securities laws, in each case acceptable to the State.

(4) "EMMA" means the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access system or its successor

(5) "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles for governmental units as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or any successor to the duties and
responsibilities of either of them.

(6) "MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established pursuant to the provisions of Section
15B(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any successor to the MSRB or the functions of the MSRB
contemplated by this Undertaking.

(7) "Notice Event" means any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies;
(ii) non-payment related defaults, ifmaterial;

(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(vi) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service ofproposed or final determinations oftaxability,
Notices ofProposed Issue (IRS Form 701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax
status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status ofthe Bonds;

(vîi) modifications to rights ofBondholders, ifmaterial;

(viii) bond calls, ifmaterial, and tender offers;

(ix) defeasances;

(x) release, substitution, or sa[e ofproperty securing repayment ofthe Bonds, ifmaterial;

(xi) rating changes;

(xii) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event ofthe State;

(Note to clause (xii): For the purposes ofthe event identified in clause (xii) above, the event is considered to occur

when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the State in a

proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court
or government authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all ofthe assets or business ofthe State, or if
such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession
but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry ofan order confirming
a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or

jurisdiction over substantially all ofthe assets or business ofthe State.)

(xiii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the State or the sale of a[1 or substantially
all of the assets of the State, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to
undertake such action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant
to its terms, ifmaterial; and

(xiv) appointment ofa successor or additional trustee or the change ofname ofa trustee, if material.

(8) "Notice Event Notice" means notice of a Notice Event.

(9) "Official Statement" means the Official Statement dated , 2015 ofthe State relating to the Bonds.

E-2



(10) "Rule" means Rule 1 5c2-12 promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ( 17 CFR Part
240, §240.15c2-12), as in effect on the effective date hereof, including any officia[ interpretations thereof.

(11) "SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

(12) "Unaudited Financial Statements" means the same as Audited Financial Statements, except that they shall not
have been audited.

ARTICLE II
The Undertaking

Section 2.1. ej®pose. This Undertaking is being executed, delivered and made solely to assist the underwriters of
the Bonds in complying with subsection (b)(5) ofthe Rule.

Section 2.2. Annual Financial Inførmation. (a) The State sha[1 provide Annual Financial Information with respect
to each fiscal year of the State, commencing with the fiscal year ending June 30,2015, by no later than 7 months after the
end of the respective fiscal year, to the MSRB.

(b) The State shall provide, in a timely manner, notice of any fai[ure of the State to provide the Annual
Financial Information by the date specified in subsection (a) above to the MSRB.

Section 2.3. Audited Financial Statements. If not provided as part of Annual Financial Information by the date

required by Section 2.2(a) hereof because not available, the State shall provide Audited Financial Statements, when and if
available, to the MSRB.

Section 2.4, Notice Events. (a) Ifa Notice Event occurs, the State shall provide, in a timely manner not in excess

of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of such Notice Event, a Notice Event Notice to the MSRB.

(b) Any such notice of a defeasance of Bonds shall state whether the Bonds have been escrowed to maturity
or to an earlier redemption date and the timing of such maturity or redemption.

Section 2.5. Additional Disclosure Obligations. The State acknowledges and understands that other State and federal
laws, including but not limited to the Securities Act of 1933 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, may apply to the State and that, under some circumstances, additional disclosures or other action in addition to those
required by this Undertaking may be required to enable the State to fully discharge all of its duties and obligations under such
laws.

Section 2.6. Additional Information, Nothing in this Undertaking shall be deemed to prevent the State from

disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Undertaking or any other means of
communication, or including any other information in any Annual Financial Information or Notice Event Notice, in addition
to that which is required by this Undertaking. If the State chooses to do so, the State shall have no obligation under this

Undertaking to update such additional information or include it in any future Annual Financial Information or Notice Event
Notice.

ARTICLE III
Oneratine Rules

Section 3.1. Reference to Other Documents. It shall be sufficient for purposes of Section 2.2 hereof if the State

provides Annual Financia[ [nformation by specific reference to documents (i) available to the public on the MSRB Internet
Web site (currently, www.emma.msrb.org) or (ii) filed with the SEC. The provisions of this Section shall not apply to Notice
Event Notices pursuant to Section 2.4 hereof.

Section 3.2. Submission øf Information. Annual Financial Informationmay be provided in one document ormultiple
documents, and at one time or in part from time to time.

Section 3.3. Filing with Certain Dissemination Agients or Condüits. The State may from time to time designate an

agent to act on its behalf in providing or filing notices, documents and information as required of the State under this
Undertaking, and revoke or modify any such designation.

Section 3.4. Transmission ofNotices. Documents and Information. (a) Unless otherwise required by the MSRB,
al[ notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB shall be provided to EMMA, the current Internet Web address
ofwhich is www.emma.msrb.org.

(b) All notices, doeumentsand information provided to the MSRB shall be provided in an electronic format
as prescribedbý the MSRB (ëltrrentlý,ØQ#**ble:dèéumcnt fbfmm (pdf) whichmüšt beword searchable except for non-textual
elements) and shall be a©conlpanied-by îdentî*ing infofmatton as prescribed by the MSRB.
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Section 3.5. Fiscal Year. (a) The State's current fiscal year is July 1 - June 30. The State shall promptly notify the
MSRB of each change in its fiscal year.

(b) The State shall provide Annua[ Financial Information at least annually notwithstanding any fiscal year
longer than 12 calendar months.

ARTICLE IV
Effective Date, Termination, Amendment and Enforcement

Section 4.1. Effective Date: Termination. (a) This Undertaking shall be effective upon the issuance of the Bonds.

(b) The State's obligations under this Undertaking shall terminate with respect to each Bond upon the lega[
defeasance, prior redemption or payment in ful[ ofsuch Bond.

(c) This Undertaking, or any provision hereof, shall be null and void in the event that the State (1) receives
an opinion of Counsel to the effect that those portions ofthe Rule which require this Undertaking, or such provision, as the
case may be, do not or no longer apply to the Bonds, whether because such portions of the Rule are invalid, have been
repealed, or otherwise, as shall be specified in such opinion, and (2) delivers copies ofsuch opiniun tu tlte MSRB.

Section 4.2. Amendment. (a) This Undertaking may be amended without the consent of the holders ofthe Bonds,
if all ofthe following conditions are satisfied: (1) such amendment is made in connection with a change in circumstances that
arises from a change in legal (including regulatory) requirements, a change in law (including rules and regulations) or in
interpretations thereof, or a change in the identity, nature or status of the State or the type of business conducted thereby, (2)
this Undertaking as so amended would have complied with the requirements of the Rule as of the date hereof, after taking
into account any amendments or interpretations ofthe Rule, as well as any change in circumstances, (3) the State shall have
received an opinion of Counsel to the same effect as set forth in clause (2) above, (4) the State shall have received either an
opinion of Counsel or a determination by a person, in each case unaffiliated with the State, to the effect that the amendment

11 have delivered copiesUOES Ilot îîlaßl l,ltly mipcul lilç m?,9,„ Ul &11& liviuw. Vl ?li. uut..,icuiuil?5 Uvllu., Ltllu ?j -lv Ut-.v .l,Ul

ofsuch opinion(s) and amendment to the MSRB.

(b) This Undertaking may be amended without the consent ofthe holders ofthe Bonds ifall ofthe following
conditions are satisfied: (1) an amendment to the Rule is adopted, or a new or modified official interpretation of the Rule is
issued, after the effective date hereofwhich is applicable to this Undertaking, (2) íhe State shall have received an opinion of
Counse[ to the effect that performance by the State under this Undertaking as so amended will not result in a violation of the
Rule as so amended or officially interpreted and (3) the State shall have delivered copies of such opinion and amendment to
the MSRB.

(c)To the extent any amendmenttô this Undertaking results in a change in the categories or types of financiai
information or operating data provided pursuant to this Undertaking, the first Annual Financial Information provided
thereafter shall include a narrative explanation ofthe reasons for the amendment and the i,npact of the change in the type of
operating data or financia[ information being provided.

(d) If an amendment is made pursuant to Section 4.2(a) hereof to the accounting principles to be followed
by the State in preparing its financial statements, the Annual Financial Information for the fisca[ year in which the change is
made shall present a comparison between the financial statements or infomiation prepared on tile basis ofthe new accounting
principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. Such comparison shal! include a qualitative
and, to the extent reasonably feasible, quantitative discussion ofthe differences in the accounting principles and the impact
of the change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financia[ information.

Section 4.3. Contract: Benefit: Third-Party Beneficiaries: Enforcement. (a) The provisions of this Undertaking
sha[1 constitute a contract with and inure solely to the benefit of the holders from time to time of the Bonds, except that
beneficial owners of Bonds shall be third-party beneficiaries ofthis Undertaking and shall be deemed to be holders ofBonds
for purposes ofSection 4.3(b) hereof. The provisions of this Undertaking shall create no rights in any person or entity except
as provided in this subsection (a).

(b) The obligations of the State to comply with the provisions of this Undertaking shall be enforceable by
any holder of outstanding Bonds: however, the holders' rights to enforce the provisions ofthis Undertaking shall be limited
sole[y to a right, by action in mandamus or for specific performance, to compel performance of the State's obligations under
this Undertaking.

(c) Any failure by the State to perform in accordance with this Undertaking shall not constitute a default or
an event of defauh under the Bond Resolution or State law and shall not result in any acceleration ofpayment ofthe Bonds,
and the rights and remedies provided by the Bond Resolution and applicable State law upon the occurrence ofsuch a default
or an event ofdefault shal[ not apply to any such failure.

(d) This Undertaking shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State, and
any suits and actions arising out of this Undertaking shall be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State;
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provided, however, that to the extent this Undertaking addresses matters of federal securities laws, including the Rule, this
Undertaking shall be construed in accordance with such federal securities laws and official interpretations thereof.

Section 4.4. Effective Date. This Undertaking shall be effective upon the issuance and delivery by the State of the
Bonds.

STATE OF TENNESSEE
By:

Sandra Thompson
Assistant Secretary, Funding Board
ofthe State ofTennessee, and

Director, Office ofState and Local Finance,
State ofTennessee
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

$111,065,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2014 SERIES A

$79,160,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2014 REFUNDING SERIES B

»ONDPURCHASE AGREEMENT

July 17,2014

The Funding Board ofthe State ofTennessee
Nashville, Tennessee

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Morgan Stanley & Co, LLC (the "Representative"), on behalf of itself and the other underwriters
listed in Appendix I attached hereto (collectively, the "Underwriters"), hereby offers to enter into this
Bond Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") with the State of Tennessee (the "Issuei ) for the
purchase by the Underwriters and the sale by the Issuer ofthe Issuer's general obligation bonds specified
below. This offer is made subject to acceptance thereof by the Issuer prior to 6:00 p.m., prevailing time
in Nashville, Tennessee, on the date hereof, and, upon such acceptance, evidenced by the signature of a
duly authorized officer ofthe Issuer in the space provided below, this Purchase Agreement shall be in full
force and effect in accoidance with its terms and shall be a valid contractual obligation of the Issuer and
binding upon the Underwriters.

A. Purchase Price.

1. Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the representations and warranties
herein set forth, the Underwriters hereby agree to purchase from the Issuer, and the Issuer
hereby agrees to sell to the Underwriters all, but not less than all, of the Issuer's (i)

1

General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series A, in the original aggregate principal amount of
$111,065,000.00 (the "2014 Series A Bonds"), at an aggregate purchase pi ice of
$130,171,390,81 (the "2014 Series A Purchase Price"), representing the aggregate
principal amount of the 2014 Series A Bonds, plus a leoffei ing premium of
$19,230,254.55, less Underwriters' discount of $123,863.74 and (ìi) General Obligation
Bonds, 2014 Refunding Series B, iii the original aggregate principal amount of
$79,160,000.00 (the "2014 Series B Bonds" and, together with the 2014 Series A Bonds,
the "Bonds"), at an aggregate purchase price of $95,459,034.95 (the "2014 Series B
Purchase Price" and, together with the 2014 Series A Purchase Price, the "Purchase
Price"), representing the aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Series B Bonds, plus a

Jreoffering premium of $16,390,603.25, less Underwriters' discount of $91,568.30. The
Bonds shall mature on the dates and shall bear interest fi·om their dated date at the rates
and shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth iii the Official Statement
(hereinafter defined) and on Appendix II attached hereto. The Bonds shall be payable at
the times and iii the manner, and shall otherwise have the terms and provisions, set forth
iii the Official Statement.

2. If the Issuer accepts this offer and if the Underwriters fail (other than for a i'eason

permitted hereunder) to accept and pay for the Bonds upon tender thereof by the Issuer in

1



I I

compliance with the provisions of this Purchase Agreement at the Closing (as defined 1

below), the parties hereby agree that the damages to the Issuer shall be fixed at one
percent (1%) of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, and, upon such failure of 1I

the Underwriters to accept and pay for the Bonds, the Underwriters shall be obligated to
pay to the Issuer such amount as and for full liquidated damages for such failure and for
any and all defau[ts hereunder on the part ofthe Underwriters, Upon such payment, the
Underwriters shall be fully released and discharged ofall claims, rights and damages for
such failure and for any and all such defaults. In no event shall the Issuer be entitled to 11
damages of any nature other than the liquidated damages herein specified for such failure. 11.

B. Détivøryofãtídl.*¥ment li?r theBénds.

1, At or prior to 11:30 a,m„ prevailing time in Nashvillø, Tennessee on August 19, 2014,
the date of delivery and payment for thc Bonds (thc "Closing Date"), or ût suoh other
time or date as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the Issuer and the
Representative, the Issuer will deliver or cause to be delivered to the Representative, the
Bonds, qualified for book-entry delivery through The Depository Trust Company
("DTC") in New York, New York, in definitive form, du ly executed by officers of the
Issuer designated in the Resolution (as defined herein), together with the other documents
hereinafter mentioned; anu, subject to the conditions contained herein, the Representative
will accept such delivery and pay the Purchase Price by wire transfer of immediately
available funds payable to the order ofthe Issuer,

11
2. The Issuer and the Representative agree that there shall be a preliminary closing held at

the Office of State and Local Finance of the State of Tennessee, 505 Deaderick Street,
Suite 1600, Nashville, Tennessee, commencing at least 10 hours prior to the Closing 1
Date, or at such other time or place as the Issuer and the Representative shall agree.

3. Delivery of the definitive Bonds as aforesaid shall be made at the offices of DTC iii New
York, New York, or at such other location as may be designated by the Representative at 1

least one business day prior to the Closing Date, Payment for the Bonds shall be made as .Il
set forth in Section B.1.hereof, The delivery of the other documents sha[1 be made at the i'

Office of State and Local Finance of the State of Tennessee or at the offices of the 1[
Attorney General of the State of Tennessee ("Counsel to the Issuer"), John Sevier
Building, 425 Fifth Avenue North, Nashville, Tennessee. Such payment and the related
delivery are herein called the "Closing." The Bonds will be delivered as fully-registered
bonds, bearing proper CUSIP numbers, and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as
nominee of DTC, which will act as securities depository for the Bonds,

4. After execution by the Issuer, the Bonds shall be held in safe custody at DTC. The Issuer
shall release or authorize the release of the Bonds from safe custody at the Closing upon
receipt of payment for the Bonds as aforesaid.

C, Official Statement.

1. Prior to the date hereof, the Issuer has provided to the Underwriters for their leview the
preliminary official statement dated July 10,2014, as revised on July 11,2014 to include
ratings (the "Preliminary Official Statement"), The Issuer hereby represents and warrants
that the Preliminary Official Statement previously furnished to the Representative was

"deemed final" by the Issuer as of the date of its July 11 revision for purposes of Rule
1502-12 ("Rule 15c2-12") promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Comm ission of
the United States (the "SEC") under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the "Exchange Act") except for the omission of such information as is permitted in Rule

2



%1.

15c2-12, The Issuer hereby consents to and confirms the prior use by the Underwi iters of
the Preliminary Official Statement delivered to the Underwriters and made available on

the Internet at www. i-dealprospectus.com in connection with the public offering of the
Bonds by the Underwriters, and further confirms the authority of the Underwriters to use,
and consents to the use of, a final Official Statement (in printed or electronic form) with
respect to the Bonds, to be dated the date hereof, and any amendments or supplements
thei'eto that shall be approved by the Issuer (as so amended and supplemented, tile
"Official Statement") in connection with the public offering, and sale of the Bonds,

2. The Issuer shall provide, or cause to be provided, to the Underwriters as soon as

practicable after the acceptance of this Purchase Agreement and in any event no later than
seven business days after the date of this Purchase Agreement, 50 copies of the final
Official Statement which the Underwriters agree is an amount sufficient to permit the
Underwriters to complywith Rule 1502-12, and other applicable rules ofthe SEC and the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB"). The Issuer shall further cause
the Official Statement to be posted on www.i-dealprospectus.com for the longer of thirty
(30) days or the End ofthe Underwriting Period as defined herein.

3. The Issuer hereby authorizes the Representative to file, and the Representative hereby
agrees to file, the Official Statement with the MSRB through the operation of the
Electronic Municipa[ Market Access System ("EMMA") within one business day after
receipt from the Issuer, but by no later than the Closing Date (as defined herein), in such
manner and accompanied by such forms as are required by the MSRB, in accordance
with applicable MSRB Rules, and shall maintain such books and records as required by
MSRB Rules with respect to filing of the Official Statement.

D, Amendments to Official Statement The Issuer covenants with the Underwriters to notify
promptly the Representative if, during the Update Period (as defined iii H,3,), any event shall
occur that would cause the Official Statement to contain, or information shall come to the
attention of the Issuer that is reasonably likely to cause the Official Statement (whether or not
pieviously supplemented or amended) to contain, any untrue statement of a material fact or to
om it to state a material fact necessary to make the statements thei'ein, iii the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not m isleading, and if in the opinion of the
Underwriters such event requires the preparation and distribution of a supplement or amendment
to the Official Statement, to prepare and furnish to the Underwriters, at the Issuer's expense, such
number of copies of the supplement or amendment to the Official Statement, ill form and
substance mutually agreed upon by the Issuer and approved by the Underwriters, as the
Underwriters may reasonably request to comply with Rule 15c2-12 and if such notification shall
be given subsequent to the Closing Date, such additional legal opinions, certificates, instruments, Il 11
and other documents as the Underwriters may reasonably deem necessary to evidence the truth I.I

and accuracy of any such supplement or amendment to the Official Statement. Iï. 11
E. Public Offbring. The Underwriters agree to make a bona fide initial offering to the public

(excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of
underwriters or wholesalers) ofall ofthe Bonds at initial offering prices not greater than or yields I,1
not lower than those shown on the inside cover of the Official Statement. The Bonds may be 1

offered and sold to certain dealers (including dealers depositing such Bonds into investment
trusts) at prices lower than such initial public offering prices in the sole discretion of the
Underwriters. Subsequent to such initial public offering, the Underwriters reserve the light to
change the initia[ offering prices as they may deem necessary in connection with the marketing of
the Bonds and over-allot or effect transactions that stabilize or maintain the market prices of the
Bonds at levels above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market and to discontinue
such stabilizing, ifcommenced, at any time.

3
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F. 8*d öf· thidà•¢ttih*- Pöíied. For purposes of this Purchase Agreement, tlie "End of the
Underwriting Pettod" shall mean the earlier of the Closing Date, unless the Issuer has been
notified to the contrary by the Representative on or prior to the Closing Date, or the date on
which the "end ofthe underwriting period" for the Bonds has occurrçd under Rule 15c2-12, The
Representative shall notify the Issuer when the "end of the underwriting period" for the Bonds
has occurred under Rule 1502-12 with respect to the unsold balance of bonds that are held by any
of the Underwriters for sale to the public within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12,

G. ManfofFinancbwf.
The Bonds shall be as described iii, and shall be issued under and secured pursuant to the
provisions of, a resolution adopted by the Funding Board of the Issuer on June 18, 2014
including as a part thereof a Series Certificate (collectively, the "Resolution"ì
substantially in the form delivered to the Representative, with only such changes to the
Resolution as shall be mutually agreed upon between the Issuer and the Representative
prior to Closing.

2. The net proceeds from the sale of the 2014 Series A Bonds wil[ be applied to the: (i)
funding of certain capital projects ofthe Issuer; (ii) retirement at maturity of a portion of
the Issuer's outstanding commercial paper issued to fund certain capital projects of the
Issuer; and (ili) payment of certain costs of issuance ofthe 2014 Series A Bonds.

3. The net proceeds from the sale of the 2014 Series B Bonds will be applied to the: (i)
refunding of the Issuer's outstanding General Obligation Bonds, 2008 Series A, dated
September 1,2008, maturing September 1,2025 through September 1,2028, inclusive,
and General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series C, dated December 16, 2009, maturing May
1, 2026 through May 1, 2030, inclusive (collectively, the "Refunded Bonds"); and (ii)
payment ofcertain costs of issuance ofthe 2014 Series B Bonds.

4. In connection with the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, the Issuer will enter into a

Refunding Trust Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date (the "Refunding Trust
Agreement") with Regions Bank, Nashville, Tennessee, as refunding trustee, for the
benefit ofthe holders of the Refunded Bonds.

I-I. Reprøãentattøns andWarm*ics ofthe Issuer.
The Issuer hereby agrees with, and makes the following representations and warranties to the
Underwriters, as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, which representations and
warranties shall survive the Closing:
1. The Issuer is authorized by the Constitution and statutes of the State of Tennessee to: (i)

to issue the Bonds for the purposes set forth in the Resolution, (ii) to secure the Bonds in
the manner contemplated in the Reso]ution, and (iii) to execute, deliver and perform its

obligations under the Bonds, the Resolution, the Official Statement, the Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking, to be dated the Closing Date, in substantially the form attached
as Appendix E to the Official Statement (the "Continuing Disclosure Undertaking"), the
Refund ing Trust Agreement and this Purchase Agreement.

2. Tile Issuer, has, and at the Closing Date will have, full legal right, power, and authority
pursuant to the Resolution to execute and deliver the Purchase Agreement, the
Continuing Disçlosure Undertaking and the Refunding Trust Agreement, to issue, sell,
and deliver the Bonds as provided herein, and to carry out and to consuinmate the

4
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transactions contemplated by this Purchase Agreement, the Resolution, the Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement, and the Official Statement.

3. On and as of the date hereof and, unless an event of the nature described iii Section K
hereof subsequently occurs, until the earlier of (i) 90 days from the End of the
Underwriting Period or (ii) the time when the Official Statement is availab[e to any
person from EMMA (but in no case less than 25 days following the End of the
Underwriting Period (the "Update Period")), the information in the Official Statement
with respeçt to the Issuer and its affairs does not and will not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or

necessary to make the statements therein, iii the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading.

4. The Bonds are issued under and pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution
atid laws of the State, including specifically Title 9, Chapter 9, Tennessee Code
Annotated (the "Act"), various Public Acts of the General Assembly of the State of
Tennessee, and the Resolution.

5. By official action of the Issuer prior to or concurrently with the acceptance hereof, the
Issuer has duly authorized and approved the distribution of the Preliminary Official
Statement and the execution, delivery, and distribution of the Official Statement, and has
duly authorized and approved the issuance and sale ofthe Bonds upon the terms set forth
herein and in the Resolution and the Official Statement, and the execution and delivery
of, and the performance by the Issuer of the obligations on its part contained iii, the
Bonds, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust
Agreement and this Purchase Agreement.

6. The Issuer is not in breach of or in default under the Act or any applicable law or

administrative regulation of the State or the United States or any applicable judgment or 1

decree or any loan agreement, note, resolution, agreement, or other instrument to which
the Issuer is a party or is otlieiwise subject or by which it or its properties may be bound, 11
that is material to the issuance, payment or security for the Bonds (a "Material Adverse
Effect"). The issuance and sale of the Bonds upon the terms set forth herein and in the 11
Resolution and the Official Statement, and the execution and delivery by the Issuer of the
Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement and
this Purchase Agreement, and its compliance with the provisions ofeach thereof, will not
conflict with or constitute a material breach of or default under the Act or any law,
administrative regulation, judgment, decree, indenture, loan agreement, note, resolution,
agreement, or other instrument to which the Issuer is a party or is otherwise subject, 1 Il

except for such conflicts, breaches and/or defaults as would not, individually or in the 1
aggregate, result in a Material Adverse Effect.

7, All approvals, consents, and orders of any governmental authority, board, agency, or
commission having jurisdiction that would constitute a condition precedent to the
performance by the Issuer of its obligations under this Purchase Agreement, the issuance II
of the Bonds, and the execution and delivery and performance by the Issuer of the 1

Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, this Purchase Agreement, and the
Refunding Trust Agreement, have been obtained or will be obtained prior to the Closing.

8. The Bonds, when issued, authenticated, and delivered in accoi dance with the Resolution
and sold to the Underwriters as provided herein, will be the valid contractual general
obligations of the Issuer issued in conformity with and entitled to the benefit and security
of the Resolution and for the payment of which, as to both principal and interest, the full
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faith and credit of the State is pledged; and the Bonds shall constitute a charge and lien
upon the entire fees, taxes and other revenues and funds a[Iocated to the general fund, the
debt service fund, and the highway fund and, if necessary, upon the first such fees, taxes,
revenues and funds thereafter received and allocated to such funds, except only such fees,
taxes, revenues and funds as may be otherwise legally restricted and subject to the pledge
of Special Taxes (as defined iiI the Official Statement) to the payment of certain bonds of r

the issuer outstanding on July 1, 2013,

9, The Resolution has been duly adopted by the Issuer. The terms and provisions of the
Resolution comply in all respects with the requirements of the Act, and the Resolution
and, when executed and delivered by the parties thereto, the Continuing Disclosuie
Undertaking and the Refunding Trust Agreement will constitute the valid contractual
obligations of the Issuer, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvenoy, reorganization,
moratorium and other laws heretofore or hereafter enacted affecting creditors' rights, and
to the application of principles of equity relating to or affecting the enforcement of
contractual obligations, whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding iii
equity or at law; and, further, the Issuer has not waived immunity from suit or extended
its consent to be sued, and monetary actions against the Issuer for breach of contractual
obligations may be heard and determined under current law exclusively ill the Tennessee
Claims Commission, an administrative tribunal, where the State may be liable only for
actual damages and certain costs.

10. This Purchase Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered, and
constitutes a valid contractual obligation of the Issuer, subject to applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws heretofore or hereafter enacted
affecting creditors' rights, and to the application of principles of equity relating to or

affecting tile enforcement of contractual obligations, whelher such enforceability is
considered in a proceeding in equity or at [aw; and, further, the Issuer has not waived
immunity from suit or extended its consent to be sued, and monetary actions against the
Issuer for breach of contractual obligations may be heard and determined under current
law exclusively in the Tennessee Claims Commission, an administrative tribunal, where
the State may be liable only for actual damages and certain costs.

11, There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or investigation, at law or in equity, before
or by any court, public board, or body, pending or, to the knowledge of the Issuer,
threatened against the Issuer, affecting the existence of the Issuer or the titles of its
officers to their respective offices or seeking to prohibit, restrain, or enjoin the issuance, 1

sale, or delivery of the Bonds or the collection of the revenues or assets of the Issuer
pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the
Bonds, or the pledge thereof, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the
Bonds, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust

1Agreement or this Purchase Agreement or contesting in any way the completeness or ì'
accuracy of the Prelim inary Official Statement or the Official Statement, or any
amendment or supplement thereto, or contesting the power or authority of the Issuer to
issue the Bonds or to execute and deliver the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement or this Purchase Agreement, or wherein an

unfavorable decision, ruling, or finding would materially adversely affect the validity of
the Bonds, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust
Agreement or this Purchase Agreement.

12. The proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds shall be used iii accordance with the
Act and the Resolution and as set forth herein and in the Preliminary Official Statement
and the Official Statement.
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13. Any certificate signed by an authorized officer of the Issuer and delivered to the
Representative shaíl be deemed a representation and warianty of the Issuer to the
Underwriters as to the accuracy in materia[ respects ofthe statements made therein.

14. The Issuer has entered or will enter into, in accordance with Rule 15c2-12, the
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking iii substantially the form set forth in Appendix E to
the Preliminary Officia] Statement and to the Final Official Statement for the benefit of
bondholders to provide annual financial information and notices of certain events to the
MSRB through EMMA and to the appropriate state information depository, if any.

15. Except as otherwise provided in the Preliminary Official Statement and Official
Statement, the Issuer has complied iii all material respects during the preceding five years
with all previous undertakings in its written continuing disclosure undertakings, contracts
and agreements under Rule 15c2-12,

16. The Preliminary Official Statement, as supplemented and amended through the date
hereof, did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light
of the circumstances under which they were made, notmisleading.

17. At the time of the Issuer's acceptance hereof and (unless the Official Statement is
amended or supplemented pursuant to Section D ofthis Purchase Agreement) at all times
subsequent thereto during the period up to and including the Closing Date, the Official
Statement does not and will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein, in the light ofthe circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

18. If the Official Statement is supplemented or amended pursuant to Section D of this
Purchase Agreement, at the time of each supplement or amendment thereto and (Un[ess
subsequently again supplemented or amended pursuant to such paragraph) at all times
subsequent thereto during the period up to and including the Closing Date, the Official
Statement as so supplemented or amended will not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to
make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which made, not
misleading.

19. The financial statements of, and other finanoial information regarding, the Issuer in the
Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Stateinent fairly present the financial
position and results ofthe Issuer as ofthe dates and for the periods therein set forth. The
financial statements of the Issuer have been prepared iii accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles consistently applied, and except as noted in the
PreliminaryOfficial Statement and in the Official Statement, the other historical financial
information set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement and iii the Official Statement
has been presented on a basis consistent with that of the Issuer's audited financial

4 1
statements included in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement.
Prior to the Closing, the Issuer will not take any action within or under its control that
will cause any adverse change of a material nature in such financial position, results of
operations or condition, financial or otherwise, of the Issuer, Except as described in the
Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement, the Issuer is not a party to
any litigation or other proceeding pending or, to its knowledge, threatened which, if
decided adversejy to the Issuer would have a materiaj adverse effect on the financial
condition ofthe Issuer.
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20. The Issuer will not, prior to the Closing Date, offer or issue any bonds, notes or other
obligations for borrowed money or incur any material liabilities, direct or contingent,
except in the otdinary course ofbusiness, without the prior approval ofthe Underwriters;
provided, however, upon notice to the Underwriters, the Issuer may issue commercial
paper from time to time without the prior approval of the Underwriters.

I. ;Cövenantsçofthe Issuer. The Issuer hereby covenants with the Underwriters that:

1. The Issuer shall not supplement or amend the Official Statement or cause the Official
Statement to be supplemented or amended prior to the end of the Update Period without
the prior written consent ofthe Representative, which will not be uni·easonably withheld,

2. Thc Issuer shall not amend, terminate, or rescind, and will not agree to any amendment
termination, or rescission ofthe Resolution or this Purchase Agreement without the prior
written consent of the Representative prior to the Closing Date, which will not be
uni'easonably withheld.

3. The Issuer shall promptly advise the Replesentative by written notice of any matter
arising or discovered after the date of this Purchase Agreement and prior to the end of the
Update Period that if existing or known at the date hereof would render any of the
representations or warranties set forth herein to be untrue or misleading or might
adversely affect the correctness or completeness of any statement of material fact
regarding the Issuer contained in the Official Statement; or any developments that affect
the accuracy and completeness of the key representations (within the meaning of Rule
1502-12) regarding the Issuer contained in the Official Statement that may occur during
the Update Period.

4. The Issuer will furnish such information and execute such instruments and take such
action in cooperation with the Underwriters, at no expense to the Issuer, as the
Underwriters may reasonably request (a) to (1) qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under
the Blue Sky or other securities laws and regulations of such states and other jurisdictions
iii the United States as the Underwriter may designate and (2) determine the eligibility of
the Bonds for investment under the laws of such states and other jurisdictions, and (b) to
continue such qualifications in effect so [ong as required for the distribution ofthe Bonds

(provided, however, that the Issuer will not be required to qualify as a foreign corporation
or to file any general or special consents to service of process under the laws of any
jurisdiction) and will advise the Undeiwriters immediately of receipt by the Issuer of any
written notification with respect to the suspension of the qualification of the Bonds for
sale iii any jurisdiction or the initiation or threat ofany proceeding for that purpose.

5. The Issuer shall not voluntarily undertake any course of action inconsistent with
satisfaction of the requirements applicable to the Issuer as set forth in this Purchase
Agreement.

j. Certain Conditions to Uhderwriters' Obligations. The Underwriters have entered into this
Purchase Agreement in reliance upon the representations, warranties, and agreements of the
Issuer contained herein and upon the accuracy ofthe statements to be contained in the documents
and instruments to be deíivered at the Closing. A®ordingly, the Underwriters' øbtigations under
this Purtha#eAeementto purchase, acebptdetìve«of, and þay for the Bonds are subject to the
performance by the Issuer of its obligatióñs hereunder required to be performed at or prior to the
Closing Date, and to the following additional conditions precedent:
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1·,: On the Closing Date, the representations and warranties of the Issuer contained herein
shall be true, coinplete, and correct as ífmade on and as ofthe Closing Date; the Official
Stateinent sliall have been executed and delivered by the Issuer; the Resolution, the
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the Refunding Trust Agreement shall have been
duly executed and delivered by the appropriate parties thereto, shall be in full force and
effect, and sha[[ not have been amended, modified, or supplemented, except as inay have
been agreed to in writing by the Representative; the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds
shall have been paid to the Issuer for deposit for use as described iii the Official J ,

Statement and in the Resolution; and the Issuer shall have adopted and there shall be iii
full force and effect such resolutions as, in the opinions of Hawkins Delafield & Wood
LLP, Bond Counse[, and Bass, Berry & Sims PLC, counsel for the Underwriters, shall be
necessary in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby,

2. At or prior to the C[osing, the Representative shall receive the following:

a) The unqualified approving opinion of Bond Counsel, addressed to the Issuer,
dated the Closing Date and in substantially the form attached as Appendix C to
the Official Statement with only such changes thereto as are satisfactory to the
Representative, and a letter of stich Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date and
addressed to the Underwriters, to the effect that their opinion addressed to the
Issuer may be relied upon by the Underwriters to the same extent as if such
opinion was addressed to them; gl

b) A supplementary opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date, addressed to
the Underwriters and the Issuer, to the effect that: (i) this Purchase Agreement Ill
has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Issuer, and constitutes a
valid contractual agreement of the Issuer, subject to sovereign immunity, kl yl

1applicable bankruptcy, insotvenoy, reorganization, moratorium and other laws 1

heretofore or hereafter enacted affecting creditors' rights, and the application of I 1
!4

principles of equity relating to or affecting the enforcement of contractual
obligations, whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity
or at law; (ii) no approval or other action is required to be obtained by the Issuer Il.

from any governmental authority or agency in connection with the issuance and
sale of the Bonds, the adoption of the Resolution, or the execution by the Issuer
of this Purchase Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the
Refunding Trust Aglcement or the Official Statement that has not already been
obtained or taken, except that the offer and sale of the Bonds in certain
jurisdictions inay be subject to compliance with the provisions ofthe securities or
blue sky laws of such jurisdictions (as to which no opinion need be expressed);
(iii) the statements contained in the Official Statement under the captions "The
Bonds" (other than information ielating to The Depository Trust Company and
its book-entry only system), "Application of Bond Proceeds And Plan of
Refunding," IlSecurity for the Bonds," and "Tax Matters" fairly summarize the
piovisions of the documents or matters of law indicated therein, and the
statements contained in the Official Statement describing the Resolution fairly
summarize the provisions of such document purported to be summarized; and
(iv) the Bonds are not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and the Resolution is exempt froln qualification as an

indenture pursuant to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended;

c) A certificate of Counsel to the Issuer, dated the Closing Date, and iii form and
substance satisfactory to the Representative, to the effect that: there is no action,
suit, or proceeding or investigation at law or iii equity before or by any court,



public board, or body pending, or, to the knowledge of such counsel, threatened
against or affecting the Issuer to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of any
of the Bonds or the security pledged under the Resolution, or iii any way
contesting or affecting the power of the Issuer relating to the issuance or validity
of the Bonds or any provision of the Resolution, or the execution, delivery, and
performance by the Issuer of the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement, or this Purchase Agreement or
materially adversely affecting the financial condition ofthe Issuer;

d) An opinion of Counsel to the Issuer addressed to the Issuer to the effect that: (i)
the Issuer has full legal right, power, and authority to adopt the Resolution and to
execute and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust
Agreement the Bonds and this Purchase Agreement, and to issue the Bonds and
apply the proceeds thereof pursuant to the Resolution; (il) the Issuer has duly
authorized, executed, and delivered the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement, the Bonds and this Purchase
Agreement and, assuming due authorization, execution, and delivery by the othei
parties thereto where required, each constitutes a valid contractual agreement of
the Issuer, subject to sovereign immunity, applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium and other laws heretofore or hereafter enacted
affecting creditors' l'ights, and are subject to the application of principles of
equity rolating to or affecting the enforcement ofcontractual obligations, whether
such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law, and
compliançe with the provisions ofeach thereofwill not conflict with or constitute
a violation or breach ofot default under any existing law or administrative rule or
regulation, or, to the best of the knowledge of such counsel, any court order or
decree, or any agreement, contract, or other instrument to which the Issuer is a

party or is otherwise subject or bound; (ili) the distribution of the Preliminary
Official Statement and the execution, delivery, and distribution of the Official
Statement have been duly authorized by the Issuer; (iv) no approval or other
action is required to be obtained by the Issuer from any governmental authority
oi· agency in connection with the issuance and sale ofthe Bonds, or the execution
by the Issuer of this Purchase Agreement, the Resolution, the Bonds, ihe
Continuing Disclosure Undeltaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement ør the
Official Statement which has not already been obtained or taken, except that the
offer and sale of the Bonds iii certain jurisdictions may be subject to compliance
with the provisions ofthe securities or blue sky laws ofsuch jurisdictions (as to
which no opinion need be expressed); (v) the Official Statement has been duly
executed and delivered by the Issuer; (vi) the execution and delivery of this
Purchase Agreement, the Bonds, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the
Refunding Trust Agreement, and the Official Statement were duly authorized
pursuant to the Resolution at one or mo,e meetings ofthe Issuer that were called
and held pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, and with all public
notice required by a!1 applicable laws and regulations and at which a quorum was

present and acting throughout; and (vii) the repi·esentations and warranties ofthe
[sstmr as set forth in this Purchase Agreement Rl'e, as to all matters of law, true
and accurate on and as ofthe Closing Date as ifmacie on the Closing Date;

e) The opinion of counsel to the Underwriters, dated the Closing Date, to the effect
that (i) the Bonds ate exempt from registration wlder the Securities Act, and tile
Resolution is exempt from qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939,
as amended; (ií) without having undertaken to determine independently, or to
assume responsibility for, the accuracy, completeness or fairness thereof, and
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based solely on their participation in meetings and telephone conferences at
which representatives of the Issuer, Issuer's Counsel, Bond Counsel, and the
Representative were at various times present, nothing has come to their attention
that would lead them to believe that the information and statements iii the
Preliminary Official Statement, as ofthe date thereof and as of the date of pricing
of the Bonds, or the Official Statement, as of the date thereof and as of the
Closing Date (excluding therefrom information regarding DTC, the Book-Entry
System, the financial statements and statistical data included in the Preliminary
Offiçial Statement and the Official Statement, as to which no view need be
expressed) contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a

material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein, iii the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading; and (iii) the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking of the Issuer
complies in all material respects with the requirements of Section (b)(5)(i) of
Rule 15c2-12;

f) A certificate dated the Closing Date by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary to the
Funding Board of the Issuer to the effect that: (i) the representations and
warranties of the Issuer contained herein are true and correct on and as of the
Closing Date (except to the extent the same relate to an earlier date) with the
same effect as if made on the Closing Date; and (ii) the Issuer has complied with
all agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its part to be performed or

satisfied with respect to the Bonds at or prior to the Closing;

g) A certificate dated the Closing Date by the Secretary or Assistant Seoretaty to the
Funding Board of the Issuer to the effect that: no event affecting the Issuer has
oçcurred since the date of the Official Statement that should be disclosed in the
Official Statement for the purpose for which it is to be used or that it is necessary
to disclose therein in order to make the statements and information therein with
respect to the Issuer not misleading in any material respect; 1

h) A certificate of an officer of the Issuer, acceptable to the Representative, dated
the Closing Date, to the effect that the Bonds have been executed in accordance i

with the Resolution by duly authorized officers or signatories of the Issuer; and
an in©umbency certificate of the Issuer, in form and content acceptable to the
Representàttve and Bond Cóunsel, dated the Closing Date, with respect to the
officers or other signatories of the Issuer who have executed and delivered the
Bonds and all other financing documents to be signed by the Issuer;

i) Evidence satisfactory to the representatives that the Bonds have been rated not
less than "Aaa", "AA+" and "AAA" respectively, by Moody's Investors Service,
Inc., Standard & Poor's Ratings Service and Fitch Ratings, which ratings remain
iii effect on the Closing Date;

j) Cøøies of the Rosolutiøn certified by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary to thei:
Funding Board as having been duly adopted by the Funding Board and as being
in full force and effect, with such changes or amendments as may have been
approved by the Representative;

k) Executed counterparts of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding
Trust A?eement, this Purchase Agreøment, and tlie tax certjñcate executed by
the parttäß thereto, oi copies the»of èørtified by tlie Se@t#afy or Assistant
Secretary ofthe Funding Board;
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1) The Prel iminary Official Statement and an executed Official Statement, together
with any supplements or amendments thereto iii the event either has been
supplemented or amended, iii the case of the Official Statement executed on

behalf of the Issuer by a duly authorized officer thereof;

in) Specimen ofthe Bonds;

n) The verification report prepared by Robert Thomas CPA, LLC described in the
Official Statement Linder the caption "Verification Agent";

O) Such additional legal opinions, signatures, other certificates and other
instruments and documents as the Underwriters may reasonably request to í

evidence the truth, accuracy and completeness, as of the date of this Purchase
Agreement and as of the date of Closing, of the representations and warranties of
the Issuer contained iii this Purchase Agreement and of the statements and
information contained in the Official Statement and the due performance or

satisfaction by the Issuer at or prior to Closing of all agreements then to be
performed and of all conditions then to be satisfied by the Issuer.

If the Issuer shall be unable to satìsfy the conditions to the obligations of the Underwriters
contained in this Purchase Agreement, or if the obligations of the Underwriters shall be
terminated for any reason perinilled by this Pululiase Agreement, this Purchase Agreement shall
terminate and neither the Underwriters nor the Issuer shall have any further obligations
hereunder, except as provided in Section L. hereof, However, the Representative may in its
discretion waive one or more of the conditions imposed by this Purchase Agreement for the
protection ofthe Underwriters and proceed with the Closing.

K, Tot'rnination. The Underwriters shall have the right to terminate this Purchase Agreement by
notification to the Issuer from the Underwriters of the election of the Underwriteis to do so if,
after the execution hereof and prior to the Closing:
1. An event shall occur which makes untrue or incorrect in any material iespect, as ofthe

time of such event, any statement or information contained in the Official Statement or
which is not refiected in the Official Statement but should be reflected therein in order to
make the statements contained therein not misleading in any material respect and requires
an amendment or supplement to the Official Statement and the effect of which, in the
reasonable judgment of the Underwriters, would materially adversely affect the market
for the Bonds or the sale, at the contemplated offering prices (or yields), by the
Underwriters of the Bonds; or

2 Legislation shall be introduced in, enacted by, reported out of committee, or

recommended for passage by the State of Tennessee, either House of the Congress, or
recommended to the Congress or otherwise endorsed for passage (by press release, other
fot'[n of notice or otherwise) by the President of the United States, the Treasury
Department of the United States, the Internal Revenue Service or the Chairman or

ranking minority member of the Committee on Finance ofthe United States Senate or the
Committee on Ways and Means ofthe United States House of Representatives (including
sponsorship or co-sponsorship), or legislation is proposed foi consideration by either such
committee by the staff or such committee or by the staff of the Joint Committee on

Taxation of the Congress of the United States, oi a bill to amend the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 (which, if enacted, would be effective as of a date prior to the Closing)
shall be filed in either House, or a decision by a court of competent jurisdiction shall be
rendered, or a regulation or filing shall be issued or proposed by or on behalf of the
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Department ofthe Treasury or· the Internal Revenue Service oftlie United States, or other
agency of the federal government, or a release or official statement shall be issued by the
President, the Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service of the United
States, in any such case with respect to or affecting (directly or indirectly) the taxation of
interest ieceived on obligations of the general character of the Bonds which, in the
reasonab[e opinion of the Underwriters, materially adversely affects the inaiket for the
Bonds or the sale, at the contemplated offering prices (or yields), by the Underwriters of
the Bonds; or

3. A stop order, ruling, regulation, proposed regulation or statement by or on behalf of the
SEC or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter shall be
issued or made to the effect that the issuance, offering, sale or distribution of obligations
of the general character of the Bonds is in violation or would be in violation of any
provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, or the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended; or

4. Legislation introduced in or enacted (or resolution passed) by the Congress or an order,
decree, or injunction issued by any couit of competent jurisdiction, or an order, ruling,
regulation (final, temporary, or proposed), press release or other form of notice issued or
made by or on behalf of the SEC, or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction
of the subject matter, to the effect that obligations of the general character of the Bonds,
including any or all underlying arrangements, are not exempt from registration under or
other requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or
that the Resolution is not exempt from qualification under or other requirements of the
Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or that the issuance, o ffering, or sale of
obligations of the general character of the Bonds, including any or all underlying
arrangements, as contemplated hereby or by the Official Statement or otherwise, is or
would be in violation ofthe federal securities law as amended and then iii effect; or

5. There shall have occurred any outbreak or esçalation of hostilities, declaration by the
United States of a national or international einergency or war or other calamity or crisis
tlie effect ofwhicli on financia[ markets is such as to make it, in the reasonable judgment
of the Underwriters, impractical or inadvisable to proceed with the offering of the Bonds
as contemplated in the Official Statement; or

6. There shall have occurred a general suspension of trading, minimum or maximum prices
for trading sha[1 have been fixed and be in force or maximum ranges or prices for
securities shall have been required on the New York Stock Exchange or other national
stock exchange whether by virtue of a determination by that Exchange or by order of the
SEC or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction or any national securities
exchange shall have: (i) imposed additional material restrictions not in force as of the 1ä
date hereof with respect to trading in securities generally, or to the Bdnds or similar 11

obligations; or (ií) materially increased restrictions now in force with respect to the 1

extension of credit by or the charge to the net capital requirements of underwriters or

broker-dealers stich as to make it, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriters,
impractical or inadvisable to proceed with the offering of the Bonds as contemplated iii
the Official Statement; or

7. A general banking moratorium shall have been declared by federal or New York or
Tennessee state authorities or a major financial crisis or a material disruption in
commercial banking or securities settlement or clearances services shal] have occurred
such as to make it, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriters, impractical or
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inadvisable to proceed with the offering of the Bonds as contemplated in the Official
Statement; or

8. A downgrading or suspension of any rating (without regard to credit enhancement) by
Moody's Investors Service, Inc, ("Moody's"), Standard & Poor's ("SkP"), or Fitch
Ratings ("Fitch") of any debt securities issued by the Issuer, or there shall have been any
official statement as to a possible downgrading (stich as being placed on "credit watch" or
"negative outlook" or any similar qualification) of any rating by Moody's, S&P or Fitch
of any debt securities issued by the Issuer, including the Bonds.

L. Payment ofßxpenses.
1. The Underwriters shall be under no obligation to pay, and the Issuer shall pay from

available funds or from the proceeds of the Bonds or from other funds of the Issuer,
ceitain expenses set foith in this Section that are incidental to the performance of the
Issuer's obligations hereunder, including but not limited to: all expenses in connection
with the printing of the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement, and any
amendment or supplement to either thereof; all expenses in connection with the printing,
issuance, and delivery of the Bonds; the fees and disbursements of Bond Counsel,
Issuer's Counsel, auditors, the fees and disbursements of the reiun(ling trustee; all
expenses iii connection with obtaining a rating or ratings for the Bonds; all expenses, if 'll
any, of the Issuer in connection with the proparation, printing, execution, and delivery,
and any recording or filing fees required of the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking, and the Refunding Trust Agreement; and any recording or filing fees
required by this Purchase Agreement (excluding the costs of qualifying the Bonds for 1
sale in various states); the Issuer's administrative fees; rating agency fees, and all other
expenses and costs of the Issuer incident to its obligations in connection with the
authorization, issuance, sale, and distribution ofthe Bonds, The Issuer will reimburse the
Underwriters for expenses incidental to the issuance and sale of the Bonds, if any, 1 1incurred on behalfof the Issuer's employees.

2. The Representative shall pay the costs of qualifying the Bonds for sale in various states
chosen by the Representative, all advertising expenses in connection with the publie
offering of the Bonds, and all other expenses incurred by it or the other Underwriters in
connection with the public offering and distribution of the Bonds, including the fees and
disbursements of their counsel and the cost of obtaining CUSIP numbers.

3. The Issuer shall pay for expenses (which may be included in the Underwriters' discount)
incurred on behalf of Issuer's employees which are incidental to implementing this
agreement, including, but not limited to, meals, transportation, lodging, and entertainment
ofthose employees,

M, ihdmnnltýandCont:tbu¢Ion.
1. The Issuer agrees, to the extent permitted by law, and without any representation as to the

extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the Underwriters, any member,
officer, official, employee, counsel, consultant and agent of the Underwriters, and each
person, if any, who controls the Underwriters within the meaning of Section 15 of tile
Securities Act (the "Indemnitees') against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities
or expenses (or actions in respect thereof) (each, a "Claim") that are caused by, arise out
of or are based upon any unti'tie statement or misleading statement or alleged untrue
statement or alleged misleading statement of a material fact relating to the Issuer made,
provided or certified by the Issuer or any agent thereof and contained in the Prelim iiimy
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. Official Statement or the Official Statement, oi caused by, arising out of or based upon
any omission or alleged omission from the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official
Statement of any material fact relating to the Issuer necessary in order to make the
statements made therein in the light of the circumstances under which they were made
not misleading, except with respect to matters described iii paragraph 2 below. In case

any action shallbe brought against any person indemnified pursuant to this Section and in
respect of which indemnity may be sought against the Issuer, such pei son shall promptly
notify the Issuer iii writing, and the Issuer shall promptly assume the defense thereof,
including the employment of counsel reasonably satisfactory to such person, and the
payment of all expenses, provided that the Issuer shall have the right to negotiate and
consent to settlement and such person shall cooperate with the Issuer in such defense.
Such person shall have the right to employ separate counsel iii any such action and to 1

participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at
the expense of such person unless the employment of such counsel has been specifically
authorized by the Issuer. The Issuer shall not be liable for any settlement of any such
action effected without its consent, but if settled with the consent of the Issuer or if there
be a final judgment for the plaintiff in any such action, with orwithout consent, the Issuer
shall indemnify and hold harmless such party from and against any loss or liability by
reason of such settlement or judgment, Notwithstanding anything above to the coiit['ary,
the Issuer shall not consent to any settlement under which an indemnified party admits
guilt to any allegation without the consent of such person.

2. Each Underwriter severally and not jointly agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Issuer, each of its officials, directors, officers and employees, and each person who
controls the Issuer within the meaning ofeither the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, to
the same extent as the foregoing indemnity from the Issuer to each Underwriter, but only
with reference to written information furnished by the Underwriters to the Issuer or

information provided by the Underwriters specifically for inclusion in the Preliminary
Official Statement or the Official Statement (or in any amendment or supplement
thereto).

N. Blue Skygualiñcatton. The Issuer agrees to cooperate with the Underwriters and their counsel in
any endeavor to qualify the Bonds for offering and sale under the securities or blue sky laws of
such jurisdictions ofthe United States as the Representative may request; provided that the Issuer
shall not be required to qualify as a foreign corporation in, or submit to the jurisdiction of, any
other state. The Issuer consents to the use ofthe Preliminary Officia[ Statement and the Official
Statement by the Representative in obtaining such qualification.

O. NoAdýisoryorFidueiarvltoio.

1. The Issuer acknowledges and agrees that (i) the purchase and sale of the Bonds pursuant
to this Purchase Agreement is an arm's-length commercial transaction between the Issuer
and the Underwriters, (ií) in connection therewith and with the discussions, undertakings
and procedures leading up to the consummation of such transaction, the Underwriters are

and have been acting solely as principals and are not acting as the agent, advisor or
fiduciary of the Issuer, (iii) the Underwriters have not assumed an advisory or fiduciary
responsibility in favor of the Issuer with respect to the offering contemptated hereby or

the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading thereto (irrespective of whether the 1

Underwriters have provided other services or are currently providing other services to the
Issuer on other matters) and the Underwriters have no obligation to the Issuer with 1

respect to the offering contemplated hereby other than those arising out of their role as

Underwriters pursuant to the terms of this Purchase Agreement, (iv) the Issuer has j'
consulted its own legal, financial and other advisors to the extent it has deemed
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appropriate, and (v) the Underwriters have financial and other interests that differ from
those of the [ssuer.

2. The Issuer and the Underwriters represent and warrant, respectively, that no finder or
other agent has been employed by either the Issuer or tile Underwriters in connection
with this transaction.

P. Nötiöòà. All notices provided for in this Purchase Agreement shall be made iii writing either by
actual delivery of the notice into the hands of the parties entitled thereto, by confirmed facsimile
transm ission, or by sending the notice by air courier or mailing by certified or registered mail,
return receipt requested, in the United States mail to the address as stated below (or at such other
address as may have been designated by written notice) of the party entitled thereto, The notice
shall be deemed to be received iii case of actual delivery on the date of its actual receipt by the
parly entitled tlierelo, in ease of delivery by facsimile, on the date receipl is Çollfirmud, iii çase of
delivery by air courier on the date of delivery, and in case of mailing on the date of receipt by
United States mail, postage prepaid.
All communications hereunder, except as herein otherwise specifically provided, shall be iii
writing and mailed or delivered to the Issuer and to the Underwriters at the following addresses:

3?he Funding Board ofthe State of Tennessee
16"' Floor, James K. Pètk Building
505 Deaderick Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37243-0273
Attention: Director of State and Local Finance
Facsimile: 615-741-5986

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC
440 South LaSallç St.
One Financial Place, 37th Floor .i

Chicago, IL 60605
Attention: Mr. William Mack
Facsimile: 312-291-5753

Q. Kìoverninm Law. This Purchase Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Tennessee.

R. Counterparts. This Purchase Agreement may be executed in counterparts with the same force and
effect as if all signatures appeared on a single instrument.

S. Miseellaneøus. This Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the signatories hereto
(including the successors or assigns of the Underwriters) and no other person shall acquire or
have any right hereunder or by virtue hereof, The term successor" shall not include any holder 11
of any Bonds merely by virtue of suçh holding. All representations, warranties, agreements, and
indemnities contained in this Purchase Agreement shall remain operative and in full force and
effect, regardless of delivery of and payment for the Bonds, and any termination of this Purchase
Agreement.

fsignaturepage followsl
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Vci'y irüly youm.

MORGAN STANLEY & C'O. I,1.C, on behalf
of ítsèlf ¿md n,4 Rêpic.,cnl,1(íve r,j thi: 0(Iiei
Undcrwrílct·s listed in Appu,idix ] lietclo

av.pé,464 /V. /Vl•u4?(--
Name: William Muik
Title: Executive Dt,ecror .I

ACCEPT FD.

FUNDING BOARD OF THI
S'FATE OI·'IENNESSEE /

1 V.i' /
t

By:
T íile. Icoinplrouci orL 'ï'ieasuiy,7

Secietniy nf tlìe Funding Boald ofthe
I îtalc ofTennessee

I)ate·Ùuly 17,2014

1 ime.
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APPENDIX I

To

Bond Purchase Aízreement

UNDERWRITERS

Representative and Senior Manager

Morgan Staníey & Co. LLC

Co-Managers
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner and Smith Incorporated
Piper Jaffray & Co.
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association



APPENDIX II

To

Bond Purchase.Agreement

$111,065,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2014 SERIES A

Matunty
Date Aniount Rate Yleld

09/01:'2015 5,555.000 4 000% 0 170°4
09/01/2016 5.550.000 3.000% 0 MOO/6
09/01/2017 5,550,000 4 000% 0 63091,
09/01/2018 5,550.000 4.000'4 0960%
09,01/2019 5,555.000 5.000°'6 1 290°'o
09/01/2020 5,555.000 5 000% 1570°4
09/01/2021 5,555.000 5 000°/o 1 85094
00/01/2022 5.555.000 5 000% 2070°/o
09/01/2023 5,555,000 5 000% 2.25094
09/01?2024 5.555.000 5 000% 2.380%
09/01/2025 5,555.000 5.000°/o 2480° 6
09/01/2026 5,555.000 5 000% 2570%
09/01/2027 5.555.000 5 000% 2 66096
09/01/2028 5,55&000 5 000% 2730°6
09/01/2029 5355.000 5 000% 2 810°.b
09/01/2030 5,555.000 5 000% 2870%
09/01,22031 5.550.000 5000°'o 2 9409,6
09/018031 5,550.000 5 000°4 3 0001'o
09/01/2033 5.550.000 5 000% 3.060%
09/010034 5,550,000 5 000°,6 3 110°b

111.065.000

Optional Redemption.

At the option of the Issuer, the 2014 Series A Bonds maturing on or after September 1,2025 are subjeot
to redemption prior to their respeçtive stated maturity dates at anytime on and after September 1,2024, as
a whole, or in part from time to time, in any order ofmaturity determined by the Issuer, at par, together
with accrued interest on such principal amount to the redemption date.



$79,160,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2014 REFUNDING SERIES B

Á'Iaturity
Date Amount Rate Yíeld

09/0122025 17.025,000 5 000°4 24809·6
09/01/2026 17.005.000 5 000% 3 570°'.0
09/0122027 16.980.000 5 000°,S 266090
09/01/2028 16.955.000 5000% 2 730°6
0*010029 11.195.000 5 000°6 2 8109 b

79,160,000

Optional Redemption.

At the option of the Issuer, the 2014 Series B Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their respective
stated marni ity dates at any time on and after September 1,2024, as a whole, or in part from time to time,
in any order ofmaturity determined by the Issuer, at par, together with accrued interest on such principal
amount to the redemption date,

132555473



REFUNDING TRUST AGREEMENT

between

STATE OF TENNESSEE
ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE
STATE FUNDING BOARD OF THE

STATE OF TENNESSEE

and

REGIONS BANK

Dated as ofAugust 19,2014

State of Tennessee
General Obligation Bonds
2014 Refunding Series B
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REFUNDING TRUST AGREEMENT
State of Tennessee

General Obligation Bonds
2014 Refunding Series B

This Refunding Trust Agreement (the "Agreemenf') dated and effective as of
August 19, 2014, between the STATE OF TENNESSEE (the "State"), acting by and through the
STATE FUNDING BOARD OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE (the "State Funding Board"),
and REGIONS BANK (the "Refunding Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Funding Board on June 30,
2008, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate dated September 4, 2008, authorized
thereby, the State has heretofore issued its General Obligation Bonds, 2008 Series A (the "2008A
Prior Bonds");

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Funding Board on

October 20,2009, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate dated December 16, 2009,
authorized thereby, the State has heretofore issued its General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series C
(the "2009C Prior Bonds" and, collectively with the 2008A Prior Bonds, the "Prior Bonds");

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution adopted by the members of the Funding
Board on June 18,2014, including as a part thereof the Series Certificate dated August 27, 2014,
authorized thereby (collectively, the "Resolution"), the Funding Board has determined to refund
the outstanding Prior Bonds described in Exhibit A hereto (the "Refunded Bonds"), has
authorized the taking of such actions as shall be necessary and sufficient to cause the Refunded
Bonds to be refunded and redeemed on their respective redemption dates in advance ofmaturity
and has authorized the issuance and sale of $79,160,000 principal amount ofGeneral Obligation
Bonds, 2014 Refunding Series B (the "Refunding Bonds"), for such purposes;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual
covenants herein set forth, the State, acting by and through the Funding Board, and the
Refunding Trustee agree as follows:

SECTION 1 Pledße ef Bond heceedè and Othet FU#ds. To provide for the

payment of (i) the respective redemption prices on the respective redemption dates of the
Refunded Bonds as set forth in Section 8 hereof and (ii) the interest on the Refunded Bonds due
on and pnor to their respective redemption dates (the aggregate of such payments required for
the purposes of clauses (i) and (ii) above being herein collectively referred to as the "Defeasance
Requirements") the State hereby irrevooably deposits with the Refunding Trustee, in trust for the
benefit and security of the holders of the Refunded Bonds, and irrevocably pledges and sets aside
exclusively for such payment, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the
amount of $95,281,848.57 in immediately available funds derived from the proceeds of sale of
the Refunding Bonds. The Refunding Trustee acknowledges receipt of such amount, which shall
be deposited by the Refunding Trustee in the Refunding Trust Fund hereinafter referred to, and
invested and applied in the manner and for the purposes hereinafter set forth.

2349355.6 038682 AGMT



SECTION 2. Establishment of Refuñóimt Tfüst Fund: Deposit óf Cášh and
Pïïtdhaàe: öf Eligible Seel?ities. There is hereby created and established with the Refunding
Trustee a special and irrevocable trust fund designated the "State of Tennessee General
Obligation Bonds, 2014B Refunding Trust Fund" (the "Refunding Trust Fund"), to be held in the
custody of the Refunding Trustee as a trust fund, separate and apart from all other funds of the
State or of the Refunding Trustee, for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Bonds.

(a) The State hereby directs the Refunding Trustee to (i) purchase, and the
Refunding Trustee agrees to purchase, on August 27, 2014, from the United States Treasury,
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC and Wells Fargo Securities LLC, with $94,856,883.01 of
the amount specified in Section 1 hereof, the Eligible Securities described in Exhibit B hereto,
and (ii) retain initially uninvested, as cash, $424,965.56 of the amount specified in Section 1
hereof, and to deposit such Eligible Securities and cash in the Refunding Trust Fund.

(b) The Eligible Securities described in subsection (b) above, and any Eligible
Securities purchased pursuant to Section 4 hereof, are herein referred to collectively as the
"Refunding Securities".

(c) The term "Eligible Securities" as used herein shall mean and include (i) all
investments permitted for the investment of State funds under Tennessee Code Annotated
Section 9-4-602 as amended from time to time, (ìi) which obligations and, in the case of any
Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities ("STRIPs"), the bonds
underlying such obligations, are non-callable and not prepayable, and shall exclude mutual funds
or unit investment trusts holdìng such obligations.

(d) The Refunding Trustee hereby acknowledges and certifies that the
Refunding Securities referred to in Section 2(b) hereof have been acquired and are on deposit in
the Refunding Trust Fund, and the Refunding Trustee may conclusively assume that such
Refunding Securities (including those purchased pursuant to Section 4 below) are Eligible
Securities.

(e) All moneys and securities on deposit in trust in the Refunding Trust Fund
shall be applied to and used solely for the payment of the Defeasance Requirements of the
Refunded Bonds, subject to the provisions hereof permitting the investment, reinvestment and
sale of moneys and securities and payments to the State to the extent not required for such
purpose. Amounts earned on the moneys and securities in the Refunding Trust Fund shall be
retained therein until applied in accordance with this Agreement.

SECTION 3. Adeouac¥ iøf ?.Amounis- in Refündína Trust.. Fund: Additional
P*Ïñënts ifNecessarv. The State and the Refunding Trustee hereby acknowledge receipt from
Robert Thomas CPA, LLC, of a verification report, and hereby agree solely in reliance thereon,
that the Refunding Securities deposited in the Refunding Trust Fund mature (without regard to

any reinvestment thereof) in such amounts and at such times as are necessary and sufficient,
together with other moneys held in the Refunding Trust Fund, to pay the Defeasance
Requirements of the Refunded Bonds.

2
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The State shall deposit in the Refunding Trust Fund any amounts that may
be necessary, for any reason (including but not limited to non-payment or non-timely
payment under any Refunding Securities), to pay the Defeasance Requirements as and
when due.

SECTION 4. Substitution of Re?tídìnký'Sëèbritîès At the written direction of
the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Funding Board, (1) any Refunding Securities may be
sold, and (2) the maturing principal of or interest on any Refunding Securities or any other
moneys on deposit in the Refunding Trust Fund may be invested or reinvested in Eligible
Securities; provided, however, that concurrently with such written direction, the State shall
provide the Refunding Trustee with (i) a report of a certified public accountant or financial ·

analyst, or firm of either thereof, concluding that upon such sale, investment or reinvestment,
there will remain on deposit in the Refunding Trust Fund, Refunding Securities (if any) that
mature as to principal and interest (without regard to any earnings upon reinvestment of the
principal thereof or upon reinvestment of investment earnings thereon) in such amounts and at
such times as are necessary and sufficient, together with any moneys on deposit in the Refunding
Trust Fund, to make full payment, as and when due, of the respective Defeasance Requirements
payable after such sale, investment or reinvestment, which report shall set forth in reasonable
detail the calculations underlying such conclusion, and (îi) an unqualified opinion of nationally
recognized bond counsel to the effect that such investment or reinvestment (1) will not adversely
affect the exclusion of interest on any Refunding Bond from gross income for federal income tax
purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the
applicable regulations thereunder, and (2) is authorized or pennitted by this Agreement (which
opinion may rely without further investigation on the conclusions contained in the report
required by clause (i) above).

(a) Any reinvestment authorized by this Section 4 shall be accomplished by
sale, transfer, request for redemption or other disposition of all or a portion of the Refunding
Securities then held in the Refunding Trust Fund, if applicable, with the proceeds thereof,
together with (if applicable) other moneys in the Refunding Trust Fund, being applied
simultaneously to the purchase of Eligible Securities, all as specified in the written direction
hereinabove provided for.

(b) Upon the purchase of any Eligible Securities pursuant to this Section, such
Eligible Securities shall be deemed to constitute Refunding Securities for all purposes of this
Agreement, except as the context shall otherwise require.

SECTION 5. Evidence of Transactions. The Refunding Trustee shall deliver to
the State Funding Board a copy of the document<s) evidencing each transaction relating to the
Refunding Trust Fund as soon as practicable after each transaction occurs.

(a) On or before the fifteenth day of each calendar month, the Refunding
Trustee shall deliver to the Funding Board a report of the financial condition of the Refunding
Trust Fund as of the end of, and an operating statement for the Refunding Trust Fund for, the
immediately preceding calendar month.

3
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SECTION 6. Refunding Trustee ás Pàvìn# Ament: Páÿníent of DefeasanceRequirements:.en Reíbnded Bozîds. The Refunding Trustee acknowledges receipt of a copy ofthe Resolution which, among other things, appoints the Refunding Trustee as an additional
paying agent for the Refunded Bonds. Regions Bank, as Refunding Trustee, hereby accepts such
appointment.

(a) On the redemption and interest payment dates for the Refunded Bonds, theRefunding Trustee, as the Paying Agent for the Refunded Bonds, shal] apply sufficient moneysfrom the matured principal of and, if neoessary, interest on the Refimding Securities or moneysheld in the Reftmdihg Trost Fund to the pãýment of the respective Dëfeàsance Requirements forthe respective Refunded Bonds becoming due on such dates, as provided by the terms of the
Refunded Bonds, specimens of which are attached hereto in Exhibit E.

SECTION 7. Irrevocable Deoòšit: Express: Lien. The deposit of moneys and
Refunding Securities in the Refunding Trust Fund as provided in this Agreement shall constitute
an irrevocable deposit in trust solely for the payment of the respective Defeasance Requirementspursuant to the terms of the Resolution and of this Agreement, subject to the provisions hereof
permitting reinvestment or substitution of securities and payment to the State of amounts not
required for the purposes hereof. The registered owners of the Refunded Bonds shall have an
express lien on the principal of and interest on the Refunding Securities, and on any moneys, ondeposit in the Refunding Trust Fund, until the proceeds thereof are paid out, used or applied in
accordance with this Agreement.

SECTION 8. Redemptfën: Notices of Redemption and Reñtnding. The
Refunding Trustee hereby acknowledges receipt of a certified copy of the Resolution and
certified copies of the resolutions referred to in the first three (3) preambles hereto. The
Resolution, among other things, calls the Refunded Bonds for redemption as follows:

(i) the 2008A Refunded Bonds on September 1, 2016, at a redemption priceof 100.0% of their principal amount, and

(ij) the 2009C Refunded Bonds on May 1, 2018, at a redemption price equal
to 100.0% oftheir principal amount,

in each case together with accrued interest to the redemption date. Pursuant to the Resolution,
such designations for redemption are irrevocabie upon the issuance ofthe Refunding Bonds.

(b) Notice of redemption of the Refunded Bonds shall be given by the State
Funding Board by first class mail and otherwise in the manner and at the times prescribed by the
respective resolutions authorizing the issuance of the Refunded Bonds and in the respective
forms set forth in Exhibit C hereto. The Refunding Trustee agrees to act as agent of the State
Funding Board for the purpose of giving, and shall give, such notices of redemption as aforesaid,
and also will promptly (but in any case within ten (10) business days of giving the respective
notice as aforesaid) file each of such notices with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
through its Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) system pursuant to Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12.

4
23493556 038682 AGMT



(c) The State Funding Board shall cause notices in substantially the form set
forth in ExhibitD hereto to be mailed, in the same manner as the respective notices of
redemption are to be mailed pursuant to the respective resolutions authorizing the Refunded
Bonds, as soon as practicable after the issuance ofthe Refunding Bonds to each registered owner

of Refunded Bonds. The Refunding Trustee agrees to act as agent of the State Funding Board
for the purpose of giving, and shall give, such notices as aforesaid, and also will promptly (but in
any case within ten (10) business days ofmailing such notices) file each of such notices with the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through its Electronic Municipal Market Access
(EMMA) system pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12.

SECTION 9. Excess Monevs: Termination. Upon written directio n to the
Refunding Trustee (upon which the Refunding Trustee may conclusively rely) given on behalf of
the Slate Funding Board, all amounts on deposit in the Refunding Trust Fund which are not

required for the payment of the respective Defeasance Requirements shall be paid to the State as

and when received and collected. Such excess amounts shall be used and applied to any of the
purposes provided by the Resolution for the use and application of proceeds of the bonds
authorized thereby.

(a) This Agreement shall terminate with respect to each Refunded Bond when
all Defeasance Requirements for such Refunded Bond have been paid or provided for by the
Refunding Trustee, as the Paying Agent for the Refunded Bonds, on their respective redemption
date as provided by Section 8 hereof.

SECTION 10. Ineøføerølien'· b¥ : Refü.ence. The applicable and necessary
provisions of the Resolution and the resolutions authorizing the Refunded Bonds are

incorporated herein by reference.
SECTION 11. Arbitraže :and 'Tax Covenants. Any other provision of this

Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the State hereby covenants that it will not use, or
permit the use of, any proceeds of the Refunding Bonds, ìf any, or ofmoneys or funds held by
the Refunding Trustee under this Agreement, or any moneys that may be deemed to be proceeds 'l

of the Refunding Bonds pursuant to Section 103 or Section 148 of the Code or Section 103 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1954, in a manner that would cause any of the Refunding Bonds to be
subjected to treatment under said Section 148 as an "arbitrage bond , and to that end the State
shall comply with such regulations adopted under Section 103 and Section 148. The State
further covenants that it will not take any action that will cause the interest on the Refunding
Bonds or the Refunded Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes
under Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code or Section 103 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1954.

SECTION 12 Benefit' øfAgréemeht *fñëñdihènts. This Agreement is made
for the benefit of the State and the registered owners from time to time of the Refunded Bonds.
This Agreement shall not be repealed, revoked, altered or amended without the written consent
of all such owners and the written consent of the Refunding Trustee; 0*vided, however, that the
State, acting by and through the State Funding Board, and the Refunding Trustee may, without
the consent of, or notice to, such owners, enter into such agreements supplemental to this

5
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Agreement as shall not adversely affect the rights of such owners and as shall not be inconsistent
with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, for any one or more of the following purposes:

1. to cure any ambiguity or defect or omission in this Agreement;
2. to grant to, or confer upon, the Refunding Trustee for the benefit of such

owners any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully be granted to, or
conferred upon, such owners or the Refunding Trustee; or

3. to subject to this Agreement additional funds, securities or properties.
(b) The Refunding Trustee shall be entitled to rely conclusively upon an

unqualified opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel with respect to compliance with this
Section 12, including (i) the extent, if any, to which any change, modification or addition affects
the rights of the registered owners of the Refunded Bonds, (ìi) the extent, if any, to which any
instrument executed hereunder complies with the conditions and provisions of this Section 12
and (iii) that such supplemental agreement does not affect the tax-exempt status of any of the
Refunded Bonds.

SECTION 13. Ob*m¢ions jand Liabiíiëes of the Rehmdìnž Tmstee. The
Refunding Trustee may construe any of the provisions of this Agreement which may appear to it
to be ambiguous or inconsistent with any other provisions hereof. Any construction òf any
provisions hereof by the Refunding Trustee in good faith shall be binding on the parties hereto.
The Refunding Trustee may consult with counsel with respect to any question relating to its
duties or responsibilities hereunder or otherwise in connection herewith and, except as expressly
provided herein, shall not be liable for any action taken, suffered or omitted by the Refunding
Trustee in good faith upon the advice of such counsel. The Refunding Trustee may act through
agents and attorneys appointed with due care, following reasonable advance written notice to the
State other than as contemplated by Sections 8(b) and (c) hereof, and shall not be responsible for
any wìllful misconduct or negligence on the part of any such person so appointed. Any payment
obligation of the Refunding Trustee hereunder shall be paid from, and is limited to, funds
available hereunder; the Refunding Trustee shall not be required to expend its own funds for the
performance of its duties hereunder. The Refunding Trustee shall not be responsible or Ijable for
any fai[ure or delay in the performance of its obligation under this Agreement arising out of or
caused, directly or indirectly, by circumstances beyond its reasonable control, including, without
limitation, acts of God; earthquakes; fire; flood; hurricanes or other storms; wars; terrorism;
similar military disturbances; sabotage; epidemic; riots; interruptions; loss or malfunctions of
utilities, computer (hardware or software) or communications services; accidents; labor disputes;
acts of civil or military authority or governmental action; it being understood that the Refunding
Trustee shall use commercially reasonable efforts which are consistent with accepted practices in
the banking industry to resume performance as soon as reasonably practicable under the
circumstances.

The Refunding Trustee shall act as agent for the State under this Agreement and
shall hold all moneys in trust for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Bonds as herein
provided. In the performance by the Refunding Trustee of its duties as agent hereunder the
Refunding Trustee shall take and perform only such actions as are specifically provided to be

6
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taken or performed by the express provisions of this Agreement and the Refunding Trustee shall
have no implied duties or obligations hereunder. The Refunding Trustee shall not be liable for
any action taken or neglected to be taken in performing or attempting to perform its obligations
hereunder, other than for its gross negligence or willful misconduct. Notwithstanding any
provision herein to the contrary, in no event shall the Refunding Trustee be liable for special,
indirect or consequential loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (including but not limited to lost
profits), even if the Refunding Trustee has been advised of the likelihood of such loss or damage
and regardless of the form of action.

SECTION 14. Refundiñ¢ Thtšteé: Pèb#· áhd **Î#ŽÌmt#. In consideration for its
services hereunder, the State shall pay the Refunding Trustee, upon delivery of and payment for
the Refunding Bonds, fees as described in a separate fee schedule proposed by the Refunding
Trustee and accepted by the State, as amended from time to time, and upon written request of
Refunding Trustee, reimburse the Refunding Trustee for its costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorney's fees costs and expenses, incurred by the Refunding Trustee in connection
with the performance of its duties hereunder, all as agreed to between the State and the
Refunding Trustee in such fee schedule, as the same may be supplemented and amended. The
State also shall pay the Refunding Trustee for any extraordinary services or expenses performed
or incurred by the Trustee in connection with its duties under this Agreement if notified in
writing prior to the performance of those services or the incurring of those expenses so as to
allow the State to appropriate sufficient funds for their payment.

SECTION 15. Severabilitv. If any one or more of the covenants or agreements
provided in this Agreement on the part of the State, the State Funding Board or the Refunding
Trustee to be performed should be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary
to law, such covenant or covenants, or such agreement or agreements, or such portions thereof,
shall be deemed severable from the remaining covenants and agreements or portions thereof
provided in this Agreement and the invalidity thereof shall in no way affect the validity of other
provisions of this Agreement or of the Refunded Bonds and the registered owners of the
Refunded Bonds shall retain all the rights and benefits accorded them hereunder and under
applicable provisions of law.

(a) If any provision of this Agreement shall be held or deemed to be or shall.
if fact, be inoperative or unenforceable or invalid as applied in any particular case in any
jurisdiction or jurisdictions or in all jurisdictions, or in all cases because ìt conflicts with any
constitution or statute or rule of public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances shal]
not have the effect of rendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable or invalid
in any other case or circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions herein
contained inoperative or unenforceable or invalid to any extent whatever.

SECTION 16. Law and Place of- Enfôróemént. This Agreement shall be
construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State without regard to conflict of
law principles.

SECTION 17. Cèuntervarts. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, all or any of which shall be regarded for all purposes as one original and shall
constitute and be but one and the same instrument.
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SECTION 18. Section Headitms. The headings of the several Sections hereof
shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction,
interpretation or effect ofthis Agreement.

[Balance ofPage Intentionally Left Blank-]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have each executed or caused to be
executed this Agreement by their duly authorized officers.
REGIONS BANK FUNDING BOARD OF THE STATE

OF 1*INESSEE j i
/

By t ?fl»----- -

By: -4?'t,1 : *,/
Name: Pau[ Williams Nake: Justin P. Wilson
Title: Vice President Ti?Ie: Secretary

9
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EXHIBIT A

REFUNDED BONDS

General Obligation Bonds, 2008 Series A
(the "2008A Refunded Bonds")

Maturity Date Principal Interest CUSIP
(September 1) Amount Rate Number

2025 ' $ 6,290,000 4.250% 880541 JY4
2026 6,290,000 4.500 880541 JZ1
2027 6,290,000 4.500 880541 KA4
2028 6.290,000 4.500 880541 KB2

%25,160,?04

General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series C
(the "2009C Refunded Bonds")

Maturity Date Principal Interest CUSIP
(May 1) Amount Rate Number

2026 $1_,795,000 5.000% 880541 MT1
2027 1 ,795,000 5.000 880541 MU8
2028 1.,795,000 5.000 880541 MV6
2029 1 ,795,000 5.000 880541 MW4
2030 1 .795.000 5.000 880541 MX2

858,975,000:

CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an organization not affiliated with the State of Tennessee or any fiscal

agent thereof and is included solely for the convenience of the Refunding Trustee and the Refunded Bondholders.
Neither the State of Tennessee nor any fiscal agent thereof, nor the Refunding Trustee, shall be responsible for the
selection or use ofCUSIP numbers, nor is any representation made as to its correctness on the Refunded Bonds or
as indicated in this Exhibit

A-1
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EXHIBIT B

INITIAL REFUNDING SECURITIES

Type of Maturity Par Accrued Total

Security Date Amount Rate Yield Price Cost Interest Cost

SLGS 11/01/20-4 $],258,897 0.020% $ I,258,897.00
2 SLGS 03/01/20 5 424,864 0.050 424,864.00
3 TNote 04/30/20 5 1,258,000 0.125 0.077550% 100.033119 $1,258,416.64 $474.31 1,258,890.95
4 TNote 08/31/20 5 425,000 0.375 0.154719 100.227190 425,965.56 744.90 426,710.46
5 TNote 10/31/20 5 1,259,000 1.250 0.205420 101.249536 1,274,731.66 4,746.9 I I,279,478.57
6 TNote 02/29/20 6 426,000 2.125 0.355191 102.702605 437,513.10 4,231.06 441,744.16
7 TNote 04/30/20 6 1,267,000 0.375 0.433350 99.901321 1,265,749.74 1,433.12 1,267,182.86
8 TNote 08/31/20 6 25,590,000 1.000 0.581850 100.837580 25,804,33672 119,605.43 25,923,942.15
9 TNote l ü/3 l /20 6 I,270,000 1.000 0.668508 100.722016 1,279,169.60 3,830.71 1,283,000.31
I 0 TNote 04/30/20 7 1,275,000 0.875 0.913926 99.896243 1,273,677.10 3,365.06 1,277,042.16
11 TNote IO/3 t/20 7 1,281,000 0.750 1.165177 98.700000 1,264,347.00 2,897.91 1,267,244.91
12 TNote 04/30/20 8 60.261.000 0.625 1.376071 97.300546 58,634.282.03 113,603.45 58,747.885.48

$95,995,761 $92,918,189.15 $254,932.86 $94,856,883.0 I

Purchased directly from the United States Treasury: lines 1-2 (2). Total Cost: $ 1,683,761.00
Purchased from Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC: lines 3,7-8 and 12 (4). Total Cost: $ 87,197,901.44
Purchased from Wells Fargo Securities LLC: lines 4-6 and 9-11 (6). Tota! Cost: $ 5.075320.57

$ 94,856,883.01

B-1
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EXHIBIT C-1

Notice of Redemption
To Holders of

State ofTennessee
General Obligation Bonds, 2008 Series A

Listed Below

Notice is hereby given to the holders of the outstanding State of Tennessee, General
Obligation Bonds, 2008 Series A, dated September 1,2008, described above (the "Bonds"), that
portions of the Bonds as described in the table below (the "Bonds called for redemption") have
been called for redemption on September 1, 2016 (the "Redemption Date") at a redemption price
equal to 100.0% of the principal amount thereof (the "Redemption Price") plus accrued interest
on such principal amount to the Redemption Date.

Maturity Date Principal Interest CUSIP
(September 1) Amount Rate Number

2025 $ 6,290,000 4.250% 880541 JY4
2026 6,290,000 4.500 880541 JZ1
2027 6,290,000 4.500 880541 KA4
2028 6,290,000 4.500 880541 KB2

$25.169.QDQ

On the Redemption Date, the Bonds called for redemption will become and be due and

payable at the Redemption Price together with accrued interest to the Redemption Date. The

Redemption Price for each Bond called for redemption will be paid upon presentation and
surrender thereof (unless otherwise agreed to by the State of Tennessee) at the office ofRegions
Bank, as a paying agent for the Bonds, as follows:

Regions Bank
Lakeshore Operations Center
Corporate Trust Operations

201 Milan Parkway, 2nd Floor
Birmingham, AL 35211
Toll Free 1-866-512-3479

Interest due on and prior to the Redemption Date will be paid in the usual manner. On
and after the Redemption Date, interest shall cease to accrue on the Bonds called for redemption.

CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an organization not affiliated with the State of Tennessee or any fiscal

agent thereo f and is included solely for the convenience ofthe Bonds cajled for redemption. Neither the State of
Tennessee nor any fiscal agent thereof, including the paying agent, shall be responsible for:the selection or use of
CUSIP numbers, nor is any representation made as to its Cetrectness oithe Bonds ¢*Ited fòr redèniþBon or as

indicated in this Notice.

C-1-1
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Under the provisions of the Jobs and Growth Tax Reconciliation Relief Act of 2003,
paying agents making payments of interest or principal on municipal securities may be obligated
to withhold a 28% tax from remittances to individuals who have failed to furnish the paying
agent with a valid taxpayer identification number. Holders of securities who wish to avoid the
withholding of this tax should submit certified taxpayer identification numbers when presenting
their securities for payment.

Dated this day of ,2016.
STATE OF TENNESSEE
By: [Name]

Secretary, State Funding Board of the
Stale of Tennessee

C-1-2
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EXHIBIT C-2

Notice of Redemption
To Holders of

State ofTennessee
General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series C

Listed Below

Notice is hereby given to the holders of the outstanding State of Tennessee, General
Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series C, dated December 16, 2009, described above (the "Bonds"), that
portions of the Bonds as described in the table below (the "Bonds called for redemption") have
been called for redemption on May 1, 2018 (the "Redemption Date") at a redemption price equal
to 100.0% of the principal amount thereof (the "Redemption Price") plus accrued interest on
such principal amount to the Redemption Date.

Maturity Date Principal Interest CUSIP
(May 1) -

Amount Rate Number*

2026 $1 ,795,000 5.000% 880541 MT1
2027 1 ,795,000 5.000 880541 MU8
2028 1 ,795,000 5.000 880541 MV6
2029 1 ,795,000 5.000 880541 MW4
2030 1 ,795,000 5.000 880541 MX2

Sžlligki/afdk

On the Redemption Date, the Bonds called for redemption will become and be due and
payable at the Redemption Price together with accrued interest to the Redemption Date. The
Redemption Price for each Bond called for redemption will be paid upon presentation and
surrender thereof (unless otherwise agreed to by the State of Tennessee) at the office of Regions
Bank, as a paying agent for the Bonds, as follows:

Regions Bank
Lakeshore Operations Center
Corporate Trust Operations

201 Milan Parkway, 2nd Floor
Birmingham, AL 35211
Toll Free 1-866-512-3479

. CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an organization not affiliated with the State of Tennessee or any fiscal
agent thereof and is included solely for the convenience of the Bonds called for redemption. Neither the State of
Tennessee nor any fiscal agent thereof, including the paying agent, shall be responsible for the selection or use of
CUSIP numbers, nor is any representation made as to its correctness on the Bonds called for redemption or as

indicated in tliis Notice.

C-2-1
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Interest due on and prior to the Redemption Date will be paid in the usual manner. On
and after the Redemption Date, interest shall cease to accrue on the Bonds called for redemption.

Under the provisions of the Jobs and Growth Tax Reconciliation Relief Act of 2003,
paying agents making payments of interest or principal on municipal securities may be obligated
to withhold a 28% tax from remittances to individuals who have failed to furnish the paying
agent with a valid taxpayer identification number. Holders of securities who wish to avoid the
withholding of this tax should submit certified taxpayer identification numbers when presenting
their securities for payment.

Dated this day of _ , 2018.

STATE OF TENNESSEE
By: [Name]

Secretary, State Funding Board of the
State of Tennessee

1.1
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EXHIBIT D-1

Notice of Refunding and Financial Defeasance

To the Owners of
State ofTennessee

General Obligation Bonds, 2008 Series A
Listed Below

Notice is hereby given to the holders of the outstanding State of Tennessee
General Obligation Bonds, 2008 Series A, dated September 1, 2008, described above (the
"Bonds") (1) that the Bonds described in the table below (the "Refunded Bonds") have been
irrevocably called for redemption (notice of which shall be given separately) on their redemption
date of September 1, 2016, and at their redemption price of 100.0% of the principal amount
thereof; (2) that there has been deposited with Regions Bank, as Refunding Trustee, moneys
whìch, in accordance with the provisions of a resolution adopted by the Funding Board of the
State of Tennessee on June 18, 2014, will be held as cash or invested in authorized investments
(the "Eligible Securities"); and (3) that such Eligible Securities will be sufficient, and will be
used, together with other available moneys, to pay (i) the redemption price payable on the
Refunded Bonds on their redemption date and (ii) the interest on the Refunded Bonds through
their redemption date.

Maturity Date Principal Interest CUSIP
(September 1) Amount Rate Number

2025 $ 6,290,000 4.250% 880541 JY4
2026 6,290,000 4.500 880541 JZI
2027 6,290,000 4.500 880541 KA4
2028 6.290*000 4.500 880541 KB2

¢9 t 1 ÁÄ A?2•.m,ü,MQ

Dated: ,2014.
STATE OF TENNESSEE
By: Justin P. Wilson

Secretary, Funding Board of the
State ofTennessee

CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an organization not affiliated with the State of Tennessee or any fiscal
agent thereof and is included soiely for the convenience of the Refunding Trustee and the Bondholders. Neither
the State of Tennessee nor any fiscal agent thereof, nor the Refunding Trustee, shall be responsible for the
selection or use of CUSIP numbers, nor is any representation made as to its correctness on the Refunded Bonds or

as indicated in this Notice.
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EXHIBIT D-2

Notice of Refunding and Financial Defeasance

To the Owners of
State of Tennessee

General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series C
Listed Below

Notice is hereby given to the holders of the outstanding State of Tennessee
General Obligation Bonds, 2009 Series C, dated December 16, 2009, described above (the
"Bonds") (1) that the Bonds described in the table below (the "Refunded Bonds") have been
irrevocably called for redemption (notice ofwhich shall be given separately) on their redemption
date of May 1, 2018, and at their redemption price of 100.0% of the principal amount thereof;
(2) that there has been deposited with Regions Bank, as Refunding Trustee, moneys which, in
accordance with the provisions of a resolution adopted by the Funding Board of the State of
Tennessee on June 18, 2014, will be held as cash or invested in authorized investments (the
"Eligible Securities"); and (3) that such Eligible Securities will be sufficient, and will be used,
together with other available moneys, to pay (i) the redemption price payable on the Refunded
Bonds on their redemption date and (ii) the interest on the Refunded Bonds through their
redemption date.

Maturity Date Principal Interest CUSIP
(May 1) Amount Rate Number*

2026 $11,795,000 5.000% 880541 MT1
2027 11,795,000 5.000 880541 MU8
2028 11,795,000 5.000 880541 MV6
2029 11,795,000 5.000 880541 MW4
2030 11.79.5.000 5.000 880541 MX2

*6/ua:hž:aa-

Dated: ,2014.
STATE OF TENNESSEE
By: Justin P. Wilson

Secretary, Funding Board of the
State of Tennessee

.

CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an organization not affiliated with the State of Tennessee or any fiscal
agent thereof and is included solely for the convenience of the Refunding Trustee and the Bondholders. Neither
the State of Tennessee nor any fiscal agent thereof, nor the Refunding Trustee, shall be responsible for the
selection or use ofCUSIP numbers, nor is any representation made as to its correctness on the Refunded Bonds or
as indicated in this Notice.
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
2008 SERIES A

Registered Registered
R2008A-25-1 $6,290,000

BOND INTEREST MATURITY
DATE RATE DATE Cusw

September 1, 2008 4 250% September 1,2025 880541 ry4

Registered Owner: Cede & Co

Principal Sum: Six Million Two Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars
fí

THE STATE OF TENNESSEE (the "State") hereby acknowledges itself
indebted, and for value received hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner hereo f named
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Sum specified above on the Maturity Date specified
above (unless this bond shall have been duly called for prior redemption and payment of the
redemption price shall have been duly made or provided for), upon Jqig34ition and surrender
hereof to the State Treasurer in Nashville, Tennessee, or other**?*þte appointed for
the purpose, and lo pay interest on the Pnnclpal Sum? and September 1
commencing March 1, 2009, at the Interest Ra-R>. above calculated on the
basis of a 30-day month and a 360-day ycal·C--? redemption premium, ifany, and
interest on this bond are payable in any coin ?p*mcy of the United States of America, which
at the time of such payment is legal tender for puütic and private debts.

The bonds of the issue of which this bond is one (the "Bonds") maturing on and
after September 1,2017, shall be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturitîes at any time
on and after September 1, 2016, at the option of the State, in installments of $5,000 or any
integral thereof; as a whole, or in-part from time to time in any order of maturity determined by
the State and by lot within a maturity, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount or
portion thereof to be redeemed, plus interest accrued on such principal amount or portion thereof
to the date fixed for redemption.

If this bond (or a portion hereof in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof) is redeemable and shall be called for redemption, notice of the redemption hereof,
specifying the designation, date, number, and maturity of this bond, the date and place fixed for
its redemption, principa[ amount to be redeemed ifless than the entire principa[ amount hereof,
and the redemption price payable upon such redemptìon, shall be given not less than 30 days
prior to the redemption date by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of this
bond at the address ofthe Registered Owner as shown in the bond register as kept by the State or
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
2008 SERIES A

Registered Regístered
R2008A-26-1 $6,290,000

BOND INTEREST MATURITY
DATE RATE DATE CUSIP

September 1,2008 4 500% September 1,2026 880541 JZ1

Registered Owner: Cede & Co

Principal Sum: Six Million Two Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars

THE STATE OF TENNESSEE (the "State") hereby acknowledges itsel f
indebted, and for value received hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner hereof named
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Sum specìfied above on the Maturity Date specified
above (unless this bond shall have been duly called for prior redemption and payment of the
redemption price shall have been duly made or provided for), upon presentation and surrender
hereof to the State Treasurer in Nashville, Tennessee, or other agent of the State appointed for
the purpose, and to pay interest on the Principa[ Sum semi-anmtally oqkffn,M?ndS4tember 1
commencing March 1, 2009, at the Interest Rate per ártnu lü 82??i,lþ.,4?Icøìàted on the
basis of a 30-day month and a 360-day year Prjr aid ròêlë??·? , if any, and
interest on this bond are payable in any coin odtm- HJ;dzWótates ofAmerica, which
at the time of such payment is lega] tender forp* nd ate debts.

The bonds of the issue ofwhich this bond is one (the "Bonds") maturing on and
after September 1,2017, shall be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at any time
on and after September 1, 2016, at the option of the State, in installments of $5,000 or any
integral thereof, as a whole, or in part from time to time in any order ofmaturity determined by
the State and by lot within a maturity, at a redemption price equa[ to the principal amount or
portion thereofto be redeemed, plus interest accrued on such principal amount or portion thereof
to the date fixed for redemption.

If this bond (or a portion hereof in installments of$5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof) is redeemable and shall be called for redemption, notice of the redemption hereof,
specifying the designation, date, number, and maturity of this bond, the date and place fixed for
its redemption, principal amount to be redeemed if less than the entire principal amount hereof,
and the redemption price payable upon such redemption, shall be given not less than 30 days
prior to the redemption date by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of this
bond at the address of theRegistered Owner as shown in the bond register as kept by the State or

E-1-2

2349355.6 038682 AGMT



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
2008 SERIES A

Registered Registered
R.2008A-27- ] $6,290,000

1

BOND INTEREST MATURITY
DATE RA1'E DA'1E CUSIP

September 1, 2008 4.500% September 1, 2027 880541 KA4

Registered Owner. Cede & Co

Principal Sum: SixMillion Two Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars

THE STATE OF TENNESSEE (the "State") hereby acknowledges itself
indebted, and for value ieceived hereby piomises to pay lo the Registeied Owner hereof named
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Sum specified above on the M?*y Date specified
above (unless this bond shall have been duly called for prior redel,0hM payment of the
redemption price shat[ have been duly made or proviqsá **?ŠyÿtllaR?i and surrender
hereof to the State Treasurer in Nashville, Tennei??d?ze,???íl• lñE State appointed for
the purpose, and to pay interest on thePrincipè?fje:??Wj?v on March 1 and September 1
commencing March 1, 2009, at the Interest R?Q#* aimüm specified above calculated on the
basìs of a 30-day month and a 360-day year. PMñcipal of and redemption premium, if any, and
interest on this bond are payable în any coin or currency ofthe United States ofAmeric4 which
at the time ofsuch payment is legal tender for public and private debts.

The bonds of the issue of which this bond is one (the "Bonds") maturing on and
after September 1,2017, shall be subject to redemption prior to their stated ínaturities at any time
on and after September 1, 2016, at the option of the State, ìn installments of $5,000 or any
integral thereof, as a whole, or in part from time to time in any order ofmaturity determined by
the State and by lot within a maturity, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount or

ponion thereof to be redeemed, plus interest accrued on such principal amount or portion thereof
to the date fixed fòr redemption.

If this bond (or a portion hereof in installments of $5,000 or any ìntegral multiple
thereof) is redeemable and shall be called for redemption, notice of the redemption hereof;
specifying the designation, date, number, and maturity ofthis bond, the date and place fixed for
its redemption, principal amount to be redeemed if less than the entire principal amount hereof,
and the redemption price payable upon such redemption, shall be given not less than 30 days
prior to the redemption date by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner ofthis
bond at the address ofthe Registered Owner as shown ìn the bond register as kept by the State or
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
2008 SERIES A

Registered Registered
R2008A-28-1 $6,290,000

BOND INTEREST MATURITY
DATE RATE DATE CUSIP

September 1, 2008 4 500% September 1,2028 880541 KB2

Registered Owner: Cede & Co.

Principal Sum: Six Million Two Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars

THE STATE OF TENNESSEE (the "State") hereby acknowledges itself
indebted, and for value received hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner hereof named
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Sum specified above on the Maturity Date speciñed
above (un[ess this bond shall have been duly called for prior redîã'ti,190? payment of the
redemption price shall have been duly made or provided for).t*911*f0,¥tì" and surrender
hereof to the State Treasurer in Nashville, Tennessee4* f'?*1%4*I•ttale appointed for
the purpose, and to pay interest on thePrincipgl?ð?,?,¿0*yßohMarch land September 1
commencìng March 1, 2009, at the Interest th?*i *gern specified above calculated on the
basis of a 30-day month and a 360-day year RWIcipal of and redemption premium, ìf any, and
interest on this bond are payable in any coin or currency of the United States ofAmerica, which
at the time of such payment is legal tender fòr public and private debts.

The bonds of the issue ofwhich this bond is one (the "Bonds") maturing on and
after September 1, 2017, shall be subject to redemptíon prior to their stated maturities at any time
on and after September 1, 2016, at the option of the State, in installments of $5,000 or any
integral thereof as a whole, or in part from time to time in any order ofmaturity determined by
the State and by lot within a maturity, al a redemption price equal to Lhe pr jlìcipal amount or
portion thereofto be redeemed, plus interest accrued on such principal amount or portion thereof
to the date fixed for redemption

If this bond (or a portion hereof in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof) i: redeemable and shall be called for redemption, notice of the redemption hereof,
specifying the designation, date, number, and maturity ofthis bond, the date and place ñxed for
its redemption, principal amount [o be rcdeemed if less than the entire principal amount herôúc
and the redemption price payable upon such redemption, shall be given not less than 30 days
prior to the redemption date by first class mail, postage prepaid. io the Registered Owner of this
bond at the address orthe Registered Owner as shown in the bond register as kept by the State or

E-1-4
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redemption may be made conditional upon the availability of sufficient moneys to pay the
redemption price, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date. Notice having been
given in the manner provided, the bonds or poïtions thereof so called for redemption shall
become due and payable on the redemption date specified in such notice, subject to such
conditional notice provisions. If such notice shall have been given and payment hereof duly
made or provided for, interest hereon shall cease to accrue and become payable from and after
the date so specified for the redemption hereo£ Upon presentation and surrender ofthis bond at
the office specified in such notice, together with, in the case this bond is presented by other than
the Registered Owner, a wrítten instrument oftransfer duly execu,ed by the Registered Owner or
the Registervd Owner'S duly authmized represe,Itative, this bond, or portions he,eof, so called
for redemption shall be paid at the redemption price set iòrth above. If less than all ofthìs bond
shall be redeemed, the State shall execute and deliver, upon the surrender ofthis bond, without
charge to the Registered Owner hereof, for the unredeemed balance of the princi pal amount of
this bond so surrendered, registered bond(s) of like maturity ìn authorized denominations.

Notwithstandmg the foregoing, so long as The Depository Tnlst Company or its
nominee ("DTC"), or any substitute depository, or successor, is the Registered Owner of this
bond as securities deposìlory under the rcsolution hereinafter mentioned, notice of redemption
may be given in the manner, and presentation and surrender of this bond may be waived to the
extent, agreed to by the State and DTC, or any substitute deposìtory, or successor, as the case

may be.

This bond shall have the qualities and f a negotiable instrument. This
bond shall be transferable only upon the bond =dh¥!eì?m the State or its agent, by the
Registered Owner or Registered Owner'4?4? representative in writing, upon
presentation and surrender to the State (w*t@Øk>»7'Is bond together with a written instrument
of transfer satisfactory to the Stat,-i'?F?i?' by the Registered Owner or the Registered
Owner's duly authorized repres? in the manner, subject to the limìtations and
upon payment of the charges, if1114* provided in the resolution of the Funding Board of the
State of Tennessee authorizing the#uance ofthe bonds of the issue ofwhich thìs bond is one,
and upon surrender hereof for cancellation Upon the transfer of this bond, the State shall
authenticate and deliver in the name ofthe transferee a new registered bond or bonds of the same

series, aggregate principal amount, interest rate and matunty as this bond

The State may treat the person in whose name this bond is ?egimered on the
registry bo oks as the absôlute owner of this bond for all purposos, including payment,
notwithstanding any notice to the contrary.

This bond is one of an issue of bonds aggregating S 125,800,000 of like date,
issued under and pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State
of Tennessee, including but not limited to various Pubíic Acts of Tennessee and ·Title 9,
Chapter 9, Tennessee Code Annotated, and a resolution adopted by the Funding Board of the
State of Tennessee on June 30,2008, including as a part thereof a Series Certificate executed and
delivered on September 4,2008 (collectively, the "Resolution"), to provide for the payment at

maturity of a portion of the State's outstanding general obligation bond anticipation notes

constituting commercial paper and fòr public purposes Of várious State departments and
institutionl Refcrencc is made tothc Resolution, to âll ofthe provisions ofwhich the Registered

2
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Owner, by acceptance hereof, hereby assents, for all terms and provisions òf this bond not set
forth herein-

This bond and the issue of which it is one are direct general obligations oí Lhe
State for the payment ofwhich as to both principal and interest Lhe full faith and credit of the
Štate ís pkdgcd. As additional security for principal of and interest on the bonds, there is also
pledged the annual proceeds of a tax of up to five cents per gallon upon gasoline; the annual
proceeds of a special tax of one cent per gallon on petroleum products: one-half of the annual
pro ceeds ofmotor vehioie registration ftes now or høreafler required ro be paid to [he State; and
the annual proceeds ofthe franchìse taxes imposed by the franchise ta>: law ofthe State Aj} of
the bonds oflhc issue ofwhich this bond is one, together with interest thereon, are entitled to the
benefit of the foregoing taxes, fees and revenues and to share therein pro ram with any other
obligations of the Srate that might bc entitled to share thereiø as provided by Sections 9-9-10 !
to 9-9-208, inclusive, TennesseeCode Annotated, as amended

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND DECLARED that all acts
conditions and things required to exist happen and be performed precedem to and in the issuance
of this bond exist, have happened and have been perfonned in due time, form and manner as

required by the Constitution and laws of the State, and that the amount õf this bond, together
with all other indebtedness ofthe State, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation
thereon, and that thìs bond is within every constítutiogi'42d statutory limitation.

[Continll.$?g.q,?jng Page]
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[N Wl l'NESS WHEREOF, the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee has
caused this boizd to be exëct,töci in [he name ot- the State by the manual or facsimile signature of
lhe Governor, the State Treasurer, rhe Secretary of State, the Coiìiptrolkr o f [hc Treasury, or the
Assistant Secretary of the Funding Board ofthe Slate of- 'lennessee, and counlersigned by the
manual or facsimkie signature of one omer of such omcers, one of which signatures shall he

manual, with the Great Seal ofthe State of Tennessee, or a facsimik Ihci·cof, attached hereto ür

impressed or imprinted hcreon, and this bond [o be dated as ofthe Bond Date specified above.

STATE OF TENNESSEE

By:. ?QJ-JL
A„(horized Ofíîce[

€*
Countersignep

By \
Ào<D

A?ìthúrized Officer

4
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ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

Please insert social
security or other tax
identifying number of
assignee

(name and address of assignee)

the within-mentioned bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
, attorney-in-fhct, to transfer

the same on the bond register in the office of the Comptroller of the Treasury of the State of
Tennessee or an øgent of the State appointed for the purpose, with full power of substitution in
the premises.
Date

(name of assignor)

(address ofassignor)
Signature Guaranteedr?p

NOTE: The sigñature to this assìgnment must correspond with the name as written on the
face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement or any
change whatsoever.

5

E-1-8
2349355.6 038682 AGMT



FXH[BIT E-2

Specimen 2009C Refunded Bonds
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATIONBOND
2009 SERIES C

Registered Registered
R09C-26-1 $11,795,000

BOND B?TEREST MATURITY CUSIP
DATE RATE DATE

December 16, 2009 5.000% May 1,

Registered Owner: Cede & Co.

880541MT1

Principal Sum: ELEVEN MILLION SEVEN HtkDR¥NINEI"r-FIVE THOUSAND
DOLLARS

THE STATE OF TE "State") hereby acknowledges itself
indebted, and for value received hereby ?FE?hises ,ñay to the Registered Owner hereof named
above, or registered assigns, the Prígfiï41 Surr#pacificd above on the Maturity Date specified
above (unless this bond shail hávûÆhn?hlq#Ealled for prior: redemption and payment of the
redemption price shall have bee??hrïl?le or provided fòr), upon presentation and surrender
hereof to the State Treaswe,1?237?Wø? Tennessee, or cthei agent of the State appointed for
the purpose, and to pay int? thfþríncipal Sum semi-annually on May 1 andNovember 1

commencing May 1, 20?, atl;€ierest Rate per annum specified above calculated on the basis
ofa 30-day month an?J?da/),ear. Principal ofand interest on this bond are payable în any
coin or currency of t?if}d States of America, which at the time of such payment is lègal
lender for public and p, i™p'Úebls.

The bonds of the issue ofwhich this bond is one (the "Bonds") maturing on and
after May 1, 2019, shall be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at any time on

and after May 1, 2018, at the optiön of the State, in installments of $5,000 or any integral
thereof, as a whole, or in part from time to time in any order ofmaturity determined by the State
and by lot within a maturity, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount or portion
thereof to be redeemed, plus interest accrued on such principal amount or portion thereof to the
date fixed for redemption.

If this Bond (or a portion hereof in installments of$5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof) is redeemable and shall be called for redemption, notice of the redemption hereof,
specifying the designø?ion, daie? number, and maturity ofthis Bond, the date and place fixed for
its redemption, principal amount to be rcdcemed if less than the entire principa] amount hereof
and the redemption price payable upon such redemption, shall be given not less than 30 days
prior to the redemption date by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of this
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
2009 SERIES C

Registered Registered
R09C-27-1 Sll,795,000

BOND INTEREST MATURITY cusm
DATE RATB DATE A

December 16,2009 5.000% May 1,*? 880541MU8

Registered Owner: Cede & Co.

Principal Sum: ELEVEN MILLION SEVE?fÜI RØ NINETY-FIVE ™OUSAND
DOUARS

TIŒ STATE OF TEN-??iSILE? "State") hereby acknowledges itself
indebted, and for value received hereby/romises ipay to the Registered Owner hereof named·
above, or registered assigns, the Prilifi??ŽËØ;peçified above on the Maturity Date specified
above (unless this bond shall hav?en.a•Vca]Ied for prior redemption and paÿment of the
redemption price shall have bee#*?w?!e or provided for). upon presentation and alrrender
hereof to the State Treasure?#Vasíijb<,= Tennessee, or other agent of the State appointed for
the purpose, and to pay indf?? th?Principa! Sum semi-annuhlly oß May ] and'November 1
commencing May 1,20 161 at(fjç,cresì Rate per annum specified above calculated on the basis
of a 30-day month ar,?ì?daf year Principa] of and intereàt on this bond are payable in any
coin or currençy of tl»€ni?cl States of America, which M the time of such payment ìš legal
tender for public and pri#8cbis

The bonds of the ìssue ofwhich this bond is one (the "Bonds') maturìng on and
aftcr May ], 2019, shall be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at any time on

and afler May ], 20 ]8, at the option of the State, in installments of $5,000 or any integral
thereof, as a whole, or in part from time to time in any order ofmaturity deten-nined by the State
and by lot within a maturity, a[ a redemption pricc equal to the pri,Icipal amo,nt or ponion
thereof to be rcdeemcd, plus interest accrued on such principal amount or ponion thereof to the
date fixed for redemption.

Ifthis Bond (or a portion hereof in installments of $5,000 or any ìntegra[ multiple
ther,300 is redeemable and shall bc c,tlled for redemption, notice of tbe redemption hereof,
specifying the designatiog date, number, and maturity of this Bond, the date and place fixed for
its redemption, principal amount to be redeemed if lesi man the entire principal amount hereof,
and Ihe redemption price payable upon such redemption, shall be given not less Ihan 30 daysi
prior to the redemption dâíe by first claß mai!, postage prepaid. to the Registered Owner ofthis

E-2-2
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATIONBOND
2009 SERIES C

Registered Registered
R09C-28-1 $11,795,000

BOND INTEREST MATURITY CUSIP
DATE RATE DATE ,

December 16, 2009 5.000% May 1,2,?? 880541MV6

Registered Owner: Cede & Co.

Principal Sum: ELEVEN MILLION SEVEN H ?NINETY-FIVE IHOUSAND
DOLLARS

THE STATE OF TENNESSEE? "State") hereby acknowledges itself
indebted, and for value-received hereby?Ghises ØF pay to the Registered Owner hereof named
above, or registered assigns, the Princií?LE!#pecifíed above on the Maturjty Date specified
above (unless this bond shall hafjl?n 1=rcalled for prior redemption and payment of the
redemption price shall have beel?0'*ic or provided for), upon presentation ·and Surrender
hereof to the State Trea?rewl!?aslly, Tennessee, or other agent of the State appointed fòr
tbe purpose, and to pay in/?t!/ì ththincipal Sum semi-annually on May 1 and November 1
commencing May },284 at crest Rate per annum specified above calculated on the basis
of a 30-day month a,/a láQdar year Principal ofand interest onthis bond are payablein any
coin or currency of tf?d States of America, which at the time of such payment is legal
tender for public and pri,?ebts.

The bonds ofthe issue ofwhich thls bond is one (the "Bonds") matunng on and
after May 1, 2019, shall be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturitîeß at any time on
and añcr May 1, 2018, at the option ofthe State, ìn inätailmcnts of $5,000 or any ìmegral
thereof, as a whole, or in part from time to time in any order ofmaturity determined by the State
and by lot within a maturity, al a redemption price equal to the principal amount or ponion
thereofto be redeemed, plus interwt accnied on such principal amount or portion thereof to the
date fixed for redemption.

If this Bond (or a portion hereof in installments of$5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof) ìs redeemable and shall bc called for redemption, notìce of the redemption hereof
specifying the designation, date, m:mber, and maturity ofthis Bond, the date and place fixed for
its redemption, principal amount to be rédeemed if less than the entire principal amount hereof,
and the redemption price payable upon such redemption, shall be given not less than 30 days
prior to the redemption date by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of this

E-2-3
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
2009 SERIES C

Registered Registered
R09C-29-1 $11,795,000

BOND INTEREST MATURITY CUSIP
DATE RATE DATE

December 16,2009 5.000% May 1,

Registered Owner: Cede& Co. ÁŽ 880541MW4

Principal Sum: ELEVEN MILLION SEVEN }ALD?NINBTY-FIVE THOUSAND
DOLLARS

THE STATE OF TENA!?#SEI?ü*c "State") hereby acknowledges itself ?

indebted, and for value received hereby /Šmises, pay to the Registered Owner hereofnamed
above, or registered assigns, the P,i,Eil.1 Sun#ipccìficd above on the Maturity Date specified
above (unless this bond shall hav/hnlhl?called for prior redemption and paymwt of the
redemption price shall have bcci?I?n?Je or provided for), upon presentation and surrender
hereof to the State Treasl-]ret,?àlaí?IE Tennessee, or other agent of the State appointed for
the purpose, and to pay inTÆtA th<Fì'rincipal Sum semi-annually on May 1 and November 1

commencing May 1, 2{UQ; atl???erest Rate per annum specified above calcutated on the basis
ofa 30-day month an/T'm-da,ycar. Principal ofand interest on this bond are pàyable ih any
coin or currency of MJK?cl States of America, which at the time of such payment is legal
tender for public and pril?fdtbts

The bonds of the issue ofwhich thìs bond is one (the "Bonds") maturing on and
aíkr May 1, 2019, shall be subject to rcdcmptìon prior to their stated maturilies at any time on
and añcr May 1, 20 Í 8, at the option of the State, ìn installments of $5,000 or any integral
thereof, as a whole, or in part 6-om time to time in any order ofmaturity dete-rnineð by the State
and by lot within a maturity, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount ér pottìon
thereof to be redeemcd, plus interest accrued on such principal amount or portion thereof to the
date fixed for redemption.

If this Bond (or a portion hereofin inatallments of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof) is redeemable and shall bc called for redemption, notìce of the redemption hereof,
specifying the designation, dat< number, and maturity of thiaBond, the date and place fixed for
its redemption, principâl amount to be redeemed if less than thc ent ire principai amount hereof
and the redemption prke payable upon such redcmp,ion, shall be given not less than 30 days
prior lo the redemption date by first class mail. postage prcpaid, to the Regiscered Owner ofthis

E-2-4
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
2009 SERIES C

Registered Registered
R09C-30-I $11,795,000

BOND INTEREST MATURITY ÇUSIË
DATE RATE DATE ,

December 16,2009 5.000% May 1,20?•4 880541MX2

Registered Owner: Cede & Co 'G: Y
Principal Sum: ELEVEN MILLION SEVENJ-T I? 'IHOUSAND

DOLLARS

THE STATE OF TEIWZSEE,gk "State") hereby acknowledges itself
indebted, and for value received herebyüromises ipay to the Règistered Owner hereof named
above, or tegistered assigns, the Príüfi;?Lžu?Øpecified above on the Maturity Date specifiedabove (unless this bond shall ha'?126n_ r-na]Ied for prior redemption and payment of the
redemption price shall have bee8?iq?c or provided fòr),upon presentation and surrender
hereof to the State Treasurc011?Iasllï?E, Tennessee, or other agent of the State appointed for
the purpose, and to pay inW?ü,Ih the Principal Sum semi-annually on May 1 and November ]
commencing May 1, 2;?, at tm,?ßefest Rate per annum specified above calculated on the basià
of a 30-day month aníajb?dafyear. Principal ofand interest on this bond are páyable in any
coin or currency of d¥Unifld States of America, which at the time ofsuch payment is legal
tender fòr public and pri<debts.

The bonds ofthe issue ofwhich this bond is one (the "Bonds") maturing on and
afterMay 1, 2019, shall be subject to redemption prior to iheir stated mafurities at any time on
and after May 1, 2018, at the option of the State, in inätatlmertta*of $5.000 or any integral
thereof,:asa whok or in part from time to time in any crder ofmaturity determined by the State
and by lot within a maturity, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount or portion
thereof to be redéemed, plus interest accrued on such principal amount or portion thereof ro tile
date fixed for redemption.

If this Bond (or a portion hereof in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereol ia reòeemable and shall be ca I led for redemption, notice of the redemption hereof
specifýing the designation, date, iìumber, and maturity ofthis Bond, the date and place fbced R,r
íts redemption, principal amount to be rcdeemed if tess Ihan the entire principal amount hereof,
and the redemption price payable upon such redemption, shsll be given not [ess than 30 days
prior to the redemptìon date by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Regístered Owner of this

E-2-5
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bond at the address of the Registered Owner as shown in the bond register as kept by the State of
its agent as of the 45th calendar day preceding the redemption date Any notice of optional
redemption may-be made conditional upon the availability of sufficient moneys to pay the
redemption price, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date. Notice having been
given in the manner provided, the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall
become due and payable on the redemption date specified in such notice, subject to such
conditional notice provisions If such notice shall have been given and payment hereof duly
made or provided for, interest hereon shall cease to accrue and become payable from and after
the date so specified for the redemption hereof. Upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at
the office specified in such notice, together with, in the case this bond is presented by other than
the Registeied Owner, a written instrument of transfcr duly executed by the Registered Owner or
the Registered Owner's duly authorized representative; this Bond,?L portions hereof, so called
for redemption shall be paid at the redemption price set forth ab-ic. 1?lßss than all of this Bond
shall be redeemed, the State shall execute and deliver, upon,ålž?€%?MI- of this Bond, without
charge to the Registered Owner hereof, for the unredeen?g#f'Ì01apcyf the principal amount of
this Bond so surrendered, registered Bond(s) of likemáth??u?orized denominations.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, so 1?ž=,41?,? cpository Trust Company or its
nominee C'DTC"), or any substitute depositor, or gn?Fibr, is the Registered Owner of this
Bond as securities deposìtory under the re®gll'%,p her after mentioned, notice of redemption
may be given in the manner, and pme,14'ie:, a'al-ender of this Bond may be waived to the
extent, agreed to by the State and DTC/!7kny swífštitute depository, or successor, as the case

may be.

Thiš Bond shall? (%@lities and incidents of a negotiable instrument. This
bond shall be transferable o/,?/pðl??rbond register kept by the State or its agent, by the
Registered Owner or Rea©:,/ Ow#w's duly authorized representative in writing, upon
presentation and m,rrendei 1? State or its agent of this Bond together with a written
instrument of trangfei?*ctc,19 to the State duly executed by the Registered Owner or the
Regístered Owner's a horized representative but only in the manner, subject to the
limitations and upon payl?m ofthe charges, ifany, as provided in the resolution ofthe Funding
Board of the State of Tennessee authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, and upon surrender
hereof for cancellation Uponthe transfer ofthis Bond, the State shall authenticate and deliver in
the name of the transferee a new registered Bond or Bonds of the same series, aggregate
principal amount, interest rate and maturity as this Bond

The State may treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered on the

registry books as the absolute owner of this Bond for all purposeå, including payment,
notwithstanding any notice to the contrary.

This Bond is one of an issue of Bonds aggregating $235,890,000 of like
date, issued under and pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution
and laws of the State ofTennessee, including but not limited to various Public Acts of Tennessee
and Title 9, Chapter 9, Tennessee Code Annotated, and a resolution adopted by the Funding
Board of the State of Tennessee on October 20, 2009, including as a part thereof a

Series Certificate executed and delivered on December 16, 2009 (collectively, the "Resolution"),
I to fund certain capital projects and to provide for the payment at maturity of a

portion of the State's outstanding general obligation bond anticipation notes

2
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constituting commercial paper for publìc purposes of various State dei}anments and institutions.
Reference is made to the Resolution, to all ofthe provisions ofwhich the Registered Owneí, by
acceptance hereof, hereby assents, for all terms and provisions of this Bond not set forth herein.

This Bond ánd the issue ofwhich it is one are direct general obligations of the
State for the payment of which as to both principal and interest the full faith and credit of the
State is pledged. As additional security for principal of and interest on the Bonds, there is also

pledged the annual proceeds of a tax of up to five cents per gallon upon gasoline; the annual

proceeds of a special tax of one cent per gallon on petroleum products; one-half of the annual
proceeds ofmotor vehicle registration fees now or hereafter required to be paid to the State; and
the annual proceeds of the franchise taxes imposed by the franchtæ tax law ofthe State. All of
the Bonds, together with interest thereon, are entìtled to the b,£?TÞ?[ the foregoing taxes, fees
and revenues and to share therein pro rata with any other o#01!Çhl the State that might be
entitled to share therein as provided by Sections 9-9-101 1,1.í}-Ýa.indusive? Tennessee Code
Annotated, as amended.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, I?äGN?.??D DECLARED that a]1 acts,
conditions and things required to exist, happenJndl?fdi&,ed precedent to and în the issuance
of this Bond exist, have happened and bavellen pei?¥kned in due time, form and manner as

required by the Constitution and lawsof,pí? that the amount of this Bond, together
with all other indebtedness of the S tate,,1* not ql/zed any constitutional or statutory limitation
thereon, and that this bond is within ev•?y coi,ý?,{Æipnal and statutory limitation.

IN WITNESS 'V?? Funding Board of thc State of Tennessee has

caused this Bond to be executaí i?lf¢g?he of the Statt by the manual or facsimile signature of
the Governor, the State Tr,00??, th¥Gcretary ofState, the Comptroller of the Treasury, or the
Assistánt Secretary of tb/A#nß Board of the State of Tennessee, and countersigned by the
manual or facsimile,ißaturé?Vone other of such officers, one of which signatures shall be
manual, with the Gr4,49 flíle State ofTennessee, or a facsimile thereof, attached hereto or

impressed or ilíìprinteò-?0?, and this bond to be dated as of the Bond Date specified above.

STATE OF TENNESSEE
(SEAL)

By
Authorized Officer

Countersigped

\A#. <Ügul.*Í/-
.--

Authoyled Officer ?j,0'

3
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ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

Please insert social
security or other tax
identifying number of
assignee

(name and a?[ess ofassignee)

the within-mentioned bond and hereby kreva?# .?h?stitutes and appoints
, attorney-ìn-fact, to transfer

the same on the bond register in the ofñce of the Coïuwoií-of the Treasury of the State of
Tennessee or an agent of the State appointed for t!0?*2?ñ,îth full power of substitution in
the premises.
Date: éy¥(name of assignor)

<) (address of assìgnor)
Signátt,rd#rant?

NOTE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as written on the
face ofthe within Bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement or any
changewhatsoever.

4
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Ihis Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking") is dated and made
as of August 19, 2014, by the State of Tennessee (the "State") in connection with the issuance ot
the State's $111,065,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, 2014
Series A, and $79,160,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, 2014
Refunding Series B (collectively, the "Bonds"). As authorized by Section 10 ofthe resolution
(the "Bond Resolution") of the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee (the "Funding Board")
adopted on June 18, 2014, authorizing the Bonds, the State agrees as follows:

ARTICLE I

Definitions

Section 1.1. Definitions. The following terms used in this Undertaking shall
have the following respective meanings:

(1) Annual Financial Information" means (i) updated versions of the
following financial information and operating data contained in, or incorporated by reference
pursuant to an Appendix to, the Official Statement with respect to the State, for each fiscal year
of the State:

. Total Special Tax Collections
Total Sales and Use Tax Collections
Allocation of Sales and Use Tax to Debt Service

. Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness

. Long-Term General Obligation Bonded Debt Service by Fiscal
Year and Maturity

* Maximum and Actual Principal Amounts of Commercial Paper
Outstanding
Other Post-Employment Benefits

Unfunded Actuarial Liability
Annual Required Contribution

Rainy Day Fund Reserve Balance
TennCare Budget Growth

9 Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
Statistical data
Tables

Debt of Certain Agencies and Authorities
Tennessee Local Development Authority
Tennessee State School Bond Authority
Tennessee Housing Development Agency
Watkins Institute
State Veterans' Homes Board

1209269.2
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The statistical data incorporated by reference in Appendix B to the
Official Statement

and (ii) the information regarding amendments to this Undertaking required pursuant to
Sections 4.2(c) and (d) of this Undertaking. Annual Financial Information shall include Audited
Financial Statements, if available, or Unaudited Financial Statements.

The descriptions contained in clause (i) above of financial information and
operating data constituting Annual Financial Information are of general categories or types of
financial information and operating data. When such descriptions include information that no
longer can be generated because the operations to which it related have been materially changed
or discontinued, a statement to that effect shall be provided in lieu ofsuch information.

t-9) :6Audited Financial Statements" means the annual financial statements of
the State. audited by the Comptroller of the Treasury, Division of State Audit, as now required
by State law (or such other auditor as hereafter may be required or permitted by State law).
Audited Financial Statements shall be prepared in accordance withGAAP.

(3) "Counsel means Hawkins Delafieid & Wood LLP or other nationally
recognized bond counse[ or counsel expert in federal securities laws, in each case acceptable to
the State.

(4) "EMMA" means the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access system
or its successor.

(5) "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles for
governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board, or any successor to the duties and responsibilities of
either ofthem.

(6) "MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 15B(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or any successor to the MSRB or the functions of the MSRB contemplated by this
Undertaking.

(7) "Notice Event" means any of the following events with respect to the
Bonds:

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies;
(ii) non-payment related defaults, ifmaterial;

(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

2
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(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
(vi) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of

proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue
(IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with
respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the
tax status of the Bonds;

(vii) modifications to rights of Bondholders, ifmaterial;
(viii) bond calls, ifmaterial. and tender offers;
(ix) defeasances;
(x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds,

ifmaterial;

(xi) rating changes:
(xii) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event ofthe State;

(Note to clause (xii): For the purposes of the event identified in
clause (xii) above, the event is considered to occur when any of the
following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar
officer for the State in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in
any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or
government authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all ofthe
assets or business of the State, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by
leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession
but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization,
arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having
supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business
of the State.)

(xiii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the
State or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the State, other
than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive
agreement to undertake such action or the termination of a definitive
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if
material; and

(xiv) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of
a trustee, ifmaterial.

(8) "Notice Event Notice" means notice of a Notice Event.

3
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(9) "Official Statement" means the Official Statement dated July 17, 2014 of
the State relating to the Bonds.

(10) "Rule"means Rule 1502-12 promulgated by the SEC under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (17 CFR Part 240, §240.15e2-12), as in effect on the effective date hereof,
including any official interpretations thereof.

(11) "SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

(12) "Unaudited Financial Statements" means the same as Audited Financial
Statements, except that they shall not have been audited.

ARTICLE II

ThèUndèrtáktng
Section 2.1. Purpose. This Undertaking is being executed, delivered and made

solely to assist the underwriters ofthe Bonds in complying with subsection (b)(5) ofthe Rule.

Section 2.2. Annual Financial Information. The State shall provide Annual
Financial Information with respect to each fiscal year of the State, conunencing willi tlte fiscal
year ending June 30,2014, by no later than 7 months after the end ofthe respective fiscal year, to
the MSRB.

(a) The State shall provide, in a timely manner, notice of any failure of the
State to provide the Annual Financial Information by the date specified in subsection (a) above
to the MSRB.

Section 2.3. Audited Financial Statements. If not provìded as part of Annual
Financial Information by the date required by Section 2.2(a) hereof because not available, the
State sha] 1 provide Audited Financial Statements, when and if available, to the MSRB.

Section 2.4. Notice_Events. If a Notice Event occurs, the State shall provide,
in a timely manner not in excess often (10) business days after the occurrence of such Notice
Event, a Notice Event Notice to the MSRB.

(a) Any such notice of a defeasance of Bonds shall state whether the Bonds
have been escrowed to maturity or to an earlier redemption date and the timing of such maturity
or redemption.

Section 2.5. Additional Disclosure Obligations. The State acknowledges and
understands that other State and federal laws, including but not limited to the Securities Act
of 1933 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, may apply to
the State and that, under some circumstances, additional disclosures or other action in addition to
those required by this Undertaking may be required to enable the State to fully discharge all of
its duties and obligations under such laws.
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Section 2.6. Additional Information. Nothing in this Undertaking shall be
deemed to prevent the State from disseminating any other information, using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Undertaking or any other means of communication, or including
any other information in any Annual Financial Information or Notice Event Notice, in addition to
that which is required by this Undertaking. If the State chooses to do so, the State shall have no
obligation under this Undertaking to update such additional information or include it ìn any
future Annual Financial Information or Notice Event Notice.

Section 2.7. Preàéiís Compliance. The State represents that except as may be
disclosed in the Official Statement, within the five (5) years preceding the date of the Official
Statement it has not failed to comply in any material respect with any previous undertaking in a
written contract or agreement specified in paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule.

ARTICLE III

Oþernting Rules
Section 3.1. Reference to Other Documents. It shall be sufficient for purposes

of Section 2.2 hereof if the State provides Annual Financial Information by specific reference to
documents (i) available to the public on the MSRB Internet Web site (currently,
www.emma.msrb.org) or (ii) filed with the SEC. The provisions of this Section shall not apply
to Notice Event Notices pursuant to Section 2.4 hereof.

Section 3.2. Submission of Information. Annual Financial Information may be
provided in one document ormultiple documents, and at one time or in part from time to time.

Section 3.3. Fttinn with (Zertain Disšëminøtiörr Agéñtš or Cöhdüits. The State
may from time to time designate an agent to act on its behalf in providing or filing notices,
documents and information tls required of the State under this Undertaking, and revoke or

modify any such designation.
Section 3.4. Transmìssíon of Notices, Documents and Information. Unless

otherwise required by the MSRB, all notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB
shall be provided to EMMA, the current Internet Web address ofwhich is www.emma.msrb.org.

(a) All notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB shall be
provided in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB (currently, portable document
format (pdf) which must be word-searchable except for non textual elements) and shall be
accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

Section 3.5. Fiscal Year. The State's current fiscal year is July 1 - June 30.
The State shall promptly notify the MSRB ofeach change in its fiscal year.

(a) The State shall provide Annual Financial Information at [east annually
notwithstanding any fiscal year longer than 12 calendar months.

5
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ARTICLE IV

Ížf*éti¥6Dæïfï'erminfifiép, Amendment and Enforcement
Section 4.1. Effëëti¥*:Døléí:'ranínatíen. This Undertaking shall be effective

upon the issuance of the Bonds.

(a) The State's obligations under this Undertaking shall terminate with respect
to each Bond upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full ofsuch Bond.

(b) This Undertaking, or any provision hereof, shall be null and void in the
event that the State (1) receives an opinion of Counsel to the effect that those portions of the
Rule which require this t Jndertaking, or such provision, as the case may be, do not or no longer
apply to the Bonds, whether because such portions ofthe Rule are invalid, have been repealed, or
otherwise, as shall be specified in such opinion, and (2) delivers copies of such opinion to the
MSRB.

Section 4.2. Amendment. This Undertaking may be amended without the
consent of the holders of the Bonds, if all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) such
amendment is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in
legal (including regulalory) requirements, a change in law (including rules and regulations) or in
interpretations thereof, or a change in the identity, nature or status of the State or the type oí
business conducted thereby, (2) this Undertaking as so amended would have complied with the
requirements of the Rule as of the date hereof, after taking into account any amendments or

interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances, (3) the State shall have
received an opinion of Counsel to the same effect as set forth in clause (2) above, (4) the State
shall have received either an opinion of Counsel or a determination by a person, ìn each case
unaffiliated with the State, to the effect that the amendment does not materially impair the
interests of the holders of the outstanding Bonds, and (5) the State shall have delivered copies of
such opinion(s) and amendment to the MSRB.

(a) This Undertaking may be amended without the consent of the holders of
the Bonds if all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) an amendment to the Rule is
adopted, or a new or modified official interpretation of the Rule is issued, after the effective date
hereof which is applicable to this Undertaking, (2) the State shall have received an opinion ot
Counsel to the effect that performance by the State under this Undertaking as so amended will
not result in a violation of the Rule as so amended or officially interpreted and (3) the State shall
have delivered copies of such opinion and amendment to the MSRB.

(b) To the extent any amendment to this Undertaking results in a change in
the categories or types of financial information or operating data provided pursuant to this
Undertaking, the first Annual Financial Information provided thereafter shall include a narrative
explanation of the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change in the type ot
operating data or financial information being provided.

(c) If an amendment is made pursuant to Section 4.2(a) hereof to the
accounting principles to be followed by the State in preparing its financial statements, the
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Annual Financial Information for the fiscal year in which the change is made shall present a

comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis ot the new
accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. Such
comparison shall include a qualitative and, to the extent reasonably feasible, quantitative
discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of the change in the
accounting principles on the presentation ofthe financial information.

Section 4.3. Contract Bene?tt Third-Þartý Benefiëíãrièm Enforcement rhe
provisions of this Undertaking shall constitute a contract with and inure solely to the benefit of
the holders from time to time of the Bonds, except that beneficial owners of Bonds shall be third-
party beneficiaries of this Undertaking and shall be deemed to be holders of Bonds for purposesof Section 4.3(b) hereof. The provisions of this Undertaking shall create no rights in any person
or entìty except as provided in this subsection (a).

(a) The obligations of the State to comply with the provisions of this
Undertaking shall be enforceable by any holder of outstanding Bonds; however, the holders ,

rights to enforce the provisions of this Undertaking shall be limited solely to a right, by action in
mandamus or for specific performance, to compel performance of the State's obligations under
this Undertaking.

(b) Any failure by the State to perform in accordance with this Undertaking
shall not constitute a default or an event of default under the Bond Resolution or State law and
shall not result in any acceleration of payment of the Bonds, and the rights and remedies
provided by the Bond Resolution and applicable State law upon the occurrence of such a default
or an event of default shall not apply to any such failure.

(c) This Undertaking shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with
the laws of the State, and any suits and actions arising out of this Undertaking shall be instituted
in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State; provided, however, that to the extent this
Undertaking addresses matters of federal securities laws, including the Rule, this Undertaking
shall be construed in accordance with such federal securities laws and official interpretations
thereof.

Section 4.4. Effective Date. This Undertaking shall be effective upon the
issuance and delivery by the State of the Bonds.

STATE OF TENNESSEE

Bÿ.
Sändra Thompson F
Assistant Secretary, Funding Board
of the State of Tennessee, and

Director, Office of State and Local Finance,
State of Tennessee

7
2348904, i 038682 C[.D



NOTICE OF SALE

Dated November 7, 2012

State of Tennessee

General Obligation Bonds

$140,000,000* 2012 Series B
$30,545,000* 2012 Refunding Series C (Federally Taxable)

Electronic Bids, as Described Herein
Will Be Accepted Until

**9:30 a.m. Central Standard Time
for Series B Bonds

and
**10:00 a.m. Central Standard Time

for Series C Bonds

on November 14, 2012

Subject to change both before and after award as provided herein.
** Subject to change before the sale date and time as provided herein.



CONTACTS

Issuer

State of Tennessee
Mary-Margaret Collier (615) 747-5370
Director, Office ofState and Local Finance Fax: (615) 741-5986
Suite 1600 James K. Polk Building mary.margaret.collier@cot.tn.gov
Nashville, TN 37243-0273

Cindy Liddell (615) 747-5348
Bond Accountant, Office of State and Local Finance Fax: (615) 741 5986
Suite 1600 James K. Polk Building cindy. liddell@cot.tn.gov
Nashville, TN 37243-0273

Sandra Thompson (615) 747-5369
Assistant Director, Office of State and Local Finance Fax: (615) 741 5986
Suite 1600 James K. Polk Building sandi.thompson@cot.tn.gov
Nashville, TN 37243-0273

Bond Counsel

Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP
Steven I. Turner (212) 820-9462
One Chase Manhattan Plaza Fax: (212) 820-9615
New York, NY 10005 sturner@hawkins.com

Financial Advisor

Public Financial Management, Inc.
Lauren Lowe (901) 682-8356
530 Oak Court Drive, Suite 160 Fax: (901) 682-8386
Memphis, TN 38117-3722 lowel@pfm.com

BiDCOMP™/PARITY

Customer Service (212) 849-5021

i-Deal Prospectus
Customer Service (212) 849-5024



RESOLUTION OF THE STATE FUNDING BOARD TO
APPROVE SALE OF REAL ESTATE FINANCEDWITH
THE PROCEEDS OF THE SALE OF TAX EXEMPT

BONDS OR NOTES

WHEREAS, Section 9-9-113(b), Tennessee Code Annotated (the "Section"), provides that no
change, amendment ormodification ofa project or program funded with the proceeds oftax exempt bonds,
notes or other obligations shall be authorized or allowed unless such change, amendment or modification
is approved by the state funding board; and

WHEREAS, seven (7) separate parcels of real property i.e. 3213 Toddway Court, Nashville, TN;
3244 Knobview Drive, Nashville, TN and lots 3,5,12,13 and 17 of the Shelby Meadows Subdivision,
Arlington, TN (collectively, the "Properties") were purchased with the proceeds of tax exempt bonds or
notes for use by the Department ofIntellectual and Developmental Disabilities ("DIDDS") as group homes;
and

WHEREAS, DIDDS has determined that the Properties are no longer needed for use as group homes
and may be sold; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Subcommittee ofthe State Building Commission has approved the sale
ofthe Properties; and

WHEREAS, two (2) of the Properties (3213 Toddway Court, Nashville, TN and 3244 Knobview
Drive, Nashville, TN) have been sold and the remaining five (5) parcels ofthe Properties are for sale; and

WHEREAS, the state funding board wishes to approve the sale of the Properties.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STATE FUNDNG BOARD:

SECTION 1. The sales of 3213 Toddway Court, Nashville, TN and 3244 Knobview Drive,
Nashville, TN shall be, and hereby are, RATIFIED and APPROVED.

SECTION 2. The sales ofthe remaining five (5) parcels ofthe Properties shall be, and hereby are,
APPROVED.

SECTION 3. The approvals set forth above are made in satisfaction of and pursuant to the
responsibilities assigned to this Board under the Section.

Adopted this 15th day ofSeptember, 2015.

hštin P. Wtímn, SECRETARY
rennessee State Funding Board



Projects Funded with GO Bonds Approved for Sale by SBC
Executive Subcommittee

3213 Toddway Courth $ 160,000.00 sold
3244 Knobview $ 193,000.00 sold
Lot 12 Shelby County $ 32,500.00
Lot 13 Shelby County $ 32,500.00
Lot 5 Shelby County $ 38,900.00
Lot 3 Shelby County $ 39,500.00
Lot 17 Shelby County $ 39,500.00



DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECIUAL & DEVELOPMENTAL DISABIUTIES

Land Transaction

Requested Action: Approval of disposal in fee with waiver of one appraisal
Description: Davidson County - 0.67+/-acres - 3213 Toddway Court, Nashville, TN - Trans. No.

13-12-003 (Baugh)
Purpose: Disposal in fee to sell excess property and a 2,080 sq. ft. residence, no longer

needed to build a new Intermediate Care Facility (ICF) home.
Estimated Price: Fair Market Value

Comment: DIDD has fulfilled its needs for construction of ICF homes in Middle Tennessee, and
this property is no longer needed for that purpose. Proceeds of the sale will be
deposited into the Intellectual Disabilities Trust Fund pursuant to TCA 12-2-117. The
department will use the deposited funds to repay debt incurred from the initial
purchase of this property as a part of the overall project for the construction of ICF
homes in Middle Tennessee. All proceeds in excess of the original purchase price of
this property will remain in the Intellectual Disabilities Trust Fund.

Date of last transfer: December 16,2011
Original Cost to the State: $160,000
Previous Owner: Armstrong
Property Assessor's Value:$175,30
Improvement Square Footage: 2,080

Minutes: 02/24/2014 ESC Approved disposal in fee with waiver of one appraisal

1
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DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL AND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Land Transaction

Requested Action: Approval of disposal in fee with waiver of one appraisal
Description: Davidson County - .083+/-acres - 3244 Knobview Dr., Nashville, TN - Trans. No.

14-10-010 (Baugh)
Purpose: Disposal in fee of property for which the agency has no use.

Estimated Price: Fair Market Value

Comment: DIDD has fulfilled its need for construction of Intermediate Care Facility homes (ICF)
in Middle Tennessee and this property is no longer needed for that purpose.
Proceeds of the sale will be deposited into an Intellectual Disabilities Trust Fund
(IDTF) pursuant to TCA 12-2-117. The department will use the deposited funds to
repay debt incurred from the initial purchase of this property as a part of the overall
project for the construction of ICF homes in West Tennessee. All proceeds in excess
of the original purchase price of this property will remain in the IDTF.

Fair market value is acceptable due to a vacant structure being located on the
property.
The Tennessee Historical Commission determined that this disposal will ngi
adversely affect this State-owned resource of 50+ years, and no further action is
necessary.

Date of last transfer: February 18, 2011
Original Cost to the State: $193,000
Previous Owner: Adam & Christy Twining
Property Assessor's Value: $194,100
Square Footage Improvements: 2,433

Minutes: 11/24/2014 ESC Lance Iverson presented the request. Subcommittee approved
disposal in fee with waiver of one appraisal.

SBC Executive Subcommittee - November 24, 2014 Page 7 of 25



F.
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL AND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Land Transaction

Requested Action: Approval to revise the estimated sale price
Description: Shelby County - 2.16+Aacres - Lot # 12 Shelby Meadows Subdivision, Arlington, TN

- Trans. No. 12-10-019 (Baugh)
Purpose: Disposal in fee to sell property.
Estimated Sale Price: Fair Market Value, not less than the original cost to the State

Comment: Proceeds from the sale of this property will be available to the Department of
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities as authorized by TCA 12-2-117 (e). The
department will use the deposited funds to repay debt incurred from the initial
purchase of this property as a part of the overall project for the construction of I
Intermediate Care Facility homes. All proceeds in excess of the original purchase
price of this property will remain in the Intellectual Disabilities Trust Fund.

Date of last transfer: August 14,2009
Original Cost to the State: $32,500
Previous Owner: Trustmark National Bank
Property Assessor's Value: $46,700
Improvements Square Footage: Vacant land

Previous Action: 01/20/2009 ESC Approval to purchase the property for construction of a four
bedroom group home. Trans. No. 08-12-020.
11/19/2012 ESC Approved disposal in fee with waiver of one appraisal.

Minutes: 03/24/2014. ESC Approved revision in the estimated sale price.

SBC Executive Subcommittee - March 24, 2014 Page 21 of 29



H.
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL AND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Land Transaction

Requested Action: Approval to revise estimated sale price
Description: Shelby County - 2.18+/-acres - Lot # 13 Shelby Meadows Subdivision, Arlington, TN

-Trans. No. 12-10-021 (Baugh)
Purpose: Disposal in fee to sell property.
Estimated Sale Price: Fair Market Value, not less than the original cost to the State

Comment: Proceeds from the sale of this property will be available to the Department of
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities as authorized by TCA 1 2-2-117 (e). The
department will use the deposited funds to repay debt incurred from the initial
purchase of this property as a part of the overall project for the construction of
Intermediate Care Facility homes. All proceeds in excess of the original purchase
price of this property will remain in the Intellectual Disabilities Trust Fund.

Date of last transfer: August 146,2009
Original Cost to the State: $32,500
Previous Owner: Trustmark National Bank
Property Assessor's value: $47,000
Improvements Square Footage: Vacant land

Previous Action: 01/20/2009 ESC Approval to purchase the property for construction of a four
bedroom group home. Trans. No. 08-12-021.
11/19/2012 ESC Approved disposal in fee with waiver of one appraisal.

Minutes: 03/24/2014. ESC Approved revision in the estimated sale price.

SBC Executive Subcommittee - March 24, 2014 Page 23 of 29



E.
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL AND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Land Transaction

Requested Action: Approval to revise the estimated sale price
Description: Shelby County - 2.0+/-acres - Lot # 5, Shelby Meadows Subdivision, Arlington, TN -

Trans. No. 12-10-018 (Baugh)
Purpose: Disposal in fee to sell property.
Estimated Sale Price: Fair Market Value, not less than the original cost to the State

Comment: Proceeds from the sale of this property will be available to the Department of
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities as authorized by TCA 12-2-117 (e). The
department will use the deposited funds to repay debt incurred from the initial
purchase of this property as a part of the overall project for the construction of
Intermediate Care Facility homes. All proceeds in excess of the original purchase
price of this property will remain in the Intellectual Disabilities Trust Fund.

Date of last transfer: August 14, 2009
Original Cost to the State: $38,900
Previous Owner: Trustmark National Bank
Property Assessor's Value: $44,500
Improvements Square Footage: Vacant land

Previous Action: 01/20/2009 ESC Approval to purchase the property for construction of a four
bedroom group home. Trans. No. 08-12-022.
11/19/2012 ESC Approved disposal in fee with waiver of one appraisal.

Minutes: 03/24/2014. ESC Approved revision in the estimated sale price.

SBC Executive Subcommittee - March 24, 2014 Page 20 of 29



D.
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUALAND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Land Transaction

Requested Action: Approval to revise the estimated sale price
Description: Shelby County - 2.0+Aacres - Lot # 3,Shelby Meadows Subdivision, Arlington, TN -

Trans. No. 12-10-017 (Baugh)

Purpose: Disposal in fee to sell property.
Estimated Sale Price: Fair Market Value, not less than the original cost to the State.

Comment: Proceeds from the sale of this property will be available to the Department of
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities as authorized by TCA 12-2-117 (e). The
department will use the deposited funds to repay debt incurred from the initial
purchase of this property as a part of the overall project for the construction of
Intermediate Care Facility homes. All proceeds in excess of the original purchase
price of this property will remain in the Intellectual Disabilities Trust Fund.

Date of last transfer: August 14,2009
Original Cost to the State: $39,500
Previous Owner: Trustmark National Bank
Property Assessor's Value: $44,500
Improvements Square Footage: Vacant land

Previous Action: 01/20/2009 ESC Approval to purchase the property for construction of a four
bedroom group home. Trans. No. 08-12-023.
11/19/2012 ESC Approved disposal in fee with waiver of one appraisal.

Minutes: 03/24/2014. ESC Approved revision in the estimated sale price.

SBC Executive Subcommittee - March 24, 2014 Page 19 of 29



G.
DEPARTMENT OF INTELLECTUAL AND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Land Transaction

Requested Action: Approval to revise the estimated sale price
Description: Shelby County - 2.0+/-acres - Lot # 17 Shelby Meadows Subdivision, Arlington, TN

- Trans. No. 12-10-020 (Baugh)
Purpose: Disposal in fee to sell property.
Estimated Sale Price: Fair Market Value, not less than the original cost to the State

Comment: Proceeds from the sale of this property will be available to the Department of
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities as authorized by TCA 1 2-2-117 (e). The
department will use the deposited funds to repay debt incurred from the initial
purchase of this property as a part of the overall project for the construction of
Intermediate Care Facility homes. All proceeds in excess of the original purchase
price of this property will remain in the Intellectual Disabilities Trust Fund.

Date of last transfer: August 26,2009
Original Cost to the State: $39,500
Previous Owner: Trustmark National Bank
Property Assessor's Value: $44,500
Improvements Square Footage: Vacant land

Previous Action: 01/20/2009 ESC Approval to purchase the property for construction of a four
bedroom group home. Trans. No. 08-12-024.
11/19/2012 ESC Approved disposal in fee with waiver of one appraisal.

Minutes: 03/24/2014. ESC Approved revision in the estimated sale price.

SBC Executive Subcommittee - March 24, 2014 Page 22 of 29
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